Anant Z Bella

from: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Thurs y,5A ril 2018105 A
To: Vehicle Standards; Adam Shaw
Cc: Scott G Notley

Subject: RE: Towing capacities

Yes Shane.

And it so happens that towing capacity upgrade by way of GCM or Tow Capacity ratingis not there in any SSM.
That particular clause in L511 is superfluous and needs to be removed, as | mentioned to Scott.

Regards

Anant Bellary
vehicle Standards & Acereditation
Transport § Mailn Roads

From: Vehicle Standards

Sent: Thursday, 5 April 2018 10:52 AM

To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Adam Shaw <Adam.M.Shaw@tmr.qld.gov au>
Cc: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Towing capacities

Good morning

Please see the email frory Notrelevant in regards to towing capacity increases. My thoughts are the LS11 covers it
well and can only be done if it is part of a SSM.

Kind regards,

Shane Lonsdale

Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Transport Regulation Branch | Departinent of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street Brisbane 4000

PO Box 673 | Forlitude Valley Qld 4006

P: 3066 3469

E: vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au

W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au

qld.gov.avfjointhaddy

From; Notrelevant [maifto " "**“'@atozimports.net]
Sent: Thursday, 5 April 2018 10:19 AM
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To: Vehicle Standards <vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Towing capacities

Hi Vehicle standards team

Over the past several months we have had an increasing number of people enquiring about towing capacity
upgrades, It seems as if many people are under the impression that if they have their GYM upgraded they also
increase the towing capacity of the vehicle.

Whilst | understand this is not the case | am not sure everyone carrying out the LS11 codes actually do ? As some of
our potential customers reject our services for others that can supposedly increase not only the GVM but also the

towing ca pacity.

Is there any intention to add a code that will in fact address the possibility of increasing the towing capacity on light
vehicles ? As | am quite confident in saying that many of the vehicles being modified ,&speciaily the ones that have
an extra axles added would easily qualify to have the towing capacity increased.

If transport where to address this by way of a specific code with strict parameters and guidelines it would then
ensure people are not mistakenly re rating towing capacities under the LS11 code and with companies like Creative
conversions turning out Landcruisers with 4200kg GVM and a 4220kg towing capacity on second stage vehicles then
I think you will see an increase in people wanting similar things with used vehicie.

I don’t think that sort of increase is warranted but | do think that some type of allowable increase needs to be

considered for some vehicles ?

Thanks for your time and possible consideration of this matter

Regards

Not relevant

Eng Aust 4179060

SAE Aust 14482

NSW vsces Certifier 130016
Approved person Qid 2791
Approved inspector QLD 15653

12 Leonard Parade
Currumbin QLD 4223
Ph# 617 55345957
MOb# Not relevant |

atozimports.com
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Frid y 13 nl 201812: 4
To: Scott G Notley

Subject: RE: Type Approval issues ARB
Hello Scott,

Some suggested changes in red for your consideration please.

Regards

Anant Bellary
Vehicle Standards § Acereditation
Transport § Maln Roads

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Thursday, 12 April 2018 11:33 AM

To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z Bellary@tmr.gld.gov.au>
Subject: Type Approval issues - ARB

This email might need a bit more polish from you Anant?

A quick summary of issue and plan of attack!
Background

S&A has, for over ten years, been issuing ¥ype Approvals to some businesses for series modifications,
including GVM upgrades on in<service light vehicles This was done at a time when there was no standard
code in the Queensland Code af Practice {QCOP) for doing so. These Type Approvals are conditional on the
business holding a current Second Sia e of Manufacture (SSM} approval issued by DIRDC for the same
make/model new vehicles.

As it was discovered thit these Type Approvals do not meet the regulatory requirements for vehicle
inspection and certification, S&A have taken steps to transition these approvals to certification under the
QCoP.

Initially, in March’2017, TMR issued the LS11 (GVM upgrade) code as part of the Queensfand Code of
Practice (QCOP).As a result, businesses can now rerate GVM of eligible in-service vehicles and certify the
same using(thie 1511 code. Effectively the code LS11 has made it not necessary to issue type approvals to
this type of modifications in future. Because of the technical nature of the LS11 code, engineering
qualificationsare required.

However action is also required to smoothly transition the existing Type Approvals into QCoP. To that end,
earfier this year, TMR introduced a new code LX1 code and wrote to all Type Approval holders to confirm
that signatories needed to obtain this code (and the supporting trade-based code LS10) to continue
providing GVM upgrades in accordance with their Type Approval. This process of transitioning to QCoP has
been in place since 1 April 2018. So far no Type Approval holder has raised any difficulty in adopting the LX1
code.
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Itis expected that GVM upgrades to in-service vehicles based on new SSM approvals {for which no Type
Approval was ever issued by TMR) would be certified using the dedicated LS11 code. This is considered as
the best approach to eventually phase out the Type Approvals as they do not meet the regulatory
requirements.

Representation by ARB

ARB is a business that holds several SSM approvals and a Type Approval TA.030 based ¢n thiase S5M
approvals for GVM upgrade on various make/model light vehicles. Just before the introduction of LX1 code
in April 2018, ARB had applied to TMR requesting update to its Type Approval TA.030 in line with the
updates to its underlying SSM approvals. The request also contained one new SSM approval which was
never part of ARB’s current Type Approval TA.030.

With the imminent introduction of LX1 code to transition all Type Approvais, the ARB’s request to update its
Type Approval TA.030 has been kept pending.™ relevant _|and Netretevant from ARB recently
met with S&A team to convey that if the Type Approval TA.030 is not updated, as requested, ARB is likely to

face difficulties including:

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial affairs
[}

e BothNotrelevant and Netelvant | pelieve that the involvement of an LS11 AP does not add value to
the process as, in their observation, the L511 AP caniducts only a cursory inspection before fitting
the mod plate.

The Analysis

S&A team agreed to analyse ARB’s aboye concerns and develop solution(s) to address them, if possible. The
rest of this message outlines the outcome of that analysis and the potential solution.

S&A is conscious that any potentiai-sclution needs to satisfy the following essential criteria:

e The solution must b€ based on the QCoP codes and must lead to eventual phasing out of the
current Type Approval TA.030

e The solution mustfeequitable to other Type Approval holders in similar situation and must not
result in selective commercial advantage to ARB.

e The solutionmast/not result in certifications that are not based on physical inspection of the
modified vehicle. In other words, certification must not be done remotely.

Though the LX1code was developed to address the remoteness of some of the Type Approval holders’ shop
fronts, TMiR understands that some Type Approval holders have transitioned to using the LS11 Engineering
code in ailareas, rather than the LX1 code, particularly in remote areas. A secret shopper approach revealed
(as was suspected) that the LS11 plate may be getting mailed out to remote shop fronts where the local
buéiness owner doing the work is attaching the plate. This is contrary to the AP business rules and the
interitions underlying the code LS11. This revelation also needs to be considered when developing solution

to address ARB’s concerns.

The Solution

After due deliberations, the following solution is proposed for ARB {and any other Type Approval holder in
similar situation):
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TMR to update the current Type Approval TA.030 held by ARB to reflect the updates in the
underlying SSM approvals, as requested by ARB

TMR to advise ARB that GVM upgrades to in-service vehicles based on any new SSM approval {for
which no Type Approval was ever issued) may be performed using the 1LS11 code. This applies to one
new SSM approval in ARB's current pending list .

LS11 (GVM upgrade) and LS12 (trailer modifications including ATM upgrade) are currently combined
design and modification codes, meaning {a) they require engineering qualifications and (b) the same
code can be used to provide model design certification and also to certify an individual vehicle
modified according to that model design certification. Note that recently code LS14 has been
introduced for light trailers to compliment LS12. The new LS14 code, among ciher things, provides
for certification of a trailer modified according to model design provided in LS12. Thus LS12 {model
design certification) and LS14 (certification of modification on individua! vehicle) work in a
complimentary way. Consider adopting similar approach with LS11 code by developing a
complimentary LS15 code. Unlike LS11, trade based quaiification wili be adequate for the new LS15
code. This solves the difficulty of remoteness when obtaining proper certification.

Make suitable changes to LS11 code to reflect the provision of new LS15 code.

Meet with ARB to inform and explain the proposed solution, Pat Refuse Seh 4 Part 4 5.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/profes

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(b)'B'usiness/commercial/professional/ﬁnancial affairs

Note that the LS11 model design certification is one G requirement for each make/model, can be
performed where suitably qualified person is available and is not a recurring cost for the business.
Note also the LS15 modification certification wili be done on each vehicle after physical inspection,
which can be performed by suitably trade-qualified person likely to be available in remote areas.
Institute audit framework to ensure that the twin codes LS11+LS15 and 1512+L514 function properly
as intended.

Consult further with alf Type Approval and LS11 holders prior to implementing the new code.

TMR to advise all Type Approval Holders and APs holding LS11 code that if GVM upgrade is provided
using LS11 code, vehicles must be physically inspected by the person providing the LS11
certification.

This approach would also mean that ethers businesses providing GVM upgrades in remote locations would
no longer need to distort or cifcumvent requirements by certifying vehicles remotely.

Scott Notley

A/Director (Standaics and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 / €1 hiary St Brisbane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valiey Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 f 3253 4453 I m Not relevant

e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au
w www.imr.gld.gov.au
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary
Sent: on ay 23

To: Scott G Notley
Subject: Re: Type Approvals

Okay. Thanks.

Regards
Anant

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Monday, 23 April 2018 12:39 PM
To: Anant Z Bellary

Subject: Re: Type Approvals

Yes! He read my email which you had input to and discussed with-me.

Happy days!

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director (Industry Accreditation and Authorisation}
Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division

t 07 3338 4082 | f 07 3338 4640 | | Notrelevant
e scott.g.notley@tmr.qld.gov.au
w www.itmr.gld.gov.au

On 23 Apr 2018, at 11:07 am, Anani Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au> wrote:

And may | ask what was it that was discussed on last Friday that Nigel found "practical,
balanced, reasoned" and 2l that sort of things?

Does this means we don't need any meeting to convince Nigel of anything?

Regards
Anant

Froa: Nige!l G Ellis

Sent: Monday, 23 April 2018 8:08 AM
To: Scott G Notley

Cc: Anant Z Bellary; Adam Shaw
Subject: FW: Type Approvals
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Scott, as mentioned Friday afternoon, the proposed solution seems practical to me, and
provides a balanced and reasoned solution to the business needs of the industry. Thanks,

Nigel.

Kind regards,

Nigel Ellis
A/Executive Director (Transport Access & Use) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roaxds

Floor 10 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qid 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
(07} 3066 7176 |  (07) 3253 4453

" Not relevant

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Monday, 16 April 2018 10:04 AM

To: Nigel G Ellis <nigel.g.ellis@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.gld.gov.au>;, Adam Shaw
<Adam.M,Shaw@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: Type Approvals

Nige,

When you get a chance, [ Would like to discuss the plan of attack for Type Approvals as well.
See details below.

Background

S&A has, for over ten years, been issuing Type Approvals to some businesses for
modifications, including GVM upgrades on in-service light vehicles. This was (and continues
to be) done at a time when there was no standard code in the Queensland Code of Practice
(QCOP) for doing so. These Type Approvals are conditional on the business holding a
current Second Stage of Manufacture (SSM) approval issued by DIRDC for the same
make/model new vehicles.
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Type Approvals do not meet the regulatory requirements for vehicle inspection and
certification, S& A have taken steps to transition these approvals to certification under the
QCoP

Initially, in March 2017, TMR issued the LS11 (GVM upgrade) code as part of the
Queensland Code of Practice (QCOP). As a result, businesses can now rerate G¥M of
eligible in-service vehicles and certify the same using the LS11 code. Effectively the-code
LS11 has made it not necessary to issue type approvals to this type of modifications in
future. Because of the technical nature of the LS11 code, engineering qualifications are
required.

However action is also required to smoothly transition the existing Type’Approvals into
QCoP. To that end, earlier this year, TMR introduced a new code X1 code and wrote to all
Type Approval holders to confirm that signatories needed to obtain this code (and the
supporting trade-based code LS10) to continue providing/ G VM upgrades in accordance with
their Type Approval. This process of transitioning to QCeP has been in place since 1 April
2018. So far no Type Approval holder has raised any gifficulty in adopting the LX1 code.

It 1s expected that GVM upgrades to in-service ¥chicles based on new SSM approvals (for
which no Type Approval was ever issued by TM R)would be certified using the dedicated
LS11 code. This is considered as the best approach to eventually phase out the Type
Approvals as they do not meet the regulatory-requirements.

Representation by ARB

ARB is a business that holds several SSM approvals and a Type Approval TA.030 based on
those SSM approvals for GVM upgrade on various make/model light vehicles. Just before
the introduction of LX1 ¢ode in April 2018, ARB had applied to TMR requesting update to
its Type Approval TA.03% in Jine with the updates to its underlying SSM approvais. The
request also contained one new SSM approval which was never part of ARB’s current Type
Approval TA.030.

With the imminent intioduction of LX1 code to transition all Type Approvals, the ARB’s
request to undateits Type Approval TA.030 has been kept pending. [N " rand
otrelevant from ARB recently met with S&A team to convey that if the Type
Approval TA.030 is not updated, as requested, ARB is likely to face difficulties including:

Part Refuse Sch.4 Pari 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial affairs
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Both Notrelevant ) o lieve that the involvement of an LS11 AP does not add
value to the process as, in their observation, the LS11 AP conducts only a cursory inspection
before fitting the mod plate.

Not relevant
and

The Analysis

S&A team agreed to analyse ARB’s above concerns and develop solutiofi(s)-to_address them,
if possible. The rest of this message outlines the outcome of that analysis-and the potential
solution.

S&A is conscious that any potential solution needs to satisfy the following essential criteria:

The solution must be based on the QCoP codes and/must lead to eventual phasing out of the
current Type Approval TA.030

The solution must be equitable to other Type Approval holders in similar situation and must
not result in selective commercial advantage to ARB.

The solution must not result in certifications that are not based on physical inspection of the
modified vehicle. In other words, certification must not be done remotely.

Though the LX 1 code was developed to address the remoteness of some of the Type
Approval holders’ shop fronts, TMR understands that some Type Approval holders have
transitioned to using the LT Engineering code in all areas, rather than the LX1 code,
particularly in remote areas. A’secret shopper approach revealed (as was suspected) that the
LS11 plate may be getting mailed out to remote shop fronts where the local business owner
doing the work is atiaching the plate. This is contrary to the AP business rules and the
intentions underlying the code LS11. This revelation also needs to be considered when
developing solution to address ARB’s concerns.

The Solution

After due deliberations, the following solution is proposed for ARB (and any other Type
Approval holder in similar situation):
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TMR to update the current Type Approval TA.030 held by ARB to reflect the updates in the
underlying SSM approvals, as requested by ARB

TMR to advise ARB that GVM upgrades to in-service vehicles based on any new SSM
approval {for which no Type Approval was ever issued) may be performed using the LS11
code. This applies to one new SSM approval in ARB’s current pending list .

LS11 (GVM upgrade) and LS12 {trailer modifications including ATM upgrade} are currently
combined design and modification codes, meaning (a) they require engineering
qualifications and (b} the same code can be used to provide model design certification and
also to certify an individual vehicle modified according to that model design certification.
Note that recently code LS14 has been introduced for light trailers to compliment L512. The
new LS14 code, among other things, provides for certification of a trailer modivied
according to model design provided in LS12. Thus LS12 {model design certification) and LS14
{certification of modification on individual vehicle) work in a complimentary way. Consider
adopting similar approach with LS11 code by developing a complimentary £515 code. Unlike
LS11, trade based qualification will be adequate for the new LS15 code This solves the
difficulty of remoteness when obtaining proper certification.

Make suitable changes to LS11 code to reflect the provision of new LS15 code.

Meet with ARB to inform and explain the proposed solution, PatRefise Sch4 Part4s7(1)(c) Busine

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial affairs

Note that the LS11 model design certification is one ¢ofi requirement for each make/model,
can be performed where a suitably qualified perscn is avatiable and is not a recurring cost
for the business.

Note also the L515 modification certification will be done on each vehicle after physical
inspection, which can be performed by a suitably trade-qualified person likely to be
available in remote areas.

Institute audit framework to ensure that the twin codes L$11+L515 and LS12+1514 function
properly as intended.

Consult further with all Type Approvai and LS11 holders prior to implementing the new
code.

TMR to advise all Type Approval Holders and APs holding LS11 code that if GVM upgrade is
provided using LS11 code, vehicles must be physically inspected by the person providing the
LS11 certification.

This appréach weuid also imean that others businesses providing GVM upgrades in remote
locations weuldno longer need to distort or circumvent requirements by certifying vehicles
remotely.
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Regards

Scott Notley
A/Director (Standards and Accreditation)

Transpoit Regulation Branch
Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main

Roads

Floor 9/ 61 Mary St Brisbane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 | £ 3253 4453 | m Notrelevant

e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au

w www.tmr.qld.gov.au
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: on a 23A nl2018 3.35
To: Peter N Twining

Subject: Fw: Type Approvals

Hello Peter,

Welcome back (in one piece, | hope).
| am forwarding the below message for your info.
You are the kingpin in these matters and should stay in the loop.

Regards
Anant

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Monday, 16 April 2018 10:03 AM
To: Nigel G Ellis

Ce: Anant Z Bellary; Adam Shaw
Subject: Type Approvals

Nige,

When you get a chance, | would like to discuss the pfan.of-atigck for Type Approvals as well, See details below.

Background

S&A has, for over ten years, been issuing Type Approvals to some businesses for modifications, including GVM
upgrades on in-service light vehicies. This'was (and continues to be) done at a time when there was no standard
code in the Queensland Code of Practice (QEOP) for doing so. These Type Approvals are conditional on the business
holding a current Second Stage of Manufacture (SSM) approval issued by DIRDC for the same make/model new
vehicles.

Type Approvals do not meet the regulatory requirements for vehicle inspection and certification, S&A have taken
steps to transition these approvaidto certification under the QCoP.

Initially, in March 2017, TMRjissued the LS11 {GVM upgrade) code as part of the Queensland Code of Practice
(QCOP}. As a result, businesses can now rerate GVM of eligible in-service vehicles and certify the same using the
L511 code. Effectiveiy the ¢ode LS11 has made it not necessary to issue type approvals to this type of modifications
in future. Because of thea technical nature of the LS11 code, engineering qualifications are required.

However actionds also required to smoothly transition the existing Type Approvals into QCoP. To that end, earlier
this year, TMR intfoduced a new code LX1 code and wrote to all Type Approval holders to confirm that signatories
needed to obtain this code (and the supporting trade-based code LS10) to continue providing GVM upgrades in
accordance with their Type Approval. This process of transitioning to QCoP has been in place since 1 April 2018. So
far no Type Approval holder has raised any difficulty in adopting the LX1 code.
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Itis expected that GVM upgrades to in-service vehicles based on new SSM approvals {for which no Type Approval
was ever issued by TMR) would be certified using the dedicated LS11 code. This is considered as the best approach

to eventually phase out the Type Approvals as they do not meet the regulatory requirements.

Representation by ARB

ARB is a business that holds several SSM approvals and a Type Approval TA.030 based on those S5M approvals for
GVM upgrade on various make/model light vehicles. Just before the introduction of LX1 code in April 2018, ARB had
applied to TMR requesting update to its Type Approval TA.030 in line with the updates to its underlying SSM
approvais. The request also contained one new SSM approval which was never part of ARB's ctrrent Type Approval

TA.030,

With the imminent introduction of LX1 code to transition all Type Approvals, the ARB's reguest to update its Type
Approval TA.030 has been kept pending. Notreevan and | Notretevant from ARS recently met with S&A

team to convey that if the Type Approval TA.030 is not updated, as requested, ARB/is likely to face difficulties
including;

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial affairs

®  Both Notrelevant and et halieve that the involvement of an LS11 AP does not add value to the
process as, in their observation, the LS11 AP conducts only a cursory inspection hefore fitting the mod plate.

The Analysis

S&A team agreed to analyse ARB’s above concerns and deveiep solution(s) to address them, if possible. The rest of
this message outlines the outcome of that analysis and the potential solution.

S&A is conscious that any potential solution needs 1o satisfy the following essential criteria:

The solution must be based on the QCoP codes and must lead to eventual phasing out of the current Type Approval

TA.030
The sotution must be equitable to other Type Approval holders in similar situation and must not result in selective

COmmercial advantage to ARB.
The solution must not result in certifications that are not based on physical inspection of the modified vehicle. In

other words, certification must not be done remotely.

Though the LX1 code was developed to address the remoteness of some of the Type Approval holders’ shop fronts,
TMR understands that some Type Approval holders have transitioned to using the LS11 Engineering code in all
areas, rather than the LX1 code, particularly in remote areas. A secret shopper approach revealed {as was
suspected) that the LS11 plate may be getting mailed out to remote shop fronts where the local business owner

doing the wark is attaching the plate. This is contrary to the AP business rules and the intentions underlying the
code £S11. This revelation also needs to be considered when developing solution to address ARB’s concerns.

The Solution
After due daliberations, the following solution is proposed for ARB (and any other Type Approval holder in similay
situatiOn):

TMR to update the current Type Approval TA.030 held by ARB to reflect the updates in the underlying SSM
approvals, as requested by ARB
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¢ TMR to advise ARB that GVM upgrades to in-service vehicles based on any new SSM approval {for which no
Type Approval was ever issued) may be performed using the L511 code. This applies to one new SSM
approval in ARB'’s current pending list .

¢ 1511 (GVM upgrade) and LS12 (trailer modifications inctuding ATM upgrade) are currently combined design
and modification codes, meaning (a) they require engineering qualifications and (b) the same code can be
used to provide model design certification and also to certify an individual vehicle modified according to
that model design certification. Note that recently code LS14 has been introduced for light trailers to
compliment LS12. The new LS514 code, among other things, provides for certification of a trailer modified
according to model design provided in LS12. Thus LS12 {model design certification) and LS14 (certification of
maodification on individual vehicle} work in a complimentary way. Consider adopting simvilar apnproach with
LS11 code by developing a complimentary LS15 code. Unlike LS11, trade based qualification will be adequate
for the new LS15 code. This solves the difficulty of remoteness when obtaining proper certification.

e  Make suitable changes to L511 code to reflect the provision of new LS15 code. : _ R

. Meet Wlth ARB to il"lfOI'm and explain the proposed solution. Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial affairs

¢+ Note that the LS11 model design certification is one off requirement for each imake/model, can be
performed where a suitahly qualified person is available and is not a recurring cost for the business.

¢ Note also the L515 modification certification will be done on each vehicie after physical inspection, which
can be performed by a suitably trade-qualified person likely to ke available in remote areas.

s [nstitute audit framework to ensure that the twin codes LS11+L515 and LS12+LS514 function properly as
intended.

s Consult further with all Type Approval and L511 holders prior to implementing the new code.

¢ TMR to advise all Type Approval Holders and APs holding 1511 code that if GVM upgrade is provided using
LS11 code, vehicles must be physically inspected by the person providing the LS11 certification,

This approach would also mean that others businesses providing GVM upgrades in remote locations would no
longer need to distort or circumvent requirements by certifying vehicles remotely.

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director (Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 / 61 Mary St Brishane Cid 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Gld 4006
t 07 33384082 | £ 2253 4453 | m |Notrelevant

e Scott.G.Notley@tmyr.gld.gov.au

w www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary
Sent: Fri oy 1 ay2 182:12P
TO: Not relevant (TfN)', Not relevant
Not relevant @stategrowth.tas.gov.au)'; Not relevant (VicRoads)'; Not relev'arn
(TfN)', Not relevant @StategrOWth.taS.gOV.au)I; Not relevg
Not relevant (DPTI)" Not relevant @act_goy_au; Not relevant (RMS NSW)" Not relevant
W(DPTI)'; Not relevant {DPTI)'; Not relevant (NZTA)'; Not relevant
Not relevant
Subject: RE: GCM upgrades by 5SM

In Queensland regulation, GCM towing capacity of an in-service light vehicle can be set by only two
authorities (1) vehicle’s original manufacturer which is the first stage compliance plate approval holder or
(2) the chief executive of TMR.

For in-service vehicles, SSM holder or his nominee is not the vehicle manufacturer.

Here we do not accept any upgrade to GCM rated towing capacity - maximum braked towing mass on in-
service vehicles even if they are modified according to an SSM,

Regards

Anant Bellary
Vvehicle Standavds § Accreditation
Transport § Main Roads

Not relevant

From: @transpert.wa.gov.au)
Sent: Friday, 11 May 2018 1:33 PM
To: "o @act.gov.au>; Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au>;
Not relevant Not relevant

@tcansport.nsw.gov.au>;
potelerant @stategrowth.tas.gov.au}’ " e @Dstategrowth.tas.gov.au>; Notrelevant
(VicRoads)' | Notrelevant @roads.vic.gov.au>; | Notrelevant (TFN)' gNotrelevant — @ytransport.nsw.gov.au>;
[Notrelevant [fostategrowth.tas.gov.au)' " relevant ' @stategrowth.tas.gov.au>;
Not relevant (DPT')' «Notrelevani @Sa.gOV.aU>; Not relevant @act_go\;.au; Not relevant [RMS
NSW)' {Not relevant @rms.nsw.gov.aus>; Notrelevant (DPTI)' {Notrelevant @sa.gov.au>; O eevar
Not relevant DPT”' </ Not relevant @sa_gov_au>; Not relevant (NZTA)' Not relevant @nzta .govi.nz>;
Not relevant @ntngV.aU>; Not relevant @infrastructure.gov.au>; Not relevant

Not relevant

Subject: GCM vpgrades by SSM

@infrastructure.gov.au>

Hi all,

In light of AMYCB 226 what do we think of a LandCruiser with a 9500kg GCM. There is an RVD
488657 showing the Commonwealth has approved it.

| have an in-service application before us right now. You guessed it, claiming SSM equivalent.

Not relevant

Technical Policy and Services Coordinator | Driver and Vehicle Services | Department of Transport
21 Murray Road South, Welshpoot WA 6106

1
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Tel: (08) 92163894 | Fax: 92163899 | Mob: "o
Email Not relevant @transport.wa.gov.au l Web: www.transport.wa.qov.ay

* Fresh Thinking ¢ Excellent Service ¢ Great People

DISCLAIMER

This email and any attachments are confidential and may contain legally priviieged
and/or copyright material. You should not read, copy, use or disclose any of thic
information contained in this email without authorisation. If you have received it in
error please contact us at once by return email and then delete both emails. There is
no warranty that this email is error or virus free.
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Anant Z Bella

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Hello Shane,

Anant Z Bellary

ray 11 ay201 3:33
‘Shane F Lonsdale'
Peter N Twining; 'Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qgld.gov.au)'
Revised LS11 Code readied for implementation of new LS15 Code
LS 11 Version May 2018 V1.docx

As promised, see attached extensively revised LS11 code for internal stakéholder engagement:

Key features are:

1. GCM/towing capacity changes are removed, irrespective of SSM provisions for the same

2. Code has been readied for design certification, in anticipation of LS15 to take care of
modification certification

3. Loading beyond axle rating of OE manufacturer is prohibited

Next week is set for a draft of LS15.

Regards

Anant Bellary

Principal Engineer {Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transpont and Main Roads

mo

2

- anant.z.bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au
s www.imr.gld.gov.au
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Gross Vehicle Mass Rating of Light Vehicles
CODE LS11

1.0 Scope

The LS11 Modification Code specifies requirernente-arangements for rerating of the gross=~ -~ =-Earmatted: Justified

)

Gross vehisle-Vehicle mass-Mass (GVM) rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having
current GVM rating that does not exceeding 4 500 kg.

{a) atruek like light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame en—whiehwitr_’;gi, - 1 Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Condensed by 0.05 pt ]

a cabin andfor body is—-mounted on il. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, "<~ .7

---------------------------- « w | Formatted: Font: {Default) Arial, Condensed by 0.05 pt J
\ A

s

*"I'tt " I Formatted: List Paragraph, Justified, Numbered +
Forthe-purpese-of-this-code - The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holdifig the «*\ | Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Start at: 1 +

First Stage Identification Piate Approval (IPAJfirst-stage-manufaciurer. Any antity holding the ':l\\‘\'u"'ig"memi Left + Aligned at: 0.63 cm + Indent at; 1.27
(I H B
Second Stage Manufacturers (SSM) sueh-as-SSh-Approval or RAWS Approva! Holders aceis ‘:. \“\fl Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Condensed by 0.05 pt |
\

not sensidered-deemed as the original vehicle manufaciurer.

]
‘n“‘f Formatted: Font: {Default) Arial, Condensed by 0.05 pt |
1

;
\ -
In cases where a the originat vehicle manufacturer does-notspecify-an originalhas not specified ', Formatted: Condensed by 0.25 pt

the GVM rating fer—a—vehicle-\ the maximum laden mass pemitted_ by the original vehicle (LFormatted: Font: (Default) Arial

manufacturer for the purpose of showing compliance with the Austratian Dasign Rufes (ADRs) iFormaﬂed: Justified

)
|
J

somphance-is to be taken as the original GVM rating. This information st be obtained from a
reliable and traceable source.

1.1 Medifications-allowed-under-Code LS14What is permittea’,

Modifications that may be certified under Gede-LS11 /6ode-are:

* Upio 10% increase in the GVM rating given &y.ihe-aiginal vehicle manufacture = - = | Formatted: Justified, Bulleted + Leval: 1 + Aligned at

¢« Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in following cases: ! 0.63 ¢cm + Tab after: 1.27 cm + Indent at: 1.27 ¢cm

.

* lnerease—in—(i) GVM raling of anin-service vehicle that is same thes - - o rmatted: Justified Tab stops: Not at 1.27 erm

—

make/model/variant/chassis ssries as a vehicle having Second Stage of
Manufacture (SSM) approval fof GV rerating AND is modified in accordance with
a-the SSM Approval-approyval ANDthe SSM approvel holder has given explicit
permission for the SSM apfrgval’io be used as the basis for GVM rerating.same

makeimodelivarian
use-etthat-SSM-Appravalas-the basis)
- e e e e A e e p ’i Formatted: Foni: (Default) Arial
3 Formatted: Justified, No bulleis or numbering, Tab

+ [ncrease in GVM where an additional axle has been installed ..
{slops: Notat 2cm

~
»  Alteration of @ véhicliz's GVM rating to match a-lhe manufacturer’s altemative rating«. T
for a particular variant of that vehisle’s make/model s | em, Hanging: 0.63 ¢cm, Tab stops: Not at 2 ¢m
A}

. | Formatted: List Paragraph, Justified, Indent; Left: 0.63

-

&

. y . ! ’ *~ _ | Formatted: Justified, Tab stops: Not at 1.27 ¢m

~J

o

Notat 1.27 em

[Formaued: Justified, Indent; First line: 0 cm, Tab stops:
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Modifications-not-allowed-underGCode-LS1H1What is not permitted. .. - "[Formaned: Isified J

Modifications that must not be certified under Code- code

Moadifications other than those described in 1.1 above

o

. . fication):

! i G . SV opt dontical.

Reduction in GVM rating {apartheother than the re-rating a-vehicle 5-GVkto a- - - ~ Formatted: Justified, Tab stops: Not at 1.27 cm

manufacturer's optional GVM for that partisutarmake/model-ofvebicie).

Rerating of GVM insrease-te-zon & vehicle which has previously received & GVM
inerease-rerating (i-e-by way of SSM approval or: LS11 cogé/or atfothey Code of
Practice or ancther jurisdictional approval

increace-in-GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle that-is-maedified-In accordance
with an SSM Approval where-but the SSM Approval-aporoval holder has NOT
provided spproval-explicit permission to use the 85M Lpprovak-approval as the
basis.

Inerease in-GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle thatis-medified-in-assordance
with—a_Low Molumeon the basis of a concessional’5SM Appreval-approval (for
example, Low Volume or RAWS) but-whigre the number of vehicles is capped in
the SSM approval exceeded-the-SSMApprovapimit

+lpereas

ESM-approvat)

~—|nereasen-the-maximum-teviag Inass-rating—{uniess-in-aceerdance-with-an-SSM

approval)

approval}

GVM rerating whefe-praglicat loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle
beyond the ratjijg-byife Griginal vehicle manufacturer

Re-raling of velicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle

manufacturer's rating.

. Formatted: Justified, Tab stops: Not at 1.27 cm J

I

L

Formatted: Justified l

1

1.3 Towipg-Capacity and LS11 Code
GVM reratirig upnder LS11 code must not result in any increase in the towing capacity of

the velidle biyond that specified by the original vehicle manufacturer. This requirement must

RTI 135/05888 - File 1 - Page 19 of 143

-

-~

1

S

Formatted: Justified, Indent; Left: 1.91 cm, No bullets )
or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.9 cm

Formatted: Justified, No bullets or numbering, Tab
stops: Not at 1.9 cm




be metirrespective of how the towing capacity is specified or calculated and includes the terms
gross combination mass rating, the raled towing capacity and the maximum braked towing
mass rating.
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2.0 General Requirements

~{The vehicle must be able to safely aperate— - - - Formatted: Jusiifiea

atthe increased-rerated GVM. The critical components including the The chassis, drive-train,
axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres are-all-critical- sormponsnis whish-must
be assessed individually to ensure that essh—isthey are suitable to operate under the
increaced-loads resulting from inereased-the reraied GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements contained in sub-section 2 General
Requirements of the NCOP.

This code does not provide any assurance regarding the continued eligibility of the vehicle
for any warranty claims when operating at the rerated GVM. The certifying officer must
clarify this point to the modifier and the vehicle operator. Increased GVM has the potential
to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in some cases. Itis the
responsibility of the vehicle operator and Approved Person to consider any effect on
warranty that the modification may have.

2.1 Compliance with applicable vehicle standards - _l Formatted: Justified, Indent; First line: 0 cm

Modified vehicles must continue to comply with the ADRs to which they were originally— - - -  Formatted: Justified

construcied, except:
| different ADRs apply to_them due 1o the modification, in whish/zase they mustr._ - 1  Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

~

comply t_o those ADRs that are rgievant to the modified vehicle, N e mmmm e s L Formatted: List paragraph, Justified, Bulleted
e | + Aligned at: 1,14 ¢m + Indent at: L.77 cm

aad
. ' -y LFormalted Font: (Default} Arial
Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the Regulation}., /.~ ___ *. | Formatted: Justified
- - LN
. 'hMOdlﬁe? ;emCles must also comply with the applicable in-service requirem ' o | Formatted: List Paragraph, Justified, Bulleted + Level: 1
the regulation. N l+ Aligned at: 1.14 ¢m + Indent at: 1.77 cm
AT

. “\|: Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Itali¢

Modified pre-ADR vehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.

\
*\{ Formatted: Font; (Default) Arial

Cutlined below in Table LS11 are areas of the!(vehicle, that may be affected by the e -
| Formatted: Justified

modifications and may require re-certification, testing and/or data to show compliance of
the modified vehicle.

This is not an exhaustive list and comipliance (o other maedifications-ADRs may also be

affected -ABR-compliansce:
Table LS11
GOmphanse—thvappheab&e—AD&s; ut ofitems and likely affected ADRs
DETAIL . &Y REQUIREMENTS == | Formatted: Justified
Tyre and Rim Selection ADR 42/..
Hydraulic Brake Systems ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...
Brake Periormance Transport Operations (Road Use
Managemeni—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Regulation 2010

- "[Formatted: Justified
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The ADR according to the vehicle's category and date of manufacture.
It is the responsibility of the to refer to the
appropriate ADR  applicable to the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options of-upgradingthe vehicle’'s GVM,
2.2 GVM alteration based on Manufacturer's Option Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line: 0 cm
The change to the vehicle's GVM must replicate the manufacture's optional GVM for that- Formatted: Justified

particular make, model and varant of vehicle. Additionally, all components, inciuding
suspension, transmission, engine, brakes, tyre and rims, and so on must be fited and identical
to those specified for that particular vehicle's rated variant.

2.3 GVM Upgrade based on SSM Approval Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line: 0 cn

The ’ " rerated GVM must be the same as the SSM approved vehicle. All*- Formatted: Justified
upgraded compenents, including suspension, brakes, tyres and rivis, elc must be fitted and be
identical to those specified on the SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical modification replicating the SSM-approval, all the administrative
requirements specified under the SSM must also be met. These requirements can include but
are not limited to the following:

¢ The vehicle's first Identification Plate Appraval number must be identical to thal
mentioned in the SSM Approval.

¢ Ifthe S5M approval limits the number of vehicas to be supplied under it each year,
{for example, Low Volume 25 or 100 per-annum), the SSM approval holder must
ensure thal the same restriction s applies—applied to the number of vehicles
permitied-to-be-modified under this code

s GVM rerating of in-service vehiclésUsing LS11 code should not certified if the SSM
approval is no longer curren{and Ifas been suspended or cancelled.

-

*  When upgrading GVM in 2ccordsiice with an SSM approval the ceriificrcertifying AP+ - = 7 Formatted: Justified, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:
musl ensure the SSM Agpioval-approval holder has provided written permission for l1-14 em + Indent av: 1.77 cm

use of the SSM desiain as the basis.

= SAdditienally—ilf upgrading a GVM in accordance with a Low Volume SSM a
slatutory declaration must be obtained from the SSM holder stating no more
approvals than.the limit stipulated on the SSM have been provided. For example, if
the Low Volume-SSM restricts the number of vehicles to 25 per annum then the
SSM holder ca not provide permission for more than 25 in-service vehicles
to be modified)in that year (in addition to the 25 vehicles certified in accordance
vith their SGM approval .
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+  Nete—both-Both the written permission and statutory declaration from the SSM
holder must be retained by the Approved Person as evidence for certifying the

rerating of GVM upgrade-under this code.

p .
= = 7 Formatiad: [Ustified, Indent: First line:  em

GVM Upgrade by installation of an additional axle

if an additional axie is fitted to a vehicle {i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the vehicle’s— ~ ~ ‘{_gﬁnltted: Justified
Gvim may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the original vehicle manufacturer's
GvM rating, However, if the additional axle is load sharing with adjacent axle in the group
then the 10% limit on increase in GVM increase may be exceeded. The fitment of an
additional axle is permitted in Queensland under the LB2 modification code.

#=.~ ~ 7| Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line: O cm

J

2.5 GVM Upgradererating Qutside-outside of Manufacturer’s Option

—

]

AfinereasainA rerating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even if it is not an option by the = = 7 Formatted: Justified
vehicle manufacturer—n-these-cases-the-maxirmum-allowable-increase-to-the-veHicle 5 BVM

Provided the change Is no more than 10% abeve-the-vebicle’s from the original ranufaciurer's

GWM. However-ihe-acluatincrease-in-GVM-{rot-exceeding-10%)While the upper limilis, 10%,

the actual change possible is kmited by various factors including chassis, drive-train, axles,

SuUspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

PRrlisuiari-mustbe shecked-thatWhen rerating GVM the chassis, suspension, axles and drive
train components are-must be used within their-the vehicie manufacturer's rated capacities.
Where a component manufacturer has published information stating that reduced ratings apply

for gafety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

Typical modifications involved with irsreasingreraiing a vehicle's GVM include:

*  single axle to tandem axle configuration
- combination of replacement engine, transmission, zixles or suspension components and

Upgraded brake components

Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line; 0 cm

Formatted: Justified
The following specific requirements ritist be met.

vehl . . | .

3.1 Chassis

Chassis modifications must be performed in accordance with section H of Vehicle Standards
Bulletin 6 - Heavy Vehicle Madification, as far as possible and appropriate.

When modifications such a3 fitting of additional or replacement axles with higher load rating
are carried out, the vehicle {rarme must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient strength to

accommodate the GVM,

calculating chassis strength, Vehicle Standards Bulletn 6 — Heavy Vehicle
Moodification may be consulted.

A sim plified way toiook at the frame requirements for GVM upgradererating, is to associate
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the bending strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity (i.e. GVM),
3.2 Engine/Transmission

The GVM rating assigned must not exceed the engine and transmission manufacturer's
recommendations, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturers for a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certification is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitted to the modified vehicle
must be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicle,

3.3 Axle Ratings
With increase in GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. Vehigle's-axle ratings must-not
resulting-from-normal-and-practicalHoading-patiems- The original vehicle manufacturer's axle

ratings must not be exceeded in normal and practical loading resuiting after the GVM is
rerated, unless reinferced replacement axies are fitted; in that case their ratings mus{not be
exceeded.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle; the axie and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle with the higher GVM rating,

In cases where a component manufacturer has published information reducing the
capacity of a component for safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

3.4 Tail Shaft

Mogifications-Changes associated with irereasing-a-velvale'sreraléd JBVM can-may
greaterdemandsadditional load on a-vehicle's tailshaft. Thebsvaayinatde but-are-retlimited
te-thefollowingFor example:

+ changes to vehicle nde height which may alter the tailshaft and pinion angles; --- -[ Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line: 0 cm

« allerations to a vehicle's wheelbase may result in change intailshaft length;
» changes to engine and/or transmissions may impose increased lorsional loading on the
tailshaft.

-
=

Formatted: Justified

The vehicle’s tailshaft strength and its_installation +nust be suitable the vehicle's
increased-rerated GVM.

3.5 Suspension

With increase in GVMgross mass, additicnal loads are placed on suspension. Vehicle's
suspension ratings must not only be adequate for the revised GVM but must be able to
accommodate the axle loads resulting from normal and practical loading pattems. Effects of
changes in ride height must be carefully considered. FOR EXAMPLE, bump and rebound
travel, hydraulic brake hosélenatri-handling & roll stability.

3.6 Brakes

A vehicle's braking performance is directly affected by changes to the vehicle’'s G\higross
load. Therefore, the vehicle's braking system must be tested-assesed to determine if the
original systern is adequate for the proposed GVM or if it requires to be upgraded.

ering
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The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the manufacturer to the original or
reference vehicle as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be approved under the LS section of Vehicle Standards Bulletin 14 — National
Code of Practice for Light Vehicle Construction and Modification.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM.
The same applies to load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the
tyres (and rims) on each axle must be adequate to support the lcad imposed on that axle.

The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be exceeded when the vehicle is loaded
to the revised GVM rating and the ioad is distibuled in a practical and uniform way.

The tyres and rims must be selected o comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR
(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04) at the revised GVM rating.

If required, an amending tyre placard must be fitted to indicate the correct tyre specificaiions

for the vehicle at the revised GVM rating. The revised tyre size and load ating must also
appear on the modification plate 2nd in the owner's handbook.
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4,0 Load Capacity Label and Handbook

To ensure the vehicle operator is adequately informed of the changes such as the vehicle's
towing capacity and tyre requiremen s, the vehicle's handbook must be updated. The update
must provide specific details of the tyres and the towing capacity and if applicable, any
variation in towing capacity due to vehicle loading conditions and/or vertical load on tow ball
(ball weight).

If the vehicle’s handbeook is not available this information must be provided in written form to
the owner of the vehicle owner. Optiorally-In addition this information may be included on the
load capacity label discussed below.

A label containing important information about the vehicle’s load capacity must also be fitied.
The label must be-identical-tefollow the below labe! as an example belew-and must be fitted to
the vehicle, as close as practicable to the vehicle's tyre placard.

Ratings Item Rating Information __l-— Formatted Table
SSM Approval # {if applicable)
Upgraded-Rerated GVM kg N\
Maximum Towing Mass at GVM® kg
Maximum Alewed-Front Axlels Mass kg
WeightPermitted
Maximum Allewed-Rear Axle/s kg
WeightMass Permitted
- - =
*Waming: The maximum mass the vehicle can safely iow may depend on
vehicle loading and/or trailer ball weight. For further infeimation regarding towing
capacities please refer to the vehicle's handbook.

5.0 Limitations -9 tted: Justified

-

For modifications not permitted under Gede-LS11 code see Seéction 1.2. In addition
following limitations stipulated-mentioned in sections 5.1and 5.2 apply.

5.1 Electronic Stability Control

Changes o a vehicle’s GVM can have a direct effect on electronic stability control {ESC)
performance. Therefore, for vehicles fitted with ESC the system must be tested to ensure it
continues to comply with the relevant ADRR ormanufacturer's specifications. However, this is
not required where a vehicle’s GVM is being rerated to a manufacture's altemative variant or
by SSM approval such that the systern's’ compliance has been demonstrated.

5.2 o i : " Effect on towing capacity

The towing capacity of a lightwehicle/2xpressed as Gross Combination Mass {GCM) rating ore - - —[ Formatted: justified

Rated Towing Capacity or/fiazimurn Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the value set
hy the original vehicle Frismanulaciurer. This code does not permit an increase in rated towing
capacity or GCM rating-tinlesedn-ascerdance-with-an-S8M-approval): For seme-many light
vehicles rated towingcapacity or GCM rating may not be specified by the original vehicle
manufacturer. falsuch\céses’ the limit mentioned in the Safe Towing Guide applies. When the
original vehicle manufacturer has specified GCM rating or rated towing capacity or maximum
braked fowing miass, please note that the maximum fewirg-mass that can be legally towed
when the vehidle’is [oaded at the rerated GVM must be proportionately reduced to ensure that
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the sum of GVM and maximum towing mass at GVM before and after G\Viupgradarerating
remains unchanged.

dditional Modifications and Changes to Vehicle Category-Ghanges

Where additional modifications have been performed or a change in vehicle category has
occurred due to the increase in GVM. certification using the appropriate additional codes must
be usedprovided.
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e

7.0 Use of L§11 code to provide desian certification for GVM Rerating - "{Formaned:kW(

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM rerating of a vehicle of a
particular make/model/varian¥chassis seres. The design certification may be provided using
any of the rerating criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so 2 suitably qualified and accredited
Approved Person holding a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a
series of modified vehicles of that make/modelfvariant/chassis series and generate the
necessary evidence to ensure that the requirements of the design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used in this way to provide design certification, the Approved Person
providing the design certification may not inspect the modified vehicle and is not requized to fit
an LS11 modification plate to the vehicle, Also the checklist completed as part of th %
certification may not refer to any particular VIN.

The outpuls of a Design Certification under LS11 are {a) design package (

b)

J.1DesignPackage ___________________________ % __________ - ~ Formatted: Font: Bold
This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and ively address the

following four requirements;
JA4Scopeof whatiseligible . @ ............... _. - =7, Formatted: Font: Bold

) ""( Formatted: Font: Bold
Design certification must tightly describe to which ma anant/chassis series it applies.
If its applicability is restricted to specific build years thatadlso must be mentioned.

Since the modification and the rerating is bein ne g in-service vehicles, the condition of
those in-service vehicles plays an importani role in ining which vehicle can safely receive
the rerating. This must be reflected in the sCape section of the design package by stating what
gcide that the vehicle is safe 1o modify and

must be inspected and what is accepta n%.
receive rerating. Condition of the sh%t] bsetbers, suspension, frame, tow eguipment and

brakes are key areas to inspect. Al f cracks, deformations and structural damage due
to rust is also critical.

J.1.2 Evidance. pa )@ ______________________________________ - ‘\ Formatted: Font: Bold
B "[ Formatted: Font: Beld

calcutations idate the rerating when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from
reput nies, must have unique identification number and must be signed and
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dated. Test reports must make unambiguous reference to the specific make/model/vadants of

compiled under a unigue identifier,

the vehicle or component to which they apply and must contain conclusion about pass or fail i ;
according to the relevant criteria.
Engineering caiculations must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They must be &

If any evidence is sourced from a third party, the package must include a written permission
from that party for use of its reports.

For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, it is not uncornmen for design certifier to
not include the enlire evidence package in the design package output being given to the
customer. Where this is the case, however, the design package must list all the key test reporly

and calculation sheets (using their unique identifiers) and provide written assura that full
evidence package will be made available, on request, for audit and enforcement gurpo

Is

- -~ Formatted: Font: Bold

-——— \
- 7

The design package output must contain detailed work instructions
vehicle, what parts 1o be used, what sequence of actions to be perform
be taken and what process controls to be applied.

N " Formatted: Font: Bold
o 9% to_rodify the
= &t precautions to

BN

ing and inspections to

Work instructions must aiso include details of any (nen-destructiv
be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are me
should include sufficient

The instructions must be easy to understand, unambig 1]
pictorials and graphics.

The work instruction must also include contact detail fof queniing or seeking dlarification, should
that be required during modification.

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier and the cert - ‘ Formatted: Font: Bold

W e e N A R A e R s s M AN LY/ o o e e e - - - — —

./

This output of the design package consisis of two separate checklists one each for the vehicle
modifier and the certifier of the physid ;

generate evidence that the mod He certifier of the physical modification have
understood and followed the presg wﬁ

design package has been met
completed checklists from th
own quality assurance or risk management practice.

b ‘{ Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0 cm
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For this output, a modification certificate must be issued similar to any other modification code,
except that the cerlificate may not make reference to any spedific modification plate number or
vehicle by its VIN.

For this output, the modification checklist at the end of this code mustbe completed and retained
for each design certified under LS11 code.
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Checklist LS11
Gross Vehicle Mass Increase

CODE LS11
Form No: L5111
Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not A licable)
1 Suspension
1.1 Is the vehicle's suspension suitable for the increased GVM? Y N

2 Chassis
21 Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM?

3 Axles
34 Arethe axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM?

4 Engine/Transmission

a1 Isthe engine/transmission suitable for the increased GVM? Y N

5 Braking System

5.1 Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehicle to
ensure compliance with ADR 31/. or 35/., whichever is
applicable? N/A Y
(applicable in all cases apart from upgrading to an SSM
a roval oro * inal vehicle manufacturer's o tional Gviv
52 Is the vehicle's brake system suitable for the increesed GVM? Y N

6 Tyres and Rims
g4 Doesthe Modification Plate record the corréct tyre arid rim sizes

and load ratin s for the modified vehicle? Y
g2 Hasanupdaled tyre placard been fitted to the vehicle? vy
Do tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the
6.3 Y
e lacard?
6.4  Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the v

vehicle’s new GVM?
7 Electronic Stability Control
7.1 Has the vehicle’'s ESC sysism been tested to confirm that the
system continues o meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's N/A Y N
specifications?

8 Load Caparity infarmation

8.1 Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle?

8.2 Has the vehicle's handbook been amended or additional
’ informationbeen included on the Load Ca c¢i Label?

9 Manufaciurer's Optional GVM
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9.1 | Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle N/A | Y
manufacturer?

9.2 | Are all components relevant to the GVM rerating (brake,
engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc) N/A | Y
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's altemative
specification?

10 Second Stage of Manufacturer GVMIGCM

10.1 | Has the SSM Approval holder provided written approval to NA | Y
use theirthat SSM design?

10.2 | If certifying the GYM/GCM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM NIA | Y
Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained?

10.3 | Does the rerated GVM/GCM match that of the SSM NIA Y
approval?

10.4 | Are all components relevant to the GVM/GCHM rerating (brake, | NiALL Y
suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the $SM design? L

1" Fitment of an additional axle

11.1 | If the vehicle's GVM has been increase more than 10% iz the

o } NA|Y |N

additional axle load sharing? '

Az - Only if-L-511 code is-used to provide Design Certification------- -~~~ - -

12.1 | Is a compiehensive design package provided?

12.2 | Does the design package have a unique identification
number?

12.3 | Does the design package clearty de&Cribe wivich
make/model/variant/chassis series is eligitie for rerating?

12.4 | Does the design package include-guidance on what to inspect
in the in-service vehicle and how tadstermine its fitness to
receive GVM upgrade?

12.5 | Does the design package Mclude a complete Evidence
Package on which theTBVNirerating is based?

12.6 | Does the design packdpednclude comprehensive work
instructions incl(dmawork to be done, precautions to be
taken, control of pfécesses and tests to be conducted?

12.7 | Does the désign package include a checklist for the modifier
of thé vehicle?

12.8 | Doegthg,design package include a checklist for the certifier

of the mr0dified vehicle?
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12.9 | Does the design package address all the requirements of this
code?

Note: If the answer to any question is N {No} the design cannot be certified under Code

LS11.
CERTIFICATION DETAILS
Year of
Make M Manufacture
VIN
Chassis Number

{if applicable)

Brief Dascription of
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

Certificate Number
{Iif applicable)

Vehicle Certified By {Print)

Signatory’s Employer
{If applicable)

Signatory’s Signature
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary
Sent: Tues ay,15 ay2 1 4 P
To: ‘Shane F Lonsdale’
Cc Peter N Twining; 'Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)’
Subject: New LS15 Code for GVM rerat'ng modification according to LS11 design
certification
Attachments: LS15 Version May 2018 V1.doc
Hello Shane,

As promised, see attached new LS15 code for internal stakeholder engagement.

Key features are:

1. Allows GVM rerating to the LS11 design certification with modifications (relatively
common)

2. Allows GVM rerating according to the original vehicle manufacturer’s letter with or
without modifications (very rare)

3. Itisatrade based code as against the engineering based LS11 code, making it
possible to certify the GVM rerating modifications in the remote & regional areas,
thus paving way for the eventual extinciion of the Type Approvals.

The revised LS11 code necessary to compliment the new LS15 code has already been
supplied to you last week.

Regards

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer (Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulatian | Dgpariment of Transport and Main Roads

£
E: anant.z.bellary@imr.gld.qov.au
W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au
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Modifications Leading to Rerating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light
Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

Code LS15
1.0 Scope

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modificaticns leading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or/less) when those
modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 desigr certification. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the
design package in the relevant LS11 design certification.

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under LS15 code:

» Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM by modifying it according to the iristructions in an LS11 design
certification issued for the same/make/model/variant/chassis series.
» Rerating of a light vehicle’'s GVM in accordance, with a letter from the original vehicle

manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS15 code:

Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not be certified under LS15 code:

¢ Modifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 above.

e Rerating of a vehicle which does notgualify {for GVM rerating under LS11 code.

» Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modification, is greater than 4500 kg.

e Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, after modification, will be greater than 4500 kg.

e Rerating of GVM by comparing with-an alternative make/model of vehicle.

* Rerating of GVM by comparing with another vehicle which has been previously rerated using a
modification code.

e Rerating of GVM based on assessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer’s specifications only.

s Rerating of GVM pricr to first registration anywhere in Australia. For it, follow the procedures
prescribed for obtaining a Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

2.0 General Requirements

2.1 Typical Modifications

Typical physical modifications involved in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspensicn or braking system with alternative components which collectively may permit a different
rating and/or reinforcement chassis frame.

2.2 Rerating without Modifications

In some cases rerating of GVM may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter is
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issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required. Care mu
be taken when comparing, as some properties may not be obvious and evident. In these instance
evidence must be retained to demonstrate that the vehicle is identical to the manufacturer’'s letter.

2.3 Affected ADRs

Modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) to which it wa
originally constructed and also the ADRs that apply to it after modification. Where there is a conflict,
is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the modification.

2.4 Work Instructions from the LS11 design package
Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the dasign package of th
relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the design package.

2.5 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package must be completed and evidence
of it must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing any checklist(s) that the design
package requires.

3.0 Specific Requirements

3.1 Tyres and Wheel Rims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres and rime fitted to an axle or axle group must be at
least equal to the load rating of that axle or axle group or the load imposed on that axle or axle grou
when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with tive load distributed uniformly and in a practical way
whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distribitted uniformly and practically, must not result in th
load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured to comply. with- ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04, the tyres and rims fitted mu
comply in all respects with the requiremenis of that ADR at the revised GVM rating.

Where a tyre placard is fitted to a veiicie, this placard may require to be replaced with a new placard
replicating the manufacturer’'s sliernative model vehicle or as specified in the LS11 design certification.
The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification plate.

3.2 Chassis

The chassis of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design certification or identicat to
the original vehicle rmanufacturer's alternate model/variant.

3.3 Brakes

The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design certification or identical to the
vehicle marufacturer’s specifications for the alternate modei/variant.

3.4 Axles-and Suspension

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly and practically, must not result in the
load on any axle or suspension exceeding its rated capacity. Rated capacity of an axle or suspension
is the rating specified by the original vehicle manufacturer, unless reinforced replacement axle or
suspension is fitted.
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3.5 Fabrication

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting, heating,
welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosing unmodified production components
wherever possible.

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Condition

Before carrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code, the condition of the in-service
vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design certificaticn (o ensure that the
vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is to be achieved in two steps.

Step-1 To verify that the vehicle make/model/variant/chassis series and build year s within the scope
of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2 To inspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for rerating. The relevant
instructions in the design package of LS11 design certification must be followed to ensure that the
chassis frame, suspension, brakes and so on are in safe and serviceable condition at the rerated
GVM. Evidence of this inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufacturer’s Letter
Rerating based on original vehicle manufacturer’s letter:
In this option a letter issued by the vehicle’s original ranufacturer is required.
To be considered acceptable, the manufacturer’s letter must contain at least the following information:
» Vehicle manufacturer’s details (i.e. manufacturer’s letter head with contact information)
o Make/model/variant of the vehicle
e Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) @f the particular vehicle being modified
e Details of any physical changes required to be performed to the vehicle (along with details of
specific components to be fitted)
* Revised GVM rating

e Signed and dated by the delegate of the ariginal vehicle manufacturer
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Checklist LS15

Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

CODE LS15
Form No: LS15
(Y=Yes, N=No)
1 General
11 Have all details of the design package of LS11 design certification —,f
) or a letter from the original vehicle manufacturer been retained for .[Y | N
future audit? 3
2 Chassis
21 Does the chassis conform to the detail construction, section
' properties and cross-members of the LS11 design package or to Y |N
any specified in the vehicle manufacturer's letter? /
Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation,
2.2 : Y |N
cracks and rust perforation?
3 Brake system
3 1 Is the vehicle’s entire braking system as speciﬁ_ed in the design
' package of the LS11 design certification or the specifications in the Y |N
vehicle manufacturer’s letter? {
Is the braking system in serviceable condiiion, free from leaks, wear
3.2 . . Y |N
and fouling/stretching?
4 Tyres and Rims Y N
4.1 Does the tyre placard (if fitted) record the correct tyre and rim sizes,
’ axle configurations, axle loads and inflation pressures for the modified | Y | N
vehicle as specified in the LS 1 design certification?
4.2 | Are tyres and rims fitted in confermance to the tyre placard? Y |N
5 Eligibility- Make/model/variant/chassis series
Does the vehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11
5.1 . AN Y [N
design certification?
6 Eligibility- Vehicie condition
6.1 Is the vehicle in satisfactory structural and mechanical condition? Y N
7 Workmansitip
71 Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard? Y |N
Are i checklists required in the LS11 design certification
7.2 ; Y |N
~completed?
23 Are all the inspections and tests as required in LS11 design Yy IN
N certification completed?
. Is the GVM rerating plate/label as specified in the LS11 design
7.4 o Y |N
- | certification fitted?

Note* If the answer to any question is N {No) the modification cannot be certified under Code LS14.
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Make Model

VIN

Chassis Number
(If applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory’s Employer
{If applicable)

Signatory’s Signature

Connecting Queensland
delivering transport for prosperity
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: nesday, 16 a 2018 251 P

To: ‘Shane F Lonsdale’

Cc: Peter N Twining; 'Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)’
Subject: Additional external stakeholders for LS11 and LS15...

Additional stakeholders to include:

1 Not relevant

Technical Officer
Truck Industry Council

M' Not relevant

E; Notrelevant @ty ck-industry-council.org

Not relevant

2.
Chief Technical Officer
Heavy Vehicle Industry Australia

1 Not relevant

f: 073376 7166
e: Notrelevant Ghhyvig.asn.au

w: www. hvia.asn.au

Not relevant
3.

B.Eng(Mech). FIEAust. CPEng. RPEQ. NPER.

General Manager / Chief Engineer
Truck En ineering Australia

ABN 35 200 344 501

P;: (07) 3390 3588

Not relevant
M

£/ Not relevant truckengineering.com.au

A: Unit 14, 42 Smith Sirast
Capalaba, QLD, 4157

4. TMR Approved Persciis

Regards

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer{Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Sarvices, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transport and Main Roads

P:
E: anant.z.bellary@tmr.gld.gov.au

W www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Fn y 25 a 018 5 A
To: Peter N Twining

Subject: FW: GVM, GCM Upgrade
Peter,

Can you please urge Liz to find out from Lovells if or not they are abiding by the TMR ‘Accreditation
instruction to not show GCM rating on their blue mod plate? Thanks.

regards

Awnant Bellary
vehicle Standards § Acereditation
Transport § Main Roads

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 10:49 AM

To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.gld.gov.au>; Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: GVM, GCM Upgrade

Anant/Pete,
The enquiry indicates Lovells have ignored o previous requests in relation to GCM?

Maybe we should check with Liz to see if we have any evidence of this recalcitrant behaviour?

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director {Standardsand Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 / €1 Mary St Brishane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 | £ 3253 4453 | m "o

e Scott.G.Notsy@tmr.gld.gov.au

w www.tniraid.gov.au

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 10:41 AM

To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: FW: GVM, GCM Upgrade

RTI 135/05888 - File 1 - Page 42 of 143



FY1 Only.

Anant Bella ry
vehicle Standards § Accreditation
Transport § Main Roads

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 10:30 AM

To: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Cc: 'Vehicle Standards' <vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: GVM, GCM Upgrade

Suggested draft response:

On new vehicle, GVM can be upgraded if SSM plate is fitted. TMR undérstands from DIRDC that S5M
approval holder cannot change the GCM. It remains same as given by ISUZUYYou may want to confirm this
with DIRDC.

On in-service vehicle in QLD, GVM can be upgraded if (a) LS1}1 mad plate is fitted or (b} a Type Approval is
issued AND a LX1+LG2+LS10 mod plate is fitted by that Type Approval Halder, GCM cannot change and
remains same as ISUZU.

{ hope this helps.

Regards

Anant Bellary
vehiele Standavds § Accredit@tion
Transport § Main Roads

From: Vehicle Standards

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 9:02 AM

To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bzliary@tmr.gld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: GVM, GCM Upgrade

Hi Anant

Could you please look at the email chain below and | am looking at responding to the last email. | have
attached a suggested response but | am weary of the implications. Your Thoughts please.

Hi Not releva

The 55M is 2 federal modification plate fitted prior to the first registration (Second Stage of Manufacture)
and | bave checked the documents on the federal website (CPA 48580) and there is no mention of a GCM for
this vehicle.

The Blue Plate should not reflect an increase in the GCM away from the original manufacturers rating for the
reasons stated below in my previous response.

I would suggest that you ask the company offering the upgrade to supply the information required below
otherwise the modification would not be recognised..

2
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Kind regards,

Peter Twining | Standards & Accreditation
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

P:
E: vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.qov.au

W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au

From: Not relevant [mailto/ """ @gmail.com)

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 6:55 AM

To: Vehicle Standards <vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Re: GVM, GCM Upgrade

Hi Peter

Thank you for your reply. I have attached the pictures supplied froni a Queensland company which
are offering a GVM and GCM upgrade. From the information you provided I gather the GCM
cannot be change from what is on the vehicle now,

Regards

Not relevar

RTI 135/05888 - File 1 - Page 44 of 143



SE oND g

. F. 4
PPR VALNo.4s . UFeTY
L L.. vo .
VIN MPATFS85JHT005316
08/17 e m
GV 3800 Kg SEATS
THIS VEHICLE WAS . :g;ac&\aaeo By
LOVELLS SPRIN
THTHE OTORVEMCLE
To COMPE‘.YrAW‘NDARDs ACT 1989 55043

On Thu, May 24, 2018 at 4:35 AM, Vehicle Standards <vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au> wrote:

H- Not relevant

In Queensland the following applies:

Current requirements in Queensland under the LS11 Code allow for a GCM upgrade on
the following basis

“Increase in Gross Combination Mass (GCM) rating (unless in accordance with an SSM
approval)’

Atihis point in time, | note that no company operating in Queensland has provided
documentation from the Department of Infrastructure and Regional Development and
Cities (DIRDC) that supports a claim that their SSM actually includes the upgraded GCM.
In fact, one such company has previously provided documentation that states that a GCM
does not form part of their SSM approval.
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Please see the following requirements:

Without documentation to confirm that any companies SSM approval from DIRDC
includes reference to a GCM upgrade, any certifications by an Approved Person (AP)
acting on behalf of these companies cannot include any reference to an increased GCM.

| trust this answers your inquiry.

Kind regards,

Peter Twining | Standards & Accreditation
Transport Regulation Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads

61 Mary Street | Brishane

P:
E: vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.qov.au
W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au

. Not relevant

From [mailto{"* " @gm3il.com]

Sent: Wednesday, 23 May 2018 4:43 PM

To: Vehicle Standards <yehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: GVM, GCM Upgrade

Hi

I an enquiring if it is legalin QLD to get a GCM upgrade. | have been chasing up getting a GVM,
GCM upgrade and have received a quote to have this done. They are saying they can do:-

VEHICLE GVM UPGRADE TO 3600KG
Factory GVM 2950kg

Upgraded GVM 3600kg
Factory GCM 5950kg

Upgraded GCM 7000kg

Other companies | have requested quotes from have said I can't do a GCM upgrade only GVM. 1
have a 2016 D Max LSM

5
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Regards

Not relevant

Not relevant
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WARNING: This email (including any attachments) may contain legally
privileged, confidential or private information and may be protected by
copyright. You may only use it if you are the person(s) it was

intended to be sent to and if you use it in an authorised way. No one

is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute, print

or copy this email without appropriate authority.

If this email was not intended for you and was sent to you by mistake,
please telephone or email me immediately, destroy any hardcopies of
this email and delete it and any copies of it from your computer
system. Any right which the sender may have under copyright law, and
any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to this email is not
waived or destroyed by that mistake.

It is your responsibility to ensure that this email dees not contain
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects oz interference by
third parties or replication problems (including incomipatibility with
your computer system).

Opinions contained in this email do not necessauly reflect the
opinions of the Department of Transport and Main Roads,

or endorsed organisations utilising the same infrastructure.
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: 1 ay2018333P

To: Peter N Twining; 'Shane F Lonsdale’; Patricia L Bailey

Cc: 'Scott G Notley {Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)'’; Tracey L Dreier; Christina T Myers;
Adam Shaw

Subject: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

Draft covering note for our key institutional stakeholders...
Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehiele Modification Code
LS15 to enhance the operation of the previously developed LS11 modification code, particularly in
the remote and regional areas of Queensland.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to ¢grtify physical modifications
leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light-vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less)
when those madifications conform to the specifications cositained in the relevant LS11 design
certification. In addition to the requirements in this codé/the1.S15 certification must follow the
process specified in the design package in the relevant/1z811 design certification issued to the
vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification. Some
other changes are also made to provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11 code. Note that
the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification code to certify GVM
rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 eode.

Both the new LS15 code and the amendedL.Sit¢ode are now provided to you for your perusal and
feedback. Please provide comments, if any, inthe attached feedback sheet which can be emailed to
vehiclestandards@tmr.qgld.gov.au . Thelastidate for submitting your comments is close of
business on Friday 29t June 2018. Itis intended to implement these codes from 1 Aug 2018.

Regards
Peter Twining

Draft covering note for Accreditation Unit for broadcast to LS11 APs...
Dear Deann.

Please circulatecthefallowing message to all the Approved Persons currently holding LS11
modification code: A similar message is being sent to our key institutional stakeholders including
the businesses holding type approvals.

The Vehidle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modification Code
LS15 to enhance the operation of the previously developed LS11 modification code, particularly in
the remote and regional areas of Queensland.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications

leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less)
when those modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design
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certification. In addition to the requirements in this code, the LS5 certification must follow the
process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11 design certification issued to the
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
rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.

Both the new LS15 code and the amended LS11 code are now provided to you for your perusal and
feedback. Please provide comments, if any, in the attached feedback sheet which ¢an be emailed to
vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au . The last date for submitting your comments is:close of
business on Friday 29t June 2018. It is intended to implement these codésfrom'1 Aug 2018.

Regards
Peter Twining

Regards

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer (Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulaticr Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qid 4000
P: {07) 3066 3468
E: anant.z bellary@tmr.ald.gov.au

W www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Anant Z Bella

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

On second thought...

Anant Z Bellary

Fri ay 1June2 1 953 A

Peter N Twining; Patricia L Bailey

'Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au)’; Tracey L Dreier; Christina T Myers;
Adam Shaw

Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

APs currently holding LS11 code should be given a chance to comment oir'the amended LS11 code.

APs who have qualifications that are appropriate for LS15 code should be given a chance to
comment on the new LS15 code.

The institutional stakeholders should be given a chance to comment on both the proposed codes.

Regards

Anant BeLLarg

vehicle Standards § Acereditation
Transport § Matn Roads

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 3:33 PM

To: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining@tmr.¢ld.gav.au>; Shane F Lonsdale'
<Shane.F.Lonsdale@tmr.gld.gov.au>; Patricia L Bailey <Patricia.L.Bailey@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Cc: 'Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmivigld.gov.au)' <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au>; Tracey L Dreier
<Tracey.Dreier@tmr.qid.gov.au>; Cheistina T Myers <christina.t.myers@tmr.qgld.gov.au>; Adam Shaw
<Adam.M.Shaw@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

Draft covering note for our key institutional stakeholders...

Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Stapdards’Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle
Modification Codé 1:515 to enhance the operation of the previously developed LS11
modificationzode, particularly in the remote and regional areas of Queensland.

The attached-LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical
modifications leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM
4,500 kg or’less) when those modifications conform to the specifications contained in the
relevantLiS11 design certification. In addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15
certification must follow the process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11
design certification issued to the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification.
Some other changes are also made to provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11
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code. Note that the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combined design and
modification code to certify GVM rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.

Both the new LS15 code and the amended LS11 code are now provided to you for your
perusal and feedback. Please provide comments, if any, in the attached feedback sheet
which can be emailed to vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au . The last date for submitting
your comments is close of business on Friday 2¢th June 2018. It is intended to implement
these codes from 1 Aug 2018.

Regards
Peter Twining

Draft covering note for Accreditation Unit for broadcast to LS11 APs...
Dear Deann.

Please circulate the following message to all the Approved Persons currently holding LS11
modification code. A similar message is being sent to our keyv institutional stakeholders
including the businesses holding type approvals.

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle
Modification Code LS15 to enhance the operation of the previously developed LS11
modification code, particularly in the remote and regional areas of Queensland.

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modification
leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or
less) when those modifications conform t6 thespecifications contained in the relevant LS1
design certification. In addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification
must follow the process specified in thie'design package in the relevant LS11 design
certification issued to the vehicle of same/make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification.
Some other changes are also made to provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11
code. Note that the LS11 code caneontinue to be used as a combined design and
modification code to certify GVM rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.

he amended LS11 code 16w provided to you for your perusal and feedback. Please
provide comments, if.any, in the attached feedback sheet which can be emailed to
vehiclestandards@imr.gid.gov.au . The last date for submitting your comments is close of
business on Friday 2% June 2018. It is intended to implement these codes from 1 Aug
2018.

Regards
Peter Twitiing

Draft covering note for Accreditation Unit for broadcast to the potential LS15 APs...
Deay/Deann.
Please circulate the following message to all the Approved Persons currently holding LS11

modification code. A similar message is being sent to our key institutional stakeholders
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

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical
modifications leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM
4,500 kg or less) when those modifications conform to the specifications contained in the
relevant LS11 design certification. In addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15
certification must follow the process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11
design certification issued to the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chéssis’series.

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design-certification.
Some other changes are also made to provide greater clarity about thedntent of the LS11
code. Note that the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combinéd design and
modification code to certify GVM rerating on its own, without usingthe new LS15 code.

The new LS15 code is now provided to you for your perusal af¥d feedback. Please provide
comments, if any, in the attached feedback sheet which can be emdiled to
vehiclestandards@tmr.qgld.gov.au . The last date for submitting your comments is close of
business on Friday 29th June 2018. It is intended to implemént these codes from 1 Aug
2018.

Regards
Peter Twining

Regards

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer (Vehicle Standards & Accreditation} | Trarisport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulatien | Deparinent of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 § 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000
P: (07) 3066 3468
E: anant.z.bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au

W www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Anant Z Bella

from: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: edn s ay, June20181 03P

To: Patricia L Balley

Subject: Please compa e and merge these documents...

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 AS changes.docx, LS 11 Version May 2018

V2.1 (002) V3 OAA comments docx

As discussed Trish.

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

The LS11 Modification Code specifies arrangements for re-rating of the Gross Vehicle Mass
(GVM) rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not exceed
4,500 kg.

Re-rating of GVM under LS11 code is permissible only on the following type of light vehicles:
A light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and/or body
mounted on it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commenly knewn as monocoque
construction, are not eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously rerated from the
original manufacturer's GVM rating is not eligible for re-rating under this code.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First Stage Identification Plate
Approval (IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Mariufacture (SSM) Approval or RAWS
Approval is not deemed as the original vehicle manufacturer.

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specified the GVM rating, the maximum
laden mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the purpose of showing compliance
with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) is to be taken as the original GVM rating. This information
must be obtained from a reliable and traceable souirce.

1.1  What is permitted

Modifications that may be certified under LS11 code are:
. Up to 10% increase in the GVM rating given by the original vehicle manufacturer
» Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in following cases:
o GVM rating of -an in-service vehicle that is of the same the
make/model/variant/chassis series as a vehicle having a SSM approval for
GVM re-rating AND is modified in accordance with the SSM approval AND
the SSM approval holder has given explicit permission for the SSM approval
to be used as the basis for GVM re-rating.
o Increase in GVM where an additional axle has been installed.
o Alteration of a vehicles GVM rating to match the vehicle manufacturer's
aiternaiive rating for a particular variant of that make/model.

1.2 What is riot permitted

Maodifications that must not be certified under L$11 code are:

o Madifications other than those described in Section 1.1 above.

. Reduction in GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer’s optional GVM
for that make/model and also in case of GVM reductions require as a result of
conversion to heavy motorhomes.

. Re-rating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by
way of SSM approval or LS11 code or ancther Code of Practice or another
jurisdictional approval).
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. GVM re-rating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but
the SSM approval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM
approval as the basis.

GVM re-rating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval
(for example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in
the SSM approval.

GVM re-rating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle
beyond the rating for that axle by the original vehicle manufacturer.

Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle
manufacturer’s rating.

1.3 Towing Capacity and LS11 Code

o L8111 code is not to be used for changing the rating of towing capacity, GCM rating
or maximum braked towing mass of the vehicle. These raiings must remain same as
that provided by the original vehicle manufacturer.

¢ When the vehicle is loaded to the gross vehicle mass according to LS11 rating, the
safe trailer mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total combination mass does
not exceed the rating or the limit specified by the original vehicle manufacturer.

General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. The critical components
including the chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must be
assessed individually to ensure that they can safely support the loads resulting from the re-rated
GVM. '

All work must also comply with the reguirements contained in sub-section 2 General
Requirements of the National Code of Practice (NCOP) — Light vehicle modifications (VSB14).

This code does not provide any assurancea regarding the continued eligibility of the vehicle for
any warranty claims when operating at the rerated GVM. The certifying officer must clarify this
point to the modifier and the vehicle operator. Increased GVM has the potential to affect
eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in some cases. Itis the responsibility
of the vehicle operator and the Approved Person to consider any effect on the warranty that
LS11 modification may have.,

2.0 Compliance with applicable vehicle standards

Modified vehicles must continue to comply with the ADRs to which they were originally

constructed, exceit;

o If different AJRs apply to them due to the modification, in which case they must
comply o tnose ADRs that are relevant to the modified vehicle.

. As allewed for in the Transport Operations (Road Use Management—Vehicle
Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the Regulation).

. Moudified vehicles must also comply with the applicable in-service requirements of
ihe Regulation.

Modified pre-ADR vehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.
Qutlined below in Table LS11 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the
modifications and may require re-certification, testing and/or data to show compliance of

the modified vehicle.

This is not an exhaustive list and compliance to other ADRs may also be affected.
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Table LS11 List of items and likely affected ADRs
REQUIREMENTS
ADR 42/..
ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Transport  Operations (Road Use
Management-—Vehicle Standards, and
Safety) Regulation 2010

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicles category and date ¢f manufacture. It
is the responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to referto the appropriate ADRs
applicable to the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle's GVM.
2.1 GVM re-rating based on Manufacturer’s Option

The change to the vehicles GVM must replicate the manufacture’s optional GVM for that
particular make, model and variant of the vehicle, Additionally, all components, including
suspension, transmission, engine, brakes, tyre and rims, and so on must be fitted and
identical to those specified for that particular vehicle’s rated variant.

2.2 GVM re-rating based on SSM Approval

The re-rated GVM must be the same as the SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded
components, including suspension, brakes, tyres and rims, etc. must be fitted and be identical
to those specified on the SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical modification replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified under the 5SM approval must also be met. These requirements may
include, but are not limiied to, the following:

. The vehicles first ldentification Plate Approval number must be identical to that
mentioned ir the 3SM Approval.

. If the SSM apuroval limits the number of vehicles to be supplied under it each year,
(for example. Low Volume 25 or 100 per annum), the certifying AP must check with
the SEM approval holder to ensure that the total number of vehicles supplied to
market as new plus modified under this code remain within the limit of the SSM
approval.

. VM re-rating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code should not be certified if the
S5M approval is no longer current and has been suspended or cancelled.

. When re-rating GVM in accordance with an SSM approval, the certifying AP must
ensure that the SSM approval holder has provided written permission for use of the
SSM design as the basis,
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If re-rating a GVM in accordance with a Low Volume SSM approval, a statutory
declaration must be obtained from the SSM holder stating that the number limit has
not been exceeded as of that date.

Any low volume SSM restrictions must be noted on the modification certificate (for
example vehicle #2 of 25).

The SSM approval number must be recorded on the modification ceriificate.

Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SSHM approval
holder must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of GVM
under this code.

2.3 GVM re-rating by installation of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the
vehicle’'s GVM rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the original vehicle
manufacturer's GVM rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with the
adjacent axle in the group, then the 10% limit may be exceeded. The fitment of an
additional axle is permitted in Queensland urder the LB2 modification code in
conjunction with the LS11 code. Additional supporiing evidence including brake testing
and chassis strength analysis must be provided.

24 GVM re-rating outside of Manufacturer’s Option

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even if it is not an option by the vehicle
manufacturer, provided the change is no more than 10% above the original manufacturer's
GVM. While the upper limit is 10%, the acti:al change possible is limited by various factors
including chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When re-rating GVM, the chassig, suspension, axles and drive train components must be used
within the vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. Where a component manufacturer has
published information stating that reduced ratings apply for safety reasons, the reduced rating must

apply.

Typical modifications invoived in re-rating a vehicle’'s GVM include:
- single axie tc tandem axle configuration
- replacemient engine, transmission, axle(s), suspension components, reinforced
chassis frare and upgraded braking system or the combination of these

The following spetific requirements must be met.
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3.1 Chassis

Chassis modifications must be performed in accordance with section LH5 of Vehicle
Standards Bulletin 14. If the necessary information is not available in LHS code, then the
relevant sections of H code of the Heavy Vehicle Modification (VSB6) may be consulted, as
appropriate.

When medifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axie(s) with higher load
rating are carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it hag sufficient
strength to support the re-rated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, VSRE may be
consuited.

A simplified way to look at the frame requirements for GVM re-rating, is tc.associate the
bending strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity (i.e. GVM).

3.2 Engine/Transmission

The GVM rating assigned must not exceed the engine and transmission manufacturer's
recommendations, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer for' a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where ceriification is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitted to the modified
vehicle must be identical to those fitted by the mantiaciurer to the reference vehicle.

3.3 Axle Ratings

With increase in GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. The original vehicle
manufacturer's axle ratings must not be ex<eeded when loaded in a practical way to the
re-rated GVM, unless reinforced replacemeni-axles are fitted; in that case their ratings
must not be exceeded.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to/{he modified vehicle must be identical to those fitted by
the manufacturer to the reference vehicle with the higher GVM rating.

In cases where a componeni tanufacturer has published information reducing the rating
capacity of a component for safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

3.4 Tail Shaft

Changes associated with rerated GVM may place additional load on a vehicles tail shaft.

For example:

- changes (o venicle ride height which may alter the tail shaft and pinion angles;

- alteratichs 1o a vehicles wheelbase may result in change in tail shaft length;

- changes o engine and/or transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on
the tail shaft.

The veticles tail shaft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles re-
rated GVM.
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3.5 Suspension

With an increase in GVM, additional loads are placed on suspension. Vehicle suspension
ratings must not only be adequate for the revised GVM but must be able to accommodate
the axle loads resulting from the normal and practical loading patterns. Effects of changes
in ride height must be carefully considered. For example, tyre and wheel envelope, jounce
and rebound travel, hydraulic brake hose length, handling and roll stability.

3.6 Brakes

A vehicles braking performance is directly affected by changes to the vehicle’s GVM.
Therefore, the vehicle's braking system must be assessed to determine if the performance
of the original system is adequate for the proposed GVM or if it requires to be reinforced.

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehicle manufacturer to the
original or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new
steering system is fitted it must be certified under the LS section of VSB14.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM.
The same applies to the load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of
the tyres (and rims) on each axie must be adequate to support the load imposed on that
axle.

The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim-must not be exceeded when the vehicle is
loaded to the re-rated GVM and theload is distibuted in a practical and uniform way.

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR
(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM.

If required, an amending tyre placard must be fitted to indicate the revised tyre

specifications for the vehicie at the re-rated GVM. The revised tyre size and load rating
must also appear on the modification plate and in the owner’s handbook.

Load Capacity Label and Handbook

To ensure the vehicle operaior is adequately informed of the changes, such as the vehicle’s
towing capacity and tyre rzquirements, the vehicle's handbook must be updated. The update
must provide specific deiails of the tyres and the towing capacity and if applicable, any reduction
in towing capacity due to vehicle loading conditions and/or vertical load on tow ball (ball weight).

if the vehicles handbook is not available, this information must be provided in written form to the
owner of the vehicle. This information must also be displayed on the Load Capacity Label
discussed below.

The Load Capacity Label must follow the below format and must be fitted to the vehicle, as close
as practicable to the vehicle’s tyre placard.
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Load Capacity Label

Ratings ltem Rating Information
SSM Approval # (if applicable)
Rerated GVM kg
Maximum Towing Mass at GVM* kg _
Maximum Front Axle/s Mass Permitted kg
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted kg
*Warning: The maximum mass the vehicle can safely tow may depend-on
vehicle loading and/or trailer ball weight. For further information regarding towing
capacities please refer to the vehicles handbook.

Limitations

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see Sectio 1 2. In addition, the following
limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 apply.

5.1 Electronic Stability Control

Changes to a vehicle’s GVM rating can have a direct effect on Electronic Stabifity Control
(ESC) performance. Therefore, for vehicles fitted with ESC, the system must be tested to
ensure it continues to comply with the relevant’/ADR or manufacturer's specifications.
However, this is not required where a vehicle’'s GVM'is being re-rated to the manufacture's
alternative variant or according to SSM approval, such that the system’s compliance has
been demonstrated.

5.2 Effect on towing capacity

The towing capacity of a light vehicle expressed as Gross Combination Mass (GCM) rating
or Rated Towing Capacity or Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the
value set by the original vehicie manufacturer. This code does not permit an increase in rated
towing capacity or GCM rating. For many light vehicles rated towing capacity or GCM rating
may not be specified by ihe original vehicle manufacturer. In such cases, the limit mentioned
in the Safe Towing Guide puiiished by TMR applies. When the original vehicle manufacturer
has specified GCM rating or rated towing capacity or maximum braked towing mass, note
that the maximum mass {that can be legally and safely towed when the vehicle is loaded io
the re-rated GV, must be proportionately adjusted to ensure that the sum of the gross
vehicle mass and the trailer mass remain within the ratings specified by the original
manufacturer.

6.0 Additional/Modifications and Changes to Vehicle Category

Where addiiionai modifications have been performed or a change in vehicle category has occurred
due to the GVIM re-rating, certification using the appropriate additional codes must be provided.
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7.0 Use of LS11 code to provide design certification for GVM Re-rating

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM re-rating of a vehicle of a
particular make/model/variant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using any
of the re-rating criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited
Approved Person holding a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspecland certify a
series of modified vehicles of that make/model/ivariant/chassis series and generatz the necessary
evidence to ensure that the requirements of the design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used in this way to provide design certification, the AP providing the design
certification, may not inspect the modified vehicle and is not required to fit an LS11 modification
plate to the vehicle. Also the checklist completed as part of the design certification may not refer to
any particular VIN.

The outputs of a Design Certification under LS11 are (a) design package (b) LS11 modification
certificate and (¢} LS11 modification checklist. All these outputs must be preserved as records and
must be made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purgose.

7.1 Design Package

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and comprehensively address the
following four requirements:

7.1.1 Scope of what is eligible

Design certification must tightly describe to which make/model/variant/chassis series
it applies. If its applicability iz restricted to specific build years that also must be
mentioned.

Since the modification and the re-rating is being done on in-service vehicles, the
condition of those in-service vehicles plays an important role in determining which
vehicle can safely recsive the re-rating. This must be reflected in the scope section of
the design package by siating what must be inspected and what is acceptabie to
decide that the vehicle is safe to modify and receive re-rating. Condition of the shock
absorbers, suspension, frame, tow equipment and brakes are key areas to inspect.
Absence of cracks, deformations and structural damage due to rust is also critical.

The design certification package must include a template of checklist that needs be
completed a3’ a record that, before modification, the vehicle was inspected and
confinmed that it is eligible and is in sound condition.

7.1/2 Evidence package

integral to the design package output is the collection of various test reports and
gngineering calculations that validate the re-rating when modified as prescribed. Test
reports must be from reputed test laboratories, must have unique identification number
and must be signed and dated. Test reports must make unambiguous reference to the
specific make/model/variants of the vehicle or component to which they apply and
must contain conclusion about pass or fail according to the relevant criteria.
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Engineering calculations must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They
must be compiled under a unique identifier.

If any evidence is sourced from a third party, the package must include a written
permission from that party for use of its reports.

For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, it is not uncommon for design
certifier to not include the entire evidence package in the design package ouiput being
given to the customer. Where this is the case, however, the design package imust list
all the key test reports and calculation sheets {using their unique identifiers) and
provide written assurance that full evidence package will be mads available, on
request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package output must contain detailed work instructions on how to modify
the vehicle, what parts to be used, what sequence of actions io be performed, what
precautions to be taken and what process controls to be applied.

Work instructions must also include details of any (non-destructive) testing and
inspections to be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are met.

The instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous and should include
sufficient pictorials and graphics.

The work instruction must also include contact detail for querying or seeking
clarification, should that be required during modification.

All details must be recorded inthe modification certificate including details of any SSM
approvais or conditions.

The load capacity label must be affixed to indicate revised GVM and other relevant
loading conditions.

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier and the certifier

This output of the design package consists of two separate checklists one of each for
the vehicle modifierand the certifier of the physical modification. The purpose of these
checklists is to‘qgenerate evidence that the modifier and the certifier of the physical
modification have understood and followed the prescribed procedure and are able to
confirmi thatine intent of the design package has been met. The design certifier under
LS11 may choose to collect such completed checklists from the modifier and the
ceriifier-of physical modification as part of hs/her own quality assurance or risk

management practice.

Note that this checklist is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification may be required to complete as part histher certification under the
relevant code.
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7.2 Modification Certificate

For this output, a modification certificate must be issued similar to any other modification
code, except that the certificate may not make reference to any specific modification plate
number or vehicle by its VIN.

7.3 Modification Checklist

For this output, the modification checklist at the end of this code must be completed and
retained for each design certified under LS11 code.
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Checklist LS11
Gross Vehicle Mass Increase

CODE LS11
Form No: LS11
(Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not Applicable)
1 Suspension
1.1 | Is the vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM? e N
2 Chassis
- - - 7 N
2 1 Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM? Iy IN
3 Axles
3 1 Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM? B — |y IN
4 Engine/Transmission
41 | s the engineftransmission suitable for the increased GVYM? — 1y IN

5 Braking System

5 1 Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehicle to
) ensure compliance with ADR 31/.. or 35/., whichever is
applicable? N/ALY |N
(applicable in all cases apart from tupgrading to an SSM
approval or original vehicle manutacturer's optional GVM)

59 Is the vehicles brake system suitable ior the increased GVIM? Y |N

6 Tyres and Rims

6.1 Does the Modification Piate record the correct tyre and rim sizes

and load ratings for the modified vehicle? | T Y |N

6.2 | Has an updated tyre placard been fitted to the vehicle? Iy In
Do tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the

6.3 |y In
tyre placard?

6.4 Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the ey N

vehicles new GVIM?
7 Electronic Stability Control

71 Has the vehicles ESC system been tested to confirm that the
' system continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's | NFA[Y | N

specifications?
8 Load Capacity Information
§1) |!ethe Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle? — 1y IN

82 Has the vehicles handbook been amended or additional | vy |IN
" | information been included on the Load Capacity Label?

9 Manufacturer's Optional GVM
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91 Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
’ same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle NALY [N
manufacturer?

9.2 Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake,
) engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc)

identical to the original vehicle manufacturer’s alternative NA|Y N
specification?
10 | Second Stage of Manufacturer GVM
10.1 Has the SSM Approval holder provided written approval to N/ {\_|r S
. i

use that SSM design?

10.2 If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM
) Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained?

Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM approval?

<
>

10.3

z
>

-<-<-<-I_‘

z|lz|z|z

10.4 Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brak_e,
’ suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the SSM desian?

1 Fitment of an additional axle

111 If th.e.vehicles GVM has peen increase more than 10% is the N/A | Y N
additional axle load sharing?

12 Only if LS11 code is used to provide Design Certification
12.1 Is a comprehensive design package prcvidéd—‘? — |y |IN
12 | Does the design package have a unique identification — 1y IN

number?

12.3 Does the design package clearly describe which

make/model/variant/chassis series is eligible for re-rating? —= |Y [N

12.4 Does the design package include guidance on what to inspect
' in the in-service vehicle and how to determine its fitness to - |Y |N
receive GVM upgrade?

125 Does the design packc.t,.o include a complete Evidence

Package on which the GVM re-rating is based? — |Y N

126 Does the design packags include comprehensive work

' instructions including work to be done, precautions to be -— 1Y |N

taken, control c¢f progesses and tests to be conducted?
Does the design package include a checklist for the modifier

12.7 — 1Y |N
of the vehicle?
Does the design package include a checklist for the certifier

12.8 e . -— |Y |N
of the medified vehicle?

129 Does the design package address all the requirements of this | v IN

code?

Note: If the answer to any question is N (No) the design cannot be certified under LS11
code. If N/A does not already appear in the checklist then it cannot be used.
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Model Manufacture
VIN

Chassis Number
(If applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

Certificate Number
(If applicable)

Vehicle Certified By (Prinf)

Signatory’s Employer
(if applicable)

Signatory’s Signature Date
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

Re-rating of GVM under L511 code is permissible only on the following type of light vehicles:
A light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and/or body
mounted on it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as monocoque

construction, are not eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from. the Commented [DGC1]: Consistency. Either spell rerated or
original manufacturer's GVM rating is not eligible for re-rating under this code. re-rated throughout de Same with rerating or re-
rating

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First Stage Identification Plate
Approval (IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) Approval or RAWS
Approval is not deemed as the original vehicle manufacturer.

In cases where the original vehide manufacturer has not specified the GVM rating, the maximum
laden mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the purpose of showing compliance
with the Australian Design Rules {ADRs)is to be taken as the original GViv! rating. This information
must be obtained from a reliable and traceable source.

1.1  What is permitted
Modifications that may be certified under LS11 code are:

. Up 1o 10% increase in the GVM rating given by the original vehicle manufacturer
. Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in following cases:
o GVM rating of an in-service  vehicle that is of lhe same the
make/model/variant/chassis series as a vehicle having a $5M approval for
GVM re-rating AND is modified in_ascordance with the SSM approval AND
the SSM approval holder has given explicit permission for the SSM approval
to be used as the basis for SVM re-rating.
o Increase in GVM where @n additional axle has been installed.
o Alteration of a vehicles GVYM rafing to match the vehicle manufacturer's
alternative rating for/a particuiar variant of that make/model.

1.2 What is not permitted

Modifications that must noi bz cerlified under LS11 code are:

. Modifications othier than‘those described in Section 1.1 above.

. Reduction in G\ rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer's optional GVM
for that makefimodei-and also in case of GVM reductions require as a result of
conversion to Fizavy motorhomes.

. Re-rating of GYM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by
way of 35M approval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another
juriscictionai-approval).
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. GVM re-raling of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but
the SSM approval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM
approval as the basis.

. GVM re-rating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval
(for example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in
the SSM approval.

. GVM re-rating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle
beyond the rating for that axle by the original vehicle manufacturer.

. Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle
manufacturer’s rating,

¢ LS11 code is not to be used for changing the rating of towing capacity,
GCM rating or maximum braked towing mass of the vehicle.

These ratings must remain same as th provided by the originai vehicle
manufacturer.
e When the vehicle is loaded to the according to LS11 rating,

the safe trailer mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total
does not exceed the rating or the limit specified by the criginal vehicle
manufacturer.

General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. . The critical components
including the chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, whegals and tyres must be
assessed individually to ensure that they can safely support the loads resuiting from the re-rated
GVM,

All work must also comply with the requirements conlained in sub-section 2 General
Reguirements of the National Code of Practice (NCOP) Light vehicle modifications (VSB14).

This code does not provide any assurance regarding the continued eligibility of the vehicle for
any warranty claims when operating at the re-rated GVM. The certifying officer must clarify this
point to the modifier and the vehicle operator. Incrgased GVM has the polential to affect
eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturarin some cases. Itis the responsibility
of the vehicle operator and the Approved Person to consider any effect on the warranty that
LS11 modification may have.

Compliance with applicable vehicle standards

Modified vehicles must continueic comply with the ADRs to which they were originally

constructed, except:

. If different ADRs apply. to them due to the modification, in which case they must
comply to those ADRs thal are relevant to the modified vehicle.

. As allowed for in the Transport Operations (Road Use Management—Vehicle
Standards and 5sfely) Regulation 2010 [the Regulation).

. Modified vehicles musi-also comply with the applicable in-service requirements of
the Regulaticn.

Modified pre-ADR vehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.
QOutlined in-ihe fabie below inTable-L341-are areas of the vehicle that may be affected

by the modificsiions and may require re-certification, testing andfor data to show
comgliance of the medified vehicle.

Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicle Modifications, Transport and Main Roads, February 2018

RTI 135/05888 - File 1 - Page 68 of 143

Commented [DGC2): Formatting issue.

Commented [DGC3]: Inconsistent formating 1o above
sechions | 3, eic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic



This is not an exhaustive list and compliance to other ADRs may also be affected. Commaented [GCA): Foruwi jssue
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Table LS11 List of items and likely affected ADRs

DETAIL REQUIREMENTS

Tyre and Rim Selection ADR 42/..

Hydraulic Brake System ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Brake Performance Transport  Operations (Road Use

Management—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Regulation 2010

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle s category and date of manufacture. !t
is the responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the appropriate ADRs
applicable to the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle’'s GVM.

4] Commented [DGC5]; Check formatting compared 1o
seclion |

The change to the vehy GVM must rep icate the manufacture's optiorial GVM for that
particular make, model and vanant of the vehicle. Additionally, all compunents, including
suspension, transmission, engine, brakes, tyre and rims, and ¢ on must be fitted and
identical to those specified for that particular vehicle's rated variant:

2 GVM re-rating based on $SM Approval

The re-rated GVM must be the same as the SSM approved vehicle, All upgraded
components, including suspension, brakes, tyres and rims, etc.rnust be fited and be identical
to those specified on the SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical modification replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified under the SSM approval must aiso be met. These requirements may
include, but are not limited to, the foliowing:

. The vehicles first Identification Plate Approval number must be identical to that
mentioned in the SSM Approve:.

. If the SSM approval limits the number of vehicles to be supplied under it each year,
(for example, Low Volume 25 or 100 per annum), the certifying AP must check with
the SSM approval holder {o ensure that the total number of vehicles supplied to
market as new plus modified under this code remain within the limit of the SSM
approval.

. GVM re-rating of in-senvice vehicles using LS11 code should not be certified if the
SSM approval is no longer current and has been suspended or cancelled.

. When re-raiing G4vM in accordance with an SSM approval, the cerfifying AP must
ensure that the S5M approval holder has provided written permission for use of the
35M design as the basis.
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3.0

. If re-rating a GVM in accordance with a Low Volume SSM approval, a statutory
declaration must be obtained from the SSM holder stating that the number limit has
not been exceeded as of that date.

. Any low volume SSM restrictions must be noted on the modification certificate (for
example vehicle #2 of 25).

. The SSM approval number must be recorded on the modification certificate.

. Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SSM approval
holder must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of GVM
under this code.

2.3 GVM re-rating by installation of an additional axle

if an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the
vehicle's GVM rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the originat vehicle
manufacturer's GVM rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharirig with_the
adjacent axle in the group, then the 10% limit may be exceeded. The ditment of an
additional axle is permitted in Queensland under the LB2 modification code in
conjunction with the LS11 code. Additional supporting evidence includiing brake testing
and chassis strength analysis must be provided.

2.4 GVM re-rating outside of Manufacturer’s Option

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even if it is not an-option by the vehicle
manufacturer, provided the change is no more than 10% abové-ihe onginal manufacturer's
GVM. While the upper limit is 10%, the actua! change paossibie is/limited by various factors
including chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

Specific Requirements

When re-rating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles aridl drive-frain components must be used
within the vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. Where . a component manufacturer has
published information stating that reduced ratings apply for safety reasons, the reduced rating must

apply.

Typical modifications involved in re-rating & vehicle's GVM include:

- single axle to tandem axle configuration
replacement engine, transmission, axle(s), suspension components, reinforced
chassis frame and upgrader braking system or the combination of these

The following specific requirements must be’‘met.
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3.1 Chassis

Chassis medifications must be performed in accordance with section LH5S of VEE 14ehisle
StandardeBulletin—14, If the necessary information is not available in LH5 code, then the
relevant sections of H code of the Heavy Vehicle Modification (VSB6) may be consulted, as
appropriate.

When modifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axle(s) with higher load
rating are carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient
strength to suppori the re-rated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, VSB6 may be
consulted.

A simplified way to look at the frame requirements for GVM re-rating, is to associate the
bending strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity {i.e. GVM).

3.2 Engine/Transmission

The GVM rating assigned must not exceed the engine and transmission manufacturer's
recommendations, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer for a vehicle 1ising ihe engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certification is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitled to the modified
vehicle must be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicia.

3.3 Axle Ratings

With increase in GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. The original vehicle
manufacturer's axle ratings must not be exceeded when loaded in & practical way to the
re-rated GVM, unless reinforced replacement axles are fitied: § rainforced replacement

axles are fitted, pn-that—easekt‘neir ratings must not be éxceeded. Commented [TLD6]: Suggested wording 1o clarify

. L . . . Commented [DGCT): I'm a bit confused by this stalement.
Where certification is by companson with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axie and It says it must not be exceeded, unless reinforced replacement
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identical to those fitted by axles are fitted (so it can be exceeded in those circumstances)

but then it says in that their ratings must not be exceeded, Can

the manufacturer to the reference vehicle with the highar GVM rating. this be re-worded 10 clarify this poiat?

In cases where a component manufacturer has published information reducing the rating
capacity of a component for safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

3.4 Tail Shaft

Changes associated with re-rated GV may place additional load on a vehicles tail shaft.

For example:

- changes to vehicle ride height which may alter the tail shaft and pinicn angles;

- alterations to a vehicle's whealbase may result in change in tail shaft length;

- changes to engine and/or iransmissions may impose increased torsional loading on
the tail shaft.

The vehicle s tail shat strengthi and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles re-
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

A vehicle's braking performance is directly affected by changes to GVM.
Therefore, the vehicle's braking system must be assessed to determine if the perfformance
of the original system is adequate for the proposed GVM or if it requires to be reinforced.

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehicle manufacturer o the
original or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is modificd or a new
sleering system is fitted it must be certified under the LS section of VSB14.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The sum of the Ioad carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least eguai ivine GVM.
The same applies to the load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the joad capacity of
the tyres {and rims} on each axle must be adequate to support the load imposed on that
axle.

The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be exceeded when the vehicle is
loaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed ‘ri-a practical and uniform way.

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the: requirements of the relevant ADR
(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM.

If required, an amending tyre placard must be fitted to indicate the revised tyre

specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated GVM. The, revised tyre size and load rating
must also appear on the modification plate and in the owner's handbook.

Load Capacity Label and Handboak

To ensure the vehicie operator is adequately informed of the changes, such as the vehicle's
towing capacity and tyre requirements, the vehicle s handbook must be updated. The update
must provide specific details of the tyres and the towing capacity and if applicable, any reduction
in towing capacity due to vehicle loading conditions and/or vertical load on tow ball (ball weight).

If the vehicles handbook is not availakie, this information must be provided in written form to the
owner of the vehicle. This informaticin must also be displayed on the Load Capacity Label
discussed below.

The Load Capacity Label must foliow the below format and must be fitted to the vehicle, as close
as practicable to the vehicle’s tyre placard.
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5.0

Load Capacity Label

Ratings Item Rating Information
SSM Approval # (if applicable)
Rerated GVM kg
Maximum Towing Mass at GVM* kg
Maximum Front Axle/s Mass Permitted kg
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Pemitted kg
*Warning: The maximum mass the vehicle can safely tow may depend on
vehicle loading and/or trailer ball weight. For further information regarding towing
capacities please refer to the vehicles handbook.

Limitations

For modifications not permitted under LS 11 code see Section 1.2 of this code. I addition, the
following limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 of this cade apply.

5.1 Electronic Stability Control

Changes to a vehicle's GVM rating can have a direct effect on Electronic Stability Control
{ESC) performance. Therefore, for vehicles fitted with ESC, the system must be tested to
ensure it continues to comply with the relevant ADR or manufzicturer's specifications.
However, this is not required where a vehicle’s GVM is being re-rated to the manufacture’s
alternative variant or according to SSM approval, such that the systeni's compliance has
been dermonstrated.

5.2 Effect on towing capacity

The towing capacity of a light vehicle expressed as GCM rating
or Rated Towing Capacity or Maximurn Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the
value set by the original vehicle manufacturer. This code does not permit an increase in rated
towing capacity or GCM rating. For many light vehicies rated towing capacity or GCM rating
may not be specified by the original vehicle manufaciurer. in such cases, the limit mentioned
in the Safe Towing Guide published by TMR appiies.

When the original vehicle manufacturer has specified GCM rating or rated towing capacity
or maximum braked towing mass, note that the maximum mass that can be legally and
safely towed when the vehicle is-loaded to the re-rated GVM, must be proportionately
adjusted to ensure that the sum of the CVMgress-vehisierrass and the trailer mass remain
within the ratings specified by the origiral manufacturer.

ditional Modifications ard Changes to Vehicle Category

Where additional modificaticris have bieen performed or a change in vehicle category has occurred
due to the GVM re-rating. certification using the appropriate additional codes must be provided.
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7.0 Use of LS11 code to provide design certification for GYM Re-rating

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM re-rating of a vehicle of a
particular make/modelivariant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using any
of the re-rating criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited
APpproved-Rersen-holding a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a
series of modified vehicles of that make/modelfvanant/chassis series and generate the necessary
evidence to ensure that the requirements of the design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used in this way to provide design certification, the AP providing the design
certification, may not inspect the modified vehicle and is not required to fit an LS11 medification
plate 1o the vehicle. Also the checklist completed as part of the design certification may-must not
refer to any particular VIN.

The oulputs of a dBesign cGertification under LS11 are (a) design package (b) LS11 raadification
certificate and (c) LS11 modification checklist. All  these outputs must e preserved as records
and must be made available, on request, for aud t and enforceme t purpose

71 Design Package

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and comprehensively address the
following four requirements:

7.1.1 Scope of what is eligible

Design cerlificaion must lightiy-—deseiba-—clearly //identify to  which
make/modelivariant/chassis series it applies. If its 2nniicabiiity is restricted to specific
build years that also must be menticned.

Since the modification and the re-rating is bzing done on in-service vehicles, the
condition of those in-service vehicles plays an impoant role in determining which
vehicle can safely receive the re-rating. This must be reflected in the scope section of
the design package by stating what must he inspected and what is acceptable to

that the vehicle is safe to modify and receive re-rating. Condition of
the shock absorbers, suspension, frame, iow 2quipment and brakes are key areas to
inspect Absence of cracks, deformations and structural damage due to rust is also
cntical.

The design certfication package must include a template that
needs be completed as a record dhat, before modification, the vehicle was inspected
and confirmed that it is eligiblé and is in sound condition.

7.1.2 Evidence package

Integral to the design package output is the collection of various test reports and
engineering caiculations that validate the re-rating when modified as prescribed. Test
reports must be frorn reputed test laboratories, musthave unique identification number
and riust-bebe sigried and dated. Test reports must make unambiguous reference to
the specific make/modelfvariants of the vehicle or component to which they apply and
mustconigin canclusion about pass or fail according to the refevant criteria.
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
certifiers to exclude retinclude-the entire evidence package in the design package
output being given to the customer. Where this is the case the design
package must list all the key test reports and calculation sheets (using their unique
identifiers) and provide written assurance that  full evidence package will be made
available, on request, for audit and enforcement purposes,

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package output must contain detailed work instructions on how to modify
the vehicle, what parts to be used, thewhat sequence of actions to be perfurmed,
precautions to be taken and what process controls to be applied.

Work instructions must also include details of any (non-destniciive) testing and
inspections to be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are met.

The instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous and should include

sufficient pictorials and graphics. Commented [DGCL1]: DO you mean photos? If so, say
photos.

The work instruction must also include contact
during modification.

All details must be recorded in the modification cerfificate including details of any SSM
approvals or conditions.

The load capacity label must be affixed to indicate revised GVM and other relevant
loading conditions.

7.1.4 Checklist for th er

This output of the design package consists of two separate checklists, one of each for

the vehicle modifier and the certifier of the physical modification. The purpose Commented [DGCI2]: This was discussed last time. Is it |
of these checklists is to generate evidence that the modifier and the certifier of the EL‘;:;‘:,‘, .fl‘.:"s""::;g:::’;: :T:;h“ separale checklist for the
physical modification have understood and followed the prescribed procedure and are

able to confirm that the intent.9f the: design package has been met. The design certifier

under LS11 may cheose to coiiect such completed checklists from the modifier and

the certifier of physica! modification as part of histher own quality assurance or risk

management practica,

Note that this checkiist is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification. may be required to complete as part histher certification under the
relevani code.
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
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1.1

2.1

31

41

5.1

52

6.1
6.2
6.3

6.4

7.1

8.1

8.2

Checklist LS11
Gross Vehicle Mass Increase
CODE LS11

Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not A

Is the vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM?

Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM?

Axles
Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM?

Engine/Transmission
Is the engineftransmission suitable for the increased GVM?
s

Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehicle to
ensure compliance with ADR 31/. or 35/.., whichever is
applicable?

(applicable in all cases apart from upgrading to zn/SSM
a roval or ori ‘nal vehicle manufacturer’s o ticnal GVM

Is the vehicles brake system suitable for the increzsed GVM?

Does the Modification Plate record the corvact tyre and rim sizes
and load ratin s for the modified vehicle?
Has an updated tyre placard been fitted to the vehicle?

Do tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the
lacard?

Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the

vehicles new GVM?

Has the vehicles ESC system brzen tested to confirm that the
system continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's
s ecifications?

Load Capacity information

Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle?

Has the veticles handbook been amended or additional
information beerdincluded onthe Load Ca  ~  Label?
Manufacturer's Optional GVM

Form No: LS11

N/A

N/A
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keeping a photo of the placard with their records be made
mandatory

Commaented [EPAL14): |s this what is referred 1o in the
LS 15 checklist as GVM rerating plate/label and if so why is it
catled something different

Commented [EPAL15]: 1. Why is this not included in the
L515 checklist

2.Can it be mandatory that a photo of the amended
handbook be kept with the records



9.1

9.2

10
10.1
10.2
10.3
104

1
11

12

121
12.2
12.3

12.4

125

126

127
12.8

12.9

Note: If the answer to any questicn is N (No) the design cannot be certified under LS11
code. If N/A does notalready appear in the checklist then it cannot be used.

Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle
manufacturer?

Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake,
engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc)
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's altemative

s ecification?

Second Stage of Manufacturer GVM

Has the SSM Approval helder provided written approval to
use that SSM des’ n?

If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM
A roval, has a statuto  declaration been obtained?
Does the rerated GVM malch that of the $SM approval?

Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake,
sus ension, es and rims, elc identical to the SSM desi n?

Fitment of an additional axle

If the vehicles GVM has been increase more than 10% is the
additional axle ioad sharin ?

Only if LS11 code is used to provide Design Certification
Is a comprehensive design package provided?

Does the design package have a unique identification
number?

Does the design package clearly describe which
make/modelfvariant/chassis series is eli ible for re-ratin. 7
Does the design package include guidance on what o inspect
in the in-service vehicle and how to determine its fitness (o
receive GVMu rade?

Does the design package include a complel¢ Evidence

Packa on which the GVM re-ratin is based?

Does the design package include comprehensive work
instructions including work to be done, precautions to be
taken, control of rocesses and tests to be conducted?

Does the design package include a checklist for the modifier
of the vehicle?

Does the design package incliide a checklist for the certifier
of the modified vehicle?

Does the design package addizss all the requirements of this
code?

N/A

NA

N/A

N/A

1LY
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a photo of the written approval included 1n the records



CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Modiel Manufacture
VIN
Chassis Number

(If applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s

Vahicle Modified By

Cortificate Number
(If applicable)

Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory's Employer
(If applicable)

Signatory's Signature
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: ednes ay 6 June 2

To: Patricia L Bailey

Subject: Please compare and merge these documents...

Attachments: LS 15 Version May 2018 V1 AS comments.docx; LS 15 Version May 2018 V1 OAA

comments.docx

And this set too Trish.

Thanks.

Anant Bellary

Principal Engineer {Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transpori and Main Roads

P:

E: apant.z.bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au
W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Modifications Leading to Rerating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a
Light Vehicle according to LS11 Design Certification
CODE LS15

1.0 Scope

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or iess) when those
modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design cedtification. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the defined modification
process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11 design certification.

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under L515 code:

® Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM by modifying it according to the instructions in an LS11
design certification issued for the same/make/model/variant/chassis series.

. Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance with a letter from the original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS15 code:
Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not'be certified under LS15 code:

Modifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 above.

Rerating of a vehicle which does not gqualify for GVM rerating under LS11 code.

Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modification, is greater than 4500 kg.
Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, after modification, will be greater than 4500 kg.
Rerating of GVM by comparing with an alternative make/model of vehicle.

Rerating of GVM by comparirig withy another vehicle which has been previously rerated
using a modification code.

Rerating of GVM based-on assessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer’s specifications only.

Rerating of GVM prior (o first registration anywhere in Australia. For it, follow the procedures
prescribed for obtaining a Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

2.0 General Requirements

2.1 Typical Modifications

Typical physical medifications involved in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspension or braking system with alternative components which collectively may permit a
different rating and/or reinforcement of the chassis frame.

2.2 ‘Reratiing without Modifications

In some cases rerating of GVM may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter is
issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required. Care
must be taken when comparing vehicles/components, as some properties may not be obvious
and evident. In these instances, evidence must be retained to demonstrate that the vebhicle is
identical to the manufacturer’s letter.
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2.3 Affected ADRs

Modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) to which
was originally constructed and also the ADRs that apply to it after modification. Where there is
conflict, it is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the modificatio

2.4 Work Instructions from the LS11 design package
Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the design package
of the relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the design package.

2.5 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package must be completed and
evidence of it must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes comipieiing any checklist(s) that
the design package requires.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When rerating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train components must be used within
the vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. Specific instructions provided in LS11 design package
must be followed.

The following specific requirements must be met.

3.1 Tyres and Wheel Rims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres and rims fitted to an axle or axle group must
be at least equal to the load rating of that axle or axle group or the load imposed on that axle or
axle group when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with the load distributed uniformly and in
a practical way), whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly and practically, must not result
in the load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured to compiy with ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04, the tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with the requirements of that ADR at the revised GVM rating.

Where a tyre placard is fitted to a vehicle, this placard may require to be replaced with a new
placard replicating the manufacturer’s alternative model vehicle or as specified in the LS11
design certification. Ttie revised tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification
plate.

The load capacity iabel must be fitted as close to the tyre placard as possible.

3.2 Chassis
The chassis of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design certification or identical
to theoriginal vehicle manufacturer’s alternate model/variant.

3.3._Brakes
The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design certification or identical to
the vehicle manufacturer’s specifications for the alternate model/variant.
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3.4 Axles and Suspension

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly and practically, must not result
in the load on any axle or suspension exceeding its rated capacity. Rated capacity of an axle or
suspension is the rating specified by the original vehicle manufacturer, unless reinforced
replacement axle or suspension is fitted.

3.5 Fabrication

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards_Cutting,
heating, welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosirig unmodified
production components wherever possible.

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Condition

Before carrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code; the condition of the in-
service vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design certification to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is to be achieved in two steps.

Step-1: To verify that the vehicle make/model/variant/chassis series and build year is within the
scope of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2: To inspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for rerating. The relevant
instructions in the design package of LS11 design certification must be followed to ensure that
the chassis frame, suspension, brakes and s¢ on are-in safe and serviceable condition at the
rerated GVM. Evidence of this inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufacturer’s Letter
Rerating based on original vehicle manufaciurer’s letter:
In this option a letter issued by the vehicie's original manufacturer is required.

To be considered acceptable, the manufacturer’s letter must contain at least the following
information:

. Vehicle manufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer's letter head with contact information).

. Make/model/variant of the vehicle.

. Vehicle ldentification Number (VIN) of the particular vehicle being modified.

. Details of any physical changes required to be performed to the vehicle (along with details
of specific cormponants to be fitted).

. Revised GVM rating.

. Signed and daied by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.
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Checklist LS15

Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

CODE LS15
Form No: LS15
(Y=Yes, N=No)
General
Do you have:
a copy of the LS11 design certification pack instructions to certify this
modification. Design Cert No. ..................
OR

a copy of a letter from the original vehicle manufacturer

Note: If you do not have one of the above you arg unab!z to modify/certify
this vehicle.

Are you accredited to certify the additional modificatior codes required
by the LS11 design certification package or the vehicle manufacturers |Y | N
letter?

2 Chassis
21 Does the chassis conform to the detail censtruction, section properties
) and cross-members of the LS11 design package or to any specified in Y |N
the vehicle manufacturer's letter?
59 Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation, cracks
) and rust perforation?
3 Brake system
31 Is the vehicle’s entire braking system as specified in the design package of
’ the LS11 design certification or the specifications in the vehicle Y |N
manufacturer's letter?
Is the braking systent in serviceable condition, free from leaks, wear and
3.2 . ; Y |N
fouling/stretching?
4 Tyres and Rims Y |N
4.1 Does the tyre placard (if fitted) record the correct tyre and rim sizes, axle
' configurations, axle loads and inflation pressures for the modified vehicle Y |N
as specified in the LS11 design certification?
4.2 Are tyres 2nd rims fitted in conformance to the tyre placard? Y |N
5 Eligikility- Make/model/variant/chassis series
Dioes the vehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design
5.1 A Y [N
_certification?
6 Eligibility- Vehicle condition
6.1 Is the vehicle in satisfactory structural and mechanical condition?
7 Workmanship
_; i Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard? Y |N
79 Are the checklists required in the LS11 design certification completed? vy |'N
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Are all the inspections and tests as required in LS11 design certification
com leted?

Is the GVM rerating plate/label as specified in the LS11 design
certification fitted?

Have you kept all supporting documents relied on by you to certify this
modification and hotos of the modified vehicle for future audit?

CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of

Make Wodel Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number

(if applicable)

Brief Description cf
Modification/s
Vehicle Modified 8

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified B Prin

Signatory’s Employer
(it applicable)

Si nato ’'s Si nature Date
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Modifications Leading to Rerating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a

1.0

Light Vehicle according to LS11 Design Certification
CODE LS15

Scope

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to cerlify physical modifications leading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or less) when those
modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design cedification. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the defined modification
process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11 design certification.

20

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under LS15 code:

. Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM by modifying it according to the instructions inan LS11
design cerlification issued for the same/make/modelivariani/chassis series:

. Rerating of a light vehicle's GVM in accordance with a lefter from the/original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Cerifications not permitted under LS15 code:
Light vehicle modifications of the following lypes must not be certified under L515 code:

Medifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 abova;

Rerating of a vehicle which does not qualify for GVM rerating under LS11 code.

Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modificatioin-is greaier than 4500 kg.

Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, after modification, will b greater than 4500 kg.

Rerating of GVM by comparing with an alternative make/medel-of vehicle.

Rerating of GVM by comparing with another vehiclz which_has been previously rerated

using a modification code.

. Rerating of GVM based on assessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer's specifications only.

. Rerating of GVM prior to first registration anywhere-in Australia. In this instancekorit, follow

the procedures prescribed for obtaining a Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

General Requirements

2.1  Typical Modifications

Typical physical modifications involved. in reraiing of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspension or braking system with-altemairvve components which collectively may permit a
different rating and/or reinforcement of tne chassis frame.

2.2 Rerating without Modifications

In some cases, rerating of G\ riay not involve physical changes. For example, where a letler
is issued by the original vehicle mzanufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required.
Care must be taken when/rZomparing vehicles/components, as some properties may nol be
obvious and evident. In_these instances, evidence must be relained to demonsirate that the
vehicle is identical to/the manufacturer's letter.
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2.3 Affected ADRs

The mModified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) to which
it was originally constructed and also the ADRs that apply to it after modification. Where there is
a conflict, it is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the
medification,

24 Work Instructions from the LS11 design package
Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the design package
of the relevant LS 11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the design package.

2.5 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package must be completed and
evidence efitmust be held by the L$15 certifier, This includes completing any checklist(s) that
the design package reguires.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When rerating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train components niust be used within
the vehicle manufaclurer's rated capacities. Specific instructions provided in 511 design package
must be followed.

The following specific requirements must be met.

Tyres and Wheel Rims
The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres and rims fitted to-an axle or axle group must
be at least equal to the load rating of that axle or axle group orthe lwad imposed on that axle or
axle group when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with tha 'oad distributed unifoermly and in
a praglical way), whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed unitcamly and practically, must not result
in the load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured to comply with ADR 24/, .. or ADR 42/04, the tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with the requirements of that ADR at the revised GVM rating.

Where a tyre placard is fitied to a vehicle, this piacard may need require-to be replaced with a
new placard replicating the manufacturer's alternative model vehicle or as specified in the LS11
design certification. The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification
plate.

The load capacity label must be fited as ¢lose fo the tyre placard as possible.

3.2 Chassis

The chassis of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design certification or identical
to the original vehicle manufacturer's alternate modelfvariant.

3.3 Brakes

The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design certification or identical to
the vehicle manufacturer's specifications for the alternate modelivariant.
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

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting,
heating, weiding or bending of components should be avoided by choosing unmodified
production compenents wherever possible

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Condition

Before carrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code, the condition of the in+
service vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design cerdification to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is to be achieved in two steps.

Step-1: Te-vVerify that the vehicle make/modelivanant/chassis series and build yvear is within the
scope of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2: Te-linspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for rerating. The relevant
instructions in the design package of LS11 design certification must be folluwed to ensure that
the chassis frame, suspension, brakes and so on are in safe and serviceabia condition at the
rerated GVM. Evidence of this inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufacturer's Letter
Rerating based on original vehicle manufacturer's letter. :
In this option, a letter issued by the vehicle’s original mantfacturer is required.

To be considered acceptable, the manufacturer’s letler must conlain at least the following
information:

Vehicle manufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer’s letter head with contact information).
Make/modelivariant of the vehicle.

Vehicle Identification Number (VIN} of the particutar vehicle being modified.

Details of any physical changes required to be-performed to the vehicle (along with details
of specific components to be fitted):

Revised GVM rating.

. Signatureed and dated by the del=gate ofthe original vehicle manufacturer.
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Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

Checklist LS15

CODE L815

Form No: LS15
(Y=Yes, N=No)

General

Do you have:

a copy of the LS11 design certification package with all instructions to
certify this modification. Design Cert No. . e

CR a copy of a letter from the original vehicle manufacturer

Note: If you do not have one of the above you are unable to
maodify/certify this vehicle.

Are you accredited to certify the additional modification codes required l
by the LE11 design certification package or the vehicle manufacturer’s
letter?

|
|

2 Chassis
21 Does the chassis conform to the detail construction, section properiies
' and cross-members of the LS11 design package or to any specifisd in
the vehicle manufaclurer's letier? V,
22 Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation, ¢racks
’ and rust perforation?
3 Brake system
11 Is the vehicle's entire braking system as specified in tha gasign package of
: the LS11 design cerification or the specifications in the vzhicle
manufaciurer's letter? N
19 Is the braking system in serviceable condition, iree irom leaks, wear and
- fouling/stretching?
4 Tyres and Rims
41 Does the tyre placard {if fitted) record the comect tyre and rim sizes, axle | Commented [EPAL]: What if they have 10 replace as it
) configurations, axle loads and inflatior pressures for the modified vehicle says it might in 3.1 - do they have to record anywhere that
as specified in the LS11 design certification? the tyre placard has actually been replaced and if so can
keeping a photo of the placard with their records be made
42 Are tyres and rims fitted in conformarice o' tnhe tyre placard? mandatory
5 Eligibility- Make/modellvariant/chassis series
51 Does the vehicle meet the élgibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design
) certification? ~ N\
[ Eligibility- Vehicle ¢bndjtion
6.1 Is the vehicle in sziisfactory structural and mechanical condition?
7 Workmanshig
71 Is the quality of The workmanship to a satisfactory standard?
72 Are the checkl_!'sgrequired in the LS11 design certification completed?
71 Areall the inspections and lests as required in LS11 design oerlification

compieted?
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74 Is the GVM rerating plateflabel as specified in the LS11 design Commented [EPA2Y Can we include that they must keep a
' certification fitted? pholo of the plate/labe! included in the records

75 Have you kept all supporting documents relied on by you to cerlify this
: maodification and hotos of the modified vehicle for future audit?

CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Yeur of
Make Model Manufacture
VIN

Chassis Number
(If applicable)

Brief Description of
Medification/s
Vehicle Modified B

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified B Pri

Signatory's Employer
(If applicable)
Si nato s Si nature
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: rid y, 8 June 018 1:22

To: Peter N Twining

Subject: Please arrange a meeting for L515...

Hello Peter,

Please arrange a meeting to discuss Qual requirements for S15 and invite DeannLiz, Tracey
Drier, Adam and myself.

Tue, 12/6 will be good as that is when Trump meets Kim.

Regards

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer (Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transport and Main Roads

P
E: ananl.z.bellary@tmr.qgld.gov.au
W www.imr.gld.gov.au
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: e n s ay 13 June 2018 10:03 A

To: Scott G Notley; Peter N Twining

Subject: RE: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx; Form for Feedback on
Draft Modification Code LS15.docx

Thanks Scott.

I have settled the message as below:

Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a niew/Light Vehicle
Modification Code LS15 to be incorporated into the Queensland Code of Practice (QCoP)
for Light Vehicle Modifications. The purpose of the new codé is to enhance the operation of
the previously developed LS11 modification code, particularly in the remote and regional
areas of Queensland.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical
modifications leading to the rerating of GrossVielicle Mass (GVM) of an in-service light
vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less) when those modifications conform to the specifications
contained in the relevant LS11 design certifidation. In addition to the requirements in this
code, the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the design package in the
relevant LS11 design certification issued to/the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis
series.

The LS11 modification code has begn-aménded to enable it to provide design certification.
Some other changes have also beernmade to LS11 code to provide greater clarity about the
intent of the LS11 code. Note that'the’LS11 code can continue to be used as a combined
design and modification code to-ceitify GVM rerating on its own, without using the new
LS15 code.

Both the new LS15 code and the amended LS11 code are attached for your perusal and
feedback. Please provide/any comments, via email to vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au by
the close of busineszon-Friday, 20th July 2018. You may use the attached template form to
provide your feedback) [t is proposed to implement these codes sometime between late
August and early September 2018.

The qualifications for the revised 1.S11 code will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification
No 1). Férthe e LS15 code the required qualification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the
businessruies; The latter is a trade based qualification which is considered appropriate for
the new /815 code. I have attached the following link to the qualification table for your
copvenience:

htt s> www.tmr. 1d. ov.au business-indust Accreditations A roved-Person-
Scheme Indust -ex erience-and- ualifications ualifications# ualificationtable

Regards
Peter Twining
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Regards

Anant Bellary
vehicle Standards § Acereditation
Transport § Main Roads

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Tuesday, 12 June 2018 4:48 PM

To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.qgld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

Anant,

For your consideration.

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director (Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 8 / 61 Mary St Brisbane Qld 4000 | PO Box 573 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 | £ 3253 4453 | m Notrelevan

e Scoft.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au

w www.tmr.qld.gov.au

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Tuesday, 12 June 2018 1:54PM

To: Anant Z Bellary < >

Cc: Scott G Notley < >

Subject: FW: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

Hi Anant

I'made o few changes for comment

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
Some other changes have also been made to provide greater clarity about the intent of the
LS11 code.

Note 1: the revised LS11 code does not have any reference to a Gross Contbination Mass
(GCM) rating or Rated Towing Capacity or Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating, which is
in line with the recently released federal circular 0-4-5 (copy attached) which states that
these values must not exceed the value set by the first stage manufacturer. Second stage
manufacturers (SSM) are not permitted to increase the towing capacity as part of an SSM
Identification Plate Approval that results in a GVM upgrade.

Note 2: that the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification
code to certify GVM rerating on its own, without using the new L315 code.

Both the new LS15 code and the amended LS11 code are attached for your perusal and
feedback. Please provide any comments, i-the-attaehed-feedbaek via email to
vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au by the close of business en Friday 20t July 2018. These
codes are intended to be implemented from 3 September 2018.

The qualifications for the revised LS11 modification code will remain unchanged
(Qualification No 1) and the LS15 modification code qualifications will be trade based
(Qualification No 1 or No 2) which is in line with the redundant Type Approval scheme
qualifications for similar types of modifications. I have attached the following link to the
qualification table for your convenience:
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Code Details
Title
GVM Re-rating of light vehicles

Your Specific Comments

Your Comment

Your General Commen's

Please use additional sheets, if required, for more feedback.
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Code Details
Title
GVM Re-rating in accordance LS11 Design

Your Specific Comments

Your Comment

Your General Comments

Please use additional sheets, if required, for more feedback.
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: June2 1 2

To: Peter N Twining

Cc: 'Scott G Natley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au)’; Tracey L Dreier; Patricia L Bailey
Subject: FW: New and amended modification codes

Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx; Formifor Feedback on

Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; LS11 Code Jun 2018 V 1.4 finaiformat.docx;
LS15 Code Jun 2018 V 1.0 final format.docx

The most current versions of the documents are attached.
Ready to go, if you are.

Regards

Anant Bellary
vehicle Standards § Accreditation
Transport § Main Roads

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Monday, 18 June 2018 8:03 AM

To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@tmr.qld.gov.av>; Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: New and amended modification codes

Hi Scott

This is already to go just a final checkiplease.

Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Standérdy Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modification Code
LS15 to be incorperdted into the Queensland Code of Practice (QCaP) for Light Vehicle
Modifications//The-purpose of the new code is to enhance the operation of the previously
developed LS11 m&dification code, particularly in the remote and regional areas of Queensland.

The attached 515 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications
leading\to the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass {(GVM) of an in-service light vehicle {GVM 4,500 kg or
lessjwhern those modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design
gertification. In addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the
process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11 design certification issued to the vehicle
ef same make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification. Some
other changes have alsoc been made to LS11 code to provide greater clarity about the intent of the
LS11 code. Note that the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification
code to certify GVM rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.
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Both the new L515 code and the amended LS11 code are attached for your perusal and feedback.
Please provide any comments, via email to vehiclestandards@tmr.gid.gov.au by the close of
business on Friday, 20" July 2018. You may use the attached template form to provide your
feedback. It is proposed to implement these codes sometime between late August and early
September 2018.

The qualifications for the revised LS11 code will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification No 1). For
the new L515 code the required qualification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the business rules.
The latter is a trade based qualification which is considered appropriate for themew LS15 code. |
have attached the following link to the qualification table for your conveniendé:

htt s: www.tmr, Id. ov.au business-indust Accreditations A roved-Person=Scheme Indust -
experience-and-qualifications/Qualificationstiqualificationtable

Kind regards

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Fioor 9| 61 Mary Street { Brishane QlId 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4008

P: {07} 30666537

E: peter.n.twining@tmr.gld.gov.au

W www.imr.gld.qov.au
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Gross Vehicle Mass Rating of Light Vehicles
CODE LS11

1.0 Scope

The LS11 Madification Code specifies arrangements for re-rating of the Gross Vehicie Mass (
rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not exceed 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of GVM under LS11 code is permissible only on the following type of light vehicies:

A light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and/or body mounted on
it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as monocegue canstruction, are not
eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from the original manufacturer's GVM
rating is not eligible for re-rating under this code.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First Stage identification Plate Approval
(IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) Approval or RAWS Approval is not deemed
as the original vehicle manufacturer.

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specified the GVM rating, the maximum laden
mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the purcose of showing compliance with the
Australian Design Rules (ADRs) is to be taken as the origina! GVM rating. This information must be obtained
from a reliable and traceable source.

1.1 What is permitted
Modifications that may be certified under L$171 code are:

* Up to 10% increase in the GVM rating given by the original vehicle manufacturer.
® Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in following cases:

o GVM rating of an in-service vehicle that is of the same make/model/variant/chassis
series as a vehicle having a SSM approval for GVM re-rating AND is modified in
accordance with the SSM approval AND the SSM approval holder has given explicit
permission for the SSM approval to be used as the basis for GVM re-rating.

o Increase in GVM where an additional axle has been installed.

o Alteration of a vehicles GVM rating to match the vehicle manufacturer’s alternative
rating for a particuiar variant of that make/model.

1.2 What is not permitted

Modifications that must not be certified under LS11 code are:

. Modifications other than those described in Section 1.1 above.

. Reduction in GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer's optional GVM for that
make/maodel and also in case of GVM reductions require as a result of conversion to heavy
motorhomes.

. Re-rating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by way of
SSMapproval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another jurisdictional approval).

“ GVM re-rating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the SSM
approval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM approval as the
pasis.

. GVM re-rating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval (for
example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in the SSM
approval.
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GVM re-rating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle beyond the
rating for that axle by the original vehicle manufacturer.

Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle manufacturer's
rating.

1.3 Towing Capacity and LS11 Code

* L311 code is not to be used for changing the rating of towing capacity, Gross Combination
Mass (GCM) rating or maximum braked towing mass (MBTM) of the vehicle. These ratings
must remain the same as those provided by the original vehicle manufacturer.

*» When the vehicle is loaded to the gross vehicle mass according to LE11 rating, the safe trailer
mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total combination mass does not exceed the
rating or the limit specified by the original vehicle manufacturer.

2.0 General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. The ritical components including the
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must be assessed individually
to ensure that they can safely support the loads resulting from the re-rated GVM.,

All work must also comply with the requirements contained in sub-section 2 General Requirements of
the National Code of Practice (NCOP} - Light vehicle modiiications (VSB14).

Increased GVM has the potential to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in
some cases. |t is the responsibility of the vehicle operator and the Approved Person to consider any
effect on the warranty that LS11 modification may have. Any effect this modification may have on the

product warranty provided by the criginal vehicle manufacturer is outside the scope of this code. The
certifying officer must clarify this point to the modifier and the vehicle operator.

2.1 Compliance with applicable vehicie standards
Modified vehicles must continue to comply with the ADRs that apply to them.

If different ADRs apply due to the modified vehicles, they must comply to those ADRs that are
relevant to them,

Modified vehicles must also comply with the applicable in-service requirements of Transport
Operations (Road Use Management—Vehicle Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the
Regulation).

Modified pre-ADR vehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.

Outlined in Table 1511 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the modifications and
may require re-certification, testing and/or data to show compliance of the modified vehicle.

This is not-an exhaustive list and compliance to other ADRs may also be affected.
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Table LS11 List of items and likely affected ADRs
REQUIREMENTS
ADR 42/..
ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Transport  Operations (Road < Use
Management—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Regufation 2010

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle’s category and ‘date of manufacture. It is the
responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the appropriate ADRs applicable to
the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle's GVM.
2 GVM re-rating based on Original Vehicle Marufacturer's Option

The change to the vehicle's GVM must replicate the originai vehicle manufacture’s optional GVM for
that particular make, model and variant. All components, including suspension, transmission, engine,
brakes, tyre and rims must be fitted same as thos& specified for that particular vehicle's alternate rated
variant.

2.3 GVM re-rating based on SSM Approvai

The re-rated GVM must be the same as tiie SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres and rims must be fitted and be identical to those specified on the
SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical modification replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified under the SSM approval must also be met. These requirements may include,
but are not limited to, the foilowing:

. The vehicle’s firstidentification Plate Approval number must be identical to that mentioned
in the SSM Approval.

* If the SSM approval limits the number of new vehicles to be supplied under it each year,
(for example, Low Volume 25 or 100 or 300 vehicles per annum), the certifying AP must
check with the SSM approval holder to ensure that the total number of in-service vehicles
modified per annum under the combination of the particular SSM approval and this code
do riot exceed the limit specified for that low volume SSM approval.

. 3V re-rating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code must not be certified if the SSM
approval is no longer current and has been suspended or cancelled.

. When re-rating GVM in accordance with an SSM approval, the certifying AP must ensure that
the SSM approva! holder has provided written permission for use of the SSM design as the
basis.

. Page 3 of 12
Queensland Code of Practice - Vehicle ModificatioRd, I1+3R42888hd Mlsid ri2age 1310f Jdie 2018



. A statutory declaration must be obtained from the low volume SSM holder stating that the
number limit has not been exceeded as of that date

. The SSM approval number must be recorded on the modification certificate.

. The low volume SSM restrictions must be noted on the modification certificate (for example
vehicle #12 of 300).

. Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SShi approval holder
must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of GVM under this code.

2.4 GVM re-rating by installation of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the vehicle’s GVM
rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the originai vehicle manufacturer's GVM
rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with the acjacent axle in the group, then the
10% limit may be exceeded. The fitment of an additional axle is permitted in Queensland under
the LB2 modification code in conjunction with the LS11 code. Additional supporting evidence
including brake testing and chassis strength analysis must be provided.

2.5 GVM re-rating outside of Manufacturer’s Option

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle evan if it is not an option by the vehicle manufacturer,
provided the change is no more than 10% above the original vehicle manufacturers GVM rating.
While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change passible is limited by various factors including chassis,
drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When re-rating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train components must be used within the
original manufacturer's rated capacities. Where a component manufacturer has published information
stating that reduced ratings apply for satety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

Typical modifications involved in re-rating a vehicle's GVM include:
- single axle to tandem axie configuration
- replacement engine, transmission, axle(s), suspension components, reinforced chassis
frame and upgraded braking system or any combination of these

The following specific requirements must be met.
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3.1 Chassis

A simplified way to look at the frame requirements for GVM re-rating, is to associate the bending
strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity (i.e. GVM).

Chassis modifications must be performed in accordance with section LHS of VSB14. If the
necessary information is not available in LH5 code, then the relevant sections of H code of the Heavy
Vehicle Modification Code of Practice (VSB68) may be consuited, as appropriate.

When modifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axle(s) with higherioad rating are
carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient strengih to support
the re-rated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, VSB6 may be consulted.

3.2 Engine/Transmission

The GVM re-rating assigned must not exceed the engine ang transmission manufacturer's
recommendations, if any, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer for a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certification is/ by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitied to the modified vehicle must
be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

3 Axle Ratings

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. Axle loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle raiings, uriless reinforced replacement axles are
fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with _a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle,

If a component manufacturer has published instructions to reduce the rating of a component for
safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

3.4 Tail Shaft

Changes associated with re-rated GVM may place additional load on vehicle’s tail shaft. For

example:

- changes to vehicle's ride height which may alter the tail shaft and pinion angles;

- alterations to a vehicle’s wheelbase may result in change in tail shaft length;

- changes to engine and/or transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on the tail
shaft.

The vehicle’s tail shaft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles re-rated GVM.
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3.5 Suspension

When loaded to re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on suspension. Vehicle suspension
ratings must be adequate for the re-rated GVM plus it must be able to accommodate the axle loads
resulting from the common and practical load distribution. Effects of changes in ride height must
be carefully considered. For example, tyre and wheel envelope, jounce and rebound travel,
hydraulic brake hose length, handling and roll stability.

3.6 Brakes

A vehicle's braking performance is directly affected by changes to its GVM. Therefore, the vehicle’s
braking system must be assessed to determine if the performance of ihe original system is
adequate for the re-rated GVM or if it requires to be reinforced.

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehicie reanufacturer to the original
or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be certified under the LS section of VSB14.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load carrving capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is loaded to the re rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the re-rated GVM.
The same applies to the load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
{and rims) on each axle must be adequsia to support the potential maximum mass on that axle.

If re-rated GVM and axle masses izquire different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre
placard must be fitted to indicate the revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated
GVM. The revised tyre size and ioad rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the
owner’'s handbook.

If different tyres & rims are specified, their size must be no more than necessary to support the
increased axle masses. The efiect of alternate tyres on speedometer/odometer accuracy must be
considered. It must be ensursd that, with the alternate tyres, vehicle’s compliance to ESC requirements
is not affected.

4.0 Owner's Handboo¥% and Load Capacity Label

The vehicle operator must be adequately informed of the changes.
41 Owner's Handbook

Teoinform the vehicle operator about the vehicle’s towing capacity and tyre & rim requirements, the
vehicle’'s nandbook must be updated. The update must provide specific details of the tyres, rims and
the towing capacity. Of particular importance is any sliding reduction in towing capacity of the vehicle
as itis loaded to its re-rated GVM and/or vertical load on tow ball (ball weight).

If the vehicles handbook is not available, this information must be provided in written form to the
owner of the vehicle.

Page 6 of 12
Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicle ModificatidRE) Tah/§as88ndRilein RBadre-10510F Jde 2018



4.2 Load Capacity Label
Certain information must also be displayed on the Load Capacity Label as discussed below.
The Load Capacity Label must follow the below format. It must be made of durable material and letter

size and contrast should be similar to the tyre placard. Label must be fitted to the vehicle, as close
as practicable, to the vehicle’s tyre placard.

Load Capacity Label
Ratings Item Rating Informaiicn
SSM Approval # (if applicable) (L
Re-rated GVM < ' kg
Maximum Braked Towing Mass at re-rated GVM* kg
Maximum Front Axle Mass Permitted o kg |
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted kg |
*Warning: The maximum braked towing mass depends on the re-rated GVM and
trailer ball weight. For further information regarding towing capacities please
refer to the vehicles handbook,

5.0 Limitations

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see Section'1.2 of this code. In addition, the following
limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 of this«code apply.

5.1 Electronic Stabhility Control

Re-rated GVM may have direct effect on the performance of Electronic Stability Control (ESC)
system. Hence ESC system must be revaiidated so it performs satisfactorily at the re-rated GVM.
However such revalidation is not‘required where a vehicle’'s GVM is being re-rated to the
manufacture’s alternative variant or according to SSM approval, such that the system’s compliance
has been demonstrated using ottier agreed methods.

5.2 Effect on towing capacity

The towing capacity of & light vehicle expressed as GCM rating or Rated Towing Capacity or
Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the value set by the original vehicle
manufacturer. The scope of code does not include changes to vehicle's towing capacity. If towing
capacity is not specified by the original vehicle manufacturer, the limits mentioned in the Safe Towing
Guide published by TMR apply.

Iif the original vehicle manufacturer has specified towing capacity in some form, the gross combination
mass formed by adding that towing capacity and the original GVM rating must not be exceeded.
Hence, whenthe GVM is re-rated, the actual towed mass must be proportionately reduced according
to the Ioaded mass of the towing vehicle.

6.0 Additional Modifications and Changes to Vehicle Category

If additional modifications are made or the vehicle's category has changed due to the GVM re-rating,
certification using the appropriate additional codes must be provided.
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7.0 Use of LS11 code to provide design certification for GVM Re-rating

LS11 code may now be used {o provide design certification for GVM re-rating of a vehicle of a particular
make/model/variant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using any of the re-rating
criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited AP holding
a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a series of modified vehicles of that
same make/model/variant/chassis series and generate the necessary evidence to show that the
requirements of the LS11 design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used to provide design certification, the AP providing the dasign certification, may not
inspect the modified vehicle(s) and is not required to fit LS11 modification plate on the vehicle(s). Also the
checklist completed as part of the LS11 design certification will not refer to any particular VIN.

The outputs of a design certification under LS11 code are (a) a comprehensive design package (b) a
modification certificate and (c) a completed checklist. All of these outputs musi be preserved as records of
the LS11 design certification and must be made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1 Design Package

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and comprehensively address the following
four requirements:

7.1.1 Scope of what is eligible

Design package must clearly identify which make/model/variant/chassis series it applies to. If
its applicability is restricted to specific build years that also must be mentioned.

Since the modification and the re-rating of GVM is being done on in-service vehicles, the
condition of the vehicle is impoitant io decide which vehicle can be safely modified and re-
rated. The design package must include instructions about what is to be inspected and the
acceptance criteria. Condition of ihe shock absorbers, suspension, frame, tow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect. Absence of cracks, deformations, leaks and structural damage
due to overloading, accidents or rust is also critical.

The design package must include a checklist template for use by the AP certifying the physical
modification. The: checklist will be completed by the AP who certifies the physical modification
to confirm that the veticle was inspected and was found in sound condition before commencing
the modification.

7.1.2 Evidence package

The design package must include all the test reports and engineering calculations that validate
the re-rating, when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from reputed test laboratories,
have unique identification number and be signed and dated. All test reports must make
unainbiguous reference to the specific make/model/variants of the vehicle or component to
wiiich they apply. Also the test reports must contain conclusion about pass or fail according to
the relevant criteria.

Engineering calculations must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They must be
compiled under a unique identifier document that is dated and signed.

If any evidence is sourced from a third party, the evidence package must include a written
permission from that party for use of its reports.
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For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, sometimes the LS11 certifier may choose
not to include all the test reports in the design package. In such cases the design package
must still include a full list of all the test reports and the calculation sheets (using their unique
identifiers} and provide written assurance to the client that the full evidence package will be
made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package must include comprehensive work instructions on.how o modify the
vehicle, what parts to be used, the sequence of actions to be performed, precautions to be
taken and what process controls to be applied.

The work instructions must include details of any (non-destructive) testing and inspections to
be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are met.

The work instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous aind should include sufficient
pictorials including photos and graphics.

The work instructions must include the contact details of the LS11 certifying AP if enquiries
arise needing further clarification during the physical modification and/or its certification.

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier and the cgitifier

The design package must include template checkiist(s) to be completed by the vehicle modifier
and the certifier of the physical modification. These may be separate or one combined
checklist. These checklists, when compieted, are evidence that the modifier and the certifier of
the physical modification have understeod and followed the work instructions and the intent of
the design package has been met. The L.S11 AP may ask for copies of completed checklists
from the modifier and the certifier of physical modification as part of histher own quality
assurance or risk managemeri practice. The completed checklist must also be retained by the
AP who certifies the physical modification.

Note that this checklist is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification is required io complete as part his/her certification of the modification under the
relevant code.

7.2 Certificate of/Mlodification

The LS11 AP musiissue a certificate of modification to his client for the design certification provided.
This is similai to_any other certificate of modification, except that the cerificate may not make
reference to ariy specific modification plate number or VIN. Instead, it must refer to the basis of the
design certification (for example, SSM approval number) and the unique identification number of the
desian package provided.

7.2/ Modification Checklist

LS11 AP must complete the medification checklist provided at the end of this code and must retain it
as part of his/her records.
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Checklist LS11
Gross Vehicle Mass Increase

CODE LS11
Form No: LS11
{(Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not Appiicable)
1 Suspension
11 |Isthe vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM? | __ﬂi_\; N
I
2 Chassis
51 | Is the chassis suitable for the increased GYM? — |y IN
3 Axles
3.1 Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM? - — Y |N
4 Engine/Transmission
41 | s the engineftransmission suitable for the increased GVM? — |y In
s | Braking System -
5.1 Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehicle to
) ensure compliance with ADR 31/. or 35/., whichever is
applicable? N/A|lY | N
(applicable in all cases apart from upgrading to an SSM
approval or original vehicle manufacturer's optional GVM)
5o |8 the vehicles brake system suitable for the increased GVM? | Yy |N

6 Tyres and Rims

Does the Modification Flate record the correct tyre and rim sizes

61 | and load ratings for the modified vehicle? — Y [N

6.2 If a revised tyre placard is required, has it been fitted to the | Y |N
' vehicle and a copy attached to this checklist?

6.3 Do the tyres and rims iitted conform to the modification plate and | vy |IN
’ the tyre placard?

6.4 Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the — 1y IN
' vehicle's re-rated GVM and the potential axle masses?
7 Electrenic Stability Control

71 Has the vehicles ESC system been tested to confirm that the

system continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's | NFA [ Y N
specifications?

8 Leoad Capacity Label

8.1 “|'is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle? v |N

8.2 Has the vehicle's handbook been amended and a copy of the
relevant modified content attached to this checklist? —

9 Manufacturer’s Optional GVM
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9.1 Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
) same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle N/A Y N
manufacturer?
9.2 Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake,
’ engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc) NA LY | N
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer’s alternative
specification?
10 | Second Stage of Manufacturer GVM
10.1 Has the SSM approval holder provided written approval to N
’ use that SSM design and a copy of the same attached to this | N/JA LY V| N
checklist? =\
10.2 If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM NAL Y | N
' Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained? N
10.3 Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM approval? NA LY N
10.4 Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake, NALY |N
) suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the SSM design?
11 Fitment of an additional axle
if the vehicles GVM has been increase more than 10% is the
11 additional axle load sharing? N\ NATY [N
12 Only if LS11 code is used to provide Design Certification
12.4 | s @ comprehensive design package provided? — |y IN
12.2 Does the design package have a unigue identification — Yy IN
number?
12.3 Does the design package clearly describe which ey IN
) make/modelfvariant/chassis séries is eligible for re-rating?
12.4 Does the design package include guidance on what to inspect | vy IN
" | to decide if the vehicle is dit to receive the re-rated GVM?
125 Does the design package include a complete Evidence — 1y IN
' Package on which the GVM re-rating is based?
126 Does the design package include comprehensive work
’ instructions including work to be done, precautions to be -— 1Y IN
taken, control of brocesses and tests to be conducted?
12.7 Does the design package include a checklist for the modifier | Y |N
) of the vehicle?
12.8 Does the design package include a checklist for the certifier — |y IN
) of the madified vehicle?
12.9 Does the design package address all the requirements of this vy |IN
~ | code? o

Note: If the ariswer to any question is N (No) the design cannot be certified under LS11 code. If N/A
does not already appear in the checklist then it cannot be used.
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

2.0
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
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Modifications Leading to Re-rating of Gross Vehicle Mass of a
Light Vehicle according to LS11 Design Certification

CODE LS15
1.0 Scope

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons (AP) to certify physical modifications leading to
the re-rating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or iess) when those
modifications are carried out in accordance with instructions in the relevant LS11 qesigricertification.
In addition to the requirements in this code, the AP providing LS15 certification. must follow the
instructions in the design package that came with the relevant LS11 design certification.

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under LS15 code:

. Re-rating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it according to the instructions in an LS11
design certification issued for the same/make/modsifvariant/chassis series.

o Re-rating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance with-a letter from the original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS15 code:

Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not be certified under LS15 code:

Madifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 above.

Re-rating of a vehicle which is outside the scope of the relevant LS11 design certification.

Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modification, is greater than 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, after modification, will be greater than 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of GVM by comparinig with an alternative make/model of vehicle.

Re-rating of GVM by comparing with another vehicle which has been previously re-rated

using a modification code.

. Re-rating of GVM based oiv assessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer’'s specifications only.

. Re-rating of GVM prior o first registration anywhere in Australia. In such cases seek a
Second Stage of Manufacture (SSM) approval.

* & » @ @ @

2.0 General Requiremenis
2.1 Typical Modifications

Typical ghysical rnodifications under LS15 may include replacement of axle(s), suspension or
braking svstem with alternative components or reinforced chassis frame which collectively may
permit @ different rating.

2.2 /Re-rating without Modifications

In some cases, rerating of GVM may involve no physical changes. For example, where a letter
is issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required for
re-rating. Care must be taken when comparing vehicles/ their components, as some properties
may not be obvious and evident. in these instances, evidence must be retained to demonstrate
that the vehicle is identical to the manufacturer’s letter.
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2.3 Affected ADRs

The modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules {ADRs) which
are relevant to it. This includes ADRs which applied to it when it was originally constructed and
the ADRs that apply to it after it is modified. If there is a conflict, the ADR requirement after
modification takes priority.

2.4 Work Instructions from the LS11 Design Package

Modifications must be carried out according to the work instructions that are in the design
package that came with the relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform
to the design package.

25 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection specified in the design package must be completed and the evidence of
the same must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing the checklist(s) that came
with the LS11 design package.

Specific Requirements

When certifying the re-rated GVM under LS15, the chassis frame, suspension, axles and drive train
componenis must be used within the originalt vehicle manufacturer’s rated capacities. All instructions
provided in the LS11 design package niust be foliowed.

The following specific requirements must e met.

3.1 Tyres and Wheel Rims

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is lvaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM. The
same applies to the lcad carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres

(and rims) on each axie must be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle.

i rerated GVM raquires different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre placard must be
fitted to indicate the revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated GVM. The revised
tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the owner’s handbook.
3.2/ Chassis Frame

The chassis frame of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design package or
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer’s alternate modelfvariant.

Page 2 of 6
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3.3 Brakes

The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design package or identical to
the vehicle manufacturer's specifications for the alternate model/variant.

3.4 Axles and Suspension

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. Axlé loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle ratings, unless reinforced replacement axles are
fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be ideniicai to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

If a component manufacturer has published instructions to reduce the vating of a component for
safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

3.5 Fabrication

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting,
heating, welding or bending of components shouid be avoided by choosing unmodified
production components wherever possible.

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Condition

Before carrying out the modifications and cerlification under LS15 code, the details and the in-
service condition of the vehicle must be-checked, as specified in the LS11 design package, to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for re-rating and its condition is safe and suitable.

Step-1: Confirm that the vehicle make/model/variant/chassis series and build year is within the
scope of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2: Inspect and confitm that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for re-rating. The
instructions in the LS11 design package must be followed to ensure that the chassis frame,
suspension, brakes and sc cnrare in safe and serviceable condition for re-rating. Evidence of this
inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufacturer’s l.etter

If re-rating is based on the original vehicle manufacturer's letter, the manufacturer’s letter must
contain at least' the following information:

Vehicle manufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer's letter head with contact information).
Make/model/variant of the vehicle.

Vehicle ldentification Number (VIN) of the particular vehicle being re-rated.

Details of all physical changes required for re-rating (including the details of the specific
upgrade parts to be fitted).

. Re-rated GVM.

Signature and date by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.

. Page 3 of 6
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Checklist LS15

Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

CODE LS15
Form No: LS15
{Y=Yes, N=No)
General
Have you received a copy of and understood:
The LS11 design package with all the instructions to modify, test and
re-rate vehicle of this make/model/variant/chassis series?
LS11 Design Certification No. .............c.ooevninnn, Date...........
OR A letter from the original vehicle manufacturer for re-rating?
Manufacturer’'s Letter Reference date
Note: If you do not have one of the above, you are unable 1o certify this
vehicle.
12 Are you accredited to certify the additional modification codes required v N
' by the LS11 design certification or the vehicle manufacturer’s letter?
2 Chassis Frame
21 Does the chassis frame conform to the detail construction, section
' properties and cross-members of the LS11 design package or the Y N
original vehicle manufacturer's letter?
25 Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation, cracks
' and rust perforation?
Does it meet the inspection criteria mentioned in the LS11 design
package? AN
3 Brake system
Is the vehicle’s braking rsysgm—as specified in the LS11 design package or
31 e ; A N Y N
the original vehicle manufacturer's letter?
Is the braking system in serviceable condition, free from leaks, wear
3.2 . X
and fouling/stretching? Y N
Does it meet'the inspection criteria mentioned in the LS11 design
package?
4 Tyres and Rims Y |N
4.1 Does the Mcdification Plate record the correct tyre and rim sizes and load
' ratings fei the modified vehicle? Y N
4.2 If & revised tyre placard is required, has it been fitted to the vehicle and a Y N
cepy attached to this checklist?
4.3 Do the tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification piate and the tyre y N
[}
placard?
4.4 | Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the vehicle’s re-rated vy N
GVM and the potential axle masses?
5 Eligibility- Make/model/variant/chassis series
Does the vehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design
5.1 P Y N
certification?
6 Load Capacity Label
Page 4of 6
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Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle?

Has the vehicle's handbook been amended and a copy of the relevant
modified content attached to this checklist?

Workmanship

Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?

Arells the checklist(s) required in the LS11 design package completed?

Are all the inspections and tests as required in the LS11 design package
com leted?

Have you kept all supporting documents you used to certify this
modification and hotos of the modified vehicle for future audit?

Page 50f6
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Model Manufacture

ww [ | [ [ [ | [ [ T [ [ [ [ T -] ]

Chassis Number
{If applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory’s Employer
(if applicable)
Signatory’s Signature N | Date ]
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

Sent: enes a 2 Jun 2018 9:19A

To: ‘Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)’

Cc: Nigel G Ellis; Tracey L Dreier

Subject: FW: New Modification Code LS15 and Revised Modification Code L511...
Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx; Form for Feedback on

Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; LS11 Code Jun 2018 Consultation Draft.docx;
LS15 Code Jun 2018 Consultation Draft.docx

Hello Scott,

FYI.

Regards

Anant Bella Y

vehicle Standards § Accreditation
Transport § Main Roads

From: Anant Z Bellary
Sent: Wednesday, 20 June 2018 9:17 AM

To: | Notretevan @infrastructure.gov.aus; Notrelevant

Not relevant @infrastructure.gov.au>

Cic: Notrelevant @infrastructure. gov.ay>; Notrelevant t@infrastructure.gov.au>;
@infrastructure.gov.au>

Subject: New Modification Code LS15 and Revised Modification Code LS11...

Not relevant

FYI.

Anant Bellary
vehicle Standards g Apereditation
Transport § Mali(Rgads

From: Anant Z Bellary
Sent: Wednesday, 20 June 2018 9:16 AM
To:|Notrelevant @roads.vic.gov.au>

Ci: Not relevart @nt.gov.au>) " reean @nzta.govt.nz>;
Not relevant @transport.nsw.gov.au) « Not relevant @tra nspo rt.nsw.gov.au>; Not relevant

Not relevant @transport.wa,gov.ay>; Notrelevant @act.gov.au)

NoJevary @act.gov.au>; Notrelevant @rms.nsw.gov.au>; NSW Technical
Cnguiries {Technical.Enquiries@rms.nsw.gov.au) <Technical.Enguiries@rms.nsw.gov.ay>; Notrelevant

Not relevant asalgo\,_aup.; Not relevant @SB.EOV.HU)

iNot relevant @sa.gov.a U>; Not relevant @nzta.govt.nz>; Not relevant

Not relevant @sa.gov.au) < Not relevant @sa.gov.au>; [letielevant (StateGrOWth)

Dotielerant (@stategrowth.tas.goy.au>| Not relevant @nt.gov.au>

Subject: New Modification Code LS15 and Revised Modification Code LS11...

To

1
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I Not relevant

|

Chair

VSB-14 Single Issue Working Group
AMVCB

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light
Vehicle Modification Code LS15 to be incorporated into the Queensland Code
of Practice (QCoP) for Light Vehicle Modifications. The purpose of the new
code is to enhance the operation of the previously develop~=4 L511
modification code, particularly in the remote and regionalareas of
Queensland.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approtied Persons to certify
physical modifications leading to the rerating of Gross ¥ehicle Mass (GVM) of
in-service light vehicles (GVM 4,500 kg or less)when those modifications
conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design
certification. In addition to the requirements in this'code, the LS15
certification must follow the process specified/in the design package in the
relevant LS11 design certification issued for the vehicles of same
make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design
certification. Some other changes have also been made to LS11 code to
provide greater clarity about theiuitent of the LS11 code. Note that the LS11
code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification code to
certify GVM rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.

Both the new LS15 code and4he amended LS11 code are attached for your
perusal and feedback. Please provide any comments, via email to
vehiclestandards@tmr.gld/gov.au by the close of business on Friday, 20t July
2018. You may use the-attached template form to provide your feedback. It is
proposed to implement these codes from 3 September 2018.

The qualificationis for the revised LS11 code will remain unchanged (that is,
Qualification: No 1). For the new L.S15 code the required qualification will be
Level-1 or Levels2, as per the business rules. The latter is a trade based
qualificatich-which is considered appropriate for the new LS15 code. I have
attached the following link to the qualification table for your convenience:

htt s www.tmr. 1d. ov.au business-indust Accreditations A roved-
Pérson-Scheme/Industry-experience-and-

guali Acatlons[gQualiﬁcations#gualiﬁcationtable

TMR invites, urges and welcomes you to include these codes in the VSB-14 National
Cede of Practice for national uniformity.

Happy to discuss further to assist national adoption of these codes as required.

Regards

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer (Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transport and Main Roads

2
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Floor @ | 61 Mary Street | Brishane Qld 4000

P: (07) 3066 3468
E: anant.z.bellary@tmr.gid.gov.au
W www.tmr.qld.gov.au
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Gross Vehicle Mass Rating of Light Vehicles
CODE LS11

1.0 Scope

The LS11 Modification Code specifies arrangements for re-rating of the Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM)
rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not exceed 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of GVM under LS11 code is permissible only on the following type of light vehicles:

A light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin andfor body mounted on
it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as monocogue censtruction, are not
eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from the onginai- manufacturer's GVM
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
mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the purpose of showing compliance with the
Australian Design Rules (ADRs) s to be taken as the original GVM rating. This information must be obtained
from a reliable and traceable source.

1.1 What is permitted

Modifications that may be certified under L5114 code are:

o Up to 10% increase in the GVM rating given by the original vehicle manufacturer.
. Exceptions to the limit of 10% appiy in following cases:

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

(o] increase in G\VVM where an additional axle has been installed.

o Alteration of a vehicles GVM rating to match the vehicle manufacturer's alternative
rating for a pariicuiar variant of that make/model.

1.2 What is not permitted

Modifications that musi not be certified under LS11 code are:

. Modifications other than those described in Section 1.1 above.

. Reduction in GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer’s optional GVM for that
make/medel and also in case of GVM reductions require as a result of conversion to heavy
motorhomes.

. Re-rating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by way of
SSMapproval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another jurisdictional approval).

* GGVM re-rating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the SSM
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

Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle manufacturer’s
rating.

1.3 Towing Capacity and LS11 Code

» LS11 code is not to be used for changing the rating of towing capacity, Gross Combination
Mass (GCM) rating or maximum braked towing mass (MBTM) of the vehicle, These ratings
must remain the same as those provided by the original vehicle manufacturer.

* When the vehicle is loaded to the gross vehicle mass according to LS11 rating, the safe trailer
mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total combination mass does not exceed the
rating or the limit specified by the original vehicle manufacturer.

2.0 General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. The eritical components including the
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must be assessed individually
to ensure that they can safely support the loads resulting from the re-rated GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements contained in sub-section 2 General Requirements of
the National Code of Practice (NCOP) — Light vehicle miodiiications (VSB14).

Increased GVM has the potential to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in
some cases. It is the responsibility of the vehicle operator and the Approved Person to consider any
effect on the warranty that 1.S11 modification may have. Any effect this modification may have on the

product warranty provided by the original vehicle manufacturer is outside the scope of this code. The
certifying officer must clarify this point to the'modifier and the vehicle operator.

2.1 Compliance with applicable vehicie standards
Modified vehicles must continue to comply with the ADRs that apply to them.

If different ADRs apply due to the modified vehicles, they must comply to those ADRs that are
relevant to them.

Modified vehicles must also comply with the applicable in-service requirements of Transport
Operations {(Road Use Management—Vehicle Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the
Regulation).

Modified pre-ADR vehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.

Outlined in Table LS11 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the modifications and
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

Transport  Operations (Road < {se
Management—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Regulation 2010

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle’s category and‘date of manufacture. It is the
responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the appropriate ADRs applicable to
the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle's GVM.
2 GVM re-rating based on Original Vehicle Manufacturer’'s Option

The change to the vehicle’s GVM must replicate the originaivehicle manufacture's optional GVM for
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

The re-rated GVM must be the same as thie SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres and rirris must be fitted and be identical to those specified on the
SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical modiiication replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified underthe SSM approval must also be met. These requirements may include,
but are not limited to, the following:

. The vehicle’s first identification Plate Approval number must be identical to that mentioned
in the SSM Appraval.

) If the SSM appiaval limits the number of new vehicles to be supplied under it each year,
(for example, i_.ow Volume 25 or 100 or 300 vehicles per annum), the certifying AP must
check with the SSM approval holder to ensure that the total number of in-service vehicles
modified per annum under the combination of the particular SSM approval and this code
da not exceed the limit specified for that low volume SSM approval.

. (GVVi re-rating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code must not be certified if the SSM
approval is no longer current and has been suspended or cancelled.

. When re-rating GVM in accordance with an SSM approval, the certifying AP must ensure that
the SSM approval holder has provided written permission for use of the SSM design as the
basis.
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. A statutory declaration must be obtained from the low volume SSM holder stating that the
number limit has not been exceeded as of that date.

. The SSM approval number must be recorded on the modification certificate.

. The low volume SSM restrictions must be noted on the modification certificate (for example
vehicle #12 of 300).

. Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SSM apnroval holder
must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of GVM tnder this code.

2.4 GVM re-rating by installation of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the vehicle’'s GVM
rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the originat vehicle manufacturer's GVM
rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with the adjacent axle in the group, then the
10% limit may be exceeded. The fitment of an additional axle is permitted in Queensland under
the LB2 modification code in conjunction with the LS11 code. Additional supporting evidence
including brake testing and chassis strength analysis must be provided.

2.5 GVM re-rating outside of Manufacturer’'s Option

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even if it is not an option by the vehicle manufacturer,
provided the change is no more than 10% above the original vehicle manufacturer's GVM rating.
While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change possible is limited by various factors including chassis,
drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When re-rating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train components must be used within the
original manufacturer's rated capacities. WWhere a component manufacturer has published information
stating that reduced ratings apply for safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

Typical modifications involved in re~rating a vehicle’s GVM include:
- single axle to tandem- axie configuration
- replacement engiine, transmission, axle(s), suspension components, reinforced chassis
frame and upgraded braking system or any combination of these

The following specific requirements must be met.
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1 Chassis

A simplified way to look at the frame requirements for GVM re-rating, is to associate the bending
strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity (i.e. GVM).

Chassis modifications must be performed in accordance with section LH5 of VSB14. If the
necessary information is not available in LH5 code, then the relevant sections of H code of the Heavy
Vehicle Modification Code of Practice (VSB6) may be consulted, as appropriate.

When modifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axle(s) with higherload rating are
carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient strength to support
the re-rated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, VSB6 may be consulted:

3.2 Engine/Transmission

The GVM re-rating assigned must not exceed the engine and transmission manufacturer's
recommendations, if any, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer fer a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certification iz’ by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fiited to the modified vehicle must
be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

3.3 Axle Ratings

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads zre placed on axles. Axle loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle ratings, unless reinforced replacement axles are
fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified” vizhicle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

If a component manufacturer has published instructions to reduce the rating of a component for
safety reasons, the reduced rating miist apply.

4 Tail Shaft

Changes associated with ra-rated GVM may place additional load on vehicle’s tail shaft. For

example:

- changes to vehiclg’s ride height which may alter the tail shaft and pinion angles;

- alterations to a vehicle’s wheelbase may result in change in tail shaft length;

- changes to ergine and/or transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on the tail
shaft.

The vehicle's tail shaft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles re-rated GVM.
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

A vehicle's braking performance is directly affected by changes to its GVM. Therefcte, the vehicle's
braking system must be assessed to determine if the performance of the original system is
adequate for the re-rated GVM or if it requires to be reinforced.

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehicle manufacturer to the original
or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be certified under the LS section of VSB14.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the reguirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load cairying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is loaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the iyres fitted must be at least equal to the re-rated GVM.
The same applies to the load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
(and rims) on each axle must be adequate to support the potential maximum mass on that axle.

If re-rated GVM and axle masses require different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre
placard must be fitted to indicate the revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated
GVM. The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the
owner’'s handbook.

It different tyres & rims are specified, their size must be no more than necessary to support the
increased axle masses. The effect of alternate tyres on speedometer/odometer accuracy must be
considered. It must be ensured that, with the alternate tyres, vehicle’s compliance to ESC requirements
is not affected.

4.0 Owner's Handhoaok’and Load Capacity Label

The vehicle operator imust be adequately informed of the changes.
4.1 QOwner’s Handbook

Teoinform ine vehicle operator about the vehicle’s towing capacity and tyre & rim requirements, the
vehicie's handbook must be updated. The update must provide specific details of the tyres, rims and
the towing capacity. Of particular importance is any sliding reduction in towing capacity of the vehicle
as it is loaded to its re-rated GVM and/or vertical load on tow ball (ball weight).

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

l.oad Capacity Label
Ratings Item Rating Information
SSM Approval # (if applicable)
Re-rated GVM kg
Maximum Braked Towing Mass at re-rated GVM* kg |
Maximum Front Axle Mass Permitted kg
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted , kg
*Warning: The maximum braked towing mass depends on the re-rated GVM and
trailer ball weight. For further information regarding towing capacities please
refer to the vehicles handbook.

5.0 Limitations

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see Sectior 1.2 of this code. In addition, the following
limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 of this‘'Cade apply.

5.1 Electronic Stability Control

Re-rated GVM may have direct effect on_thiz performance of Electronic Stability Control (ESC)
system. Hence ESC system must be revalidated so it performs satisfactorily at the re-rated GVM.
However such revalidation is not required where a vehicle’s GVM is being re-rated to the
manufacture’s alternative variant or according to SSM approval, such that the system’s compliance
has been demonstrated using other agreed methods.

5.2 Effect on towing capacity

The towing capacity of &-light vehicle expressed as GCM rating or Rated Towing Capacity or
Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the value set by the original vehicle
manufacturer. The scepe of code does not include changes to vehicle’s towing capacity. If towing
capacity is not specified by the original vehicle manufacturer, the limits mentioned in the Safe Towing
Guide published by TMR apply.

If the original vehicle manufacturer has specified towing capacity in some form, the gross combination
mass formed by adding that towing capacity and the original GVM rating must not be exceeded.
Hence, when the GVM is re-rated, the actual towed mass must be proportionately reduced according
to the loaded mass of the towing vehicle.

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

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM re-rating of a vehicle of a particular
make/model/variant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using any of the re-rating
criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited AP holding
a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a series of modified vizhicles of that
same make/model/variant/chassis series and generate the necessary evidence to show that the
requirements of the LS11 design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used to provide design certification, the AP providing the design certification, may not
inspect the modified vehicle(s) and is not required to fit LS11 modification plata on the vehicle(s). Also the
checklist completed as part of the .S11 design certification will not refer to any particular VIN.

The outputs of a design certification under LS11 code are (a) a comprehensive design package (b) a
modification certificate and (c) a completed checklist. All of these outputs must be preserved as records of
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
condition of the vehicle is important to decide which vehicle can be safely modified and re-
rated. The design package must include instructions about what is to be inspected and the
acceptance criteria. Condition of the shock absorbers, suspension, frame, tow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect, Absence of cracks, deformations, leaks and structural damage
due to overloading, accidents or rust is also critical.

The design package miust include a checklist template for use by the AP certifying the physical
modification. The checklist will be completed by the AP who certifies the physical modification
to confirm that the vehicle was inspected and was found in sound condition before commencing
the modification.

7.1.2 Evidénce package

The desigit package must include all the test reports and engineering calculations that validate
the re-rafing, when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from reputed test laboratories,
have unique identification number and be signed and dated. All test reports must make
unambiguous reference to the specific make/model/variants of the vehicle or component to
which they apply. Also the test reports must contain conclusion about pass or fail according to
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
identifiers) and provide written assurance to the client that the full evidence package will be
made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package must include comprehensive work instructions on-how to modify the
vehicle, what parts to be used, the sequence of actions to be peiformed, precautions to be
taken and what process controls to be applied.

The work instructions must include details of any (non-destructive)} testing and inspections to
be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are met.

The work instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous and should include sufficient
pictorials including photos and graphics.

The work instructions must include the contact déiails of the LS11 certifying AP if enquiries
arise needing further clarification during the physical modiification andfor its certification.

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier and the ceitifier

The design package must include template checklist(s) to be completed by the vehicle modifier
and the certifier of the physical modificaiion. These may be separate or one combined
checklist. These checklists, when comipleied, are evidence that the modifier and the certifier of
the physical modification have understood and followed the work instructions and the intent of
the design package has been met. The LS11 AP may ask for copies of completed checklists
from the modifier and the ceriifier of physical modification as part of histher own quality
assurance or risk management practice. The completed checklist must also be retained by the
AP who certifies the physicai maodification.

Note that this checkiist is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification is reguired to complete as part his/her certification of the modification under the
relevant code.

2 Certificate of Modification

The LS11 AP must issue a certificate of modification to his client for the design certification provided.
This is similar 10 any other certificate of modification, except that the certificate may not make
reference 10.any specific modification plate number or VIN. Instead, it must refer to the basis of the
design ceriification (for example, SSM approval number) and the unique identification number of the
design package provided.

3 Madification Checklist

L S11 AP must complete the modification checklist provided at the end of this code and must retain it
as part of his/her records.
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Checklist LS11

Gross Vehicle Mass Increase
CODE LS11

Form No: LS11
{(Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not Applicable)

1 Suspension
-
1.1 Is the vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM? Se ! Y. [N
2 Chassis
2.1 Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM? -— |Y |N
3 Axles
3.1 | Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM? — |Y |N
4 Engine/Transmission
4.1 Is the engine/transmission suitable for the increased GVM? - |Y |N
5 Braking System
5.1 Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehicle to
) ensure compliance with ADR 31/, or 35/., whichever is
applicable? NA|Y |N
(applicable in all cases apart fromi_upgrading to an SSM
approval or original vehicle manufacturer's optional GVM)
5.2 | Is the vehicles brake system suitable for the increased GVM? | - Y |N
6 Tyres and Rims
6.1 | Does the Modification Plate record the correct tyre and rim sizes | N
' and load ratings for the modified vehicle?
6.2 If a revised tyrs placard is required, has it been fitted to the | Yy |N
' vehicle and a copy attached to this checklist?
Do the tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and
6.3 . - |Y |N
the tyre placarg?
6.4 Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the — |y N
) vehicle's re-rated GVM and the potential axle masses?
7 Electronic Stability Control
Has the vehicles ESC system been tested to confirm that the
7.1 | system continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's | NJA |Y | N
| specifications?
8 ' Load Capacity Label
8.1 'Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle? __|Y |N
_; 5 Has the vehicle’'s handbook been amended and a copy of the Yy |N
' relevant modified content attached to this checklist? —
9 Manufacturer’'s Optional GVM

Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicle ModificatidR$) TRiaitandhilain RBag=-1820F Hide 2018
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
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's alternative

s cification?

Second Stage of Manufacturer GVM

Has the SSM approval holder provided written approval to
use that SSM design and a copy of the same attached to this
checklist?

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
sus ension, res and rims, etc identical to the SSM desi n”?

Fitment of an additional axle

if the vehicles GVM has been increase more than 10% is the
additional axle load sharin ?

Only if LS11 code is used to provide lJesign Certification
Is a comprehensive design package provided?

Does the design package have a unique identification
number?

Does the design package cleariy describe which
make/modelfvariant/chassis series is eli ible for re-ratin ?
Does the design package include guidance on what to inspect
to decide if the vehicle is {it to receive the re-rated GVM?
Does the design package in¢lude a complete Evidence
Packa e on which the GVM re-ratin is based?

Does the design package’include comprehensive work
instructions including work to be done, precautions to be
taken, control of ( rocesses and tests to be conducted?

Does the design package include a checklist for the modifier
of the vehicle?

Does the design package include a checklist for the certifier
of the modified vehicle?

Does the design package address all the requirements of this
code?

Note: If the answer to any question is N (No}) the design cannot be certified under LS11 code If N/A
does not already appear in the checklist then it cannot be used.
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Model Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number
(i applicable)

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

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons (AP) to cerlify physical modifications leading to
the re-rating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or iess) when those
modifications are carried out in accordance with instructions in the relevant LS11 design certification.
In addition to the requirements in this code, the AP providing LS15 certification. must follow the
instructions in the design package that came with the relevant LS11 design certitication.

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under LS15 code:

. Re-rating of a light vehicle’s GVM by modifying it according to the instructions in an LS11
design certification issued for the same/make/modeifvariant/chassis series.

. Re-rating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordanre with-a letter from the original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS15 code:

Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not be certified under LS15 code:

Modifications other than those covered tinder Section 1.1 above.

Re-rating of a vehicle which is outside the scope of the relevant LS11 design certification.

Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modification, is greater than 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, after modification, will be greater than 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of GVM by comparing with an alternative make/model of vehicle.

Re-rating of GVM by comparing with another vehicle which has been previously re-rated

using a modification code.

. Re-rating of GVM based on’ assessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer's specifications only.

° Re-rating of GVM prior to first registration anywhere in Australia. In such cases seek a
Second Stage of Manufacture (SSM} approval.

2.0  General Requiremeanis
2.1 Typical Modifications

Typical physical modifications under LS15 may include replacement of axle(s), suspension or
braking system with alternative components or reinforced chassis frame which collectively may
permit a different rating.

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
may not be obvidus and evident. In these instances, evidence must be retained to demonstrate
that the vehicle is identical to the manufacturer’s letter.
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2.3 Affected ADRs

The modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) which
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
the same must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes comgieting the checklist(s) that came
with the LS11 design package.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When certifying the re-rated GVM under LS15, the chassis frame, suspension, axles and drive train
components must be used within the original vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. All instructions
provided in the LS11 design package must be foliowed.

The following specific requirements must be met.
3.1 Tyres and Wheel Rims

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rirn must not be
exceeded when the vehicis is loaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM. The
same applies to the ioad carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
(and rims) on each ax!e rust be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle.

If rerated GVM requires different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre placard must be
fitted to indicate the revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated GVM. The revised
tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the owner's handbook.

3.2 (Chassis Frame

The chassis frame of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design package or
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer’s alternate model/variant.
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3.3 Brakes

The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design package or identical to
the vehicle manufacturer’'s specifications for the alternate model/variant.

3.4 Axles and Suspension

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. Axle loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer’s axle ratings, unless reinforced replacement axles are
fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicie, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be idenfical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

If a component manufacturer has published instructions to reduce the iating of a component for
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

6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Con¢lition

Before carrying out the modifications and ceriification under LS15 code, the details and the in-
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

Step-2: Inspect and confirm that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for re-rating. The
instructions in the LS11 design package must be followed to ensure that the chassis frame,
suspension, brakes and so cn-are in safe and serviceable condition for re-rating. Evidence of this
inspection must be receided in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufacturei’s Letter

If re-rating is based on the original vehicle manufacturer’s letter, the manufacturer’s letter must
contain at least the following information:

. Vehicle manufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer’s letter head with contact information).

. Make/model/variant of the vehicle.

“ Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) of the particular vehicle being re-rated.

. Details of all physical changes required for re-rating (including the details of the specific
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
re-rate vehicle of this make/model/variant/chassis series? Y N
LS11 Design Certification No. ..................c..ceone. Date........ N
OR A letter from the original vehicle manufacturer for re-rating?
Manufacturer’'s Letter Reference date
Note: If you do not have one of the above, you are unable to certify this
vehicle.
12 Are you accredited to certify the additional modification codes required v N
) by the LS11 design certification or the vehicle manufacturer's letter?
2 Chassis Frame
2 1 Does the chassis frame conform to the detail construction, section
’ properties and cross-members of the LS11 design package or the Y N
original vehicle manufacturer’s letter?
29 Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation, cracks
) and rust perforation? Y N
Does it meet the inspection criteria mentioned in the LS11 design
package? NS
3 Brake system
Is the vehicle’s braking .fsfst?n—as specified in the LS11 design package or
3.1 B ; 3\ ; Y N
the original vehicle manuiacturer’s letter?
Is the braking system in serviceable condition, free from leaks, wear
3.2 : ;
and fouling/stretching? v N
Does it meetihe inspection criteria mentioned in the LS11 design
package?
4 Tyres and Rims Y N
4.1 Does the Maodification Plate record the correct tyre and rim sizes and load
’ ratings for the modified vehicle? Y N
42 If a revised tyre placard is required, has it been fitted to the vehicle and a Y N
cepy atiached to this checklist?
4.3 Do ihe tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the tyre Yy N
piacard?
44 Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the vehicle's re-rated v N
GVM and the potential axle masses?
5 Eligibility- Make/model/variant/chassis series
1 Does the vehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design Y N
certificati
{oad Capacity Label
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Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle?

Has the vehicle’s handbook been amended and a copy of the relevant
modified content attached to this checklist?

Workmanship
Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?

Arefls the checklist(s) required in the LS11 design package completed?

Are all the inspections and tests as required in the LS11 design package
com leted?

Have you kept all supporting documents you used to certify tnis
modification and hotos of the modified vehicie for future audit?
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Make

Model

Year of

Manufacture

viN | | [ [ ]

Chassis Number
(If applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory’s Employer
(If applicable)

Signatory's Signature

ANN B | Date
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

Sent: ues ay 26June 20181 P

To: ‘Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)’
Cc: Peter N Twining; Adam Shaw; 'Shane F Lonsdale’
Subject: OVM Product Survey...

Hello Scott,

A quick survey of new vehicle specifications of different brands
(Toyota/Nissan/Mitsubishi/Ford/Holden/Isuzu) indicates that:

e Almost all of them specify GCM rating in addition to GVM and braked Towing Capacity.
e The GVM for typical dual cab 4X4 NA category vehicles ranges from 2700 kg to 3500 kg.
o The braked towing capacity also ranges from 2700 kg to 3500 kg.

e The GCM rating ranges from 4800 kg to 6000 kg.

» Almost always the GCM rating is less than the simple addition of GVM and braked Towing
Capacity. The difference ranges from 100 kg to 660 kg.

e The official RVDs for these products list GVM and braked Towing Mass but not GCM
rating.

Just for your information. No action required.

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
W www.tm .qld.gov.au
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Peter N Twinin

To: Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)
Cc: Anant Z Bellary
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
E: peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au
W www.tmr.qld.qov.au

From: Tracey L Dreier

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 9:27 AM

To: Peter N Twining ; Patr'cia L Bailey

Cc: Scott G Notley ; Adam Shaw ; Benjamin Scanlan ;Elizabeth P Austin ; Deann G Coleman
Subject: FW: Covering Message for new L515 angdfey)sed LS11...

Hi Peter
We've made a couple of suggested ciianges®elow in red.

Also, do you think we should mention-thé quals required for L$11 and L515 to make it clear that L5115 an
engineering code and LS15 is noththink they should know this when commenting on the codes.

We will provide you with the ermail addresses of the L511 APs soon.
Regards

Tracey Dreier

A/Manager {Operator Accreditation & Authorisation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Setvice,Safety and Regulation Division Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 10 61 Mary Street Brisbane Qld 40 PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
07 3066 2532 33384640 Not relevant
trace .Ldreier tmr. Id. ov.au
www.tmr. Id. ov.au
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From: Deann G Coleman

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 8:35 AM

To: Tracey L Dreier < >

Cc: Elizabeth P Austin < >
Subject: FW: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

Tracey,

I've just made a few suggested changes.

Kind regards,

Deann Coleman
AlPrincipal Policy Advisor | Transport Access And Use
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

F:
:deann. .coleman tmr. Id. ov.au
W www.tmr, Id.  v.au

From: Tracey L Dreier

Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 3:49 PM

To: Elizabeth P Austin < >; Deann G Coleman <
Subject: FW: Covering Message for new L$15 afid revised LS11...

For comment back to me please and | will gonselidate our feedback.
Regards

Tracey Dreier
A/ anager (Operator Accreditation & Authorisation)

Transport egulation Branch
Custo er Service, Safety and Régulation Division Department of Trans  rt and Main Roads

Floor 10 61 Mary Stregt.Brisbane Qld4 0 O Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
07 3066 2532 33384640 UeE FElT
trace .Ldreier timr/Id. ov.au
www.tmr. [d$oviau

From: Anaqt ZBellary
Sent: Thursday;31 May 2018 3:33 PM

To: Peter N Twining < >; Shane F Lonsdale <
Patricia L Bailey < >

Ce: Scott G Notley < >; Tracey L Dreier <
Myers < >; Adam Shaw <

Subject: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...
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Draft covering note for our key institutional stakeholders...
ear Stak 1 rs
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r ess ifi inth d si n acka einth rel vant L 11 desi ncertiﬁ)issu tt
v icle fsa e a / od l/variant/ch ssis series.

11 mo ificationcode a b e am nd dtoe abl itt pr vi @nc ificatio .
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Peter N Twinin

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 6:12 AM

To: Patricia L Bailey

Subject: Please Check

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 AS changes.docx; LS 15 Version May 2018 V1

AS comments.docx

N

Can you please check the attached documents are the latest versions. @

Dear Stakeholders @

The Vehicle Stapdards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Mo@ion Code LS15 to enhance
the operation of the previously developed LS11 modification code, particularly remote and regional areas of
Queensland. @55

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass {GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg arless) when those modifications conform to
the specifications contained in the relevant L511 design certification.dp.addition to the requirements in this code,
the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the desi age in the relevant LS11 design
certification issued to the vehicle of same make/model/variand/ eries.

The L511 modification code has been amended to enabile it de design certification. Some other changes are
also made to provide greater clarity about the intent of th ode. Note that the LS11 code can continue to be
used as a combined design and modification code tox rerating on its own, without using the new L515
code.

provide comments, if any, in the attached feed eet which can be emailed to
vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au . The last ubmitting your comments is close of business on Friday 29"
June 2018. It is intended to implement these sodes from 1 Aug 2018.

Kind regards @
Peter Twining \
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards @r&ditaﬁon)

Transport Regulation Branc| ment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9| 61 Mary Street | Bp Id 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Vaﬂ%l 4006

P: (07) 30666537

E: peter.n.twinin

#oth the new LS15 code and the amended LSllb% now provided to you for your perusal and feedback. Please
S

1
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Peter N Twinin

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 8:46 AM

To: Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)

Cc Anant Z Bellary

Subject: As Discussed

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 AS changes.docx; LS 15 Vefsion May 2018 V1

AS comments.docx \
Please see document and ne mod codes as requested. §

Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle ;lcation Code LS15 to enhance
the operation of the previously developed L511 modification code, particul remote and regional areas of
Queensland.

rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVIM) of a light vehicle {GVM 4,500 s) when those modifications conform to
the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design certificati dition to the requirements in this code,
the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in thesd s@ckag& in the relevant LS11 design
certification issued to the vehicle of same make/model/vari Sis seriges.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to ce‘@ysical modifications leading to the
r

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable @"bvide design certification. Some other changes are
also made to provide greater clarity about the inten %IZ I code. Note that the LS11 code can contirjue to be
used as a combined design and modification code to ceRify GVM rerating on its own, without using the new L515

code, @

Both the new LS15 cede and the amended LS11 are now provided to you for your perusal and feedback. Please
provide comments, if any, in the attached fe sheet which can be emailed to
vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au . The last or submitting your comments is close of business on Friday 29"

June 2018. It is intended to implement t@odes from 1 Aug 2018.

Kind regards \

Peter Twining @

Senior Policy Advisor (Stand a ccreditation)
|

Transport Regulation Bra artment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street ane QId 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitud td 4006
P (07) 30666537

E: geter.n.twining&g gov.au
W: www.tmr.gld.@u
DRIV

E

WAL g s ried bad e

1
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Peter N Twinin

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Tuesday, 5 June 2018 6:43 AM

To: Peter N Twining

Subject: FW: TMR Letter- Revised GCM 1st June 2018

Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accr  itation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 81 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000 @

Kind regards
Peter Twining §

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qid 4006
P: (07) 30666537

E: peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au @
W: www tmr.qld.gov.au >

From: Scott G Notley \
Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 1:55 PM

To: Peter N Twining ; Anant Z Bellary ; Adam Shaw@e F Lonsdale
Subject: FW: TMR Letter Revised GCM- 1st Jun@i

Q

Pete whenw s nd the draft LS11/L @ to Levels can you make sure you send it to Dra an please rather than
Mike. We will send one to  ike as ah LS11) AP anyway.

Re ards \

Scott otley
A/ irector (Standards an editation)
Transport egulation rg
Customer Service, Safe

and Re ulation Division | Department of Transport and  ain Roads

pa e Qld 4 | PO Box 673 Fortitude ValleyQld4 6

loor 9/ 61 ar\&%%
t07 3338 4082 a4 31 ™ relevant
e Scott.G. & t;%r. Id. ov.au

w t %@ v au

From: Mike Davison [
Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 11:04 AM
To: Scott G Notley <
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Cc: Dragan Vasic < >
Subject: TMR Letter- Revised GCM- 1st June 2018

Hi Scott

Further to my email below, | would like to make you aware that, as of the 1% February 2018, due to the Lovells Group
restructure, the newly appointed position of National Sales Manager now manages the GVM Upgrade Program.

The new Manager is Dragan Vasic and all future correspondence regarding Lovells GVM Upgrades should be
addressed to and handled by him.

Dragan Vasic

Lovells Automotive Systems- National Sales Manager
Email:

Contact number; Not retevant

Dragan has been with the company for 10 years and is very experienced in this field.

| will however still handle any questions in relation to my Approved Person status &5 feguired.
Kind regards,

Mike

Mike Davison

General Manager

Lovells Automotive Systems Pty Ltd
(Incorporating Lovells Suspension)

Sydney (Sales and Engineering)
PO Box 5126

Minto BC

Unit 2, 25 Badgally Rd
Campbelltown NSW 2560
AUSTRALIA

Sandgate (Warehouse)
3 Friesian ClI

Sandgate NSW 2304
AUSTRALIA

Brisbane

PO Box 60
Jimboomba QLD 4280
AUSTRALIA

Ph: +61 2 9820 6800

Fax: +61 2 9820 6788

MObiIe: Not relevant

E-Mail: mik lovelis,conv.au
lovells.comlay

AUTODMOTIVE
SYSTEMS

Important Message: The contents of this message may be privileged and
confidential. Any unauthorised use of the contents is expressly prohibited.
If you have received this message in error, please advise us by email and

2
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delete the message (including attachments}.
Thank you.

From: Mike Davison

Sent: Wednesday, 30 May 2018 7:45 AM

To: 'Scott G Notley'

Subject: TMR Letter- GCM Upgrades- 30th May 2018

Hi Scott,

While we are on the subject again, | was hoping you could clarify something for me {as a Lovelisiempioyee, not an
AP).

TMR allow a revised GCM to be quoted for pre-registration vehicles (Federal Compliancéy by aniSSM, however don't
recognise the revised GCM for post registration/in service vehicles.

| fully understand it forms part of the LS11 code, however there appears to be double standards (pardon the pun) in
this instance.

Can you confirm the reasoning behind this, as this is what confuses the market the-most.
Kind regards,

Mike

Mike Davison

General Manager

Lovells Automotive Systems Pty Ltd
(Incorporating Lovells Suspensio )

Sydney (Sales and Engineering)
PO Box 5126

Minto BC

Unit 2, 25 Badgally Rd
Campbelltown NSW 2560
AUSTRALIA

Sandgate (Warehouse)
3 Friesian Cl

Sandgate NSW 2304
AUSTRALIA

Brishane

PO Box 60
Jimboomba QLD 4280
AUSTRALIA

Ph: +61 2 9820 6800

Fax: +61 2 9820 6788

MOb”e: Not relevant

E-Mail: miked lovelisssom. u
Web: Jovelis:cem.au

ALUTOM
SYSTEM

Important Message. The conients of this message may be privileged and
confidential. Any unauthorised use of the contents is expressly prohibited.

3
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If you have received this message in error, please advise us by email and
delete the message (including attachments).
Thank you.

From: Scott G Notley [ ]
Sent: Tuesday, 29 May 2018 6:27 PM

To: Mike Davison

Subject: Re: TMR Letter- GCM Upgrades- 29th May 2018

Thanks Mike. That is reassuring but I will get some further advice and come backtoyou later this
week.

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director (Industry Accreditation and Authorisation)
Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division

to 3338 4082 | f07 3338 4640 | 1) ot refevant
e
w

On 29 May 2018, at 5:45 pm, Mike Davison > wrote:

Hi Scott,

| can assure you that any modification plates and certificates prepared by myself under the LS11
code, do not note a GCM figure.

I however cannot vouch for the othertwo AP's who we give access to our data and are approved to
use Lovells SSM data.

Not relevant

They are:

If you have a copy of recentmod certificates received by TMR which indicate a GCM figure, please
pass on so it can be taken up with the signatory.

Kind regards,

Mike

Mike Davison
Generai-Marnager

Lovelis Automotive Systems Pty Ltd
{Incorporating Lovells Suspension)

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
Jimhoomba QLD 4280

AUSTRALIA \

Ph: +61 2 9820 6800

Fax: +61 2 9820 6788 @
Mobile: ‘ Not relevant ‘) @

E-Mail: miked lovelis.co .au
Web. Jlovells.com.au

Important Message: The contents of this message may be privileged ?
confidential. Any unauthorised use of the contents is expressly praivbite

If you have received this message in errar, please advise us by emaitand

delete the message (including attachments).
Thank you. @

Q
From: Scott G Notley [ @]

Sent: Tuesday, 29 May 2018 4:11 PM
To: Mike Davison @
Cc: Vehicle Standards %

Subject: FW: GCM Upgrades

Hi Mike, @

Just following up on previous advicéprovitled to yourself and/or Lovells in relation to up rades to
GCM and/or towing capaci wh is upgraded on in-service vehicles. | have included some

previous correspondence in gase ists.
| am seeking an update fro@g any action you have tak nsince th advice below to ensure
S

or your associated A roved Persons ave undertaken are consistent

Some recent o@cates received by T R indicate Lovells may have continue to rovide

upgrades to G in capacity when providing GV upgrades on in-service vehicles for
customers. | welilhappreciate any advice you can provide ont e matter.

Trust yo ay gat this request with some priori

egxﬁg

Scott Notley
A/Director {Standards and Accreditation)
rans ort Regulation Branc
Customer Service Safety and Regulation Division Department of rans ortand ain Roads
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Floor 9 / 61 Mary St Brisbane Qld 408# | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 | f3253 4453 | mNotrelovant |

e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.sld.gov.au
w www.tmr.ald.gov.au

From: Vehicle Standards %
Sent: Tuesday, 23 January 2018 2:52 PM \
To: sitiionc @lovells.com.au @

Ce: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twiningtmr.old.pov.aus @

Subject: FW: GCM Upgrades

Dear Mr Crane, @
Thank you for your letter of 11th December 2017 as per at:@%. The name of the
ehi

directing officer is Mr Peter Twining (Senior Policy Advisor. Standards &
Accreditation). Peter who has been communicating with Mr avison from Lovells
Group in this matter, is on leave at the moment so | have-prepared a response in his
absence. @

As you may be aware, the communication in theosettachment to this message and
titled “GCM Upgrades” has largely overtaken t ent of the email communication dated
28th Sept 2017 from Peter to Mr Davison, as a to your letter. Hence my below
response focuses on and clarifies the most r essage sent by Mr Twining to Mr
Davison on 4th Dec 2017. | trust this help%

You have asked for clarification of the px that Mr Twining outlined in his email including
any specific legislation that applies. A ay also be awarg, | have received a letter from
solicitors acting on your behalf and ided a similar response to this one earlier today. |
note also that Mr Davison has r a meeting with Mr Twining later in February 2018.
As you may be aware, in Que %

changes to vehicle ratings, i

complex modifications such as engine upgrades or
ing vehicle’s Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) rating, must be in
accordance with an appréved ;6de of practice and must be certified by an Approved Person
(AP) under Schedule 1 part 2 of the Transport Operations (Road Use Management —
Accreditation and Other Provisions) Regulation 2015,

The Queensland C ractice: Vehicle Modifications (the Code of Practice) is the
approved code o for certifying specified complex modifications, including a GVM
upgrade to an i@ce light vehicle registered in Queensland. For GVM upgrade, the
certifying AP ji§ required to ensure that the vehicle has been modified according to the code
LS11 cont@' the Code of Practice. For your reference | have attached an extract of the

LS11 requ nts from the Code of Practice.

Claus the LS11 Code clearly prohibits an increase in Gross Combination Mass
( ating unless it is in accordance with a Second Stage of Manufacture (SSM)
app 7 SSM approvals are issued by the Department of Infrastructure and Regional

Development (DIRD).

The code LS11 is about a GVM upgrade and requires the certifying AP to show on the
modification plate the details relevant to the GVM upgrade, including the revised GVM. Any
GCM upgrade can only be shown on the modification plate if the GCM upgrade is in
accordance with the above clause in the LS11 Code. In effect, when SSM approval is used

[
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as the basis for GVM upgrade, according to code LS11, revised GCM rating, if any, must
form part of the SSM approval before it can be shown on the LS11 modification plate.

An AP certifying such a modification is required, under the statutory conditions of their
appointment (under Schedule 1 of the Transport Operations (Road Use Management —
Accreditation and Other Provisions) Regulation 2015}, to ensure that s/he does not
contravene an approved Code of Practice. Showing an upgraded GCM rating on a
modification plate issued under the LS11 code would be acceptable if and only if the GCM
upgrade forms part of the underlying SSM approval issued by DIRD.

Mr Twining has previously sought confirmation from Mr Davison that Lovells has either
obtained SSM approval for the GCM upgrades or the SSM approvals held for GV upgrade
also include GCM upgrade; but that confirmation has not yet been provided. As-&
consequence, Mr Twining sent the email dated 4 December 2017 to clarify-reéquirements
under the LS11 Code. Any further information that you can supply that might shed further
light on the approvals that you do hold with DIRD would be most welconie.

If you have any further questions, please call me on the number below//ote also that Mr
Twining will return from leave next week and is happy to meet with-Mr-Davison to discuss
further if required. | am happy for you to confirm the same with-Md-Dayison.

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director {(Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Departiient of Transport and Main Hoads

Floor 9 / 61 Mary St Brisbane Qld 4000 | PO Box673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 | f 3253 4453 | m "o

e Scott.G.Notley @tmr.qld.gov.au

w www.tmr.gld.gov.au

e ok ok sk o sk ok ok ok ok o ok ok 2k ok sk ok ok o ok sk ok ok ok s ok o sk sk kOO S o ok sk ok sk sk ok ok ok b ok 3k sk e sk ok ok ke o ok ok ok ok ok o ok o ok ok ko ok ke ok ke e ok

WARNING: This email (includirg any attachments) may contain legally
privileged, confidential or private:information and may be protected by
copyright. You may only use itif you are the person(s) it was

intended to be sent to and 1f yolj use it in an authorised way. No one

is allowed to use, review, alterytransmit, disclose, distribute, print

or copy this email witheut appropriate authority.

If this email was notiitended for you and was sent to you by mistake,
please telephone§remail me immediately, destroy any hardcopies of
this email and delete it and any copies of it from your computer
system. Anyzightwhich the sender may have under copyright law, and
any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to this email is not
waived ordestroyed by that mistake.

It issyoutyesponsibility to ensure that this email does not contain
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects or interference by
third parties or replication problems (including incompatibility with
your computer system).

Opinions contained in this email do not necessarily reflect the
opinions of the Department of Transport and Main Roads,

7
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

It is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contaifx
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects or interference by
third parties or replication problems (including incompatibility with
your computer system).

Opinions contained in this email do not necessarily refigct the
opinions of the Department of Transport and MairRoads)

or endorsed organisations utilising the same infrastructire.
e ok o ok s o 3k 2k 3k sk e sk ok 3k ok o ok sk ok ok sk sl ok ol e sk sk sk ok sk e ok sk sde ok sk e ok sl ok ek e ok o ok ke sk ok sk ok ke ok ok ok ok ok o ok o ok ok ok ok ok ke ok ok ok
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Peter N Twinin

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

i Anant

I made a few ¢ anges for comment @

Peter N Twining

Tuesday, 12 June 2018 1:54 PM

Anant Z Bellary

Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)

FW: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...

@

Dear Stakeholders
The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed Light Vehicle
Modification Code LS15 to enhance the operation of the p sly developed LS11

modification code, particularly in the remote and regichal areas of Queensland.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approvea-Persons to certify physical
modifications leading to the rerating of Gross Vehi ss (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM
4,500 kg or less) when those modifications conf o the specifications contained in the
relevant 1.S11 design certification. In additionb%31 equirements in this code, the LS15

certification must follow the process specified4
design certification issued to the vehicle of ake/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modification code has been &%ﬂ%@d to enable it to provide design certification.

Some other changes have also made t

code.

e design package in the relevant LS11

ide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11

Note 1 the revised LS11 code do @mve any reference to a Gross Combination Mass
(GCM) rating or Rated Towing Capacity or Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating, which is
in line with the recently rel deral circular 0-4-5 (copy attached) which states that

manufacturers are not germitted to increase the towing capacity as part of an SSM IPA that

these values must not e@ value set by the first stage manufacturer. Second stage

results in GVM upgrad

Note 2 that the LS
code to certify GV

ating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.

@ can continue to be used as a combined design and modification

code and the amended LSi1 code are attached for your perusal and
provide any comments, in the attached feedback via email to
s@tmr.gld.gov.au by the close of business on Friday 20" July 2018. These
ded to be implemented from 3 September 2018.

Th@cations for the revised LS11 modification code will remain unchanged
(Qualification No 1) and the LS15 modification code qualifications will be trade based
(Qualification No 2) which is in line with the redundant Type Approval scheme
qualifications for similar types of modifications. I have attached the following link to the
qualification table for your convenience:
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Peter N TwininE -

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Thursday, 14 June 2018 2:14 PM

To: Peter N Twining

Subject: FW: Important Information

Attachments: LX1 Modification Certificate (Sample).pdf; LX1 Modification Certificate 2

(Sample).pdf; TMR Blue Mod Plate LX1 completed sample plate.pdf

Pete,

The sugzested changes make sense. Even though the Type Approval holders are familigr with\the term signatories
we should transition them to AP world. The amended certificates are attached.

We should include contact details of course.

Can go out tomorrow if you like or we can wait til the new LS15 and amended L8171 are ready to go as well. Some
B ytog
people will get coth. | assume Anant will finish them today Notrelevan

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director {Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Departmént of,iransport and Main Roads

Floor 9 / 61 Iary St Brisbane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fostitudevalley Qld 4006
t07 33384082 | £3253 4453 | m Notrelevant

e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.pov.au

w www.tmr.qld.gov.au

From: Tracey L Dreier

Sent: Thursday, 14 June 2018 1:57 PM
To: Scott G Notley

Subject: RE: Important Information

Sorry it took a while to get back towou.

Slightly amended versions of IMod/certificate samples attached (only changes related to inclusion of missing “). No
changes to Mod plate sample.

The only suggestion fés thesemail below, besides the sugeested changes in red, is to add contact details {email or
phone) for VSU.

Regards

Tracey Dreier

A/Manager (Operator Accreditation & Authaorisation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 10 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
1 07 3066 2532 | 1 33384640 | rn|Notrelevant

1
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trace .lL.dreier tmr. Id. ov.au
www.tmr, Id. ov.au

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Thursday, 14 June 2018 8:33 AM

To: Tracey L Dreier <Trace .Dreier tmr. Id. ov.au
Subject: FW: Important Information

Any additional commentary required Trace?
egards

Scott otley
A/ ire or(Standards and Accreditation)
ransport Regulation r nch
Customer Service, Safety and Regulation ivision | epartment of Trans ort and 5#@in Roads

Floor3/61 aryStBrisbaneQl 4 0| PO ox673 Fo itude Valley Qid 4006
t07 33384082 | £3253 4453 | m Notrelevant

e Scott.G.Notle tmr. Id. ov.au

w w.tmr. Id. ov.au

From: 5cott G Notley

Sent: Thursday, 14 June 2018 8:26 AM

To: Peter N Twining < eter.n.twini tmr. |d. ov.au
Subject: FW: Important Information

Pete,

I have tinkered but not yet gone to Tracey. I'm thinking)we might provide another certificate as an example. The
notes in the one provided specific to GVM upgrades might confuse some if we don’t have a second example. No
need to do a secend blue plate though. What-dovgld think??

Dear Vehicle Standards Approval (Y5A) hplder.

I trust by now you and fQVEe  ers ns rtin un ryo rVSA are already using the new
VSA process to sign off your medifications previously certified under Type Approvals.

Random audits of cértificates returned to the Department of Transport and Main Roads (TMR) from
LX1 holders have highlighted the need for some further advice on how to follow the new certification process
correctly.

I have attached &3ample blue Modification Plate and the associated Modification Certificate as examples of how
to complete them correctly for a VSA involving a GVM upgrade. Note that for VSA’s not related to a GVYM
upgrade, prov d will simply need to include the full suite of codes that are specific to
your VSA, your VSA number as well as any notes that relevant to your upgrade. | have provided a second
certificate (Sample2) as an example of a different modification involving different codes to ensure there is no
confusion. The Modification Plate for the second certificate (not provided) will mirror the information on the
second certificate.

When certifying modifications under your VSA, please ensure that:
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1. the blue Modification Plate must show the full suite of codes that make up your LX1 approval and the VSA.
For example LX1-LS10-LG2 and VSAS6

2. the information on blue Modification Plate must be legible and all the applicable sections must be
completed.

3. the accompanying Modification Certificate must also contain all the relevant information and accurately
reflect all the information on the assoc ated Blue Modification Plate.

TMR will continue to monitor Modification Certificates provided under this process and it is importait that the
above requ'rements are followed if the prove ersonsoperatingu d ryour VSA \ eto
continue to provide certification under this process. Can you please ensure that all

Pers nscerti ing modi ications under your VS are prov'ded w'th this advice as soon as pra

egards @
Scott otley Q
A/ irector {Standards and Accreditation)

rans ort Re ulation Branch
Customer Service, Safe  and Re ulation Division | epartment of rtand ain oads

t 07 3338 4082 | f 3253 4453 | m "o

e Scott.G. otle tmr. Id. ov.au @
w  w.tmr. Id. ov.au %
From: Peter N Twining @

Sent: Thursday, 14 June 2018 7:50 AM @
To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notle
Subject: Important Information

Hi Scott @

lintend to send this out toda you think | need to run it by accreditation first.

A

Dear Vehicle Standards roval (VSA) holder.

Q&
Floor9/61 aryStBrisbaneQld 000| O ox673 Fortitu@ id4 6

I trust by now %&; already using the new VSA process to sign off your modifications previously certified
Is

under Type @

| take thi%@rtunity to inform about how to follow the new certification process correctly.

| have attached a sample blue Modification Plate and the associated Maodification Certificate as examples of
how tocamplete them correctly.

When certifying modifications under your VSA, please ensure that:

1. the blue Modification Plate must show the full suite of codes that make up your LX1 approval and the VSA.
For example LX1-L510-LG2

3
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2. the information on blue Maodification Plate must be legible and all the applicable sections must be
completed.

3. the accompanying Modification Certificate must also contain all the relevant information and
accurately reflect all the information on the associated Blue modification plate.

It is your responsibility to ensure all of your approved signatories are aware of these requirements.

Kind regards \

Peter Twining

Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation) §

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brishane Qld 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
{07) 30666537 @
ter.n.twini tror. Id. ov.au
: www.tmr.gld.gov.au @
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Peter N Twinin

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Monday, 18 June 2018 803 AM

To: Scott G Notley {Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au)

Cc: Tracey L Dreier; Anant Z Bellary

Subject: New and amended modification codes

Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx; Form Feedback on
Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; LS11 Code Jun 2018 V- 15 Code Jun
2018 V-1.0.docx é

Hi Scott @

This is already to go just a final check please @

Dear Stakeholders ; 7@
The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Li ehicte Modification Code LS15 to be

incorporated into the Queensland Code of Practice (QCoP) fopLight Vehicle Modifications. The purpose of
the new code is to enhance the operation of the previously loped LS11 modification code, particularly
in the remote and regional areas of Queensland. @

Q

The attached LS15 modification code allows Apprové ns to certify physical modifications leading to
the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of anin- -J». -

modifications conform to the specifications contailé the relevant LS11 design certification. In addition to
the requirerfients in this code, the LS15 certi%\ust follow the process specified in the design package

in the relevant LS11 design certification issu e vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series.
The LS11 modification code has been a o enable it to provide design certification. Some other
e

changes have also been made to LS11 provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11 code.
Note that the LS11 code can contin used as a combined design and modification code to certify
GVM rerating on its own, without L he new LS15 code.

Both the new LS15 code an gnded LS11 code are attached for your perusal and feedback. Please
provide any comments, via 0 vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au by tha close of business on Friday,
20™ July 2018. You mayuse theattached template form to provide your feedback. It is proposed to
implement these code%time betweern late August and early September 2018.

il

The qualifications evised LS11 code will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification No 1). For the new
LS15 code the reqUiredNyualification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the business rules. The latter is a trade
n whiich is considered appropriate for the new LS15 code. | have attached the following

based qualificac%
link to the q ion table for your convenience:

bhtutEs:g@nuqId.gov.aujl]usiness—industrw’Accreditationszpproved_—Person -Scheme/Industry-

experighce~gnd-gualifications/Qualifications#aualificationtable

N

Kind regards

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Advisor {Standards and Accreditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads
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Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Vatley Gld 4006
(07) 30666537
: peter n.twining@tmr.gld.gov.au
www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Peter N TwininE

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Tuesday, 24 July 2018 9:20 AM

To: ‘Vehicle Standards'

Ce: Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au)

Subject: RE: New LS15 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment

BCC Sent to: 19 June 2018
@aaaa.com.au’; 'Nmelevanfumtaq.com.au'; 'draganv@lovells.com.au'; " e @arbcom.au’;
m@carro“s.com.au‘; info@ironmandx4.com'; 'sales@driveline.com.au’;[No! eiimarksdwd.com';
Notrelevant @truck-industry-council.org';[ N Y M@hvia.asn.au'; AP Policy <AP_Policy@tmr.qid:gov.au>;
foticlerant ‘@truckengineering.com.au’; Paul R Hawkey <paul.r.hawkey@tmr.gld.gov.au>;
m@creativeconversions.com.au‘; 'info-@muconversions.com'; Bt re"”‘@pedders.com.au';

'gvmadmin@pedders.com.au'; Not refevant [@pedders.com.auy'; Notrelevant @kineticeng.com.au';
'6x6australia@gmail.com'’; 'sales@enduroco.com'! Nt re"SVE@sixwheeler.com.au'; " S@customvehicleservices.com.au’;

Not relevant

N Bbusdxd.com.ay'; [Notelevant @gmail.com';Not e @mobilityengineering.com.au';

Notrelevant Dozemail.com.au'; 'info@transmod.com.au’; ‘engineer@aafap.com.au’; 'info g not relevant corm.au';

heB re"“""‘Lautoenginerering@gmail.com‘; Notelerant l@hotmail.com'; Yo elevani@optusnet.com.au’;

e @dbautotech.com.au’; " “@apseng.com.ay’| Ve @bigpend.com'; " “@customvehicleservices.com.au';

- - I - ] . - .
Noteeval @bigpond.com!; | Notrelevant @truckengineering.com.au';Not elevant '@tonkin.com.au’;
Dotleievant @outlook.com.au’; ‘miked @lovells.com.ay’; [Not relevat @motivengineering.com.au';
" i@coastwideengsol.com.au'; Vot eevani westnet.com.au'

Kind regards

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transportand Main Roads

This emai) P“"ded
P:

E: peter.n twining@tmr.qld.gov.au +0 < Faud) Hee
W: www.tmr.gid.gov.au
(Clipiemna 0-(

JOIN ; June iR | .
{HES?&’E“"E a J cmot
LIVES ! ScoH ¢

Al e ) sl bl ciew

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Tuesday, 18June 2018 6:42 AM

Fo: 'Vehicle Stahdards' <vehiclestandards@tmr.q!d.gov.au>

Subject: New LS15'and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment

Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modification Code LS15t0 be

Incorporated into the Queensland Code of Practice (QCoP) for Light Vehicle Modifications. The purpose of

1
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the new code is to enhance the operation of the previously developed L1511 modification code, particularly

inthe remote and regional areas of Queensland.

oved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to
_service light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less) when those
ined in the relevant L$11 design certification. In addition to
must follow the process specified in the design package
e vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Appr
the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass {GVM) of an in
modifications conform to the specifications conta
the requirements in this code, the L515 certification
in the relevant LS11 design certification issued to th

The 1511 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification. sgme other

changes have also been made to LS11 code to provide greater clarity about the inte 11 code.
Note that the LS11 code can continue to be used as a com bined desigh and modifi(@ o certify

GVM rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.
Both the new LS15 code and the amended L511 code are attached for your p, d feedback. Please

provide any comments, via email to vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au by the close of business on Friday,
20t July 2018. You may use the attached template form to provide your ck. Itis proposed to
implement these codes 3" September 2018.

is, Qualification No 1). For the new

The qualifications for the revised L511 code will remhain unchanged (t
e business rules. The latter is a trade

L$15 code the required qualification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as
based qualification which is considered appropriate for the new LS15 code. | have attached the following
link to the gualification table for your convenience: @

https://www.tmr.ald.gov.auf business-industrwhccrgditmf Approved-Person-Scheme/Industry-

experienc&and—quaIificationsfﬂuaIifications#quali i table

L0

Peter Twining

Tr
ansport Regulation Branch | Department of Tr.

Floor g |

Seni . . @
Enior Pojicy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)g

and Main Roads

OB 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000
Ox 573 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006

E 0666537
W eter,n.wining@tmr.gld.gov.au
Wwiwy . tmr.qld.gov.au
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Vehicle Standards

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Dear Stakeholders

Peter N Twining

Tuesday, 19 June 2018 6:40 AM

Vehicle Standards

New and Revised Modification Code for your comment

Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx; Form for Feedback on
Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; LS11 Code Jun 2018 Final Consultation
Draft.docx; LS15 Code Jun 2018 Final Consultation Draft.do\

<&

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently develaped a new Light Vehicl@ication Code LS15to be
incorporated into the Queensland Code of Practice {QCoP) for Light Vehic@difications. The purpose of

the new code is to enhance the operation of the previously developed LS

dification code, particularly

in the remote and regional areas of Queensland. @

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons taxcertify) physical modifications leading to
the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of an in-service light vehi VM 4,500 kg or less) when those
modifications conform to the specifications contained in the retevant LS11 design certification. In addition to
the requirements in this code, the L$15 certification must fo the process specified in the design package
in the relevant LS11 design certification issued to the vehi me make/model/variant/chassis series.

Q

The LS11 modification code has been amended toe
changes have also been made to LS11 code to provj
Note that the LS11 code can continue to be used a
GVM rerating on its own, without using the

leNto provide design certification. Some other
ter clarity about the intent of the L511 code.
bined design and modification code to certify

ode.

Both the new LS15 code and the amended %de are attached for your perusal and feedback. Please

provide any comments, via email to vehicles

ards@tmr.gld.gov.au by the close of business on Friday,

20™ July 2018. You may use the attache late form to provide your feedback. it is proposed to
implement these codes 3" Septemb

The qualifications for the revised @:ode will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification No 1). For the new
i il

L515 code the required qualif
based gualification which is
link to the qualification table

https:/fwww.tmr.

experience-and-gualifi

Kind regards

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Adv

S
\
<D

ndards and Accreditation)
ranch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads

I be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the business rules. The latter is a trade
nsidgred appropriate for the new LS15 code. | have attached the following
ur convenience:

usiness-industrvaccreditationsznproved—Person—SchemefIndustrv-
ualifications#iqualificationtable

Transport Regx
Floor 8 | 61 Mary Stréet | Brisbane Qld 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Q!d 4006

P: (07) 30666537

E: peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.qov.au

W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name Organisation

Code Details
Code Name Title
GVM Re-rating of light vehicles

Your Specific Comments

Section # Clause # Your Comment

Contact Phone Contact Ema’l Address

Date Subm@
@)

\5@@
N
S

%S
&@ﬁ
&
<&

©©

Your General Commen @
S
@
N
&

Please use additionai sheets, if required, for more feedback.
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name Organisation Contact Phone Contact Email Address

Code Details \%
Code Name  Title Date Subm@%
GVM Re-rating in accordance LS11 Design @

Your Specific Comments @

Section#  Clause#  Your Comment @@
<
$
o
L0
AN
X
N

©©

Your General Commen @
N
@
N
N

Please use additional sheets, if required, for more feedback.
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r ss ice as atin f t e icle
C S11

1.0 Sco e

The LS11 Modification Code specifies arrangements for re-rating of the Gross Vehicle.Mass (GVM)
rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not excee%o kg.

Re-rating of GVM under LS11 code is permissible only on the following type of light~ ehi
A light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and "e\\
it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as monoco{ struction, are not
eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from the orignal manufacturer's GVM
rating is not eligible for re-rating under this code.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First S ntlﬁcation Plate Approval
(IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) Appro S Approval is not deemed
as the original vehicle manufacturer.

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specified the GVM rating, the maximum laden
mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the u e of showing compliance with the
Australian Design Rules (ADRs) is to be taken as the orig'nal ting. This information must be obtained

from a reliable and traceable source. Q\
Modifications that may be certified under I@e are:

at is permi ed

. Up to 10% increase in the GVM rati iven by the original vehicle manufacturer.
» Exceptions to the limit of 10% a following cases:
o GVM rating of an in-ser¥ice vehicle that is of the same make/model/variant/chassis

series as a vehicle
accordance with th
permission for th

SSM approval for GVM re-rating AND is modified in
approval AND the SSM approval holder has given explicit
approval to be used as the basis for GVM re-rating.

o Increase in GV e an additional axle has been installed.
Alteration of/a vehicies GVM rating to match the vehicle manufacturer's alternative
rating for a icular variant of that make/model.

atis not N ed

Modifications th

not be certified under LS11 code are:

. Reduction in’GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer’s optional GVM for that
mak | and also in case of GVM reductions require as a result of conversion to heavy

motarroines.
° Rﬁ@@ﬂg of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by way of
approval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another jurisdictional approval).
. M re-rating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the SSM
\pproval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM approval as the
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

13 TowingCa acityad 11C e

¢ LS11 code is not to be used for changing the rating of towing capacity, Gross Combination
Mass (GCM) rating or maximum braked towing mass (MBTM) of the vehicie—These ratings
must remain the same as those provided by the original vehicle manufacturer.

*  When the vehicle is loaded to the gross vehicle mass according to LS11.fating, the safe trailer
mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total combination mass dees not exceed the
rating or the limit specified by the original vehicle manufacturer.

0 e eral equire ents

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. The critical components including the
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyr2s must be assessed individually
to ensure that they can safely support the loads resulting from the re=fated GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements containeddn sub-section 2 General Requirements of
the National Code of Practice (NCOP) — Light vehicle modifications (VSB14).

Increased GVM has the potential to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in
some cases. It is the responsibility of the vehicle operator and the Approved Person to consider any
effect on the warranty that LS11 modification may/ have. Any effect this modification may have on the

product warranty provided by the original vehicle mapUfacturer is outside the scope of this code. The
certifying officer must clarify this point to the maodifier and the vehicle operator.

21Co piance " hap lica le veRicle)standards
Modified vehicles must continue tocormply with the ADRs that apply to them.

If different ADRs apply due to the modified vehicles, they must comply to those ADRs that are
relevant to them.

Modified vehicles must alsg /comply with the applicable in-service requirements of Transport
Operations (Road Use Management—Vehicle Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the
Regulation).

Moadified pre-ADR Vehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.

Outlined in Table LS11 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the modifications and
may require re-certification, testing and/or data to show compliance of the modified vehicle.

This i fiot-ar’exhaustive list and compliance to other ADRs may also be affected.
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Table LS11 List of items and likely affected ADRs
REQUIREMENTS
ADR 42/..
ADR 31/...or ADR 35/..

Transport  Operations  (Road
Management—Vehicle Standard

Safety) Regulfation 2010 @

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle’s category and t@f manufacture. It is the
responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the iate ADRs applicable to
the vehicle. %

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate icle’s GVM.
2.2 GV re-ratin asedo riginal Ve icle a rer's O tion

The change to the vehicle’s GVM must replicate tge I vehicle manufacture’s optional GVM for
that particular make, model and variant. All comp &% ncluding suspension, transmission, engine,
brakes, tyre and rims must be fitted same as thos itied for that particular vehicie's alternate rated
variant. 6?; F

23 GV reratin asedonS$S$S §
The re-rated GVM must be the sa e SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres %ns must be fitted and be identical to those specified on the

SSM approved vehicle. Q

In addition to the physica @; tion replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified u M approval must also be met. These requirements may include,
but are not limited to, the\following

. The vehicle's irst Identification Plate Approval number must be identical to that mentioned

in the SSM L

. If the S& val limits the number of new vehicles to be supplied under it each year,
(for ex , Low Volume 25 or 100 or 300 vehicles per annum), the certifying AP must
check the SSM approval holder to ensure that the total number of in-service vehicles

moc@per annum under the combination of the particular SSM approval and this code
otexceed the limit specified for that low volume SSM approval.

. @M re-rating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code must not be certified if the SSM
\ roval is no longer current and has been suspended or cancelled.

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

. Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SSM approval holder
must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of G\M unider this code.

re-ratin  y installatio ofa a d io al axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the vehicle’s GVM
rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the original vehicle manufacturer's GVM
rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with the adjace:it axle in the group, then the
10% limit may be exceeded. The fitment of an additional axle js-permitted in Queensland under
the LB2 modification code in conjunction with the LS11 code. Additional supporting evidence
including brake testing and chassis strength analysis must.be provided.

25 G re-rating o tside of anufact rer's ption

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle eveniitis riot an option by the vehicle manufacturer,
provided the change is no more than 10% above the-ofiginal vehicle manufacturer's GVM rating.
While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change passibieris limited by various factors including chassis,
drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 S ecific equire e ts

When re-rating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train components must be used within the
original manufacturer's rated capaciti¢s. " Where a component manufacturer has published information
stating that reduced ratings apply forsafely reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

Typical modifications involved’in re-rating a vehicle’s GVM include:
- single axle to tandem axle configuration
- replacementcengine, transmission, axle(s), suspension components, reinforced chassis
frame and upgraded braking system or any combination of these

The following specificTequitements must be met.
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
necessary information is not available in LHS code, then the relevant sections of H code of the Heavy
Vehicle Modification Code of Practice (VSB6) may be consulted, as appropriate.

When modifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axle(s) with hig?;i&g rating are
carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient strengthito support
the re-rated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, VSB6 may be consulted.

n ine/ rans ission

The GVM re-rating assigned must not exceed the engine and smission manufacturer's
recommendations, if any, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer f@/ehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certifica is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmissiondi to the modified vehicle must
be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the referen

atings
When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional load chd on axles. Axle loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axie @ti@nless reinforced replacement axles are

fitted. @

Where certification is by companson with @ufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the m d% icle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle. \

If a component manufacturer has publi ‘nstructions to reduce the rating of a component for
safety reasons, the reduced rating ply.

3.4 ail Sha @

Changes associated witl GVM may place additional load on vehicle's tail shaft. For
example:

- changes to vehicle'sride height which may alter the tail shaft and pinion angles;
- alterations to &vehicle's wheelbase may result in change in tail shaft length;

The vehicle'@ft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles re-rated GVM.

Page 5 of 12
Queensland Code of Praclice  Vehicle Modifications, TRsp38/@nd38anTHeais32 iof 206une 2018



3.5 Sus ensio

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
hydraulic brake hose length, handling and roli stability.

A vehicle’s braking performance is directly affected by changes to its GVM. Therefere, the vehicle's
braking system must be assessed to determine if the performance of—the griginal system is
adequate for the re-rated GVM or if it requires to be reinforced.

3.7 Steeri

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehicle-manufacturer to the original
or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be certified under the LS section of VSB14.

3.8 Tyresan

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the-requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load garrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is loaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tytes/fitted must be at least equal to the re-rated GVM.
The same applies to the load carrying capacities,of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
(and rims) on each axle must be adequate to:support the potential maximum mass on that axle.

If re-rated GVM and axle masses yeguire’ different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre
placard must be fitted to indicate therevised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated
GVM. The revised tyre size and(load rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the
owner's handbook.

If different tyres & rims/are specified, their size must be no more than necessary to support the
increased axle masses.\The éeffect of altemate tyres on speedometer/odometer accuracy must be
considered. It must be ensured that, with the altemate tyres, vehicle’s compliance to ESC requirements
is not affected.

ner’'s Ha &b and Load Ca acity Label

The vehicle operatermust be adequately informed of the changes.
ér’s Ha d k

To informvthe vehicle operator about the vehicle’s towing capacity and tyre & rim requirements, the
vehicle’s handbook must be updated. The update must provide specific details of the tyres, rims and
the towing capacity. Of particular importance is any sliding reduction in towing capacity of the vehicle
as it is loaded to its re-rated GVM and/or vertical load on tow ball (ball weight).

i the vehicles handbook is not available, this information must be provided in written form to the
owner of the vehicle.
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4.2 LoadCa ci
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

Load Capacity Label \ %)
atin s ltem atin Infor@'@

S MA rov | if li - le
R -rt V k
Xi um r kedTo i s tr-rt AV k
M. ximum Front | sS itt-d @
M ximumRe r  |/s sPr itte
* .rning: Th- m ximu br to i s de ont r@d \Y
troiterb llw-ight. or u erinfir tionr - .rdi - to ‘n copciti s | -s
rfrtoth v ici s ndbook. @

itatio s 5 §

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see
limitat'ons mentioned 'n sections 5.1 and 5.2 of this sded

lectro ic Stabili Control %

Re-rated GVM may have direct eﬁeck@ya performance of Electronic Stabil ty Control (ESC)

system. Hence ESC system must be idated so it performs satisfactorily at the re-rated GVM.
However such revalidation is not ed where a vehicle's GVM is being re-rated to the
manufacture's alternative variant ding to SSM approval, such that the system'’s compliance

has been demonstrated using other ag’ eed methods.

ect n towing@

The towing capaci% light vehicle expressed as GCM rating or Rated Towing Capacity or
Maximum Braked " Mass rating must not exceed the value set by the original vehicle
manufacturer. The 'sfope of code does not include changes to vehicle’s towing capacity. If towing
capacity is not sgecified by the original vehicle manufacturer, the limits mentioned in the Safe Towing
Guide publish MR apply.

If the origi cle manufacturer has specified towing capacity in some form, the gross combination
mass f% y adding that towing capacity and the original GVM rating must not be exceeded.
Henc: the GVM is re-rated, the actual towed mass must be proportionately reduced according
te theloaded mass of the towing vehicle.

6.0 Amnal odificationsa d Cha est Ve icle Catego

If additional modifications are made or the vehicle’s category has changed due to the GVM re-rating,
certification using the appropriate additional codes must be provided.
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7.0 Useof $11 code to provide esign certificationfor V  e-rating

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
a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a series of modified ‘vehicles of that
same make/modelivariant/chassis series and generate the necessary evidence. to—show that the
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

The outputs of a design certification under LS11 code are (a) a comprehénsive design package (b) a
maodification certificate and (c) a completed checklist. All of these outputs must be preserved as records of
the LS11 design certification and must be made available, on request, foraudit and enforcement purposes.

7.1 Design Package

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly-and comprehensively address the following
four requirements:

1.1 Sco ofw atis eligible

Design package must clearly identifywhich/make/model/variant/chassis series it applies to. If
its applicability is restricted to specific build years that also must be mentioned.

Since the modification and these-rating of GVM is being done on in-service vehicles, the
condition of the vehicle is importantto decide which vehicle can be safely modified and re-
rated. The design package must)include instructions about what is to be inspected and the
acceptance criteria. Condition of the shock absorbers, suspension, frame, tow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect. Absence of cracks, deformations, leaks and structural damage
due to overloading, acg¢idents or rust is also critical.

The design package must include a checklist template for use by the AP certifying the physical
modification. The cheekKlist will be completed by the AP who certifies the physical modification
to confirm that the vehicle was inspected and was found in sound condition before commencing
the modification:

7.1.2 vidente ac age

Thedgsigh package must include all the test reports and engineering calculations that validate
the'rérating, when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from reputed test laboratories,
vave unique identification number and be signed and dated. All test reports must make
uhambiguous reference to the specific make/model/variants of the vehicle or component to
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

7.1. Wor instructions for odification \ §>
- to modify the

The design package must include comprehensive work instructions—etihe
vehicle, what parts to be used, the sequence of actions to be pe @' precautions to be
taken and what process controls to be applied.

The work instructions must include details of any (non-destruc@sting and inspections to
be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are %

The work instructions must be easy to understand, una@ and should include sufficient

pictorials including photos and graphics.

The work instructions must include the contact de f the LS11 certifying AP if enquiries
arise needing further clarification during the physi cdification and/or its certification

o, O
7.1.4 hec listfort e odifier and th ar

The design package mustinclude templa klist(s) to be completed by the vehicle modifier
and the certifier of the physical mo n. These may be separate or one combined
c

checklist. These checklists, when ed, are evidence that the modifier and the certifier of
the physical modification have understood and followed the work instructions and the intent of
the design package has been e LS11 AP may ask for copies of completed checklists
from the modifier and the % of physical modification as part of hisfher own quality
assurance or risk managem@actice. The completed checklist must also be retained by the
AP who certifies the ph)@ odification.

Note that this checklist))is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification is, requi o complete as part h's/her certification of the modification under the

relevant code.\
7. Ce ffica @ification

The LS11 %Q;t issue a certificate of modification to his client for the design certification provided.
This is sir@o any other certificate of modification, except that the certificate may not make
referen%ny specific modification plate number or VIN. Instead, it must refer to the basis of the
desi ffication (for example, SSM approval number) and the unique identification number of the

de%% ckage provided.

3 M ificatio C ec list

LS11 AP must complete the modification checklist provided at the end of this code and must retain it
as part of his/her records.
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C ec list LS11

ros icle ass ncr se
E LS11

Form No: LS11
Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not A licable)

S s e sion

Is the vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM?
hassis

Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM?

Axles

Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM?

Engine rans ission

Is the engineftransmission suitable for the incréased GVM?

rakin Syste

Has a brake test been carried out on. the modified vehicle to
ensure compliance with ADR 31/4~gr , 35/.., whichever is
applicable?

(applicable in all cases apartcfrorn—upgrading to an SSM
a roval or ori inal vehicle manufasturer's o tional GVM

Is the vehicles brake system suitable for the increased GVM?

yresad i s

Does the Medification (Piate record the correct tyre and rim sizes
and load ratin s for the-modified vehicle?

If a revised tyre placard is required, has it been fitted to the
vehicle and a g6’ ‘attached to this checklist?

Do the tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and
the e lacard?

Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the
vehicle's/re-rated GVM and the otential axle masses?

Electronic=Sta ility Control

Has the vehicles ESC system been tested to confirm that the
system continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's
§//egifications?

Load C acitylLa el

Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle?

Has the vehicle's handbook been amended and a copy of the
relevant modified content atiached to this checklist?

anufacturer’'s tional V

) Page 10 of 12
Queensland Code of Practice Vehicle Modifications, Ridnt38/0888 #alriRdadd’ Af2PA June 2018



Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
same make, mode! and variant produced by the vehicle
manufacturer?

Are all components relevant to the GVYM re-rating (brake,
engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc)
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer’s alternative

s ecification?

Second Stage of an acturer G

Has the SSM approval holder provided written approval to \%
use that SSM design and a copy of the same attached to this
checklist? @

if certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM

A roval, has a statuto declaration been obtained? @

Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM approval?

Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake.@
sus ension, res and rims, etc identical to the SSM @1

itme t of an additio al axle

If the vehicles GVM has been increase more than is the

additional axle load sharin ?
Only if LS11 code is used to provide D 'Qﬂification

o
Is a comprehensive design package %@w@; ‘

Does the design package have a u@jdentiﬁcation
number?

Does the design package clea ribe which
make/model/variant/chassis séri eli ible for re-ratin ?
Does the design package 'n@@;uidance on what to inspect
to decide if the vehicle is eceive the re-rated GVM?
Does the design packa de a complete Evidence

Packa e on which th re-ratin is based?

Does the design pa include comprehensive work
instructions includi rk to be done, precautions to be
taken, control ses and tests to be conducted?

Does the desi age include a checklist for the modfier
of the vehicle?

Does the ign package include a checklist for the certifier
of the m ehicle?

Does @ gn package address all the requirements of this
code

Note: If the an@%any question is N {No) the design cannot be certified under LS11 code. If N/A
% es not already appear in the checklist then it cannot be used.

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

) Page 12 of 12
Queensland Code of Practice  Vehicle Modifications, RiEin$3560888 3 1aniRakd2O af06 June



fcati s in to e-ratin ssS e ic ass of
i htVe icleac di to $S1 i e ificatio

S
10 Scope

the re-rating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or en those

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons (AP) to certify physical modificatigs leading to
modifications are carried out in accordance with instructions 'n the relevant LS1 L@u certification.
n

In addition to the requirements in this code, the AP providing LS15 certificati st follow the
instructions in the design package that came w'th the relevant LS11 design

1.1 Cenrtifications permitted under L515¢ e

Light vehicle modif cations of the following types may be certifie LS‘I 5 code:

. Re-rating of a light vehicle’s GVM by modifying it ac@ o the instructions in an LS11

design certification issued for the same/make/model/vatiant/chassis series.
. Re-rating of a light vehicie’s GVM in accordance-with a letter from the original vehicle
manufacturer. @

Ce ificationsnot e itte nder S1

Light vehicle modifications of the following typ t not be certified under LS15 code:

. Modifications other than those covere Section 1.1 above.

. Re-rating of a vehicle which is outsi scope of the relevant LS11 design certification.
. Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM o , before modification, is greater than 4,500 kg.

) Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM ich, after modification, will be greater than 4,500 kg.
. Re-rating of GVM by compari an alternative make/model of vehicle.

. Re-rating of GVM by compar ith another vehicle which has been previously re-rated

using a modification code@

. Re-rating of GVM based assessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer's speci ' only.

. Re-rating of GVM/priorto first registration anywhere in Austral'a. In such cases seek a
Second Stage of cture (SSM) approval.

e eral equire \
21 vy ical Q@cations

Typical physi odifications under LS15 may include replacement of axle(s), suspension or
braking s with alternative components or reinforced chassis frame which co lectively may
permit a~different rating.

. @ti w  out i Icatio s

in some cases, rerating of GVM may involve no physical changes. For example, where a letter
is issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required for
re-rating. Care must be taken when comparing vehicles/ their components, as some properties
may not be obvious and evident. In these instances, evidence must be retained to demonstrate
that the vehicle is identical to the manufacturer’s letter.
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23 A ected A Rs

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

ork Instr ctions ro t e S11 esig ackage

Modifications must be carried out according to the work instructions that are in the design
package that came with the relevant LS11 design certification. Replacerment parts must conform
to the design package.

5 esti a dins ection

Testing and inspection specified in the design package must bécompleted and the evidence of
the same must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes compléting the checklist(s) that came
with the LS11 design package.

3.0 S ecific equire ents

When certifying the re-rated GVM under LS15, the ¢chassis frame, suspension, axles and drive train
components must be used within the original vehicle-manufacturer's rated capacities. All instructions
provided in the LS11 design package must be fgilgwed.

The following specific requirements musthe met.
yres and heel

The tyres and rims must be selécted to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle i loaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM. The
same applies to thelbad carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
{and rims) on each/axie/inust be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle.

If rerated GV .requires different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre placard must be
fitted to indicate the revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated GVM. The revised
tyre size and)load rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the owner’s handbook.

3. ,hassis ame

The chassis frame of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design package or
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's alternate model/variant.
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ra es

The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design package or identical to
the vehicle manufacturer's specifications for the alternate model/variant.

les and Suspensio

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. Axle loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle ratings unless reinforced repl axles are
fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's referencthe axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identi, ose fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

If a component manufacturer has published instructions to reduting of a component for

safety reasons, the red ced rating must apply.
3.5 Fa ri Q

All work must be performed in accordance with rec@d engineering standards. Cutting,
heating, welding or bending of components sho avoided by choosing unmodified
production components wherever possible. o

.6 Vehicle ligibili and In-service Con i

Before carrying out the modifications a %C ation under LS15 code, the details and the in-
service condition of the vehicle must b ed, as specified in the LS11 design package, to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for re-ra and its condition is safe and suitable.

Step-1: Confirm that the vehicle m@odel/varianb’chassis series and build year is within the
scope of the LS11 design certifi

Step-2: Inspect and confir the condition of the vehicle is suitable for re-rating. The
instructions 'n the LS171/design package must be followed to ensure that the chassis frame,
suspension, brakes and'so omare in safe and serviceable condition for re-rating. Evidence of this

inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided.

anu acturtter

If re-rating is @)n the original vehicle manufacturer’s letter, the manufacturer’s letter must
contain at lea e following information:

%,

o clemanufacturer’s details {i.e. manufacturer's lefter head with contact information).

. odel/variant of the vehicle.

o @cle {dentification Number (VIN) of the particular vehicle being re-rated.

. \Betails of all physical changes required for re-rating (including the details of the specific
upgrade parts to be fitted).

. Re-rated GVM.
Signature and date by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.
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Chec list S15
e-rating of ross Vehices assofa ig tVe icleto 811 e i nCe ificatio
S1
Form No: .§15
Y=Yes, N=No

General

Have you received a copy of and understood:

The LS11 design package with all the instructions to modify, test and
re-rate vehicle of this make/model/variant/chassis series?

LS11 Design Certification No. ............................ Date /0.
OR A letter from the original vehicle manufacturer for re-rating?
Manufacturer’'s Letter Reference date

Note: If you do not have one of the above, you are unabig’to certify this
vehicle.

Are you accredited to certify the additional medification codes required
b the LS11 desi n cerification or the vehicle manifacturer's letter?

Chassis Fra e

Does the chassis frame conform to the detfait.construction, section

properties and cross-members of the 1S1%)design package or the

ori inal vehicle manufacturer’s letter?

Is the chassis frame structurally seund, iree from deformation, cracks

and rust perforation?

Does it meet the inspection criteria_mentioned in the LS11 design
acka e?

rake system

Is the vehicle's braking system’ as specified in the LS11 design package or
the ori inal vehicle mandfagwrer's letter?
Is the braking systgim-in.serviceable condition, free from leaks, wear
and fouling/stretching?
Does it meet thg inspection criteria mentioned in the LS11 design

acka e?

Tyres and\Nims
Does the-Modification Plate record the correct tyre and rim sizes and load
ratingsor the modified vehicle?

If a/revised tyre placard is required, has it been fitted to the vehicle and a
copy atfached to this checklist?

Dothe tyres and rims fitted conform to the maodification plate and the tyre
otacard?

Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the vehicle's re-rated
GVM and the potential axle masses?
ligi ility- Ma e/ odel/variant/chassis series

Does the vehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design
certification?

Load Ca acity abel
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
Are/ls the checklist{s) required in the LS11 design package compl%od%
Are all the inspections and tests as required in the LS11 design packa

com leted? @
Have you kept all supporting documents you used to certify tf
modification and hotos of the modified vehicle for future a ﬂ@
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of

Make Model Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number

(If applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s
Vehicle Modified B

TMR in-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified B Prin

Signatory's Employer

(If applicable)

Si nato ’s Si nature Date
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Peter N Twinin

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 3:09 PM

To: Anant Z Bellary; Adam Shaw

Ce: Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)

Subject: FW: Draft VSB 11 & VSB 15

Attachments: Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; Feedback on Diift Modification
Code LS11.docx' GVM upgrade.pdf \

Kind regards @

Peter Twining @

Senior Policy Advisor {Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brishane Qid 4000 > ;i

PO Box 673 [ Fortitude Valley Qid 4006
{07} 30666537

- peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au
www.tmr.qld.gov.au

§
o
4

NN

N)

From; | Not relevant [mailto; Not re"*‘@jx)test—trak.com@
Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 2:38 PM

To: Peter N Twining @
Subject: Draft VSB 11 & VSB 15 @

Hi Peter (i E)

| was forwarded the draft VSB 14/.VSB 15 and I've taken the liberty of making same commentc

ianal/financial affairs

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercia : 0

<
&
&
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Regards

Not relevant

Test-Trak
MOb“e: {Not relevant I

Office +6] 3 9769 9766
Emall Not relevi tESt'trak-Com

Tes rak

Www lest-trak.co
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Scott G Notle

From: Nigel G Ellis

Sent: Monday, 23 April 2018 8:09 AM
To: Scott G Notley

Cce: Anant 7 Bellary; Adam Shaw
Subject: FW: Type Approvals

Kind reqards,

Nigel Ellis
ely and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and %igin Roads

Floor 10 | 61 Mary Street [ Brisbane QId 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley QId 4004
P: (07) 3066 7175 I F:{07) 3253 4453

M: Not relevant

E: nlgel.g.ellis@lmr.gld.gov.au
W: www.tmir.qld.gov.ay

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Monday, 16 April 2018 10:04 AM

To: Nigel G Ellis <nigeI.g.ellis@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Anant z Bellary <Anant.2.Bellary@tmr.q!d.gov.au>; Adam Shaw <Adam.M.Shaw@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Type Approvals

Nige,

When you get a chance, | would like to discuss the pign of attack for Type Approvals as well. See details below.

Background

S&A has, for over ten years, been issuing Type Approvals to some businesses for modifications, including GVM
upgrades on in-service light vehiclasfhis was (and continyes to be) done at a time when there was no standard
code in the Queensiand Code of Piadtice (QCOP) for doing so. These Type Approvals are conditional on the business
holding a current Second Stageof Manufacture {SSM) approval issued by DIRDC for the same make/mode] new
vehicles,

Type Approvals do not rieat the regulatory requirements for vehicle inspection and certification, S A have taken
steps to transition these dpprovals to certification under the QCoP.
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process of transitioning to QCoP has been in place since 1 Aprit 2018. S0

accordance with their Type Approval. This
difficulty in adopting the LX1 code.

f
ar no Type Approval holder has raised any
or which no Type Approval

on new SSM approvals (f
dered as the best approach

ed LS11 code. This is consi
et the regulatory requirements.

Iti

y :; expec‘ted that GVM upgrades to in-service vehicles based

to s ever issued by TMR) would be certified using the dedicat
eventually phase out the Type Approvals as they do not me

Representation by ARB
ovals and a Type Approval TA.030 based on those $SM approvals for
oduction of LX1 code inApril 2018, ARB had
h the updates to its uhderlying SSM

ver part of ARBs current Type Approval

g\RI?\n‘Sua business that holds several SSM appr
appliedptgrade onvarious make/mode! light vehicles. just before the intr
a|o|mr0\,a,0 TMR requesting update to its Type Approval TA.030 in line wit
TA030 s. The request also contained one new $SM approval which was ne

ARB's request to update its Type

ith the imminent introduction of LX1 code to transition all Type Approvals, the
Notretevant y ang|Notrelevant —f{oft ARB recently met with S&A
y to face difficulties

‘t“epaproval TA.030 has been kept pending..
inc1Tdt'o convey that if the Type Approval TA.030 is not updated, as requested, ARB i5iike!
ing:

Part Refuse Sch.4 P: i
.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial affai
irs

®  Part Refus
e Sch.4 Part 4 5.7(1)(c) Business/commercial*=~ =" """ T "7

yng | Notrelevant pelieve that the invoiverent of an 1511 AP does not add value to the
nspection pefore fitting the mod plate.

L Both [Not relevant
eir observation, the 1511 AP conducis oniyya cursory i

process as, in th

The Analysis
cernsang develop solution{s) to address them, if possible. The rest of

Y
&A team agreed to analyse ARB’s above con
sisand the potential solution.

thi .
is message outlines the outcome of that andly

S&A . .
A is conscious that any potential soluticn needs to satisfy the following essential criteria:
entual phasing out of the current Type Approval

Th .
T e solution must be based on the acoP-codes and must jead to ev
A 030
T .
che solution must be equitable to oift
T‘;mme rcial advantage to ARB:
e solution must not result/in

O ' .
ther words, certification-must

et Type Approval holders in similar situation and must not result in selective
cartifications that are not based on physical inspection of the modified vehicle. In
hot be done remotely.

e Type Approval holders’ shop fronts,

dress the remoteness of some of th
the LS11 Engineering code in all

| holders have transitioned to using
emote areas. A secret shopper approach revealed [as was

ailed out to remote shop fronts where the local business owner
o the AP business rules and the intentions underlying the
developing solution 10 address ARB’s concerns.

E:/‘I);gh the LX1 code¥as developed to ad
a reasu nderstands tiat some Type Approva
SUSpe’ rather than'tie X1 code, particularly inr
don Cted) that‘the !.511. plate may be getting m
Codethhe- wur'k iv-attaching the plate. This is contrary t

$11.Thicrevelation also needs to be considered when

The Solution
ed for ARB {and any other Type Approval holder in similar

AF ; :
. ter gue deliberations, the following solution is propos
Stituation):

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -4 of 206



approvals, as requested by ARB

TMR to advise ARB that Gvm upgrades to in-service vehicles based on any new SSM approval (for which no
Type Approval was ever issued) may be performed using the LS11 code. This applies to one new SSM
approval in ARB’s current pending list .

LS11 (GvM upgrade) and (512 (trailer modifications including ATM upgrade) are currently combined design

used to provide mogel design certification and also to certify an individua| vehicle modifiag according to
that mode) design certification. Note that recently code LS14 has been introduced far iight-trailers to
compliment L5172, The new LS14 code, amecng other things, provides for certification ofa.trdiler modified
according to model design provided in LS12. Thus LS12 {model design certification) and-LS14 (certification of
modification on individual vehicle) work in a complimentary way. Consider adopting similar approach with
L$11 code by developing a complimentary 1515 code. Unlike LS12, trade basgd qualification will be adequate
for the new LS15 code. This solves the difficulty of remoteness when obtainingpraper certification.

Make suitable changes to (11 code to reflect the Provision of new Ls15 cade

7 i i i I/ffinancia
Meet with ARB to inform and explain the proposed soluti 1y, | Part Refuse Sch.4 Fan /s (1)(c) Busmess/commerclal/professmn—a_ i -
on. o

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/co ercial/f
al efuse Scl al e : Cl /financial affairs
Part Ref Sch.4 Part 4 s.7 1al/professional
t 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/co e
=Tvrenearcals ubfllg e

Note that the 1511 model design Certification is one off requirementf4r each make/model, can be
performed where 3 suitably qualified Person is available and is R0t a recurring cost for the business,

Note aiso the L$15 modification certification will be done onteachvehicle after physical inspection, which
can be performed by a suitably trade-qualified person likelyte bé availaple in remote areas,

Institute audit framework to ensure that the twin codgs LS11+1515 and LS12+1514 function properly as
intended,

Consult further with all Type Approval and (511 holdsrsprior to implementing the new code.

TMR to advise aJ) Type Approval Holders and Aps holding’Ls11 code that if Gvm upgrade is provided using
L511 code, vehicles must be physically inspected By the Person providing the LS11 certification.

This approach would also mean that others busin&sses providing Gvm Upgrades in remote locations would no
longer need to distort or circumvent requirements by certifying vehicles remotely,

Regards

Scott Notley
A/Director (Standards ang Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety ang Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor9 /61 Mary St Brisb&ne Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qid 4006
t07 3338 4082 | £32%3 4453 | m|Notrelevant

e Scott.G.Notley@iﬂ_mgjd.gov.au

w Www.tmr.gid.gov.aiy

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -50 of 206



Scott G Notle

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Friday, 27 April 2018 3:04 PM

TO: | Not relevant |

Cc Peter N Twining

Subject: LS11/LX1 Type Approval requirements.

N

Just a quick note to confirm our discussion on Tuesday and follow up on your request t icles/variants to

your existing Type Approvals.
TMR received a request for 10 vehicles/variants based on additional SSM approval

e  Where the vehicle/variant is simply an amendment of your existing Ss@ovals, approval will be given.

Peter Twining from my team will provide formal advice on Monday ehicle/variants to be added to
your existing Type Approval.
e

o Two requests {for the Hilux under SSM 48108) will not be approv e basis that this is a new SSM. GVM
upgrades related to this SSM can be done under the 1511 cod
¢ TMR will draft amendments to the L$11 code and a new LSlS@
e Industry will be consulted on the drafting of the change t@ nd the new LS15 code.
* Once LS15 code is implemented, ARB will be able to poui
basis of any new SSM using a combination of LS11 a %

¢ Your ARB representatives in remote and regional s apply for trade based LS15 code to certify GVM
upgrades. An LS11 AP would only need to prov%&g design certification for each

M upgrades for in service vehicles on the

make/model/variant/chassis series.

Any questions, please give me a ring. @
Peter will confirm the changes to your TypeA@@on Monday.

Regards

Scott Notley @

A/Director {Standards a ccreditation)
Transport Regulation ch
Customer Service, S@ d Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

t 07 33384 53 4453 |
e Scott.G.N r.gqld.gov.au
w www.tmr.qkﬁov.au

Floor9/61 Ma bane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
8
dom
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Scott G Notle

From: Patricia L Bailey

Sent: Monday, 28 May 2018 3:57 PM

To: Scott G Notley; Anant Z Bellary; Adam Shaw; Peter N Twining; Neil L Todd

Cc: Peter R Phillips; Shane F Lonsdale

Subject: Formatted LS11 and LS1S for your review

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 AS changes.docx: LS 15 Vetsion May 2018 V1

AS comments.docx \
Please find attached documents for your review and any comments, please send to Sh :r T.

Cheers

Trish @
Kind regards, @

Vehicle Standards | Standards and Accreditation

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads @
Fioor 9 | 61 Mary Stree! Brisbane 4000 @

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qid 4006 o

P: 1323 80

E: vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au &\9
W www.tror.qld.gov.au @
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Gross Vehicle Mass Rating of Light Vehicles
CODE LS11

(GVM) rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that(does, not exceed

1.0 Scope g'
The LS11 Modification Code specifies arrangements for rerating of the Gros%i Mass
4 500 kg. §

Rerating of GVM under code LS11 s permissible only on following type o t vehicles:
(@) alight vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis e with a cabin and/or

body mounted on it. Vehicles with integrated frame and ommonly known as
maonocoque construction are not eligible.

(b)  Alight vehicle that has not previously been rerated original manufacturer's
GVM rating.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First Stage Identification Plate
Approval (IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage M@ture (SSM) Approval or RAWS
Approval is not deemed as the original vehicle manufac
%

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer h %@peciﬁed the GVM rating, the maximum
laden mass permitted by the original vehicle man %r for the purpose of showing compliance
with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) is to be s the original GVM rating. This information
must be obtained from a reliable and traceax .

1.1 What is permitted

Modifications that may be ceﬂif@der LS11 code are:

. Up to 10% increase indthe GVM rating given by the original vehicle manufacturer
. Exceptions to the li % apply in following cases:
o) GVM  rati r@an in-service vehicle that is of the same the

make/maqdel/variant/chassis series as a vehicle having a Second Stage of
Manufac SM) approval for GVM rerating AND is modified in
accordance with the SSM approval AND the SSM approval holder has given
expli@&@mission for the SSM approval to be used as the basis for GVM
rer

in GVM where an additional axle has been installed
eration of a vehicles GVM rating to match the manufacturer's alternative
& for a particular variant of that make/model

Q
)

1.2 not permitted

Madifications that must not be certified under LS11 code are:

@%diﬁcations other than those described in 1.1 above.

N eduction in GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer's optional GVM
for that make/model (except in case of heavy motorhomes).

. Rerating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM rerating (by
way of SSM approval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another
jurisdictional approval),
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. GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the
SSM approval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM
approval as the basis.

. GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval
(for example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in
the SSM approval.

. GVM rerating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle
beyond the rating by the origina! vehicle manufacturer

. Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the ariginal\vehicle
manufacturer's rating

1.3 Towing Capacity and LS11 Code

GVM rerating under LS11 code must not result in any increase in the-tawing capacity of
the vehicle beyond that specified by the original vehicle manufacturer. This requirement
must be met irrespective of how the towing capacity is specified or dalculated and includes
the terms gross combination mass rating the rated towing/capacity and the maximum
braked towing mass rating.

20 General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the rerated>GVM. The critical components
including the chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes; steering, wheels and tyres must be
assessed individually to ensure that they are suitable to operate under the loads resulting from
the rerated GVM.

All work must also comply with the requitgrents contained in sub-section 2 General
Requirements of the National Code of Praclice (NCOP) - Light vehicle modifications (VSB14).

This code does not provide any assurance regarding the continued eligibility of the vehicle for
any warranty claims when operating atthe verated GVM. The certifying officer must clarify this
point to the modifier and the vehigie operator. Increased GVM has the potential to affect
eligibility of warranty claims with the vehidle manufacturer in some cases. It is the responsibility
of the vehicle operator and Apgroved Person to consider any effect on warranty that the
modification may have.

2.1 Compliancewithapplicable vehicle standards

Modified vehicles must continue to comply with the ADRs to which they were originally

constructed, except:

) If differént-ADRs apply to them due to the modification, in which case they must
compty to-those ADRs that are relevant to the madified vehicle.

. as allowed for in the Transport Operations (Road Use Management—Vehicle
Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the Regulation).

. Modified vehicles must also comply with the applicable in-service requirements of
the/Regulation.

fodified pre-ADR vehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.
Outlined below in Table LS11 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the
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

Transport  Operations (Road U,
Management—Vehicle Standards K
Safety) Regulation 2010 @

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicles category and date :o; manufacture. It
is the responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer appropriate ADRs
applicable to the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rel@%zs GVM.
2.2 GVM alteration based on Manufacturer’s Option

The change to the vehicles GVM must replicate th ufacture’s optional GVM for that
particular make, model and variant of vehicle itionally, all components, including
suspension, transmission, engine, brakes, it rims, and so on must be fitted and
identical to those specified for that particular @ rated variant.

2.3 GVM Upgrade based on SSM @

The rerated GVM must be the same a\SM approved vehicle. All upgraded components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres rims, etc. must be fitted and be identical to those

specified on the SSM approved @

In addition to the physical ification replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified un SSM must also be met. These requirements can include
but are not limited to t g

. The vehicles first Identification Plate Approval number must be identical to that
mentioned.in the SSM Approval.

. If the SS val limits the number of vehicles to be supplied under it each year,
(for ex Low Volume 25 or 100 per annum), the SSM approval holder must
ensuz@the same restriction is applied to the number of vehicles modified under

)

this% .

. erating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code should not be certified if the
approval is no longer current and has been suspended or cancelled.

hen upgrading GVM in accordance with an SSM approval the certifying AP must
ensure the SSM approval holder has provided written permission for use of the
SSM design as the basis.

If upgrading a GVM in accordance with a Low Volume SSM a statutory declaration
must be obtained from the SSM holder stating no more approvals than the limit
stipulated on the SSM have been provided. For example, if the Low Volume SSM
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restricts the number of vehicles to 25 per annum then the SSM approval holder
cannot provide permission for more than 25 in-service vehicles to be modified in
that year (in addition to the 25 new vehicles certified in accordance with their SSM
approval).

Any low volume SSM restrictions must be noted on the modification certificate (for
example vehicle #2 of 25)

The SSM Approval number must be documented on the modificatian cerificate.

Both the written permission and statutory declaration from the S3M hiolder must
be retained by the Approved Person as evidence for certifying the rerating of GVM
under this code.

2.4 GVM Upgrade by installation of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axie or addjticnat-drive axle) the vehicles
GVM may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the-eriginal vehicle manufacturer's
GVM rating. However, if the additional axle is load shating with adjacent axle in the group
then the 10% limit on increase in GVM increase may be-éxceeded. The fitment of an
additional axle is permitted in Queensland un@er. the LB2 modification code in
conjunction with the LS11 code.

2.5 GVM rerating outside of Manufacturéer’sOption

A rerating of GVM is permitted on a light/vshicie even if it is not an option by the vehicle
manufacturer provided the change is ig.mare than 10% above the original manufacturer’'s
GVM. While the upper limit is 10%, the.actdal change possible is limited by various factors
including chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When rerating GVM, the chassis; suspension, axles and drive train components must be used
within the vehicle manufactufer's, rated capacities. Where a component manufacturer has
published information statingthatreduced ratings apply for safety reasons, the reduced rating must

apply.
Typical modifications-involved with rerating a vehicles GVM include:
- single aglg to-tandem axle configuration
- combination of replacement engine, transmission, axles or suspension
commonents, reinforced chassis and upgraded brake components

The following-specific requirements must be met.
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3.1 Chassis

Chassis modifications must be performed in accordance with section LH5 of Vehicle
Standards Bulletin 14. If the necessary information is not available in LH5 then the relevant
sections of H code of the Heavy Vehicle Modification (VSB6) may be referenced or consulted,
as far as possible and appropriate.

When modifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axles with higher load rating

are carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has s ength
to accommodate the rerated GVM. For calculating chassis strength y be
consulted.

A simplified way to look at the frame requirements for GVM reratir’ associate the
R )

bending strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity (i.e.

3.2 Engine/Transmission @

The GVM rating assigned must not exceed the engine a mission manufacturer's
recommendations, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturers for a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certifi nis by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitted to the modified
vehicle must be identical to those fitted by the manufatturer to the reference vehicle.

3.3 Axle Ratings o @

With increase in GVM, additional loads @ced on axles. The original vehicle
manufacturer's axle ratings must notbe e in normal and practical loading resuiting
after the GVM is rerated, unless reinfo% acement axles are fitted; in that case their
ratings must not be exceeded.

7

Where certification is by compariso@a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to odified vehicle must be identical to those fitted by
the manufacturer to the reference icle with the higher GVM rating.

In cases where a compo nufacturer has published information reducing the rating
capacity of a component f ety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

3.4 Tail Shaft

Changes associ ith rerated GVM may place additional load on a vehicles tailshaft.
For example:

- chang icle ride height which may alter the tailshaft and pinion angles;

- alter. a vehicles wheelbase may result in change in tailshaft length;

engine and/or transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on

Thg\%@les tailshaft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles rerated

Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicle MO@H%‘&?&%&"?E&QQ@#& Main Roads, February 2018



4.0

3.5 Suspension

With an increase in GVM, additional loads are placed on suspension. Vehicle suspension
ratings must not only be adequate for the revised GVM but must be able to accommodate
the axle loads resulting from normal and practical loading patterns. Effects of changes in
ride height must be carefully considered. For example, tyre and wheel envelope, jounce
and rebound travel, hydraulic brake hose length, handling & roll stability.

3.6 Brakes

A vehicles braking performance is directly affected by changes to the vehicles GVM.
Therefore, the vehicles braking system must be assessed to determipe-if the performance
of the original system is adequate for the proposed GVM or if it requires to be upgraded.

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the manufacturer to the original
or reference vehicle as appropriate. If the steering system.is“imodified or a new steering
system is fitted it must be approved under the LS section of VEB14.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM.
The same applies to load carrying capacities of the 1ims. Moreover the load capacity of the
tyres (and rims) on each axle must be adequate to-support the load imposed on that axle.

The load carrying capacity of any tyre or{rim-sfriust not be exceeded when the vehicle is
loaded to the revised GVM rating and theoadis distributed in a practical and uniform way.

The tyres and rims must be selectedhto-comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR
(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04) at the révisgd GVM rating.

If required, an amending tyre -placard must be fitted to indicate the correct tyre

specifications for the vehicle at the revised GVM rating. The revised tyre size and load rating
must also appear on the mAodification plate and in the owner’s handbook.

Load Capacity Label and Handbook

To ensure the vehicleoperator is adequately informed of the changes such as the vehicles
towing capacity and fyre réquirements, the vehicles handbook must be updated. The update
must provide specific(defails of the tyres and the towing capacity and if applicable, any reduction
in towing capacity due o vehicle loading conditions andfor vertical load on tow ball (ball weight).

If the vehicles handbook is not available this information must be provided in written form to the
owner of thé v&hicle owner. In addition this information may be included on the load capacity

label discussed below.

A labél containing important information about the vehicies load capacity must also be fitted.

The labat must follow the below label as an example and must be fitted to the vehicle, as close

as praclicable to the vehicles tyre placard.

Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicled¥ipgifigations, Tragsporand Main Roads, February 2018



Ratings Item Rating Information
SSM Approval # (if applicable)
Rerated GVM kg
Maximum Towing Mass at GVM* kg
Maximum Front Axle/s Mass Permitied kg
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted kg

vehicle loading and/or trailer ball weight. For further information regardin i
capacities please refer to the vehicles handbook.

5.0 Limitations @
For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see Section 1.2. In a@ the following

limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 apply. @

*Warning: The maximum mass the vehicle can safely tow may depend on %

5.1 Electronic Stability Control @

Changes to a vehicles GVM can have a direct effect on_elecironic stability control (ESC)
performance. Therefore, for vehicles fitted with ESC th@ must be tested to ensure
it continues to comply with the relevant ADR or manufacturer's specifications. However, this
is not required where a vehicles GVM is being rerated({o-amanufacture’s alternative variant
or by SSM approval such that the system’s compli s been demonstrated.

Q

5.2 Effect on towing capacity @

The towing capacity of a light vehicle e@g&g@j as Gross Combination Mass (GCM) rating

or Rated Towing Capacity or Maxi ed Towing Mass rating must not exceed the
value set by the original vehicle manrzg%@r. This code does not permit an increase in rated
towing capacity or GCM rating. For@ﬁght vehicles rated towing capacity or GCM rating
may not be specified by the origi le manufacturer. In such cases the limit mentioned
in the Safe Towing Guide applies When the original vehicle manufacturer has specified
GCM rating or rated towing ity or maximum braked towing mass, please note that the
maximum mass that can be Ily towed when the vehicle is loaded at the rerated GVM
must be proportionately r@d to ensure that the sum of GVM and maximum towing mass
at GVM before and afie? r g remains unchanged.

6.0 Additional Modifica and Changes to Vehicle Category

Where additional mo s have been performed or a change in vehicle category has occurred
due to the increase i , certification using the appropriate additional codes must be provided.

7.0 Use of Q@de to provide design certification for GVM Rerating

LS11 co @mw be used to provide design certification for GVM rerating of a vehicle of a
particula /model/variant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using any
of the @q criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited
Approved Person holding a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a
series of modified vehicles of that make/model/variant/chassis series and generate the necessary
evidence to ensure that the requirements of the design certification are met.
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When LS11 code is used in this way to provide design certification, the Approved Person providing
the design certification may not inspect the modified vehicle and is not required to fit an LS11
modification plate to the vehicle. Also the checklist completed as part of the design certification
may not refer to any particular VIN.

The outputs of a Design Certification under LS11 are (a) design package (b) LS11 modification
certificate and (c) LS11 modification checklist. All these outputs must be preserved as records and
must be made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purpose.

7.1 Design Package

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and comprghensively address the
following four requirements:

7.1.1 Scope of what is eligible

Design certification must tightly describe to which miakefimgdel/variant/chassis series
it applies. If its applicability is restricted to spegific buijld years that also must be
mentioned.

Since the modification and the rerating is being-done on in-service vehicles, the
condition of those in-service vehicles plays animportant role in determining which
vehicle can safely receive the rerating. This must be reflected in the scope section of
the design package by stating what rmaust-be’inspected and what is acceptable to
decide that the vehicle is safe to modify and receive rerating. Condition of the shock
absorbers, suspension, frame, tow gquipment and brakes are key areas to inspect.
Absence of cracks, deformations and stituctural damage due to rust is also critical.

The design certification package must include a template of checklist that needs be
completed as a record that, before modification, the vehicle was inspected and
confirmed that it is eligible and ig“in sound condition.

7.1.2 Evidence package

Integral to the design package output is the collection of various test reports and
engineering caiculations that validate the rerating when modified as prescribed. Test
reports must be-fror reputed test laboratories, must have unique identification number
and musthe signed and dated. Test reports must make unambiguous reference to the
specific make/model/variants of the vehicle or component to which they apply and
must cofitainr-sonclusion about pass or fail according to the relevant criteria.

Engineeririg calculations must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They
must be’compiled under a unique identifier.

if{any evidence is sourced from a third party, the package must include a written
paermission from that party for use of its reports.
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For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, it is not uncommon for design
certifier to not include the entire evidence package in the design package output being
given to the customer. Where this is the case, however, the design package must list
all the key test reports and calculation sheets (using their unique identifiers) and
provide written assurance that full evidence package will be made available, on
request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package output must contain detailed work instructions o o‘modify
the vehicle, what paris to be used, what sequence of actions to becperiermed, what
precautions fo be taken and what process controls to be appiie@
Work instructions must also include details of any (non-des ve) testing and
inspections to be carried out to ensure that the modiﬁcation@dards are met.

The instructions must be easy to understand, unambigiigus and should include
sufficient pictorials and graphics. ;

The work instruction must also include contact il for querying or seeking
clarification, should that be required during modification.

All details must be recorded in the modificati ificate including details of any SSM
approvals or conditions. o

The load capacity label must be affix indicate revised GVM and other relevant

loading conditions. @9

7.1.4 Checklist for the modiN the certifier

This output of the design p Qﬁonsists of two separate checklists one of each for
the vehicle modifier and th@ﬁer of the physical modification. The purpose of these

checklists is to gener@deme that the modifier and the certifier of the physical
modification have understbod and followed the prescribed procedure and are able to
confirm that the i @ he design package has been met. The design certifier under
LS11 may choose 0 collect such completed checklists from the modifier and the
certifier of phy: modification as part of his/her own quality assurance or risk

managem&%actice.
Note #@@hmkﬁst is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical

modification may be required to complete as part his/her certification under the
relevant code.

7.fication Certificate

his output, a modification certificate must be issued similar to any other modification
code, except that the certificate may not make reference to any specific modification plate
number or vehicle by its VIN.
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7.3 Moaodification Checklist

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
1 Suspension \
1.1 | 1s the vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM? ____\%‘
Chassis
2 . . | | _ f\\%
o4 | !s the chassis suitable for the increased GVM? & J v IN
3 | Axles @
34 | Arethe axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM? @ 1y |IN
4 | Engine/Transmission w
41 | s the engineftransmission suitable for the mcr%GVlW ey IN
5 Braking System O
5 1 Has a brake test been carried out o udified vehicle to
' ensure compliance with ADR 31 /.., whichever is
applicable? NA|lY IN
(applicable in all cases apart radlng to an SSM
approval or original vehicle m a r's optional GVM)
Is the vehicles brake system suitable for the increased GVM?
52 & - Y |N
g | Tyres and Rims 7
6.1 Does the Modification @%ﬁord the correct tyre and rim sizes | vy |IN
' and load ratings for the madified vehicle?
- al) i '?
6.2 Has an updated;grard been fitted to the vehicle” — 1y IN
Do tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the
6.3 — |Y |N
tyre placard?
Are load r s of the tyres and rims adequate for the
6.4 . - |Y |N
vehicles M?
7 Electr?i@ébility Control
74 |Ha thexyehicles ESC system been tested to confirm that the
) s continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's | N/A | Y N
ifications?
8 gg@d Capacity Information
Q@\ﬁs the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle? — Iy In
8. 2 Has the vehicles handbook been amended or additional | vy In
information been included on the Load Capacity Label?

9 Manufacturer's Optional GVM
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9.1 Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
) same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle NA|Y |N
manufacturer?

9.2 Are all components relevant to the GVM rerating (brake,
’ engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc) NALY |N
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer’s alternative
specification?

10 | Second Stage of Manufacturer GVM

10 1 Has the SSM Approval holder provided written approval to

use that SSM design? ALY [N

10.2 If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM NAlY N
' Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained?

10.3 Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM approval? NA|Y |N

10.4 Are all components relevant to the GVM rerating (brake, NALY [N

suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the SSM désign?

11 Fitment of an additional axle

i i 407/
11.1 If thg_vehlcies GVM has _been increase more than-10% is the N/A | Y N
additional axle load sharing?

12 Only if LS11 code is used to provide Design Certification
12.1 Is a comprehensive design package provided? — |y IN
12.2 Does the design package have a ufiigue identification — 1y IN
number?
12.3 Does the design package clearly describe which — 1y IN
) make/modelfvariant/chassis series,is eligible for rerating?
12.4 Does the design package ingclude guidance on what to inspect
) in the in-service vehicle apd how to determine its fitness to -- 1Y |N
receive GVM upgrade?
125 Does the design packéage-include a complete Evidence — 1y IN
) Package on which the GVM rerating is based?
126 Does the design package include comprehensive work
) instructions in¢luding-work to be done, precautions to be -— Y N
taken, control 'of processes and tests io be conducted?
12.7 Does the design-package include a checklist for the modifier | Yy IN
) of the vehicle?
128 Does therdesign package include a checklist for the certifier |y IN
' of the modified vehicle?
12.9 Doegthe-design package address all the requirements of this | Yy |IN
coge?

Note;: If tHé& answer to any question is N (No) the design cannot be certified under LS11
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

rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle {(GVM 4500 kg or I§) when those

modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 rtification. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow th ed modification
process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11 design certificati

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified underiS15 code:

. Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM by modifying it accordi Qu) he instructions in an LS11

design certification issued for the same/make/mode ignijchassis series.
) Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance wi etter from the original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS15 cc@
Light vehicle modifications of the following types t be certified under LS15 code:

o

Modifications other than those covere @ecﬁon 1.1 above.

Rerating of a vehicle which does not % or GVM rerating under LS11 code.

Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of w efore modification, is greater than 4500 kg.

Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM ichy after modification, will be greater than 4500 kg.

Rerating of GVM by comparing an alternative make/model of vehicle.

Rerating of GVM by compari ith another vehicle which has been previously rerated

using a modification code.

. Rerating of GVM based @ssessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer's specificgtions only.

. Rerating of GVM priorta fitst registration anywhere in Australia. For it, follow the procedures

prescribed for obtai @ Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

20 General Requireme@
2.1 TypicalM%\h&;tions

Typical physica ications involved in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspension ing system with alternative components which collectively may permit a
different r& nd/or reinforcement of the chassis frame.

2.2 R@‘.g without Modifications

Ins es rerating of GVM may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter is

is the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required. Care
%@ taken when comparing vehicles/components, as some properties may not be obvious

a vident. In these instances, evidence must be retained to demonstrate that the vehicle is

identical to the manufacturer's letter.
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
Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the design packag
of the relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the design packag

25 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package ‘mustbe completed and
evidence of it must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes conipleting any checklist(s) that
the design package requires.

Specific Requirements

When rerating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and drive irain’components must be used within
the vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. Specific instructions provided in LS11 design package
must be followed.

The following specific requirements must be met.

3.1 Tyres and Wheel Rims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of thé tyres and rims fitted to an axle or axle group must
be at least equal to the load rating of that axle of axle group or the load imposed on that axle or
axle group when the vehicle is loaded to.its(tated GVM (with the load distributed uniformly and in
a practical way), whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with joad distributed uniformly and practically, must not result
in the load on any tyre or rim exgeeding its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured tg!comply with ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04, the tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with-the requirements of that ADR at the revised GVM rating.

Where a tyre placard is fitted to a vehicle, this placard may require to be replaced with a new
placard replicating the-mianufacturer's alternative model vehicle or as specified in the LS11
design certification. The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification
plate.

The load cagiacity label must be fitted as close to the tyre placard as possible.

3.2 Chassis
The chagsis of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design certification or identical
to thiesariginal vehicle manufacturer’s alternate model/variant.

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

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering st G@%Cutting,
heating, welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosin%@}o ied
production components wherever possible. @

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Condition @
Before carrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code; the condition of the in-

service vehicle must checked as specified in the design packag@tSH design certification to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is to be ac% two steps.

Step-1 To verify that the vehicle make!model!varianﬂc@ ies and build year is within the

scope of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2 To inspect and verify that the condition of th@le is suitable for rerating. The relevant
instructions in the design package of LS11 desigr ification must be followed to ensure that
the chassis frame, suspension, brakes and §p @ @ e in safe and serviceable condition at the
rerated GVM. Evidence of this inspection m%ecorded in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufacturer’s Letter @9
Rerating based on original vehicle m%&%ﬁ r's letter:

s original manufacturer is required.

In this option a letter issued by the vzg
To be considered acceptable, th acturer's letter must contain at least the following
information: %

Vehicle manufacturer’ @s (i.e. manufacturer’s letter head with contact information).

[ ]

. Makelmodel/variant vehicle.

) Vehicle Identifigation Ndmber (VIN) of the particular vehicle being modified.

. Details of any physical changes required to be performed to the vehicle (along with details
of specific camponents to be fitted).

. Revised G ing.

» Signed a d by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.

S
&
&
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Checklist LS15

Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

CODE LS15

Form No: LS15
(Y=Yes, N=No)

General

1.1

Do you have: q
a copy of the LS11 design certification packag

to certify this modification. Design Cert No. ...

OR

a copy of a letter from the original vehicle manufacturer
Note: If you do not have one of the above you are un :1@-
modify/certify this vehicle.

2

¢

L

1.2

Are you accredited to certify the additional modificatio des
required by the LS11 design certification package or @hicle
manufacturer’s letter? A

1.3

Have all details of the design package of LS11 certification
or a letter from the original vehicle manufact been retained for

future audit?

Chassis N

2.1

properties and cross-members of the design package or to
any specified in the vehicle manufacdturer’s letter?

Does the chassis conform to the detail §}§t5uction, section

2.2

Is the chassis frame structurally s?:'&@\free from deformation,

cracks and rust perforation?  ((//\
Brake system R N

3.1

package of the LS11 design cettification or the specifications in the
vehicle manufacturer’s :

Is the vehicle’s entire brakigﬁgem as specified in the design

and fouling/stretching?

Is the braking systeg %‘@viceable condition, free from leaks, wear

Tyres and Rimg—

axle configUrations, axle loads and inflation pressures for the modified
vehicle as spesified in the LS11 design certification?

Does the tyrzl@ (if fitted) record the correct tyre and rim sizes,

Are tyres.and rims fitted in conformance to the tyre placard?

Eligim\:wlakelmodellvariantlchassis series

Do Yl@éhicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11
design certification?

@{iﬁbility- Vehicle condition

6.1

A\

/¥s the vehicle in satisfactory structural and mechanical condition?

N

SWorkmanship

N
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Make Model

VIN

Chassis Number

(If applicable})

Brief Description of
Modification/s
Vehicle Modified B

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified B  Prin

Signatory’s Employer
(If applicable)

Si nato s Si nature

Year of
Manufacture
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Scott G Notle

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 4:01 PM

To: Peter N Twining

Subject: FW: Covering Message for new LS15 and revised LS11...
Pete,

broadly please.

I might even get Tracey to check as well. @

i will let the accreditation team know what is happening because Christina N 'e'e"a“@

Can you send me a copy of the draft email cover note and codes so | can make a check befc@istributed more

We should be sending it ourselves when the tie comes because it is VS seeki @ack on our draft. | know that is

your opinion as well.
- O
Scott Notley &\9

A/Director (Standards and Accreditation) @9

Transport Reguiation Branch %
Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | D% t of Transport and Main Roads

Regards

Floor 8/ 61 Mary St Brisbane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673-Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 I £3253 4453 I m et relevant

e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au é@
w www.tmr.gld.gov.au @

From: Anant Z Bellary (If E)
Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 3:33 P

To: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining@tmr.qgld.gov.au>; Shane F Lonsdale <Shane.F.Lonsdale@tmr.qld.gov.au>;

Patricia L Bailey <Patricia.L.Bail r.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.No tmr.qld.gov.au>; Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Christina T
Myers <christina.t. myers@ -gov.au>; Adam Shaw <Adam.M.Shaw@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: Covering Messa ew L515 and revised LS11...

Draft covering not@ our key institutional stakeholders...

Dear Stakehc@

The Vehicle dards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modification Code
LS815 to enhance the operation of the previously developed LS11 modification code, particularly in
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
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Whep those modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant L311 design
certification. In addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the
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
the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification code to certity GVM
rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.

Both the new LS15 code and the amended LS11 code are now provided to you @ermal and
feedback. Please provide comments, if any, in the attached feedback sheet whi e emailed to

\__’eh§clestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au . The last date for submitting your com 18’close of
business on Friday 29th June 2018. It is intended to implement these co 1 Aug 2018.

Regards

Peter Twining @
Draft covering note for Accreditation Unit for broadcast to L@
Dear Deann.

Plea§e circulate the following message to all the Appro sons currently holding LS11
nﬁoc%)lﬁcation code. A similar message is being sent y institutional stakeholders including
the businesses holding type approvals. ;g\

oped a new Light Vehicle Modification Code
eloped 1.S11 modification code, particularly in

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recent
LS15 to enhance the operation of the previ
the remote and regional areas of Queensla

proved Persons to certify physical modifications

leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle s (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less)
when those modifications conform specifications contained in the relevant L311 design

certification. In addition to the r ents in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the

The attached LS15 modification code allow

process specified in the design de in the relevant LS11 design certification issued to the
vehicle of same make/model/varignt/chassis series.

The LS11 modification cade has been amended to enable it to provide design certification. Some
other changes are also o provide greater clarity about the intent of the L311 code. Note that
the LS11 code can conti be used as a combined design and modification code to certify GVM

rerating on its own, @ using the new LS15 code.
de an

d the amended LS11 code are now provided to you for your perusal and
de comments, if any, in the attached feedback sheet which can be emailed to
mr. 1d. ov.au . The last date for submitting your comments is close of
ogth June 2018. It is intended to implement these codes from 1 Aug 2018.

Both the new LS1
feedback. Pleas
vehiclestand
business onFri

Regards\

Peter Twining

Regards
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Anant Bellary

Principal Engineer (Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brishane Qld 4000

P: (07) 3066 3468
E: anant.z.bellary@tmr.qld.qov.au
W: www.tmr.gld.qov.au
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Scott G Notle

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 8:14 AM

To: Nigel G Ellis

Subject: FW: New LS15 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment
Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx; Form for Feedback on

Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; LS11 Code Jun 2018 Finat Consultation
Draft.docx; LS15 Code Jun 2018 Final Consultation Draft.docx; 0-4-6 Certificate pdf

Fyi Nige.
We have released our draft £S15 and draft amended LS11 to industry today.

Note that the process allows for an engineer to design a modification under the LSZHand then an AP with LS15 to
install the modification. This will mean ARB for instance can manage their modificatiéns without have to have an
engineer present to certify.

Note also that we have removed the optien to upgrade the GCM and towihg capacity based on SSM approval in our
drafts. Industry have 4 weeks to provide feedback. Rather than engage in disctssions about the issue, | have
indicated to Pete that he shouwld simply ask for any feedback in writing

DIRDC recently released a 0-4-6 Certificate which, amongst other things, states GCM and towing capacity cannot be
increased beyond the original manufacturers ratings. The Certificate-is’attached in case you want to have a look.
not clear what consultation was undertaken before the releasé.of the document.

This has caused a bit of angst. DIRD are fielding calls andwe are also receiving some flack.

Anant is currently liaising with DIRD to get clarificaticinandwe intend to share any advice provided with our QLD
SSM holders {who are predominantly our Type appravabhtiolders. Lovells appear to be the main company affected. If
you recall, we wrote to Lovell's solicitors very eafly.in the year to confirm our stance which was that GCM could not
be upgraded under LS11. Whilst we got no respoiise/at the time, Lovells have continued to provide towing capacity
increases for both new and in-service vehiclgs and the information coming from DIRDC is a little ambiguous as to
their SSM approval and what they are approvedhto do.

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 3 s.13 - Prejudice flow of information

| will keep you posted but it will no¥/surprise to see the issue escatate.

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 3 s.13 - Prejudice flow of information

| Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 3 s.13 - Prejudice flow of information

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director (Standerdsarnd Accreditation)

Transport Regulation-Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9/ 61 Mary St Brisbane Qld 4600 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 | f 3253 4453 | m Notrelevant

e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov au

w www.tmr.qld.gov.au
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From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 7:56 AM

To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: New LS15 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment

Kind regards

Peter Twining

Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads \

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley QId 4006 @
P: (07) 30666537

E: peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au
%DRWE Z
TO SAVE
LIVES

W www.tmr.gld.gov.au

From: Peter N Twining o\©
Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 6:42 AM %

To: 'Vehicle Standards' <vehicIestandards@tmr.qld.gov.a@
Subject: New L$15 and amended L511 Modification C% comment

Dear Stakeholders §

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR ha tly developed a new Light Vehicle Madification Code LS15 to be
incorporated into the Queensland C ractice (QCoP) for Light Vehicle Modifications. The purpose of
the new code is to enhance the opé&ration of the previously developed LS11 modification code, particularly
in the remote and regional area@u ensland.

The attached LS515 modificdtion dode allows Approved Persans to certify physical modifications leading to
the rerating of Gross Vehic s (GVM) of an in-service light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less) when those
modifications confor the specifications contained in the relevant L511 design certification. In addition to
the requirements in ('( , the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the design package
in the relevant LS11 d certification issued to the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modifixa code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification. Some other
changes hav een made to LS11 code to provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11 code.
Note that t 1 code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification code to certify
GVM re% its own, without using the new L515 code.

B ?@v £515 code and the amended LS11 code are attached for your perusal and feedback. Please
provi ny comments, via email to vehiclestandards@tmr.qgld.gov.au by the close of business on Friday,
20™ July 2018. You may use the attached template form to provide your feedback. It is proposed to
implement these codes 3 September 2018.

The qualifications for the revised LS11 code will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification No 1}. For the new
LS15 code the required qualification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the business rules. The latter is a trade
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based qualification which is considered appropriate for the new LS15 code. | have attached the following
link to the qualification table for your convenience:

htt 5: www.tmr. Id. ov.au business-indust  Accreditations A roved-Person-Scheme Indust -
ex erience-and- ualifications ualifications# ualificationtable

Kind regards

Peter Twining

Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Fioor 9| 61 Mary Sireet | Brisbane Qld 4000 @
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006 @

P: (07) 30666537

E: peter.n.twining@tmr.ald.gov.au
W www.imr.qld.gov.au

%‘DRNE
TO SAVE
LIVES
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Issued bythe

»

Administrator of Vehicle Standards ;@ Ausiralian Government

Depariment of Infrastructure, Regional Development and Cliles
Inconsultation with the

AustralianMotorVehicle Certification Board

comprising Commonwealth, State and Territory representatives

CIRCULAR 0-4-6 AN

~N
CERTIFICATION OF VEHICLES WHICH HAVE UNDERGONE A SECOND-S@EOF-
MANUFACTURE @
1, INTRODUCTION
i1 This Circular sets out the requirements for Manufacturers making@ﬁation for
Identification Plate Approval (IPA) for additions to, or modifications ung: on a New Vehicle

that already has affixed a completed vehicle Identification Plate. S ements are identified as
“Second-Stage-of-Manufacture” (SSM) IPA.

1.2 A further SSM arrangement can also apply to completed S5 icles. (For example, a
completed cab-chassis may be modified to be dual-steer und ,.;.\ approval, and then that
completed dual-steer cab-chassis vehicle may then have its *‘\& upgraded under a further SSM

approval). o

2. APPLICABILITY @
s

2.1 SSM arrangements only apply to New% as defined in the Motor Vehicle Standards Act
1989, and do not apply to vehicles that have ady been used in transport.

2.2 SSM arrangements apply to vehic /model types seeking IPA under the Full Volume
arrangements, and also the concessionakygvidence Low Volume arrangements.

2.3 Vehicles under the SSM IPA L ume arrangements are not subject to an eligibility ruling
under the “Specialist and Enthusi tle Scheme (SEVS) Eligibility” as per Circular 0-2-12.

2.4 Arrangements for S5 pply to vehicles that are built on, or based on vehicle sub-
assemblies/chassis that have pproved under Sub-Assembly Registration Number (SARN)
arrangements as set outiin Circuiar 0-4-23.

2.5  Arrangements f do not apply to vehicles without an Identification Plate, such as a
vehicle imported from eas which has yet to be brought up to the National Standards. Such
vehicles are subjectdo er the “Motor Vehicle Compliance Plate Approval” arrangements as per
Circular 0-3-4, or she rtification of Motor Vehicles Produced in Low Volume” requirements as per

Circular 0—2—1.

2.6 Arrarigem ts for SSM do not need to be used where the proposed modification can be done
under th ons of Vehicle Standards Bulletin (VSB) 6. However, where the proposed
modif&a@re not within the scope of VSB6, SSM must be used.

Issue 4

June 2018
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Issued wythe
Administrator of Vehicle Standards ,ﬁ?@ Australian Government

=" Department of Infrastructure, Reglonal Development and Cities
In consuitation with the

AustralianMotorVehicle Certification Board

comprising Commonwealth, State and Territory representatives

3. APPLICATION FOR IDENTIFICATION PLATE APPROVAL

3.1 Applications for SSM IPA will only be accepted from a legal entity {Company orindividual, and
not a business or trading name) that must first register as a Licensee on the Road Vehicle
Certification System {RVCS), and have both the Production Facility and Design Facllity simiarly
registered on RVCS thus being subject to “Conformity of Production” arrangerents as per Circular 0-
13-1.

3.2 Make and Model designation shall generally be in accordance withCircular 0-3-3 “Motor
Vehicle Make and Model Designation”.

3.2.1 The “Make-Model” designation must be unique frem all other Identification Plate
Approvals.

3.2.2 The “Make” of the SSM should comprise a prefix, vepresenting the second-stage
manufacturer, followed by the “Make” of the-coinpleted first-stage vehicle. For
example:-

e A SSM maodified “ALPHA”, might bedesignated "ABC ALPHA",

3.2.3 The “Model” of the SSM should in¢hiderqualification as to the SSM vehicle type. For
example:-

* An SSM modified “ALPHABeta”, might be designated “ABC ALPHA Beta
Ambulance”, or “ABC AtPH/A Beta Motorhome” as appropriate.

3.3 The SSM IPA arrangements are available to new vehicles subject to addition and/or
modification, except where the natyre-of the addition and/or modification does not impact on the
ADR certification of the first-stage vehigle, or when the impact is considered to be minor, and readily
examined by the State/Territory(fegistration authorities. Examples of additions/modifications
considered to be of State/Té&rritory responsibility are:-

e Where the originalrearward facing lamp units of a new chassis-cab are relocated with
the adding of.an otherwise non-ADR impacting goods carrying body.

*  Where the/oyiginal external rear vision mirrors of a new chassis-cab are relocated to
accommadate/added goods carrying bodies of variable width.

*»  Whereuadditional Side-Marker lamps are added to a commercial vehicle chassis-cab.

¢  Non<ADR-relevant body added to a commercial vehicle chassis-cab.

e Afregvy-goods vehicle wheelbase extension.

NOTE: Vebicle Standards Bulletin VSB.6, Heavy Vehicle Modifications, applies to modifications to
heavy vehicles with a GVM greater than 4.5 tonnes, or heavy trailers with an ATM greater
than 4.5 tonnes.

Page 2 of &
Issue 4

June 2018

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -78 of 206



Issued bythe
Administrator of Vehicle Standards ,?&; Australian Government

Department of Infrastructure, Regional Development and Chtles
Inconsultation with the

Australian MotorVehicle Certification Board

comprising Commonwealth, State and Territory representatives

3.4  Typical examples of modified new vehicles that should access these SSM arrang&%ﬁts are: -
n a

e Llight and Medium Goods vehicles subject to a Gross Vehicle Mass upgraﬁx
reduction in Lightly Laden Test Mass.

Passenger vehicle cut and stretched to become a Limousine or HeariQ

Vehicle subject to an engine/fuel type replacement or modificatio
Ambulance, Motorhome or Fire Tender body added to a chassis-¢

Vehicle modified to carry wheel-chair passengers or additional seats.

¢ Vehicles modified from one ADR vehicle category to another \@ category.

35 There are specific requirements for campervans and motor @cluding when certified
under S5M arrangements. These requirements are set out in Circula -12 “Certification of
Campervans and Motorhomes”.

4. AUSTRALIAN DESIGN RULE EVIDENCE

4.1 Applications for SSM IPA must include an Applicatio mpliance Approval (Motor

Vehicle) form, a Road Vehicle Descriptor, relevant Selecti <)F|eet submissions (SF forms) and

resultant ADR evidence via RVCS, providing evidence of €ompliance with all ADRs applicable to the
. . XS O .

completed added to, or modified vehicle, and not soléiy:evidence applicable to the second-stage

work.

4.1.1 “Compliance Demonstrated U@V(S) (MV)” forms may be submitted to carry
over evidence aiready provided withi irst-stage completed vehicle Approval, if that

evidence remains unaltered by the second-stage manufacture’s additions and/or
modifications. Certification respo@n y for any carry-over ADR evidence remains with the
holder of the first-stage IPA.

4.1.2 In submitting a “Com ce Demonstrated Using SARN(s}{MV}” form, the SSM makes

a declaration that the AD nce to be carried over has been subject to appropriate
examination attestin t mains unaffected by the second-stage manufacture.
4.1.3 Where the se age manufacture has an indirect effect on the first-stage

evidence, but th cond-stage manufacturer can demonstrate that the tests conducted by
the first-stage magufacturer would also cover the second-stage work satisfactorily, then for

§

the purposes o lng SSM IPA this ADR evidence can also be carried over.

4.2 Any additions.and/or modifications to the original vehicle must be supported by evidence of
ADR compIiance,&p ropriate, and in the form provided by: -

¢ Ful e arrangements as per Circular 0-3-4 “Motor Vehicle Compliance Plate
roval”, or
o@er Circular 0-2-1 “Certification of Motor Vehicles Produced in Low Volume”.

N
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43 Application for SSM IPA can only be based on one first-stage IPA, with a separate $SM
application required for each different first-stage vehicle Approval. Accordingly, any-Carfgover
evidence, as per 4.1.1 above, can only reference the one first-stage Approval.

44  ASSM IPA can include multiple vehicle variants and multiple engines and-Gther options
included in the SSM RVD, as supported by the evidence of ADR compliance providgd.

4.5  Applications for SSM IPA are expected to demonstrate compliance with-ail ADRs applicable as
of the date of issue of the SSM IPA. However if a completed first-stage vénicle IPA does not yet
include a new ADR introduced under transitional implementation arrangements, then the SSM may
submit an SE blank-form, and make application for an exemption frotthat ADR by referencing this
Circular 0-4-6 clause 4.5. If exemptions are granted, then the SE blank-form will be noted as “Not
Applicable”, and details of the exemption will be included in Schedule/5 of the Approval. Where
such exemptions are provided the applicability date of the ADR will be noted, and the Approval
issued will be restricted to the due date of that ADR. When{theexempted evidence is subsequently
provided, the Approval will be reissued without this date restriction.

4.6 Circular 79/00-1-1 “Second-Stage-of-ManufactureEmissions Evidence where there is an
increase in GVM” details the arrangements that appiy. foremissions ADRs.

5. CHANGE IN VEHICLE CATEGORY

51 Where a SSM IPA application changes-tiie:ADR Vehicle Category from the original completed
first-stage vehicle, then the SSM IPA must comply with all the ADRs applicable to the completed SSM
Vehicle Category, as at the date of the issue ofjthe SSM IPA, subject to 4.5 above.

6. ROAD VEHICLE DESCRIPTOR

6.1 Road Vehicle Descriptors (RMDs)are required for all SSM IPAs and should include all variants
and options to be offered. The remarks section should include a brief description of the SSM
additions/modifications, identifying the IPA and variant information of the completed first-stage
vehicle.

7. VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

7.1 The Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) of the SSM vehicle shall be the same as the VIN of
the first-stage vehiclel

8. DATE OF MANUFACTURE

8.1  The Datéf Manufacture of the $SM vehicle shall be the date that it is completed and is in
Australia in a/cordition that will enable it to be made available to the market.
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9. IDENTIFICATION PLATES

9.1 Following issue of an SSM IPA, the second-stage manufacturer will be able t
Stage-of-Manufacture Identification Plate in addition to, and adjacent to the existi ; tage
Identification Plate, as demonstration that the vehicle complies with the conditionsef the SSM IPA.

9.2 SSM Identification Plates must be as per Circular 0-3-2. All 55M Identi f'\ Plates will be
made available from a Contractor authorised to manufacture and supply ldentification Plates, unless
the second-stage manufacturer is authorised by the Administrator to sup heir own Identification
Plates. The SSM Identification Plate will include both VIN and Date of M ture as per 7.1 and 8.1

above respectively. @
9.3  Thereis a prescribed fee payable to the Commonwealth @ SM Identification Plate that

is affixed to a vehicle. This fee is included within the supply of Identification Plates from the
Contractor 9.2 above. Where the Administrator has authorised-the SSM to supply their own
e
ion P

Identification Plates the prescribed fee is to be paid directly ommonwealth. As at 1
November 2003 the prescribed fee is $7.50 for each identi late to be affixed to a SSM

vehicle. ©
10.  ARRANGEMENTS FOR SSM LIGHT vsmcuzs% AVE BEEN SUBJECT TO A GROSS
VEHICLE MASS (GVM) UPGRADE (@,

N

10.1  Where a light vehicle is fitted with or is.ré -- o be fitted with Electronic Stability Control
(ESC) system and a full volume SSM IPA is bei ght, a GVM upgrade SSM IPA holder will be
permitted to use ESC test reports owned b@ GVM upgrade SSM IPA holders for the same make
and model, provided the test covers the@ﬁts to be supplied. Coverage of variants is to be
demonstrated using a ‘worst case’ (x* t and selection of fleet forms, Use of any test report
must also be permitted by the test repart owner.

10.2 Low volume GVM upgrad - ehicles with suspension lifts less than or equal to 50mm will
not require testing of the ESC/syste'm. For suspension lifts exceeding 50mm, full ESC testing will be
required.

10.3  For SSM 1PAs issu nder the low volume scheme, numbers per Licensee for GVM upgrade

are capped at 300 vehi@r annum per vehicle category and 100 vehicles per annum per SSM IPA,

10.4 0-4-5 certific issions will not be required on low volume GVM upgrades where GVM
upgrade is the on ification being undertaken under an SSM IPA.

10.5 Existin lume SSM IPA holders have the choice of converting their full volume S5M IPAs
to low volume IPAs. No application processing fees will apply to these SSM IPA conversions.
10.6 Th ing capacity of a light vehicle expressed as Gross Combination Mass (GCM) rating or

Rated&n apacity or Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the value set by the
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first stage manufacturer. Second stage manufacturers are not permitted to increase the\towing
capacity as part of an SSM IPA that results in GVM upgrade. \
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

A light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and y mounted on
it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as monoco ruction, are not
eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from the orig q ?nufacturer’s GWM
rating is not eligible for re-rating under this code.

Re-rating of GVM under L.S11 code is permissible only on the following type of Iig@ 4
b

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First St Q:’ tification Plate Approval
(IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) Approval %NS Approval is not deemed
as the original vehicle manufacturer.

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specified the GVM rating, the maximum laden
mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the -’l‘%g of showing compliance with the
Australian Design Rules (ADRs) is to be taken as the original ting. This information must be obtained
from a reliable and traceable source.

Q

1.1 What is permitted %
Modifications that may be certified under I@ﬂ\\g@ﬁe are:

. Up to 10% increase in the GVM rati iven by the original vehicle manufacturer.
. Exceptions to the limit of 10% a following cases:
o GVM rating of an in-se icle that is of the same make/model/variant/chassis
series as a vehicle ha@ SSM approval for GVM re-rating AND is modified in

accordance with th approval AND the SSM approval holder has given explicit
permission for the approval to be used as the basis for GVM re-rating.
o Increase in GVM e an additional axle has been installed.

o Alteration of ave s GVM rating to match the vehicle manufacturer’s aiternative
rating for a particular variant of that make/model.

1.2  What is not petmitted

Modifications that @mt be certified under LS11 code are:
. Modificatitfnssther than those described in Section 1.1 above.
o Reduc% GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer’s optional GVM for that

mak t and also in case of GVM reductions require as a result of conversion to heavy
mot es.
. a of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by way of
pproval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another jurisdictional approval).
. re-rating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the SSM
roval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM approval as the
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

Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle manufacturer’'s
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
must remain the same as those provided by the original vehicle manufactuter.

¢ When the vehicle is loaded to the gross vehicle mass according to LS11 rating, the safe trailer
mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total combination mass-does not exceed the
rating or the limit specified by the original vehicle manufacturer.

2.0 General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. The-cfitical components including the
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must be assessed individually
to ensure that they can safely support the loads resulting from the-re-rated GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements contained i stib-section 2 General Requirements of
the National Code of Practice (NCOP) - Light vehicle modifications (VSB14).

Increased GVM has the potential to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in
some cases. It is the responsibility of the vehicle opérator and the Approved Person to consider any
effect on the warranty that LS11 modification may/have,“Any effect this modification may have on the

product warranty provided by the original vehigle manufacturer is outside the scope of this code. The
certifying officer must clarify this point to the smotifier and the vehicle operator.

2.1 Compliance with applicable vehiclestandards
Modified vehicles must continue to'comply with the ADRs that apply to them.

if different ADRs apply due to the modified vehicles, they must comply to those ADRs that are
relevant to them.

Modified vehicles must also jcomply with the applicable in-service requirements of Transport
Operations (Road Use-Msfiagement—Vehicle Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the
Regulation).

Modified pre-ADRvehicles must continue to comply with the Regulation.

Outlined in Table LS11 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the modifications and
may require-re-certification, testing and/or data to show compliance of the modified vehicle.

This is-notian/exhaustive list and compliance to other ADRs may also be affected.
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Table LS11 List of items and likely affected ADRs
REQUIREMENTS
ADR 42/..

ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Transport  Operations  (Road ﬁ% S)

Management—Vehicle Standards

Safety) Regulation 2010 :

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle’s category and d manufacture. It is the
responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the z(% iate ADRs applicable to
the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate icle’s GVM.

GVM re-rating based on Original Vehicle Man rer's Option

)

The change to the vehicle's GVM must replicate tl'ge m@. vehicle manufacture’s optional GVM for
that particular make, model and variant. All compon icluding suspension, transmission, engine,
brakes, tyre and rims must be fitted same as those%ﬁ@ ed for that particular vehicle's aiternate rated

variant. @9

2.3 GVM re-rating based on SSM AN

The re-rated GVM must be the sam @e SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres a@xs must be fitted and be identical to those specified on the

SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical ation replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified un M approval must also be met. These requirements may include,
but are not limited to, the followjng:

. The vehicle’s first Identification Plate Approval number must be identical to that mentioned

in the SSM A l.

. If the SS al limits the number of new vehicles to be supplied under it each year,
(for exanible, Low Volume 25 or 100 or 300 vehicles per annum), the certifying AP must
check the SSM approval holder to ensure that the total number of in-service vehicles
mo r annum under the combination of the particular SSM approval and this code

da‘hot-exceed the limit specified for that low volume SSM approval.

. @ re-rating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code must not be certified if the SSM
roval is no longer current and has been suspended or cancelled.

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

® Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SSM approval holder
must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of G¥\i-undler this code.

2.4 GVM re-rating by installation of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axlg) the vehicle’'s GVM
rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the original vehicie manufacturer's GVM
rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with the adjac¢grit axle in the group, then the
10% limit may be exceeded. The fitment of an additional axle is-permitted in Queensland under
the LB2 modification code in conjunction with the LS11 cade~Additional supporting evidence
including brake testing and chassis strength analysis must be provided.

2.5 GVM re-rating outside of Manufacturer’'s Opticn

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle evenjifitis not an option by the vehicle manufacturer,
provided the change is no more than 10% above the-oFiginal vehicle manufacturer's GVM rating.
While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change possibleis limited by various factors including chassis,
drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When re-rating GVM, the chassis, suspengion, axles and drive train components must be used within the
original manufacturer's rated capacities-¥Where a component manufacturer has published information
stating that reduced ratings apply for safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

Typical modifications involved in re-rating a vehicle’s GVM include:
- single axle to tandem axle configuration
- replacement engine, transmission, axle(s), suspension components, reinforced chassis
frame and upgraded braking system or any combination of these

The following specificrequirements must be met.
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

When modifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axle(s) with hi rating are
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
recommendations, if any, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer f@ehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certifica is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmissio o the modified vehicle must
be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the referen

3.3 Axle Ratings
When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional load chd on axles. Axle loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle @ti@nless reinforced replacement axles are

fitted. y\\y

Where certification is by comparison with @ﬁufacturer‘s reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the m d% icle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle. \

If a component manufacturer has publi instructions to reduce the rating of a component for
safety reasons, the reduced rating ply.

3.4 Tail Shaft @

Changes associated wit GVM may place additional load on vehicle’s tail shaft. For

example:

- changes to vehicle‘sride’ height which may alter the tail shaft and pinion angles;

- alterations to daxvehicle’s wheelbase may result in change in tail shaft length;

- changes to v« nd/or transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on the tail
shaft. @’

The vehicle's aft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles re-rated GVM.

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

A vehicle's braking performance is directly affected by changes to its GVM. Therefore, the vehicle's
braking system must be assessed to determine if the performance cf-thetoriginal system is
adequate for the re-rated GVM or if it requires to be reinforced.

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehiciesmanufacturer to the original
or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be certified under the LS section of VSB14.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with tiveretuirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24{... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load ¢arrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is loaded to the re-rated GVYM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyregTitted must be at least equal to the re-rated GVM.
The same applies to the load carrying capacities, of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
(and rims) on each axle must be adequate tt-support the potential maximum mass on that axle.

If re-rated GVM and axle masses require different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre
placard must be fitted to indicate the“revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated
GVM. The revised tyre size and(Toad rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the
owner’s handbook.

If different tyres & rims/are specified, their size must be no more than necessary to support the
increased axle masses.\The sffect of alternate tyres on speedometer/odometer accuracy must be
considered. It must be ensured that, with the alternate tyres, vehicle's compliance to ESC requirements
is not affected.

4.0 Owner’'s Han@begk and Load Capacity Label

The vehicle operatermust be adequately informed of the changes.
41 Owhée’s Handbook

To informy the vehicle operator about the vehicle’s towing capacity and tyre & rim requirements, the
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

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see §
limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 of this yde

6.0

4.2 Load Capacity Label
Certain information must also be displayed on the Load Capacity Label as discussed below.

The lLoad Capacity Label must follow the below format. It must be made of durable material and letter
size and contrast should be similar to the tyre placard. Label must be fitted to the vehicle, as close

as practicable, to the vehicle’s tyre placard.
Load Capacity Label \ §>

X
Ratings Item Rating Information..
SSM Approval # (if applicable) RS
Re-rated GVM N—/ kg
Maximum Braked Towing Mass at re-rated GVM* kg |
Maximum Front Axle Mass Permitted (VN kg |
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted A = kg
*Warning: The maximum braked towing mass depends on @éd GVM and
trailer ball weight. For further information regarding towing capacities please
refer to the vehicles handbook.

Limitations §
o

% 1.2 of this code. In addition, the following

5.1 Electronic Stability Control %

Re-rated GVM may have direct eﬁec@ performance of Electronic Stability Control (ESC)
system. Hence ESC system must be idated so it performs satisfactorily at the re-rated GVM.
However such revalidation is not @ed where a vehicle’s GVM is being re-rated to the

manufacture’s alternative variant ding to SSM approval, such that the system’s compliance
has been demonstrated using other agreed methods.

O

5.2 Effect on towing(capacity

The towing capaci a light vehicle expressed as GCM rating or Rated Towing Capacity or
Maximum Braked ing Mass rating must not exceed the value set by the original vehicle
manufacturer. The@ of code does not include changes to vehicle's towing capacity. If towing
capacity is not sgecified by the original vehicle manufacturer, the limits mentioned in the Safe Towing
Guide publish R apply.

Iif the origir@ cle manufacturer has specified towing capacity in some form, the gross combination
mass f; adding that towing capacity and the original GVM rating must not be exceeded.
Henc g'%ﬂthe GVM is re-rated, the actual towed mass must be proportionately reduced according
to th@&d mass of the towing vehicle.

Additional Maodifications and Changes to Vehicle Category

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
same make/model/variant/chassis series and generate the necessary evidence to—show that the
requirements of the LS11 design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used to provide design certification, the AP providing the design certification, may not
inspect the modified vehicle(s) and is not required to fit LS11 modification platé on the vehicle(s). Also the
checklist completed as part of the LS11 design certification will not refer to any particular VIN.

The outputs of a design certification under LS11 code are (a) a comprehénhsive design package (b) a
modification certificate and (c) a completed checklist. All of these outputs must be preserved as records of
the LS11 design certification and must be made available, on request, for-audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1 Design Package

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly-and comprehensively address the following
four requirements:

7.1.1 Scope of what is eligible

Design package must clearly identify which/make/model/variant/chassis series it applies to. If
its applicability is restricted to specificbuild years that also must be mentioned.

Since the modification and the«e-rating of GVM is being done on in-service vehicles, the
condition of the vehicle is importantto decide which vehicle can be safely modified and re-
rated. The design package must)include instructions about what is to be inspected and the
acceptance criteria. Conditionof the shock absorbers, suspension, frame, fow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect. Absence of cracks, deformations, leaks and structural damage
due to overloading, accidents or rust is also critical.

The design package must include a checklist template for use by the AP certifying the physical
modification. The checKlist will be completed by the AP who certifies the physical modification
to confirm that the vehicle was inspected and was found in sound condition before commencing
the modificaticn:

7.1.2 Evidenze package

Thedesign package must include all the test reports and engineering calculations that validate
fhe'teécrating, when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from reputed test laboratories,
kave unigue identification number and be signed and dated. Al test reports must make
uhambiguous reference to the specific make/modelfvariants of the vehicle or component to
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

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification \ %)

The design package must include comprehensive work instructio w to modify the
vehicle, what parts to be used, the sequence of actions to be pe precautions to be
taken and what process controls to be applied.

The work instructions must include details of any (non-destmc@sting and inspections to
be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are %

The work instructions must be easy to understand, unambi and should include sufficient

pictorials including photos and graphics.

The work instructions must include the contact de f the LS11 certifying AP if enquiries
arise needing further clarification during the physicalmodification and/or its certification.

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier and th{@l!: r

The design package must include templa klist(s) to be completed by the vehicle modifier
and the certifier of the physical o% n. These may be separate or one combined
checklist. These checklists, when ¢ ted, are evidence that the modifier and the certifier of
the physical modification have understood and followed the work instructions and the intent of
the design package has been e LS11 AP may ask for copies of completed checklists
from the modifier and the % of physical modification as part of his/her own quality
assurance or risk management practice. The completed checklist must also be retained by the
AP who certifies the ph@ odification.

Note that this checklist))is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification is, requi o complete as part his/her certification of the modification under the

relevant code.\
7.2 Certifica @iification

The LS11 st issue a certificate of modification to his client for the design certification provided.
This is similarto any other certificate of modification, except that the certificate may not make
referen ny specific modification plate number or VIN. Instead, it must refer to the basis of the
desi ification (for example, SSM approval number) and the unique identification number of the
desi ckage provided.

7.3 Modification Checklist

£S11 AP must complete the modification checklist provided at the end of this code and must retain it
as part of his/her records.
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Checklist LS11

Gross Vehicle Mass Increase
CODE LS11

Form No: LS11
(Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not Applicable)

1 Suspension \
1.1 | Is the vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM? -/E@ N
2 Chassis
A
2.1 | Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM? \k*j-- Y |N
3 Axles @
3.1 | Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM'@ -~ |Y |N
4 Engine/Transmission
4.1 | Is the engineftransmission suitable for the incr, d GVM? -— |Y |N
5 | Braking System @
54 | Has a brake test been carried out o 1 the modified vehicle to
’ ensure compliance with ADR 31/ 5/.., whichever is
applicable? NA|Y [N
(applicable in all cases apari.fro pgrading to an SSM
approval or original vehicle manu rer's optional GVM)
52 |lIsth i i i ? |-
s the vehicles brake syster@g e for the increased GVM Y |N
T
6 Tyres and Rims @»
61 |Doesthe Modiﬁcatio:@%com the correct tyre and rim sizes | Y N
' and load ratings for th Vodiﬁed vehicle?
6.2 If a revised tyre piacard is required, has it been fitted to the | Yy |IN
2| vehicle and a copy aitached to this checklist?
Do the tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and
6.3 — |Y |N
the tyre placard?
6.4 Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the — |y IN
) vehicle’ d GVM and the potential axle masses?
©
7 Elecﬁfe&@ability Control
Has the vehicles ESC system been tested to confirm that the
7.1 %gw continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's | NFA LY | N
ifications?
</
8 %g){d Capacity Label
RN
@% >Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle? ___ 'Y [N
8? Has the vehicle's handbook been amended and a copy of the v |IN
] relevant modified content attached to this checklist? —
9 Manufacturer’'s Optional GVM

Queensland Code of

Practice — Vehicle Madifications, Riantp60288 8#1ain Raad¥d-af 206 June 2018
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9.1 Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
' same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle NA|Y | N
manufacturer?
9.2 Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake,
) engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc) NAlY | N
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's alternative
specification?
10 | Second Stage of Manufacturer GVM %
10.1 | Has the SSM approval holder provided written approval to Q?
' use that SSM design and a copy of the same attached to this | N/
checklist? {& N
10.2 | i certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM ( '@ N
' Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained?
103 Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM approval? P NALY |N
10.4 | Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake ) NALY | N
suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the SSM ,s;gn’?
1" Fitment of an additional axle Q\J
114 | If the vehicles GVM has been increase more than 10%’is the NALY TN
"~ | additional axle load sharing? N
12 o
Only if LS11 code is used to provide D@' ertification
vod
121 | 's @ comprehensive design package @\dﬁ — |y InN
120 | Does the design package have a un@@adenhﬂcatlon ey IN
number?
123 | Does the design package cleaﬂ%f@nbe which ey IN
"~ | make/model/variant/chassis sériesis eligible for re-rating?
12.4 Does the design package in uidance on what to inspect | vy IN
' to decide if the vehicle is fitfe-receive the re-rated GVM?
195 Does the design package inclide a complete Evidence — |y IN
) Package on which th re-rating is based?
126 Does the design p@nclude comprehensive work
’ instructions includi rk to be done, precautions to be — 1Y |N
taken, control 6 prog¢esses and tests to be conducted?
Does the desi@ gykage include a checklist for the modifier
127 | of the vehicle? — |Y N
128 | Does thtx%bn package include a checklist for the certifier | |, |
) of the m vehicle?
12.9 Does design package address all the requirements of this v |IN
"~ | cod T

Note: If the an@

S

Queensland Code of Practice - Vehicle Modifications, TRaRspdf/868 88amFitestis518 208une 2018

any question is N (No) the design cannot be certified under LS11 code. If N/A
es not already appear in the checklist then it cannot be used.
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Model Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number
(If applicable)

Brief Description of
Meodification/s

Vehicle Modified By

Certificate Number

(If applicable)
Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory’s Employer
(If applicable)

Signatory’s Signature Date

2.0

. Page 12 of 12
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
the re-rating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg o %en those
modifications are carried out in accordance with instructions in the relevant LS11 'q%\go certification.
In addition to the requirements in this code, the AP providing LS15 certificai@ust follow the
instructions in the design package that came with the relevant LS11 design n

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the foliowing types may be certifie LS1 5 code:

® Re-rating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it ac@to the instructions in an LS11
design certification issued for the same/make/model/vatiait/chassis series.

® Re-rating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance-with a letter from the original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS1&@

Light vehicle modifications of the following ty t not be certified under LS15 code:
Modifications other than those cover, Section 1.1 above.

Re-rating of a vehicle which is out@ scope of the relevant LS11 design certification.

Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM ¢ , before modification, is greater than 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM@&%, after modification, will be greater than 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of GVM by compari an alternative make/model of vehicle.

Re-rating of GVM by comp {%)ith another vehicle which has been previously re-rated

using a modification cod
. Re-rating of GVM ba (a-\ assessment of component specifications or component

s only.

* © ¢ & ¢ 9

manufacturer’s specific
. Re-rating of GVM (priorio first registration anywhere in Australia. In such cases seek a
Second Stage of cture (SSM) approval.

2.0 General Require ‘,:n-

21 Typical @cations

Typical physicatmodifications under LS15 may include replacement of axle(s), suspension or
brakingi % with alternative components or reinforced chassis frame which collectively may

S

permit rent rating.

2! @aﬁng without Modifications

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
that the vebhicle is identical to the manufacturer's letter.
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
package that came with the relevant LS11 design certification. Replacgment parts must conform
to the design package.

2.5 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection specified in the design package must becompleted and the evidence of
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
provided in the LS11 design package must be fdilpwed.

The following specific requirements must-be met.
3.1  Tyres and Wheel Rims

The tyres and rims must be selécted to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated. GVM. The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle [ loaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM. The
same applies to the load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
(and rims) on eactygxleszmust be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle.

If rerated GVIKi\retuires different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre placard must be
fitted to indicate the revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated GVM. The revised
tyre size d@ndload rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the owner's handbook.

3.2 Chassis Frame

Thechassis frame of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design package or
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer’s alternate model/variant.

. Page 2 of 6
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

exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle ratings, unless reinforced rep axles are

fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's referen the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identi, ose fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

If a component manufacturer has published instructions to reducztting of a component for

safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.
3.5 Fabrication Q

All work must be performed in accordance with rec@d engineering standards. Cutting,
heating, welding or bending of components sh avoided by choosing unmodified
production components wherever possible. o

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Con,‘E
Before carrying out the modifications a % ation under LS15 code, the details and the in-
service condition of the vehicle must b ed, as specified in the LS11 design package, to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for r@g and its condition is safe and suitable.

Step-1: Confirm that the vehicle m@odel/variantlchassis series and build year is within the
scope of the LS11 design certifi

Step-2: inspect and confirn@ the condition of the vehicle is suitabie for re-rating. The
instructions in the LS11/design package must be followed to ensure that the chassis frame,
suspension, brakes and'se om/are in safe and serviceable condition for re-rating. Evidence of this
inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufactur@%tter

If re-rating is @)n the original vehicle manufacturer’s letter, the manufacturer’s letter must

Ch

contain at lea e following information:
anufacturer’s details (i.e. manufacturer’s letter head with contact information).
e/modelfvariant of the vehicle.
hicle Identification Number (VIN) of the particular vehicle being re-rated.

\Betails of all physical changes required for re-rating (including the details of the specific

upgrade parts to be fitted).
. Re-rated GVM.
a Signature and date by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.
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Checklist LS15
Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

CODE LS15
Form No; LS15
{Y=Yes, N=No)
1 General
1.1 Have you received a copy of and understood:
The LS11 design package with all the instructions to modify, tes&%
re-rate vehicle of this make/model/variant/chassis series? @ Y N
LS11 Design Certification No. .................ooeenin. Date. q ......
OR A letter from the original vehicle manufacturer for re-raiing
Manufacturer’'s Letter Reference @e
Note: If you do not have one of the above, you are o certify this
vehicle. N
12 Are you accredited to cenify the additional mmon codes required Y N
) by the LS11 design certification or the vehicle acturer's letter?
2 Chassis Frame C(\
Does the chassis frame conform to the detaii.construction, section
2.1 h .
properties and cross-members of the design package or the Y N
original vehicle manufacturer’s letter?.
Is the chassis frame structurally séti@\ﬁt ee from deformation, cracks
22 .
and rust perforation? v N
Does it meet the inspection czggy entioned in the LS11 design
package?
Brake system N
Y «%
Is the vehicle's braking system as specified in the LS11 design package or
3.1 o : ) Y N
the original vehicle ma urer's letter?
3.2 Is the braking syst serviceable condition, free from leaks, wear
’ and fouling/stretchi Y N
Does it meet th ection criteria mentioned in the LS11 design
package?
4 Tyres and(&'gy Y N
4.1 Does t odification Plate record the correct tyre and rim sizes and load
' rating modified vehicle? Y N
/AN
4.2 Iif d tyre placard is required, has it been fitted to the vehicle and a v N
atlached to this checklist?
4.3 q \he tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the tyre v |N
%& card?
N4 . . .
4, Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the vehicle’s re-rated Y N
\ GVM and the potential axle masses?
5 Eligihility- Make/model/variant/chassis series
Does the vehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design
51 . Y N
certification?
6 Load Capacity Label
Page 4 of 6
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Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle?

Has the vehicie’s handbook been amended and a copy of the relevant
modified content attached to this checklist?

Workmanship

Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?
Are/ls the checklist(s) required in the LS11 design package compl%el%
Are all the inspections and tests as required in the LS11 design packa

com leted? @
Have you kept all supporting documents you used to certify it
modification and hotos of the modified vehicle for future a ‘.ﬁ

. Page Sof 6
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Model Manufacture

w | | | [ [ ]

Chassis Number
(If applicable)

Brief Description of

S
Modification/s /f\&
N
@

Vehicle Modified By

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified By (Print) A&

Signatory’s Employer @U
(If applicable)

Signatory’s Signature ,~. | Date |
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Scott G Notle

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Monday, 18 June 2018 4:35 PM

To: Peter N Twining

Cc: Anant Z Bellary

Subject: FW: New and amended modification codes

Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx; Form for Feedback on
Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; LS15 Code Jun 2018.docx; LS11\Code Jun
2018.docx

Pete,

The documents are good to do.
Note that | changed the file name on the two Codes and | made some very mingrchanges (to formatting mainly).
That means you should save the two documents attached in this email to whereyer our current documents are kept.

We can schedule the release date as 3 September if you like. They have 5 weeks for feedback which should be
plenty.

Will be interesting to see how certain parts of industry respond.
Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director (Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division [Bepartment of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9/ 61 Mary St Brishane QId 4000 | PO Box 627 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 4082 | £3253 4453 | mNotrelevant

e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qgld.gov.au

w www.tmr.qgld.gov.au

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Monday, 18 June 2018 2/36-Pivi

To: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twinihg@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Scott G Notley <Scott.G/Netley@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Patricia L
Bailey <Patricia.L.Bailey@tmugld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: New and-amended modification codes

The most currentaecsions of the documents are attached.
Ready to gaif you are.
Regards

Anant Bellary
vehicle Standards § Accreditation
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Transport § Malin Roads

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Monday, 18 June 2018 8:03 AM

To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au>

Cc: Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@tmr.gld.gov.au>; Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bella tmr.qid.gov.au>
Subject: New and amended modification codes

Hi Scott

This is already to go just a final check please. @\

Kin

Dear Stakeholders @

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently deveioped a nem@Vehicle Modification Code
LS15 to be incorporated into the Queensland Code of Practice or Light Vehicle
Modifications. The purpose of the new code is to enhanceh ation of the previously
developed LS11 modification code, particularly in the remot regional areas of Queensland.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications
leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass {(GYM in-service light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or
less) when those modifications conform to the speci ions contained in the relevant LS11 design
certification. In addition to the requirements in @de, the LS15 certification must follow the

t

process specified in the design package in thg LS11 design certification issued to the vehicle

of same make/model/variant/chassis serie@

The LS11 modification code has been @to enable it to provide design certification. Some
other changes have also been madé%%’? code to provide greater clarity about the intent of the
£511 code. Nate that the LS11 cod ntinue to be used as a combined design and maodification
code to certify GVM rerating on itQew)); without using the new LS15 code.

Please provide any comm email to vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au by the close of

Both the new LS15 code a@ended LS11 code are attached for your perusal and feedback.
S,

8. You may use the attached template form to provide your

business on Friday, 20"
feedback. It is prop plement these codes sometime between late August and early
September 2018. (E p

The qualifications for the revised LS11 code will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification No 1). For
the new LSlB%he required quaiification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the business rules.
The latter is@z hased qualification which is considered appropriate for the new L515 code. |
have att@ e following link to the gualification table for your convenience:

htt s:%«w.tmr. Id. ov.au business-indust  Accreditations A roved-Person-Scheme Indust -
ex -and- ualifications ualifications# ualificationtable

Y

ds

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roa

Floor 8 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qid 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
(07) 30666537

2
RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -104 of 206



E: peter.n.twining@tmr.gld.gov.au
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Detail

Code Details \%
Title @
GVM Re-rating of light vehicles @

Your Specific Comments @

our Comment @@
O@Q
o
L0
N
5
<

©©

Your General Commen @
N
@
N
&

Please use additional sheets, if required for more feedback.
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Code Details
Title @
GVM Re-rating in accordance LS11 Design @
Your Specific Comments @

Your Comment Q@
Q@Q
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
the re-rating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or @%en those
modifications are carried out in accordance with instructions in the relevant LS11 %bg rtification.
In addition to the requirements in this code, the AP providing LS15 cenifica@ust follow the
instructions in the design package that came with the relevant LS11 design @ n

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certifie LS15 code:

. Re-rating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it accor the instructions in an LS11

design certification issued for the same/make/model/variant/chassis series.
. Re-rating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance_with a letter from the original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS1%c@

Light vehicle modifications of the following typ t not be certified under LS15 code:
Modifications other than those covered Section 1.1 above.

L ]

o Re-rating of a vehicle which is outsi cope of the relevant LS11 design certification.

. Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modification, is greater than 4,500 kg.

® Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM@& , after modification, will be greater than 4,500 kg.

. Re-rating of GVM by compari an alternative make/model of vehicle.

° Re-rating of GVM by compa ith another vehicle which has been previously re-rated
using a modification code

o Re-rating of GVM based assessment of component specifications or component

manufacturer’s specifi 4)5 only.

. Re-rating of GVM/ prior~to first registration anywhere in Australia. in such cases seek a
Second Stage of cture (SSM) approval.

2.0 General Require

2.1 Typical M - ations

Typical ph modifications under LS15 may include replacement of axle(s), suspension or
braking s with alternative components or reinforced chassis frame which collectively may

permit% ent rating.
2 @ating without Modifications

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

Modifications must be carried out according to the work instructions th&at are in the design
package that came with the relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform
to the design package.

2.5 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection specified in the design package must bé campleted and the evidence of
the same must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes compléting the checklist(s) that came
with the LS11 design package.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When certifying the re-rated GVM under LS15, théchassis frame, suspension, axles and drive frain
components must be used within the original vehicte manufacturer's rated capacities. All instructions
provided in the LS11 design package must be faliowed.

The following specific requirements mustbe wiet.
3.1 Tyres and Wheel Rims

The tyres and rims must be sele¢ted-to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle j§iecaded to the re-rated GVM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM. The
same applies to thelead carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
(and rims) on eachaxlermust be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle.

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

The.chassis frame of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design package or
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

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. Axle Io§s must not
fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's referen fa‘ , the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identi‘ ose fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

If a2 component manufacturer has published instructions to reduting of a component for

safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.
3.5 Fabrication Q

All work must be performed in accordance with rec@d engineering standards. Cutting,
heating, welding or bending of components should avoided by choosing unmodified
production components wherever possible. o @

oo

Before carrying out the modifications a d% tion under LS15 code, the details and the in-
service condition of the vehicle must bi cked, as specified in the LS11 design package, to

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Cond

ensure that the vehicle is eligibie for re-r and its condition is safe and suitable.

Step-1: Confirm that the vehicle m odelfvariant/chassis series and build year is within the

scope of the LS11 design cenifig@.

Step-2: Inspect and confir the condition of the vehicle is suitable for re-rating. The
instructions in the LS1 igrn package must be followed to ensure that the chassis frame,
suspension, brakes and re in safe and serviceable condition for re-rating. Evidence of this

inspection must be %je
3.7 Manufactur@%tter

If re-rating is
contain at |

. ‘ anufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer’s letter head with contact information).
. odel/variant of the vehicle.

. @cle Identification Number (VIN) of the particular vehicle being re-rated.

tails of all physical changes required for re-rating (including the details of the specific
upgrade parts {o be fitted).
. Re-rated GVM.
= Signature and date by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.
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
L.S11 Design Certification No. ...............c..c.ooo Date. Q ......
OR A letter from the original vehicle manufacturer for re-raiing
Manufacturer’'s Letter Reference @e
Note: If you do not have one of the above, you are o certify this
vehicle. l
1.2 Are you accredited to certify the additional m%ﬁon codes required Y N
' by the LS11 design certification or the vehicle acturer's letter?
2 Chassis Frame t(\
21 Does the chassis frame conform to the detait.construction, section
' properties and cross-members of the esign package or the Y |N
original vehicle manufacturer’s letter?.
s the chassis frame structurally séfém\g;ﬁ'ee from deformation, cracks
2.2 .
and rust perforation? Yy N
Does it meet the inspection o{vg/] entioned in the LS11 design
package? QU
3 Brake syst N
rake system 4\%
Is the vehicle's braking system as specified in the LS11 design package or
3.1 . : . Y N
the original vehicle ma urer’'s letter?
3.2 Is the braking syst serviceable condition, free from leaks, wear
) and fouling/stretching? y N
Does it meet th ection criteria mentioned in the LS11 design
package?
4 Tyres and@) Y N
4.1 Does t odification Plate record the correct tyre and rim sizes and load
' ratin modified vehicle? Y N
10
4.2 If (se)d tyre placard is required, has it been fitted to the vehicle and a
. i Y N
ﬁ& attached to this checklist?
4.3 @%he tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the tyre v N
card?
RS
4, Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the vehicle’s re-rated Y N
\ GVM and the potential axle masses?
5 Eligibitity- Make/model/variant/chassis series
Does the vehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design
5.1 S Y N
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
Are/ls the checklist(s) required in the LS11 design package compl ed%
Are all the inspections and tests as required in the LS11 design p. %@

com leted? @
Have you kept all supporting documents you used to certify f
modification and hotos of the modified vehicle for future a «@
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Model Manufacture

w | [ | | [ V]

Chassis Number

(if applicable) \%

Brief Description of @ V
Modification/s ﬂ

Vehicle Modified By N
TMR In-Principle Approval
Number = @
Vehicle Certified By (Print) (%)

. V4
Signatory's Employer
(Iif applicable)

| Date I

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

Re-rating of GVM under LS11 code is permissible only on the following type of Iig@ !

it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as monoco' ruction, are not
eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from the origina ,? nufacturer's GVM
rating is not eligible for re-rating under this code.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First St tiﬁcation Plate Approval
(IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) Appro @NS Approval is not deemed
as the original vehicle manufacturer.

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specified the GVM rating, the maximum laden
mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the pose of showing compliance with the
Australian Design Rules (ADRs) is to be taken as the original rating. This information must be obtained
from a reliable and traceable source.

Q

0

1.1 What is permitted

Madifications that may be certified under I@e are:

. Up to 10% increase in the GVM rati iven by the original vehicle manufacturer.
. Exceptions to the limit of 10% a following cases:

o] GVM rating of an in-se icle that is of the same make/model/variant/chassis
series as a vehicle ha SSM approval for GVM re-rating AND is modified in
accordance with th M, approval AND the SSM approval holder has given explicit
permission for the SSMWapproval to be used as the basis for GVM re-rating.

o Increase in GVM e an additional axle has been installed.

o Alteration of s GVM rating to match the vehicle manufacturer's alternative

1.2 Whatis notp itted

. Modificatians-other than those described in Section 1.1 above.

Modifications th?(ht not be certified under LS11 code are:
. Reduction >yGVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer’s optional GVM for that
mak | and also in case of GVM reductions require as a resuit of conversion to heavy

mot €s.
. g of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by way of
pproval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another jurisdictional approval).
. VM re-rating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the SSM
proval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM approval as the

basis.

. GVM re-rating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval (for
example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in the SSM
approval.
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. GVM re-rating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle beyond the
rating for that axle by the criginal vehicle manufacturer.
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
Mass (GCM) rating or maximum braked towing mass (MBTM) of the vehicie-—These ratings
must remain the same as those provided by the original vehicle manufacturer,

* When the vehicle is loaded to the gross vehicle mass according to LS11.@&titg, the safe trailer
mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total combination mass-dogs not exceed the
rating or the limit specified by the original vehicle manufacturer.

2.0 General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. The ctitical components including the
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must be assessed individually
to ensure that they can safely support the loads resulting from the re-rated GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements contained.in sub-section 2 General Requirements of
the National Code of Practice (NCOP) — Light vehicle modifications (VSB14).

Increased GVM has the potential to affect eligibility of warrarity claims with the vehicle manufacturer in
some cases. It is the responsibility of the vehicle operator and the Approved Persen to consider any
effect on the warranty that LS11 modification may/have, Any effect this modification may have on the

product warranty provided by the original vehicle rhanufacturer is outside the scope of this code. The
certifying officer must clarify this point to the Mmadifiep and the vehicle operator.

2.1 Compliance with applicable vehiclegtandards
Modified vehicles must continue to-comply with the ADRs that apply to them.

If different ADRs apply due to the.modified vehicles, they must comply to those ADRs that are
relevant to them.

Modified vehicles must|also) comply with the applicable in-service requirements of Transport
Operations (Road Use Mariagement—Vehicle Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the
Regulation).

Madified pre-ADRveRIcles must continue to comply with the Regulation.

Outlined in Table LS11 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the modifications and
may requirere-certification, testing and/or data to show compliance of the modified vehicle.

This is:notanexhaustive list and compliance to other ADRs may also be affected.

) Page 2 of 12
Queensland Code of Practice  Vehicle Modifications, RTarkpR(@ 2888l e8ads! 5 0§ 206 une 2018



Table LS11 List of items and likely affected ADRs
REQUIREMENTS
ADR 42/..
ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Transport  Operations  (Road
Management—Vehicle Standards

Safety) Regulation 2010 @

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle's category and d@f manufacture. It is the
responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the appropiiate ADRs applicable to
the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate icle)s GVM.
GVM re-rating based on Original Vehicle Man rer’s Option

The change to the vehicle’s GVM must replicate ttz)e o@l vehicle manufacture’s optional GVM for
that particular make, model and variant. All compg ;including suspension, transmission, engine,
brakes, tyre and rims must be fitted same as those sified for that particular vehicle’s alternate rated
variant.

2.3 GVM re-rating based on SSM Ap S/}Ka?

The re-rated GVM must be the sa ge SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres @s must be fitted and be identical to those specified on the

SSM approved vehicle. %

In addition to the physical ification replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified u M approval must also be met. These requirements may include,
but are not limited to, thelfollowing:

. The vehicle’s first |dentification Plate Approval number must be identical to that mentioned

in the SSM % I
. If the SS val limits the number of new vehicles to be supplied under it each year,

(for exa , Low Volume 25 or 100 or 300 vehicles per annum), the certifying AP must
check the SSM approval holder to ensure that the total number of in-service vehicles
mo er annum under the combination of the particular SSM approval and this code

% ceed the limit specified for that low volume SSM approval.

. @ re-rating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code must not be certified if the SSM
roval is no fonger current and has been suspended or cancelled.

° When re-rating GVM in accordance with an SSM approval, the certifying AP must ensure that
the SSM approval holder has provided written permission for use of the SSM design as the
basis.
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A statutory declaration must be obtained from the low volume SSM holder stating that the
number limit has not been exceeded as of that date.

The SSM approval number must be recorded on the modification certificate.

The low volume SSM restrictions must be noted on the modification certificate (for example
vehicle #12 of 300).

Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SSM approval holder
must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of G¥M unrder this code.

2.4 GVM re-rating by installation of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive ax/g) the vehicle’s GVM
rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the original vehicle manufacturer's GVM
rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with the adjacérit axle in the group, then the
10% limit may be exceeded. The fitment of an additional axle ispermitted in Queensland under
the LB2 modification code in conjunction with the LS11 céde—Additional supporting evidence
including brake testing and chassis strength analysis must be provided.

2.5 GVM re-rating outside of Manufacturer’'s Optign

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle evenititis not an option by the vehicle manufacturer,
provided the change is no more than 10% above. the-griginal vehicle manufacturer's GVM rating.
While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change possibi@is limited by various factors including chassis,
drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wbeels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When re-rating GVM, the chassis, susperision, axles and drive train components must be used within the
original manufacturer's rated capacitie¢s. " Where a component manufacturer has published information
stating that reduced ratings apply for-safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

Typical modifications involved/in re-rating a vehicle’s GVM include:
- single axle to tan@em axle configuration
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
carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient th4to support
the re-rated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, VSB6 may be consulted.

3.2 Engine/Transmission

The GVM re-rating assigned must not exceed the engine and smission manufacturer's

recommendations, if any, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer f ehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certifica is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission-fi o the modified vehicle must

be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the referencevehicle.

3.3 Axle Ratings
When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional load chd on axles. Axle loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle rati nless reinforced replacement axles are

fitted. %

Where certification is by comparison with @ufacturefs reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modi icle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

If a component manufacturer has p Qinstmctions to reduce the rating of a component for
safety reasons, the reduced rating m ply.

3.4 Tail Shaft @

Changes associated wit GVM may place additional load on vehicle's tail shaft. For

example:

- changes to vehicle@' height which may alter the tail shaft and pinion angles;

- alterations to @;Ie‘s wheelbase may result in change in tail shaft length;

- changes to e "--1 nd/or transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on the tail
shaft. @'

The vehicle's& aft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicles re-rated GVM.

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

A vehicle's braking performance is directly affected by changes to its GVM. Thérefore, the vehicle's
braking system must be assessed to determine if the performance gf-the original system is
adequate for the re-rated GVM or if it requires to be reinforced.

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehiclemanufacturer to the original
or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is mgodified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be certified under the LS section of VSB14.

3.8 Tyres and Rims

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the-requirements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load ¢arrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is loaded to the re-rated GVYM and the load is distributed in a practical
and uniform way.

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres/fitted must be at least equal to the re-rated GVM.,
The same applies to the load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
(and rims) on each axle must be adequate ia-support the potential maximum mass on that axle.

if re-rated GVM and axle masses yeguire different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre
placard must be fitted to indicate the-revised tyre & rim specifications for the vehicle at the re-rated
GVM. The revised tyre size and(load rating must also appear on the modification plate and in the
owner’s handbook.

If different tyres & rims/are specified, their size must be no more than necessary to support the
increased axle masses.\The cffect of altemnate tyres on speedometer/fodometer accuracy must be
considered. It must be ensured that, with the altemate tyres, vehicle's compliance to ESC requirements
is not affected.

4.0 Owner's Handbogk and Load Capacity Label

The vehicle operator-must be adequately informed of the changes.
4.1 ©Ownérs Handbook

To informythe vehicle operator about the vehicle's towing capacity and tyre & rim requirements, the
vehicle's handbook must be updated. The update must provide specific details of the tyres, rims and
the towing capacity. Of particular importance is any sliding reduction in towing capacity of the vehicle
as it is loaded to its re-rated GVM and/or vertical load on tow ball (ball weight).

If the vehicles handbook is not available, this information must be provided in written form to the
owner of the vehicle,
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

Load Capacity Label \ %>

AN
Ratings Item Rating Information..
SSM Approval # (if applicable) 7 ==\
Re-rated GVM N/ kg
Maximum Braked Towing Mass at re-rated GVM* kg
Maximum Front Axle Mass Permitted (/1) kg |
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted = kg |

trailer ball weight. For further information regarding towing capacities please
refer to the vehicles handbook.

ﬁ
*Warning: The maximum braked towing mass depends or@@éd GVM and

Limitations

5.1 Electronic Stability Control

Re-rated GVM may have direct effect.on performance of Electronic Stability Control (ESC)
system. Hence ESC system must be idated so it performs satisfactorily at the re-rated GVM.
However such revalidation is not ed where a vehicle’s GVM is being re-rated to the
manufacture’s alternative variant ding to SSM approval, such that the system’s compliance
has been demonstrated using ot@eed methods.

5.2 Effect on towing@ty

The towing capacitﬁ\\syk‘:g light vehicle expressed as GCM rating or Rated Towing Capacity or
Maximum Braked Mass rating must not exceed the value set by the original vehicle
manufacturer. The of code does not include changes to vehicle’s towing capacity. If towing
capacity is not sgiecified by the original vehicle manufacturer, the limits mentioned in the Safe Towing

Guide publist& R apply.

If the origir@z le manufacturer has specified towing capacity in some form, the gross combination
mass f adding that towing capacity and the original GVM rating must not be exceeded.
Henc the GVM is re-rated, the actual towed mass must be proportionately reduced according
to the(oaded mass of the towing vehicle.

Additidnal Modifications and Changes to Vehicle Category

If additional modifications are made or the vehicle’'s category has changed due to the GVM re-rating,
certification using the appropriate additional codes must be provided.
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7.0 Use of LS11 code to provide design certification for GVM Re-rating

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM re-rating of a vehicle of a particular
makefmodel/variant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using any of the re-rating
criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited AP holding
a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a series of modified ¥ehicles of that
same make/modelivariant/chassis series and generate the necessary evidence. to—show that the
requirements of the LS11 design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used to provide design certification, the AP providing the dgsign. certification, may not
inspect the modified vehicle(s) and is not required to fit LS11 modification platé(on the vehicle(s). Also the
checklist completed as part of the LS11 design certification will not refer to any particUlar VIN.

The outputs of a design certification under LS11 code are (a) a comprehénsive design package (b) a
modification certificate and (¢) a completed checklist. All of these outputs must be preserved as records of
the LS11 design certification and must be made available, on request; for-audit and enforcement purposes.

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
its applicability is restricted to spedific build years that also must be mentioned.

Since the modification and these-rating of GVM is being done on in-service vehicles, the
condition of the vehicle is importantto decide which vehicle can be safely modified and re-
rated. The design package mustinclude instructions about what is to be inspected and the
acceptance criteria. Conditionof the shock absorbers, suspension, frame, tow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect. Absence of cracks, deformations, leaks and structural damage
due to overloading, acdidents or rust is also critical.

The design package must include a checklist template for use by the AP certifying the physical
modification. The cheeklist will be completed by the AP who certifies the physical modification
to confirm that the vehicle was inspected and was found in sound condition before commencing
the modification:

7.1.2 Exidence package

The/desigh package must include all the test reports and engineering calculations that validate
the vé-rating, when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from reputed test laboratories,
Fave unique identification number and be signed and dated. All test reports must make
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
identifiers) and provide written assurance to the client that the full evidence package wilt be
made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification \ S)
The design package must include comprehensive work instructio to modify the
&

vehicle, what parts to be used, the sequence of actions to be pe ), precautions to be
taken and what process controls to be applied.

The work instructions must include details of any (non-destruct@sting and inspections to
be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are %

The work instructions must be easy to understand, unam@ and should include sufficient

pictorials including photos and graphics.

The work instructions must include the contact de f the LS11 certifying AP if enquiries
arise needing further clarification during the physi odification and/or its certification.

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier and th{@ .D ¢

The design package must include templa klist(s) to be completed by the vehicle modifier
and the certifier of the physical o@ These may be separate or one combined
checklist. These checklists, when c ted, are evidence that the modifier and the certifier of
the physical modification have understood and followed the work instructions and the intent of
the design package has been e LS11 AP may ask for copies of completed checklists
from the modifier and the %of physical modification as part of his/her own quality

assurance or risk manageriient practice. The completed checklist must also be retained by the
AP who certifies the ph)@ odification.

Note that this checklist)is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification is.requi 0 complete as part his/her cerdification of the modification under the

relevant code.\

7.2 Ceﬂifica@iﬁcation

The LS11 t issue a certificate of modification to his client for the design certification provided.
This is sirilarito any other certificate of modification, except that the certificate may not make
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

Page 9 of 12
Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicle Modifications, Ran8H{ 308 aik inddd 22.811208une 2018



Checklist LS11

Gross Vehicle Mass Increase

CODE LS11
Form No: LS11
(Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not Applicable)
1 Suspension \
1.1 | Is the vehicles suspension suitable for the increased GVM? --——\% N
N
2 Chassis //N%
2.1 | Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM? &J— Y N
3 | Axles @
3.1 | Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM'@ -~ |Y |N

4 Engine/Transmission

41 Is the engine/transmission suitable for the incr GVM? - |Y {N

5 Braking System @
o
/..,

&
5 1 Has a brake test been carried out o fb%s dified vehicle to
' ensure compliance with ADR 31/%

whichever is
applicable? NA|Y [N
(applicable in all cases apartcfro pgrading to an SSM
approval or original vehicle manu rer's optional GVM)

5.2 | Is the vehicles brake systen@@e for the increased GVM? | - Y |N
>/
6 Tyres and Rims
6.1 Does the Madificatio ecord the correct tyre and rim sizes | Yy |IN
’ and load ratings for the-modified vehicle?
6.2 if a revised tyre u@ d is required, has it been fitted to the | vy IN
) vehicle and a gopy attached to this checklist?
Do the tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and
6.3 — |Y |N
the tyre placarg
6.4 Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the N VRN
] vehicle’ d GVM and the potential axle masses?
v
7 Eleci}f%%ability Control
7.1 continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's | NJ/A|Y | N

ifications?

Hg\ﬂ%\fehicles ESC system been tested to confirm that the
&

8 %g\\léxad Capacity Label

AN
@% >[s the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle? Y |N

Has the vehicle’'s handbook been amended and a copy of the vy |IN
relevant modified content attached to this checklist? —

9 Manufacturer’s Optional GVM
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9.1 Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
’ same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle NALY | N
manufacturer?
9.2 Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake,
’ engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc) NAaly [N
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's alternative
specification?
10 Second Stage of Manufacturer GVM %
101 | Has the SSM approval holder provided written approval to Qﬁ%
) use that SSM design and a copy of the same attached to this | N/ %
checklist? @%
10.2 If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM ( 'y | N
' Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained?
10.3 | Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM approval’? ﬁ aly |IN
104 Are all components relevant to the GVM re-rating (brake NAlY | N
" | suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the SSM @\
1 Fitment of an additional axle
114 | Ifthe vehicles GVM has been increase more than\m%/us the [waly [N
) additional axle load sharing?
" oo
Only if LS11 code is used to provide Desi ertification
121 | s @ comprehensive design package r ided? |y IN
412 | Does the design package have a u@dentlﬁcatlon — |y In
number?
123 | Does the design package clea‘%smnbe which — |y In
' make/model/variant/chassis sériesJs eligible for re-rating?
12.4 | Does the design package’wwdance onwhattoinspect | |y |y
' to decide if the vehicle is fi ceive the re-rated GVM?
125 | Does the design packa Nricide a complete Evidence |y In
' Package on which th re-rating is based?
126 | Does the design p@ﬁéﬁnclude comprehensive work
' instructions includi rk to be done, precautions to be - |Y |N
{aken, control ﬁr ses and tests to be conducted?
Does the design package include a checklist for the modifier
127 | Sfthe vehjgleM - |Y |N
128 |Does thm package include a checklist for the certifier | [\, |
) of the mgdijfied vehicle?
129 | Does >’ design package address all the requirements of this v |N
' code? o

Note: If the an

&

N

any guestion is N (No) the design cannot be certified under LS11 code. Iif N/A

Queensland Code of Practice Vehicle Modifications, REh4351G5888aiffiRoadd 24.6f20dune 2018
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of

Make Model Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number
(If applicable) \
Brief Description of (($

Maodification/s

—/

Vehicle Modified By /_\\/
Certificate Number %
(If applicable) \@
Vehicle Certified By (Print) \))
Signatory’s Employer @
(If applicable)

-9
Signatory’s Signature %&\ Date

2.0

&
&’
N

@©

>
$
@
RS
&
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Shane F Lonsdale

From: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Monday, 30 April 2018 10:29 AM

To: Anant Z Bellary

Subject: for your review

For your review please before | send the information to the team \

Good morning All

There is a new LS 15 code being Developed and will be allied with the LS11. The purp' is code is to allow the
fitment of equipment required as per a SSM approval remotely. Before the LS15 code \.,.,; used the company
holding the SSM must have an approved LS11 for the make and model of the vehicle. Anant is doing a full review of
the LS11 code as part of this process. @

The time frame will be Anant will have a draft by the 8 May 2018, fora2 w @ml review once the review is
completed | will work with Peter Twining on the completed document getting ityready to do the external review.
This will be sent to all the type approval holders that have a SSM for GVM des.

Any questions please let me know and | will work on getting the answered-for you.
- O

Kind regards, \

Shane Lonsdale %

Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and ds

Floor 9] 61 Mary Street Brisbane 4000 %&9

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006

P: 3066 3469 §

E: vehiclestandards@imr.qgld.gov.au
W: www tmr.qld.gov au ;

S

O

>
&
@
o
&
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Shane F Lonsdale

From: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Monday, 30 April 2018 11:15 AM

To: ‘Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au); Anant Z Bellary; Adam Shaw
Cc: Peter N Twining; Neil L Todd; Peter R Phillips; Patricia L Bailey

Subject: New modification code LS15

Good morn'ng Al \

As you are aware, LS11 is an engineering code. You wil! be pleased to know that VS team-i g on developing a
new trade-based LS 15 code to compliment the operation of LS11, particularly in the r{ @ nd regional areas. To
certify using LS15 code it will be necessary to follow the instructions in an 1511 design appre¥al related to the same
make/model/variant. VS will use this opportunity to review the LS11 code so the n@of the new LS1S code are

addressed and some of the previously identified issues in L$11 are rectified at the time.

An early time table is to have an initial draft of LS15 sometime in the week ing 7 May 2018. We will allow
two weeks for internal review. Then it will go out for consultation with our external stakeholders for approx. four
weeks. Myself, Peter Twining and Anant will be working on this at various

Any questions please let me know and | will work on getting them ansiverad for you.

Kind regards, o @
Shane Lonsdale

Ve icle Standards | Legislation and Standards
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Mai,;i gads

Floor @ | 61 Mary Street Brisbane 4000
PO Box 673 | Forlitude Valley Qid 4006
P: 3066 3469

E; vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au \&9
W www.tmr.gld.gov.au @

©©

>
&
@
o
&
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Shane F Lonsdale

From: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Friday, 18 May 2018 1:36 PM

To: ‘Scott G Notley (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au); Anant Z Bellary; Adam Shaw; Ne'l
L Todd

Cc: Peter N Twining; Peter R Phillips; Patricia L Bailey; Christina T Myers; Tracey L Dreier

Subject: Revised LS11 and the new LS15 codes

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3.docx; L515 Version Mx l.doc

Good afternoon all ©©

Please find a draft of the revised LS11 and the new LS15 codes for the re rating of a lig les GVM. If you have

any comment’s please do them in mark-up and have them back to me by the 25 M?i 2018.

Any questions please let me know and | will try to help.

Kind regards, z
Shane Lonsdale
Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street Brisbane 4000
PQ Box 673 | Fortifude Valley Qld 4006

P: 3066 3469
E: vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au Q

W www.tmr.qld.gov.au &\9

alt. v hed @
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o ificatio slLe °~ to erti o SS ic s s ofa i
e icleto e ' nCe ific tio

Code LS 5

1.0 Scope

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications eading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or le when those
modifications conform to the specifications contaned in the relevant LS11 1 rtification. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the
design package in the relevant LS11 design certification. @

1.1 Certifi tions er ~ ed der LS515 code @

Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under =515 code:

* Rerating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it according t@nstructions in an LS11 design
certification issued for the same/make modellvariantlch@

¢ Rerating of a light vehicle’'s GVM in accordance wi

manufacturer. @

1.2C fificatio s not ermitted under LS15 code;,
Light vehicle modifications of the following types m@be certified under LS15 code:

» Modif cations other than those covered gn@%eﬁon 1.1 above,

¢ Rerating of a vehicle which does notﬁ& or GVM rerating under LS11 code.

» Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of »@befcre modification, is greater than 4500 kg.

¢ Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM (@c , after modification, will be greater than 4500 kg.
t

e Rerating of GVM by compari ith'an alternative make/model of vehicle.

es.

letter from the original vehicle

e Rerating of GVM by compari ith another vehicle which has been previously rerated using
modification code. @

¢ Reratng of GVM @ on assessment of component specificatons or component

manufacturer's éﬁ&ifications only.

¢ Rerating of GV@M to first registration anywhere in Australia. For it, follow the procedures
prescribed f aining a Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

N

nera@e e ts

21Ty i difications

Typic ical modifications involved in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspensio or braking system with alternative components which collectively may permit a different
rating and/or reinforcement chassis frame.

22 eratig itot ificati ns

In some cases rerating of GVM may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter is

Connecting Queensland 13 QGov (13 74 68)
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issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required. Care mu
be taken when comparing, as some properties may not be obvious and evident. In these instance
evidence must be retained to demonstrate that the vehicle is identical to the manufacturer’s letter.

JA ectedA s
Modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) to which it wa
originally constructed and also the ADRs that apply to it after modification. Where there is a conflict,
is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the modificatién.

2.4 orkiInstr ctio sfromt e S11design c a e
Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the(design package of th
relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the design:package.

25 esti gan ns ctio

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package muist be completed and evidence
of it must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing ary thecklist(s) that the design
package requires

3.0 S ecific equirements

.1 Tyres and i s

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres.and rims fitted to an axle or axle group must be at
least equal to the load rating of that axle or axle groGp-orthe load imposed on that axle or axle grou
when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with tiiedoad distributed uniformly and in a practical way
whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distriblted uniformly and practically, must not result in th
load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured to comply Withh ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04, the tyres and rims fitted mu
comply in all respects with the requirements of that ADR at the revised GVM rating.

Where a tyre placard is fitted to a-vehicle, this placard may require to be replaced with a new placard
replicating the manufacturer's-alternative model vehicle or as specified in the LS11 design certification.
The revised tyre size and load ratjng must also appear on the modification plate.

3. C assis

The chassis of the madified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design certification or identical to
the original vehicle manufacturer’'s alternate model/variant.

.3 raes

The complete\braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design certification or identical to the
vehicle manufacturer’'s specifications for the alternate model/variant.

4 Nesapd Sus e sio

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
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3. Fabricatio

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting, heating,
welding or bending of components should be avo'ded by choosing unmedified production components
wherever possible.

3.6 Vehicle ligi ilit din-se ice Co dition

Before carrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code, the condition(of the in-servic
vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design certificati sure that th
vehicle is elig'ble for rerating This is to be achieved in two steps

Step-1 To verify that the vehicle make/model/variant/chassis series and b @ls within the scope
of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2 To inspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is su@ for rerating. The relevant
instructions in the design package of LS11 design certification m followed to ensure that the

chassis frame, suspension, brakes and so on are in safe an iceable condition at the rerated
GVM. Evidence of th's inspection must be recorded in the cheéklist provided.

3.7 anufacturer's ette @
Rerating based on original vehicle manufacturer’s letter:

In this option a letter issued by the vehicle’s originalya@turer is required.
To be considered acceptable, the manufacturer’s I%@ contain at least the following information:

» Vehicle manufacturer’s details (i e manuf@g s letter head with contact information)

e Make/model/variant of the vehicle %y

» Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) articular vehicle being modified

o Details of any physical changes

d to be performed to the vehicle (along with details of
specific components to be fift
¢ Revised GVM rating

e Signed and dated by ti Jate of the original vehicle manufacturer

>
$
@
RS
&
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Checklist S1
e-rati g of Gross Ve icles Mass of a ight Ve icletoLS11 esign Certificatio
CODE LS1

Form No: L815
Y=Yes, N=No)

Ge eral
Have all details of the design package of LS11 design certification

or a letter from the original vehicle manufacturer been retained for
future audit?

C assis

Does the chassis conform to the detail construction, section
properties and cross-members of the LS11 design packagé dr to
an s ecified in the vehicle manufacturer's letter?

Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation,
cracks and rust erforation?

Brake syste

Is the vehicle's entire braking system as specifiéd-in,the design
package of the LS11 design certification or the specifications in the
vehicle manufacturer’'s letter?

Is the braking system in serviceable conditiort, free from leaks, wear
and foulin /stretchin ?

Tyresand i s

Does the tyre placard (if fitted) ¥ecord-the correct tyre and rim sizes,
axle configurations, axle loads anduipflation pressures for the modified
vehicle as s ecified in the LS11 desi n certification?

Are tyres and rims fitted in'€onformance to the tyre placard?

ligibility- ake/model/varian ¢ assis series

Does the vehicle mégettihe eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11
desi n certification?

Eligi i~ y- Velicle/co dition

Is the vehicie in satisfactory structural and mechanical condition?

or -a 'shi

Is the-quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?

Arethe checklists required in the LS11 design certification
cony/ leted?

Are all the inspections and tests as required in LS11 design
certification com leted?

Is the GVM rerating plate/label as specified in the LS11 design
certification fitted?

Note: If the answer to any question is N (No) the modification cannot be certified under Code LS14.
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of

Make Model Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number %
(If applicable) Q\
Brief Description of @

Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By @

TMR In-Principle Approval

Numbher E@
Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory’s Employer

(If applicable) §
Q
N

Signatory’s Signature % Date
&
N
9
S
S
v
&
%,
N
)
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V icle as ati f i ht ehi es
C L

1.0 Scope

The LS11 Modification Code specifies arrangements for rerating of the Gross-Yebhicig Mass
(GVM) rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rati does not
exceed 4 500 kg.

Rerating of GVM under code LS11 is permissible only on following ty ght vehicles:

(a) a light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and/or
body mounted on it. Vehicles with integrated frame and b mmonly known as
monocoque construction are not eligible.

(b) A light vehicle that has not previously been rerated fi original manufacturer’s
GVM rating.

Approval (IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage cture (SSM) Approval or RAWS
Approval is not deemed as the original vehicle man

%
In cases where the original vehicle manufav%%%;pas not specified the GVM rating the
maximum laden mass permitted by the origina manufacturer for the purpose of showing
compliance with the Australian Design Rules ) is to be taken as the original GVM rating.
This ‘nformation must be obtained from@ and traceable source.

1.1 hatis er itted... @

Modifications that may be cenifie@er LS11 code are:

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity ht@he First Stage Identification Plate
n
r

¢« Upto 10% increase in the-GVM rating given by the original vehicie manufacturer
s Exceptions to the limit % apply in following cases:
s (i) GVM rati an in-service vehicle that is of the same the

make/model/variani/chassis series as a vehicle having a Second Stage of
Manufactire (SSM) approval for GVM rerating AND is modified in accordance with
the Ss@a! AND the SSM approval holder has given explicit permission for
the &@ roval to be used as the basis for GVM rerating.

imGv

 Increa M where an additional axle has been installed

. @ on of a vehicle’s GVM rating to match the manufacturer's alternative rating
% particular variant of that make/model

hatis otpe itte ...

Modifications that must not be certified under LS11 code are:
» Modifications other than those described in 1.1 above
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¢ Reduction in GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer’s optional GVM
for that make/model (except in case of heavy motorhomes).

o Rerating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM rerating (by
way of SSM approval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another
jurisdictional approval.

e GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approvalbut the
SSM approval holder has NOT provided explicit permission_to-use the SSM
approval as the basis.

e (GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval
(for example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number ot vehicles is capped in
the SSM approval.

o GVM rerating where practical loading is likely.to exceed the load on any axle
beyond the rating by the original vehicle manufacturer

s Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle

manufacturer's rating.

1.3 Towing Capacity and LS11 Code

GVM rerating under LS11 code must not resuit in)any increase in the towing capacity of the
vehicle beyond that specified by the original vehicle manufacturer. This requirement must be
met irrespective of how the towing capacityis specified or calculated and includes the terms
gross combination mass rating, the/fated towing capacity and the maximum braked towing

mass rating.
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eneral eq irements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the rerated GVM. The critical components
including the chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must
be assessed individually to ensure that they are suitable to operate under the loads resulting
from the rerated GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements contained in sub-section §General

Requirements of the NCOP.

This code does not provide any assurance regarding the continued eligibie vehicle
for any warranty claims when operating at the rerated GVM. The cedifying, officer must
clarify this point to the modifier and the vehicle operator. Increased G } the potential
to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in g/cases. Itis the
responsibility of the vehicle operator and Approved Person to consider any effect on
warranty that the modification may have.

lia ce it a licable vehiclesta ar s @

Modified vehicles must continue to comply with the A to/which they were originally
constructed, except:
o If different ADRs apply to them due to the r@; ation, in which case they must
comply to those ADRs that are relevant to the madified vehicle
e as allowed for in the Transport Operati@ oad Use Management—Vehicle
Standards and Safety) Regulation 2010’ gufation).
¢ Modified vehicles must also comply % applicable in-service requirements of

the regulation. @9

Modified pre-ADR vehicles must contik&fiwmply with the Regulation.

Outlined below in Table LS11 are@ of the vehicle that may be affected by the
modifications and may require re- tion, testing and/or data to show complance of
the modified vehicle.

This is not an exhaustive list é@npliance to other ADRs may a so be affected.

O

Table LS11 List of itemsiand likely affected ADRs
REQUIREMENT
ADR 42/..
ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Management—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Regulation 2010

®
@ Transport Operations (Road Use
NS
$&

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle's category and date of manufacture. It is
the responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the appropriate ADRs
applicable to the vehicle.

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle’s GVM.

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -136 of 206



GV lteration ase o a facturer's

The change to the vehicle’s GVM must replicate the manufacture’s optional GVM for that
particular make, model and variant of vehicle. Additionally, all components, including
suspension, transmission, engine, brakes, tyre and rims, and so on must be fitted and identical
to those specified for that particular vehicle’s rated variant.

GV Ugrade as o SS A rov |

The rerated GVM must be the same as the SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded-components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres and rims, etc must be fitted and/be-identical to those
specified on the SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical modification replicating the SSM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified under the SSM must also be met. These requirements can include but
are not limited to the following:

¢ The vehicle's first |dentification Plate Approval .number must be identical to that
mentioned in the SSM Approval.

¢ If the SSM approval limits the number of vehiclesto be supplied under it each year,
(for example, Low Volume 25 or 100 per annum), the SSM approval holder must
ensure that the same restriction is appliedio the number of vehicles modified under
this code.

» GVM rerating of in-service vehicles/using’LS11 code should not be certified if the
SSM approval is no longer currenband-has been suspended or cancelled.

e When upgrading GVM in accordance with an SSM approval the certifying AP must
ensure the SSM approval holderRas provided written permission for use of the SSM
design as the basis.

s [f upgrading a GVM in gccordance with a Low Volume SSM a statutory declaration
must be obtained fromthe’ SSM holder stating no more approvals than the limit
stipulated on the S§M-have been provided. For example, if the Low Volume SSM
restricts the number of vehicles to 25 per annum then the SSM approval holder
cannot provide permission for more than 25 in-service vehicles to be modified in that
year (in addition to the 25 new vehicles certified in accordance with their SSM
approval),

s Both the written permission and statutory declaration from the SSM holder must be
retaired by the Approved Person as evidence for certifying the rerating of GVM
under this code.

GV U gra e by installation of a additional ax e

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the vehicle's
GVM vnay be increased by a maximum of 10% above the original vehicle manufacturer’s
GVM rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with adjacent axle in the group
then the 10% limit on increase in GVM increase may be exceeded. The fitment of an
additional axle is permitted in Queensland under the LB2 modification code.

V rerating outside of an fact re s ption
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A rerating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even if it is not an option by the vehicle
manufacturer provided the change is no more than 10% from the original manufacturer's GVM.
While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change possible is limited by various factors including
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 S ecific e uire ents

When rerating GVM the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train compone \t be used
within the vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. Where a componen .\ facturer has
published information stating that reduced ratings apply for safety reas<? reduced rating
must apply.

Typical modifications involved with rerating a vehicle’s GVM inclu@
- single axle to tandem axle configuration

combination of rep acement engine, transmission, a@@spension components,

reinforced chassis and upgraded brake components

The following specif'c requirements must be met. @

ssis @
%
Chassis modifications must be performed in 5 ance with section LHS of Vehicle
Standards Bulletin 14 - and the relevant sectio .".,._, code of the Heavy Vehicle Modification
VSB6, as far as possible and appropriate.

When modifications such as fitting of a&l‘lg}aﬁ or replacement axles with higher load rating
are carried out, the vehicle frame must lysed to ensure that it has sufficient strength to
accommodate the rerated GVM For ting chassis strength, Vehicle Standards Bulletin 6
— Heavy Vehicle Modification may sulted.

A simplified way to look at th@@e requirements for GVM rerating, is to associate the
bending strength of the cha ith the load carrying capacity (i.e. GVM).

3.2 ngine ransmiséioné)

The GVM rating igned must not exceed the engine and transmission manufacturer's
recommendation limit set by vehicle manufacturers for a vehicle using the engine
and transmissio-@fels being assessed. Where certification is by comparison with a
manufacturer' rence vehicle, the engine and transmission fitted to the modified vehicle
must be idef& those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference veh'cle.

33 le in's

rer's axle ratings must not be exceeded in normal and practical loading resulting
a GVM is rerated, unless reinforced replacement axles are fitted; in that case their
ratings must not be exceeded.

With%}l%r%*@zse in GVM, additional loads are placed on axes. The original vehicle

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle with the higher GVIM rating.
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In cases where a component manufacturer has published information reducing the rating
capacity of a component for safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.

34Ta'l S aft

Changes associated with rerated GVM may place additional load on vehicle’s tailshaft. For
example:

¢ changes to vehicle ride height which may alter the tailshaft and pinion angles;

» alterations to a vehicle's wheelbase may result in change in tailshaft length;

e changes to engine and/or transmissions may impose increased torsioral loading on the
tailshaft.

The vehicle's tailshaft strength and its installation must be suitable at the'vehicle's rerated
GVM.

3. Sus sio

With an increase in gross mass, additional loads areCplaced on suspension. Vehicle's
suspension ratings must not only be adequate for the revised GVM but must be able to
accommodate the axle loads resulting from normal and-practical loading patterns. Effects of
changes in ride height must be carefully considered:\FOR EXAMPLE, bump and rebound
travel, hydraulic brake hose length, handling & roli stahility.

3. rakes

A vehicle’s braking performance is directly affégted by changes to the vehicle’s gross load.
Therefore, the vehicle's braking system muist be' assessed to determine if the original system
is adequate for the proposed GVM or if it requires to be upgraded.

3.7 teri

The entire steering system must-be identical to that fitted by the manufacturer to the original or
reference vehicle as appropriate. |f the steering system is modified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be approved under the LS section of Vehicle Standards Bulletin 14 — National
Code of Practice for Light-Vehicle Construction and Moadification.

38Tyr s ndRi s

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM.
The same applieg to\load carrying capacities of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the
tyres (and rims)-en gach axle must be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle.

The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be exceeded when the vehicle is loaded
to the reyisad GVM rating and the load is distributed in a practical and uniform way.

The tyres/and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR
(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04) at the revised GVM rating.

If required, an amending tyre placard must be fitted to indicate the correct tyre specifications

for the vehicle at the revised GVM rating. The revised tyre size and load rating must also
appear on the modification plate and in the owner's handbook.
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Ca acity abela d Ha dboo

To ensure the vehicle operator is adequately informed of the changes such as the veh'cle’s
towing capacity and tyre requirements, the vehicle's handbook must be updated. The update
must provide specific details of the tyres and the towing capacity and if applicable, any
reduction in towing capacity due to vehicle loading conditions and/or vertical load on tow ball
(ball weight).

If the vehicle’s handbook is not available this information must be provided in wri to
the owne of the vehicle owner. In addition this information may be included on thedJoa
capacity label discussed below.

A label containing important information about the vehicle's load capaci@also be fitted.
The label must follow the below label as an example and must be fitted to thevehicle, as
close as practicable to the vehicle’s tyre placard.

atin - s ltem @nformation
S MA - rov.l ifa lic bl
Rrt: GV
M- ximum Towin ssatGV * k
Maximu Front © le/s M ss ~ermitt k
M ximumR rAxi /s ~ss  rmitted k
*Warning: Th-  aximumm . sst ev @c ns felytowm yd p ndon
her 1 formation regardi g tow

vehicl- 1a-1 - nd/or trail r ball wei ‘7&%
ca acities | aser fér'do v hicle’s h ndbook.

5.0Li itations @

For modifications not perm tted under ode see Section 1.2. In addition, the following
limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 2 apply.

5.1 Elect onic Sta ility Co trz @

Changes to a vehicle's GV ave a direct effect on electronic stability control (ESC)
performance. Therefor les fitted with ESC the system must be tested to ensure it
continues to comply with the Jrelevant ADR or manufacturer’s specifications. However, this is
not requred where a ve s GVM is being rerated to a manufacture’s alternative variant or
by SSM approval s&h@at the system’'s compliance has been demonstrated.

ecto @ca acity

The tow'ng«<apacity of a light vehicle expressed as Gross Combination Mass (GCM) rating or

Rated T pacity or Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the value set
by th vehicle manufacturer. This code does not permit an increase in rated towing
capa CM rating. For many light vehicles rated towing capacity or GCM rating may not

uide applies. When the original vehicle manufacturer has specified GCM rating or

owing capacity or maximum braked towing mass, please note that the maximum mass

that can be legally towed when the vehicle is loaded at the rerated GVM must be proportionately

reduced to ensure that the sum of GVM and maximum towing mass at GVM before and after
rerating remains unchanged.

@ed by the original vehicle manufacturer. In such cases the limit mentioned in the Safe
rat

6.0 A diti al Modificationsa d anges to icl Catego
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Where additional modifications have been performed or a change in vehicle category has
occurred due to the increase in GVM, certification using the appropriate additional codes must
be provided.
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7.0Use of L 11 cod to provide design ce ification f eratin

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM rerating of a vehicle of a
particular make/model/variant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using
any of the rerating criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited

Approved Person holding a relevant code is able to follow the instruct ons, insp rtify a
series of modified vehicles of that make/model/variant/chassis series a rate the
necessary evidence to ensure that the requirements of the design certificati e met.

When LS11 code is used in this way to provide design certification, proved Person
providing the design certification may not inspect the modified vehic d is not required to fit
an LS11 modification plate to the vehicle. Also the checklist complet art of the the design
certificat on may not refer to any particular VIN. @

The outputs of a Design Certification under LS11 are (a) de kage (b) LS11 modification

certificate and (c) LS11 modification checklist. All these outputs must be preserved as records
and must be made ava lable, on request, for audit and enforcement purpose.

7.1 Design Package o \©

This output must result in a set of documen i: atclearly and comprehensively address the

following four requirements: %
7.1.1 Scope of what is eligible ®\

Design certification must tightly des¢ribe)to which make/model/variant/chassis series it applies.
If its applicability is restricted to ific’build years that also must be mentioned.

Since the modification and rating is being done on in-service vehicles, the condition of
those in-service vehicleg/plays an important role in determining which vehicle can safely eceive
the rerating. This must cted in the scope section of the design package by stating what
must be inspecte d what is acceptable to decide that the vehicle is safe to modify and
receive rerating. n of the shock absorbers, suspension, frame, tow equpment and
brakes are key ar inspect. Absence of cracks, deformations and structural damage due

to rust is also @

Design on package must include a template of checklist that needs be completed as
a rec% efore modification, the vehicle was inspected and confirmed that it is eligible and
isin ndition.

7.1.2.Evidence package
Integral to the design package output is the collection of various test reports and engineering
calculations that validate the rerating when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from

reputed test laboratories, must have unique identification number and must be signed and
dated. Test reports must make unambiguous reference to the specific make/model/variants of
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the vehicle or component to which they apply and must contain conclusion about pass or fail
according to the relevant criteria.

Engineering calculations must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They must be
compiled under a unique identifier,

If any evidence is sourced from a third party, the package must include a written permission
from that party for use of its reports.

For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, it is not uncommon fordesign certifier to
not include the entire evidence package in the design package output beihg given to the
customer. Where this is the case, however, the design package must list aliihe key test reports
and calculation sheets (using their unique identifiers) and provide Wiiten assurance that full
evidence package will be made available, on request, for audit and erifgrcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package output must contain detailed work_instructions on how to modify the
vehicle, what parts to be used, what sequence of actions to-be performed, what precautions to
be taken and what process controls to be applied.

Work instructions must also include details of any (non-destructive) testing and inspections to
be carried out to ensure that the modification $tandards are met.

The instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous and should include sufficient
pictorials and graphics.

The work instruction must also inclidé contact detail for querying or seeking clarification, should
that be required during modificafion:

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier)and the certifier

This output of the design-package consists of two separate checklists one each for the vehicle
modifier and the cedifier of the physical modification. The purpose of these checklists is to
generate evidence;that the modifier and the certifier of the physical modification have
understood and followed the prescribed procedure and are able to confirm that the intent of the
design package has been met. The design certifier under LS11 may choose to collect such
completed checklists from the modifier and the certifier of physical modification as part of his/her
own qualityassurance or risk management practice,

Note thatifiis checklist is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical modification
may-be required to complete as part his/her certification under the relevant code.

7.2 Modification Certificate
For this output, a modification certificate must be issued similar to any other modification code,

except that the certificate may not make reference to any specific modification plate number or
vehicle by its VIN.

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -143 of 206



7.3 Modification Checklist

For this output, the modification checkiist at the end of this code must be completed and retained
for each design certified under LS11 code.
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hecklist LS1
G oss Ve ice ass| crease
LS11

Form No: LS11
Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not A, licable)

Sus ensio
Is the vehicle’s suspension suitable for the increased GVM?

C assis

Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM?

Axles

Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM?
ngine/Trans ission

Is the engine/transmission suitable for the increased GVM?

Bra i g Syste

Has a brake test been carried out on theymodified vehicle to
ensure compliance with ADR 31,/ ¢F 35/.., whichever is
applicable?

(applicable in all cases apart-front upgrading to an SSM
a roval orori inal vehicle mantfacturer's o tional GVM

Is the vehicle's brake system suitable for the increased GVM?

Tyres and ims

Does the Modificatigh-Rlate record the correct tyre and rim sizes
and load ratin s-forthe modified vehicle?
Has an updated tyre placard been fitted to the vehicle?

Do tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and the
e lacard?

Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the
vehicle'shngw GVM?

lectronic Sta ility Control
Hasthe vehicle’s ESC system been tested to confirm that the
system continues to meet the relevant ADR or manufacturer's

specifications?

Lo dCapaci | f r atio
Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle?

Has the vehicle’s handbook been amended or additional
information been included on the Load Capaci Label?
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a ufacturer's tio al V
Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle
manufacturer?
Are all components relevant to the GVM rerating (brake,
engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc)
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's alternative
specification?
Second tage of a ufacturer G @
Has the SSM Approval holder provided written approval to
use that SSM design? @
If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume S
Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtain
Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM ap f

Are a| components relevant to the GVM rer rake,
suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical tﬁ SM design?

Fit entofa a ditional axle

If the vehicle's GVM has been incr 56 re than 10% is the

additional axle load sharing? %

Only if LS11 code is used @ide Design Certification

Is a comprehensive desi@:kage provided?

Does the design pac ave a unique identification

number? @

Does the design pagkage clearly describe which
make/model/vatiant/chassis series is eligible for rerating?
Does th@ package include guidance on what to inspect

in the in e vehicle and how to determine its fithess to
recei upgrade?

DG%? design package include a complete Evidence
@ e on which the GVM rerating is based?

es the design package include comprehensive work
instructions including work to be done, precautions to be
\ taken, control of processes and tests to be conducted?

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

Signatory's Signature Date
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Anant Z Bella

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: nay 14 ay20 §1242P

To: Shane F Lonsdale; Peter N Twining

Subject: RE: Revised LS11 Code readied for ‘mplementation of new L515 Code
Hello Peter and Shane,

Thanks for your comments. \

I don’t see any issues with anything you have said. I note that most of yo f ments are related
to the areas that are unchanged from the current LS11. \_j

There are a couple of items on which some discussion and clarificati y help and happy to do
it during our meeting.

Regards Q

Awnant Bellary @
vehicle Standards § Accreditation @

Transport § Main Roads v

From: Shane F Lonsdale @

Sent: Monday, 14 May 2018 12:04 PM

To: Anant Z Bel ary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Revised LS11 Code readied for i mentation of new LS15 Code
From: Shane F Lonsdale @

Sent: Monday, 14 May 2018 10:q)
To: Peter N Twining < >
Subject: RE- Revised LS11 e raadied for implementation of new LS15 Code

Good morning Anant ter
Pleases see my q d comments.
Kind regards, &

Shane Lensd
Vehicle Stan Legislation and Standards

©)

Transport-Re ion Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9 | Street Brishane 4000

PO Bo oritude Valley Qld 4006

P: 6

E:ve ndards@tmr.gld.gov.au

W: wwwotinr.gld.gov.au
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THEbuve
LIVES

qid.gov.aufjointhedrive

From: Peter N Twining \

Sent: Monday, 14 May 2018 10:00 AM @
To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.gld.gcov.au>; Shane F Lonsdale
<Shane.F.Lonsdale @tmr.gld.gov.au>

Cc: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@trnr.ald.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Revised LS11 Code readied for implementation of new LS15 @

Hi Al 92

Please see my comments for discussiom.

Kind regards @
Peter Twining

Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport a cads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Sireet | Brisbane Qid 4000 &9
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
P: (07) 30666537 %

E: peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au
W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au

Sent: Friday, 11 May@:?ﬁ PM
To: Shane F Lons@ ne.F.lonsdale@tmr.qld.gov.au>
St

IN
TO SAVE
LUVES

From: Anant Z Bellary

Cc: Peter N Twining <peéter.n.twining@tmr.gld.gov.au>; Scott G Notley <Scott.G . Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au>
Subject: Revisé& Code readied for implementation of new LS15 Code

Hello S@

As z@ad, see attached extensively revised LS11 code for internal stakeholder
& e

en nt:
Key features are:

1. GCM/towing capacity changes are removed, irrespective of SSM provisions for the
same
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2, Code has been readied for design certification, in anticipation of LS15 to take care of
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
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transport and Main Roads \

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000

P: (07} 3066 3468 @
E: anant.z.bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au
W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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Shane F Lonsdale

From: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Monday, 14 May 2018 10:23 AM

To: Peter N Twining

Subject: RE: Revised LS11 Code readied for implementation of new LS15 Code
Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) (002).docx

Good morning Anant an d Peter \
Pleases see my questions and comments. @@

Kind regards,

Shane Lonsdale

Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads @
Floor 9| 681 Mary Strest Brisbane 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006 @

P: 3066 3469

E: vehiclestandards@®imr.qld.gov.au

W www.tmr.qld.qov.au

N
. vfleim \&9@

From: Peter N Twining @
Sent: Monday, 14 May 2018 10:00 AM
To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.BeIIary@tm® v.au>; Shane F Lonsdale <Shane.F.Lonsdale@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr v.au>
Subject: RE: Revised L511 Code readied fi plementation of new LS15 Code

Hi All

Please see my comments for @om.

Kind regards

Peter Twining

Senior Policy Advisor { s and Accreditation}

Transport Regulation\Brarich | Department of Transport and Main Roads
%9\}@

risbane Qld 4000
itutieyVatley Qld 4006

Floor 9| 61 Mary
F

W www.tmr.qld.gov.au
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From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Friday, 11 May 2018 3:33 PM \

To: Shane F Lonsdale < >

Cc: Peter N Twining < >; Scott G Notley < @ >
Subject: Revised LS11 Code readied for implementation of new LS15 Code @

Hello Shane,

As promised, see attached extensively revised LS11 code for internholder engagement:
Key features are:
Code has been readied for design certification, in anticipation of LS15 to take care of

modification certification
3. Loading beyond axle rating of OE manufactuger@

1. GCM/towing capacity changes are removed, irrespective of SSM provisions for the same
2 aé iﬂ)a

ohibited
Next week is set for a draft of LS15. %/\\9

Regards @9

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer {Vehicle Standards & Accreditation) {Transiport Reguiation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Depa@ Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qlid 4000 @
P: (07) 3066 3468 @

E: anant.z.bellary@tmr.gld.gov.au

W: www.tmr gld.gov.au @

>
&
@
o
$&

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -152 of 206



Peter N Twinin

From: Peter N Twining

Sent: Monday, 14 May 2018 10:00 AM

To: Anant Z Bellary; Shane F Lonsdale

Cc: Scott G Notley

Subject: RE: Revised LS11 Code readied for implementation of new LS15 Code
Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2 (002).docx

Hi AN

Please see my comments for discussiom. @
Kind regards
Peter Twining @

Senior Policy Advisor {Standards and Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads i@

Fioor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane QId 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
P: (07) 30666537

E: p_eter.n.twining@tmr.gld.gov.au
W www.tmr.gld.qov.au
Q \O

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Friday, 11 May 2018 3:33 PM
To: Shane F Lonsdale <Shane.F.Lonsdale qid.gov.au>

Cc: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining -BOv.au>; Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld‘gov.au>
Subject: Revised LS11 Code readied for im lementation of new LS15 Code

Hello Shane, \

As promised, see attachet@msively revised LS11 code for internal stakeholder engagement:

Key features are: @

1. GCM/towi acity changes are removed, irrespective of SSM provisions for the same
Code ha% eadied for design certification, in anticipation of LS15 to take care of

. modifi ertification
3. Loa@ond axle rating of OE manufacturer is prohibited

Next week is set for a draft of LS15.

Regards
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Anant Bellary . h
el |E ineer (Vehicle Standards & Acer  itation) | Transport Regulation B(an‘g d
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 {61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000
P:(07) 3066 3468

E: anant.z bellary@tmr.qld.qov.au
*www tmr gld.gov.au
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ss R tin ofLi ht Ve icles
S11

Gross Ve icl

1.0 Scope

The L511 Modification Code specifies arran emenis for rerating of the
Gross Vehicle ass ({GVM)_rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle h
cumrent GVM rating that does not exceed 4 500 kg.

Rerating of GVM under code LS11 is permissible only on followin ¢ e of i ht vehic
(2] a truck like 1ght vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame f
a cabin andfor body is-mounted on 1. Vehicles with integrated frame an

#
commonl kno  as monoco ue consiructio are not eligible,
b Al htvehclethat not reviousl rerat fromthe on nal manufacturer s GMM ratin

. The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the enti din the
First Sta Ident  tion Plate roval IPA . An ovn the
Second Stage Manufacturers (SSM) a Approval or RAWS @Jp is

not -deemed as the original vehicle manufacturer \
In cases where a-the o I vehicle manufacturer % snots  fied

the GVM rating for the maximum laden mass pemi e onginal vehicle
manufacturer forthe u  seof showin com liance with the alk es ules ADRs)

is to be taken as the o inal GVM rating. This i ust be obtained from a
reliable and traceable source.

t What is d...
Modifications that may be certified under

« U to 10% increase in the GVM ratin v eori inal vehicle anufactur .
» Exce tionsto thelimitof 10% a | in follo\N ses:

. " —i GVM rating service vehicle that is am  the-
make/model/variant/chassis ri a vehicle havin n Stae of

anufacture SSM a
a-the SSM the SSM a roval holder has iven ex lcit
ermission for the 5 oval to be us as the basis for GVM reratin .
S el

W
o Increasein GV@ additional axle has been installed

e  Alteratio icle’'s GVM rating to match

rovdl for G reratin - AND is modified in accordance with
ro

manufacturer's alternative rating+

for a pal |3t variant of that make/model

&
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Whatisnot e tted...
Modifications that must not be certified under de
odifi tions other than those descnb in1.1a ve

Reduction in GVM rating ther than the re-rating

makefmodel. ([

erating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously reeei GVM
. r__ting {. .by way of S38M a roval or LS11 or Code of

manufacturer's optional GVM for that

Practice or another 'urisdictional a roval.)
in accordance
holder has NOT

o
o

GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle

with an SSM Approval _ut the SSM

provided ex licit e ission to use th a roval as the
basis.
. GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle
n the basis of a con SM a roval for

wh

QO

exam le Low Volume or RAWS umber of vehicles 1s ca edin

the S3SMa roval

reratin wher@l loadin s likel to exceed the i
he ndthe rati he-6n inal vehicle manufacturer

Re-rating of e components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle
manufacturé%md

1.3 T0wi and LS11 Code .

er LS11 code must not resultin an increaseintheto n ca aa of

VM rerath
the veh:@at s ecified b the on inal veh cle manufacturer This re uirement must

d on an axle

»
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be metirr ective ofhowthetowin ca aci iss ifi orcalculat andincludes the terms
ross combination ma  ratn theratedto n ca o and the maxmum brak  to 'n \

mass ralin . @
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General Requirements

The vehicle must be able to safely operate+
atthe rerat  GVM. T ecriti lcom nentsincl i chassis, drive-train,
axes, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must
be assessed individually to ensure that isthe  are suitable to operate under the

loads resulting from the rerat  GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements contained in sub-section 2 General
Requirements of the NCOP

his code does not rovide an assurancer ardin  the continu
for an warran claims when o eratin at the rerat G
this inttothem
to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in some cases. ltis t
responsibility of the vehicle operator and Approved Person to consider any t o
warranty that the modification may have.

Complhance with ap ica e vehicle standards

Modified vehicles must continue to comp y with the ADRs to wh ch the e onginally+-
constructed, except:
» Ifdfferent AD sa | tothem due to the modification in Whigh the musts

com [ tothose ADRs that are relevant to the modifi

=S
Safaly) Regulation 2010 (the Regula%@

Modified vehicles must also comply with the ap | rvice requirements of

the regulation.
Modified pre-ADR vehicles must continue to comply w@egulation.

that may be affected by the
dfor data to show compliance of

Cutlined helow in Table LS11 are areas of th
madifications and may require re-certification, testing
the modified vehicle.

This is not an exhaustive list and com i

i to~ather
affect

may also

Table LS11 ,
L items and likel affected A s
DETAIL \ REQUIREMENTS
Tyre and Rim Sel ADR 42/..
Hydraulic Braie Sysiems ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Transport Operations (Road Use
Management—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Reguiation 2010

)
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N

The ADR_ hicabil 15 according to the vehicle's category and date of manufacture. ,

It is the responsibility of e_ the certt in A roved Person to refe to the shimented [PNTL2]: remove one the
appropriate ADRs applicable to the vehicle. @

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle's GVM:

GVM alteration sed on Manufacturer's Option

The change to the vehicle's GVM must replicate the manufacture’s optional r that-
particular make, model and varant of vehicle. Additionally, all compone incdding
suspension, ransmission, engine, brakes, tyre and rims, and so on must be entical
to those specified for that particular vehicle's rated variant. o @

GV Upgrade based on 8§ A proval

The GVM must be the same as the roved vehicle. Al
upgraded components, including suspension, brakes, tyres andsﬁ&y ust be fitted and be

identical to those specified on the SSM approved vehicle.
In addition to the physical maodification replicating the SSi al, all the administrative

P
requirements specified under the SSM must also be met(Thes! uirements can include but
are not limited to the following:

s The vehicle’'s first identification Plate App mber must be identical to that
mentioned in the SSM Approval.

+ If the SSM approval limits the numbero icles to be supplied under it each year,

{for example, Low Volume 25 or n@ annum), the SSM a roval holder must
ensure that the same restri ' I to the number of vehicles

modified undér this §ode.

s  GVMreratin of in service ve sin LS11 code should not e if the S5

a rovalisnolon er nd hasbh nsus endedor ncelled.

s When upgrading GV
must ensure the SS

tdance with an SSM approval the © o certi A
a roval holder has provided written permission for
he basis.

use of the S5M 2
. g rading a GVM in accordance with a Low Volume SSM a
ti
fl

statutory de ion” must be obtained from the SSM holder stating no more

approval limit stipulated on the SSM have been provided. For example, if
the Low SSM restricts the number of vehicles to 25 pe annum then the
SSM oval holder cannot provide permission for more than 25 in-service vehicles
to 0 in that year (in addition to the 25 vehicles certified in accordance

SM approval).

\me
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Both the written permission and statutory declaration from the SSM
holder must be retained by the Approved Person as evidence for certifying \

reratin of GVM under this code. @
G U rade byinstalla " n of an additional axle F. fied, Indent: First line: 0 ¢cm
if an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. iazy axle or additional drive axie) the vehicle’s c [SFL14]: We alrcady allow the engineer to
H 0,
GVM may be increased by a maximum of 10% labove the original vehicle manufacturer's e ¢ GVM over 10% for load or non-load sharing
GVM . However, if the additional axle is load sharing with adjacent axle in the group tted: Justified
P . . . oY na i Jus
then the 10% limit on increase in GVM increase may be exceeded. The fitment of an j p e
Lar . ; . . . ommented [PNT15]: why is this limited to 10% thisisa

additional axle is permitted in Queensland under the LB2 modification code, @ e requatencnt and will e reasied by oy
25 G reratin *  outside of Manufacturer’s Option Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line: 0 cm

© __terating of GVM Is permitted on a Il t vehicle even if it is not an option Formatted: fustified
vehicle manufaciurer.

rovidedt ¢ n eisnomoret n 10% from the original m urer's
GVM. . ’ ’ @ I theu tis 10%
the actualc n I le is limited by various factors including chassis, ain, axles,

suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres. O\

bi
henreratngG __the CM pension, axles and drive
tran components are-must be used within -~ the ve:@ acturer's rated capacities.
5

3.08 ific Requirements

Where a component manufacturer has published inform g that reduced ratings apply
for safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply. g

Typical modifications involved with ehicle's GVM include: Commented [SFL16]: What is this section trying 1o cover?
single axle to tandem axle configuration
combination of replacement engine, transmi , axles or suspension components an

upgraded brake components

Formatted: Justified, Indent; First line: 0 cm

Formatted:
The following specific requirements//must be-met
3.1 Chassis
Chassis modifications must b ed in accordance with section H of Vehicle Standards
Bulletin 6 — Heavy Vehicle Madi . as far as possible and lappropriate} Commented [PNT17): why are you using the heavy code

and not LH5 and LHG

When modifications sugh(as fitiing of additional or replacement axles with higher load rating
are carried out, the v me must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient strength to
accommodate the GVM.

cal ng chassis strength, Vehicle Standards Bulletin 6 — Heavy Vehicle
Modification % sultecL Commented [PNT18]: do we really want 1o refer 1o the

heavy code
A simplif@o look at the frame requirements for GVM , is to associate
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the bending strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity {i.e. GVM).

32Engine rans ission \

The GVM rating assigned must not exceed the engine and transmission manufacturer's @
recommendations, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturers for a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certification is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitted to the modified vehicle
must be identical o those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicla. Commented [PNT19): most light vehicle manufacturers do

Of tale engune and transmission ratmgs
3.3 Axle atings

With increase in GVM additional loads are placed on axles.

a te * @
’ o ' s: The ori inal vehicle manufacturer's axt
rati s must not be exceeded in normal and ractical | i resultin  after the is

rerated unless reinforc  re lace entaxles are fitted- in that  se their ratin $ must ne

X Commented [PNT20]: some SSM approval holders have
icreased the axle rating above the onginal manufacturers

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, xle and without modification

suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identical to t ed by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle with the higher GVM rating. o

In cases where a component manufacturer has published informa r ing the rating
capacity of a component for safety reasons, the red ced rating mus ol

3 4 Tail Shaft @'

Cha es associated with

itic | load on a-vehicle’s ta Ishalt,
or exam le:

« changes to vehicle ride height which may alter the/iai ft and pinion angles; Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line: 0 cm
» alterations to a vehicle's wheelbase may result in thang# in tailshaft length;

» changes to engine and/or transmissions m@ increased torsional loading

GVM may.

tailshaft.

Formatted:
The vehicle’'s tailshaft strength and its i |n must be suitable the ve
GVM.
3.5S5us nsion
With increase in ross , additional loads are placed on suspension. Vehicle's Commented [PNT21): an
suspension ratings must not adequate for the revised GVM but must be able to
accommodate the axle load from normal and practical loading patterns. Effects of

changes in ride height must efully considered. FOR EXAMPLE, bump and rebound
travel, hydraulic brake I@t , handling & roll stability.

3.6 Brakes %ﬂ

A vehicle's braki ance is directly affected by changes to the vehicle's

load. Therefqre, hicle’s braking system must be assesed to determine if the
original syst adequate for the proposed GVM or if it requires to be upgraded.

3.7 Steeypinig

N
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The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the manufacturer to the original or
reference vehicle as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be approved under the LS section of Vehicle Standards B Il © 14  National
Code of Practice for Light Vehicle Constrnuction and Modification.

3.8 Tyres and Rims
The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres fitted must be at least equal to the GVM.

The same applies to load carrying capacites of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the
tyres (and rims} on each axle must be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle. @

The load carrying capacity of any tyre or rim must not be exceeded when the vehicle is loade
to the revised GVMra“ isdistibu - na

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements of the rele ADR
(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04) at the revised GVM rating.

If required, an amending tyre placard must be fitted to indicate the correct tyre ifications
for the vehicle at the revised GVM rating. The revised tyre size and load ratitig must a so

appear on the modification plate inthe owner's nd ok.
- O
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4.0 Load Capacity Label and Handbook

To ensure the vehicle operator is adequately informed of the vehicle's \

towing capacityand rer urements the vehicle's handbook must be updated. The update

must provide specific details of the esa  the towing capacity and if applicable, any

variation fir| towing capacity due to vehicle loading conditions and/or vertical load on tow ball T22): should we put reduction i here so

{ball weight).

If the vehicle's handbook is not available this information must be provided in written form to
the owner of the vehicle owner.  ~ In addition this information may be included on the
load capacity label discussed below. @

A label containing important information about the vehicle's load capacity must also be fitted.
The label must followthe lowla |asan example and must be fitt
the vehicle, as close as practicable to the vehicle s tyre placard.

atin  tem Ratin Information Formatted Table
MA roval ifa 1 ble
Rerated GVM k
Maximum Towin ss at GVM* k
Maximum Front Axlels  ass kg
ermitted o

ximum Rear Axle/s \
Mass Permitt

*Warni : The maximum mass the vehicle n safel ydep don
vehicle loading and/or trailer Il weight. For Iuﬂher% r arding towing
o

ca ot | se refer to the veh&
5.0 Limitations s Formatted: Ju
ection 1.2 In addition the

For modifications not permitted under LS11
following lim'tations in secﬁor@\d 5.2 apply

51 El tronic Stahility Control @

Changes tc a vehide's GVM can have a fiect on electronic stability control (ESC}
performance. Therefore, for vehicles C the system must be tested to ensure it
continues to comply with the relevant(ADR anufacturer's specifications. However, this 1s
not required where a vehicle's GVM is being/rerated to a manufacture’s altemative variant or

by SSM approval such that th&m‘s compliance has been demonstrated.

ity ffect on towin ca acit

The towin ci ofa R w eex ess as Gross Com ination ss GCM rati  ore- Formatted: Justified
Rat To 'n ci M u rak To 'n Massratin mustnotex the value set

b eon inal vehicle nufacturer. This code dees not permit an increase in rated towing

capacity or GCM rati ’ ) . For man  light

vehicles rated towi city or GCM rating may not be specified b the on nal vehicle

manufacturer. In ses e limit mention inthe fe Towin Guidea les. en the

ori inal vehi turerh s ifiedGC rati orrat towin ca acd orma ™ um

b ked towin please note that the maximum =~ masst tcanbel all fow

wh e @ al ere t GVMmust be proportionately reduced to ensure that
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remains unchanged.

6.0 A itional odifications and Chan es to Vehicle Category @

Where additional modifications have been performed or a change in vehicle category has
occurred due to the increase in GVM ¢ n the appropriate additi | codes must
be d

the sum of GVM and maximum towing mass at GVM before and after \

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -164 of 206



70 seoflLS11¢ eto rovide desi n certification for GV eratin - formatted: \

LS11 ema now be used to rovide desi n certification for G reratin  of a vehicle of a
ricular make/m  Ifvariant/chassis series. The " ncertification a be wvid usi
an ofther tin crite” discuss inSec n22to250fthis e

Thedesi certifi fionmust com rehensive eno h soasuitabl ualified and acor  ited
A o Person Idin arelevantcodeis abletofo wtheinstruc™ ns ins ecland certt a
series of m ified vehicles of that make/mode rant/chassis series and ne te the

necessa eviden toensurethatther wuir entsof the des’ ncerifi tion are met. @
LS11 e 15 us n this to o e " n certi ‘n eA ved Perso

o i thedesin i tonma notins ectthem ifi  vehideandisnotr wui fit

anLS11m 1 ton latetothevehicle. Also ech listcom let as rof ethed

certifi tonma notrefer fo an rticular VIN.

Theout utsofa s nCerfi tionu erlS1Maread n ck e
certificatea ¢ LS11m ficabonch  hst Allt e out uts must r
and mustbe m e available r uest a itand enforcement u

71 si n acka % Formatted-

is ou ut must result in a set of documents that clead an m nsivel address the
followin fourr urements;

7418co ofw atiseli i le @ Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Desi ncert  tonmust t descri  to which mak& riant/chassis seriesita lies.
Ifitsa b srestnctedtos  ific build ea ara ust  mention .
Since the modification and the rerati  is bei on in-service vehicles the condition of

thosein-s  cevehicles a im oﬁantele inin whichvehicle nsafel r  ive

thererati . Thism tbereflect in of the desi n eb statin what
must be Ins ected and w11 table ) decide that the vehiclers fetom i and
r ivereratn Co 1 nofthes absdrb SuUs  sion me tow ur ment and

kes areke ar stoins Absenc cks defo ations and stru | dama e

to rustis a o critical.

Desi n cedification cka e@ atem lateofch klistthatn s  com leted as
ar rdthat foremo@ evehicle sins t and nfimedt titisel ibleand

is in sound condition

Formatted: Font: Bold

71 Evi nce @& Formatted: Font: Bold
t I

int ral to th ck eou utisthecoll tionofvari stestre rsande ineenn
calculationgthat ate thererati when modifiedas r ¢i .T {re otsmust fro
re ut il tones must have un’ ue identifi tion num r and must be si and

N
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the vehicle orcom nentto  ichthe a a must contain conclus” a ut or il

t .Testre mMsmustim eu m uocusreferenceto es °~ mak modelivanants of \
a rdin totherelevant ~eria.

E i rn I tio mustbel ilea mustinclude assum tions ifan. e ust e
m | under auni uei entifier.
If an evidence is sourc m a thi the ck emustin ea ften e
fromt t for use ofits re  rts. @
For reasons of mmercial confidence or sensi ™ * it is not uncommon for desi n cerbfier t
not include the entire evid ce cka ein edesin cka e ou ut bein ‘ven t
customer. ere isiste e ver thedes' n  cka emustlistall the ke testre

and lcu tion sh ts usin  eirun ue id ntifiers a rovide wri ena u
evide e cka ewillbema a ila onr u tfora itandenforc ent u as.

713 orkinstructions f odification @ Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Font: Bold

©

e desi ack ou tmust contan  tail rk instruc  ns o i the

vehicle what risto  us ats uence of actions to be erform R Ecau nsto
etakenandw t roc controlstobea lied.

Work iIns  tons m  t also include details of an  non-d  tructive and ins ections to

be ' outto ensure that the modification standards are me%

ictonals a hics.

The ns ns must e ea to understand unamb® s uld incl e suff t

The rkinstruc” nmustalsoincludecontactdelallf@n orseekin clanficah s uld
thatber uired durin modification.

7.1.4 Ch Klist for the modifier and the cerfi g Formatted:
Thisou utofthedesi n  cka eco o e ratech listsone ch for the vehicle
modifier a  the fieroft e h I molifi tion. e u e of these khsts 15 to
enerate evidence that the modifi e certifier of e h 1« Im cation ve
underst a follo t r urea are able to confirmt tthe intent of the
desi n ka e has been met. ‘ne fi un fLS11ma c setocoll tsuch
et ch listsfromthe nd the certifierof h icalm ifi tionas rtofhi r

o uah assu nce or risk ement ice

te tthisch st r Ythanan ch khstthatthec ‘fierof the Imodifi  tion
ma bere wredto leteds rthi  ercertfica nundert er evanicode

- Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: O ¢m

7.2 Modification M Formatted: Font: Bold

te
% Formatted: Just fied
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exce t attheceri tema notmakerefer cetoan s ‘ficmodifi tion late number or

vehicle by its VIN. @
7.3 odification C cklist For,

Forthisou ut the modification checklistat eendofthis  emustbecom let  and retained
for eachde n certified under LS11 e.

orthisou ut am ification certi  te must be issued similar to an otherm ification code \

RTI 135/05888 - File 2 -167 of 206






Checklist LS11

11

2.1

31

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2
6.3

6.4

71

8.1
82

9

Gross Vehicle ass Increase
CODE LS11

Suspension
Is the vehicle's suspension suitable for the increased GVM?

Chassi
Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM?

Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM?
ngin ransmission

Is the engineftransmission suitable for the increased GVM?

Braking System

Has a brake test been carried cut on the modified vehicl
ensure compliance with ADR 31/. or 35/.., wh'chey
applicable?

{applicable in all cases apart from upgrading
a roval orori inal vehicle manufacturer's o tional

Is the vehicle's brake system suitable for the im@
yres and ims

Does the Modification Plate record the corre@nd rim sizes
and load ratin s for the modified vehicle
tas an updated tyre placard been fitt he Vehicle?

Do tyres and rims fitted conform {o qi n ification plate and the
e lacard?

Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the
vehicle's new GVM?

M?

Electronic Stability ol

Has the vehicle's E been tested to confirm that the
system continues he relevant ADR or manufacturer's
specifications?

Load Capa In ation

Is the Lo pi Label attached to the vehicle?
Has Stie le's handbook been amended or additional
informa een included on the Load Ca i Label?

u

n urer's ptional VM

N
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9.1 Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the \

same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle NIA Y

manufacturer? @
9.2 Are all components relevant to the GVM rerating {brake,

engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc) NA Y

identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's altemative

specification?
10 Second tageof an cturer GV @
101 Has the SSM Approval holder provided written approval to

. N/A Y

use SSM design?

10.2  If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM NA Y

Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained?

10.3 Does the rerated GV match that of the SEM

N/A N

approval?

10.4  Are all components relevant to the GVM/ rerating (brake, [ N
suspension tyres and rims, el¢) identical to the SSM design? Q

11 Fi entof an additional axle @

11.1  If the vehicle's GVM has been increase more than 10%
e ) NJ/A Y N
additional axle load sharing?

Onl if LS11 code is used ovide sin N%gn- Formatted:

12

121 Is acom rehensivedesi n acka e rowd 7

12.2 Doesthedesi n acka e haveaun ue i@;@mon
number?

12.3 Doesthe esi n cka eclearl desd which
make/modelfvariant/chassis seri { e for reratin 7

12.4 Doesthedesi n acka e ifelode nce on what to Ins ect
in the in-se "ce vehicle arld how tp)dete ineits ftn s to
receive GV u ra e?

12.5 Dgesthedesi n ¢ incl eacom lete Evidence
Packa e on which t eratin is as 7

12.6 oes the desi n__ac i lude m rehensive work

instructions in rk to be done recautions to be
taken control r “gsses and tests to be conducted?

. Does the & acka e include a checklist for the odifier
of the v 2
12.8 o & I n acka e include a checklist for the certifier
of the ied vehicle?

N

py
&)
~
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code?

129 Doesthedesi n acka e address all the re uir  ents of this \

Note: If the answer to any question is N (No) the design cannot be cerlified under Code

CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Make

VIN

Chassis Number
{if applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

Certificate Number
(If applicable)

Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory's Employer
(if applicable}

Signatory’s Signature

Modei

S11. d [PNT23]: should we say if N A docs not

n the checklist then it cannot be used

Year of
Manufacture
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Shane F Lonsdale

from: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 8:54 AM
To: Elizabeth P Austin

Subject: Ls11 and Ls15

Good morning Liz

Anant js|Not relevant , Peter, Anant and myself will be in on Monday after 2pm if thiatworks. You can email
me any proposed changes in mark up and | will pass them on to the team.

Kind regards,

Shane Lonsdale

Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

P:
E: vehiclestandards@tmr.qgld.gov.au
W: www.timr.gld.qov.au
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Shane F Lonsdale

From: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Friday, 25 May 2018 11:12 AM

To: Adam Shaw

Subject: Draft

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 Scotts changes.docx; LS15 Version May 2018
Vldoc

Shane Lonsdale
Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Kind regards, §

Transport Regulation Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads

Ficor 9] 61 Mary Street Brisbane 4000 @
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qid 4006

P: 3066 3469 @

E: vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au

W www.tmr.gld.qov.au
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Gr ss Vehicle ass RatingofLi tVe icles

CO LS

The LS11 Modification Code specifies arrangements for rerating of the Gross Vehicle Mass
{GVM) rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not
exceed 4 500 kg.

Rerating of GVM under code LS11 is permissible only on following type of light vehicl

{a} a light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and/
body mounted on it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly k as
monocogue construction are not eligible.

(b) A light vehicle that has not previously been rerated from the original manufacturer's
GVM rating.

Approval (IPA), Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (ssg) Af or RAWS
Approva is not deemed as the original vehicle manufacturer. \

VM rating, the
rpose of showing
riginal GVM rating.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First Stage @ n Plate

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specifi
maximum laden mass pemitted by the original vehicle manufacture
compliance with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs} is to be

This information must be obtained from a reliable and tra&
1.1 What is ermitted..

N

ginal vehicle manufacturer

ses:

icle that is of the same the-

vehicle having a Second Stage of
rerating AND is modified in accordance

SM approval holder has given explicit
permission for the SSM approval to be used as the basis for GVM rerating.

Increase in GVM where'\an additional axle has been installed

Alteration of a V%GVM rating to match the manufacturer's alternative+

Modifications that may be certified under LS11 cod

e Upto 10% increase in the GVM rating given b
+ Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in foll
'GVM_ rating _of an_in-se
make/modelfvariant/chassis s
Manufacture (SSM) approval
with the SSM approva

rating for a particu riant of that make/mode

1.2 What is not
Modifications that t notbe certified under LS11 code are:

Moadifications o"&an those described 'n 1.1 above

Reducti% rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer's optional GVM for
that make/i | (except in case of heavy motorhomes).

N
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GVM rerating under LS11 code must not result in any increase in the towing

Rerating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM rerating (by way
of SSM approval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another jurisdictional
approval.

GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the SSM
approval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM approval as the
basis.

GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval (for
example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in the SSM
approval.

the rating by the original vehicle manufacturer

N

GVM rerating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle beyond @

Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicl
manufacturer's rating. %

13 Towin Ca cityandLS11C

of the

vehicle beyond that specified by the original vehicle manufacturer. This requireffient must be

met irespective of how the towing capacity is specified or calculated and inslude terms
gross combination mass rating, the rated towing capacity and the maxim @ ed towing
mass rating <

eneral R uire ents @

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the rerated GV ritical components
including the chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, rin eels and tyres must
be assessed individually to ensure that they are suitable t er; der the loads resutting

from the rerated GVM.

All work must also comply with the requirements L@ in sub-section 2 General
Requirements of the NCOP

This code does not provide any assurance rega
for any warranty claims when operating at th
clarify this point to the modifier and the vehic
to affect el gibility of warranty claims with

ing t ntinued eligibility of the vehicle
ed GVM. The certifying officer must
erator. Increased GVM has the potential
manufacturer in some cases. Itis the

thevahi
responsibility of the vehicle operator ar‘ ; oved Person to consider any effect on

warranty that the modificat on may

Com liance with applicakie vebicle standards

Modified vehicles must cont to comply with the ADRs to which they were originally
construcied, except:

and Safety) Regul
Modified vehicle

If different ADRs apply t e to the modification, in which case they must comply
to those ADRs that are to the modified vehicle

as allowed forin the Operations (Road Use Management—\Vehicle Standards
ustialso

{the Regulation).
comply with the applicable in-service requirements of the
egulation.

Modified pre-A les must continue to comply with the Regulation.

modifica
the

d may require re-certification, testing and/or data to show compliance of
d vehicle.

Outlined b %&@Table L511 are areas of the vehicle that may be affected by the
ﬁé%:
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

Brake Performance Transport Operations (Road Use
Management—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Regulation 2010

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle's category and date of manuf; e. ltis
the responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer o the approgfiate~3DRs
applicable to the vehicle,

Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle's GYM. @
GVM a eration based on  anufacturer's Option %

The change to the vehicle's GVIM must replicate the manufactulg’ nal GVM for that
particular make, mode! and variant of vehicle. Additionalfy;Z all ponents, including
suspension, transmission, engine, brakes, tyre and rims, ani o t be fitted and identical
to th se specified for that particular vehicle's rated variant.

GV Upgrade based on SSM Ap roval

The rerated GVM must be the same as the SSM appravéd yehicle. All upgraded components,

including suspension, brakes, tyres and rims, st be fitted and be identical to those
specified on the SSM approved vehicle.

> X

requirements specified under the SS 51 e met. These requirements can include but
are not limited to the following:

In addition to the physical modification re the S5M approval, all the administrative
gkwt ob

« The vehicle's first ldentification Approval number must be identical to that

entioned in the SSM Ap%
s [fthe SSM approval limi er of vehicles to be supplied under it each year, (for
example, Low Volume per annum), the SSM approval holder must ensure

t at the same restricti lied to the number of vehicles modified under this code

+  GVM reraling of in;Setvice vehicles using LS11 code should not be certified if the SSM
approval is no | r curfent and has been suspended or cancelled.

+ When upgra in accordance with an SSM approval the certifying AP must ensure
the SSM Ider has provided written perm’ssion for use of the SSM design as
the basi&

&
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+ If upgrading a GVM in accordance with a Low Volume SSM a statutery declaration must
be obtained from the SSM holder stating no more approvals than the limit stipulated on
the SSM have been provided. For example, if the Low Volume SSM restricts the number
of vehicles to 25 per annum then the SSM approval holder cannot provide permission
for more than 25 in-service vehicles to be modified in that year (in addition to the 25 new
vehicles certified in accordance with their SSM approval).

+ Both the written permission and statutory declaration from the SSM holder must be
retained by the Approved Person as evidence for certifying the rerating of GVM under
this code

by installation of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle {i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axie) the yehicle’
GVM may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the original vehicle manufa !
GVM rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with adjacent axle in the group
then the 10% limit on increase in GVM increase may be exceeded. The of an
additional axle is permitted in Queensland under the LB2 modification code.

GVM reratingoutsi  of an  cturer's Option o @

A rerabng of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even if It is not p%{l)by the vehicle

manufacturer provided the change is no more than 10% I manufacturer's
GVM. While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change possible i by various factors
including chas 1s, dnve-train, axles, suspension, brakes, stee% and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements @

When rerating GVM the chassis, suspension, axles e train components must be used
within the vehicle manufacturer’s rated capacitie a component manufacturer has
published information stating that reduced ratings/a| or safety reasons the reduced rating
must apply.

Typical modifications involved with reralin f'cle‘s GVM include:
single axle to tandem axle configyration

combination of replacement engine, trgnsmission, axles or suspension compo
reinforced chassis and upgraded br: onents

The following specific requirerNust be met.

3.1 Chassis

Chassis modifications performed in accordance with section LHS of Vehicle
Standards Bulletin 14 e relevant sections of H code of the Heavy Vehicle Modification
VSBE, as far as po and-appropriate.

When modiﬁcati as fitting of additional or replacement axles with higher load rating

are carried evebicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient strength to

accommod:%ated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, Vehicle Standards Bulletin 6
Heavy V; odification may be consulted.

N
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A simplified way to look at the frame requirements for GVM rerating, is lo associate the
bending strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity (i.e. GVM).

3.2 ngine/T ns ssion

The GVM rating assigned must not exceed the engine and transmission manufacturer's
recommendations, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturers for a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assessed. Where certification is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitted to the medified vehicle
must be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

le atings

With increase in GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. The original ve @
eir

manufacturer's axle ratings must not be exceeded in nommal and practical loading resultin
after the GVM is rerated, unless reinforced replacement axles are fitted; in that ca
ratings must not be exceeded.

Where certification is by comparison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, and
suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identical to those fitied by the
manufacturer to the reference vehicle with the higher GVM rating. @

In cases where a component manufacturer has published informatitg cing the
capacity of a component for safety reasons, the reduced rating must a

3 4 Tail Shaft

Changes associated with rerated GVM may place additicnal I% icle's tailshaft
example:

¢ changes to vehicle ride height which may alter the tailsha pinicn angles;

* alterations to a vehicle’s wheelbase may result in changeinjailshaft length;
s changes to engine andfor transmissions may im@cre‘ased torsional loading on the
tailshaft.

The vehicle's tailshaft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicle's rerated

GVM.

3.5Sus nsion @

With an inc ease in gross mass, itional loads are placed on suspension. Vehicle's
suspension ratings must not only be ate for the revised GVM but must be able to

accommodate the axle loads ting from normal and practical leading patterns. Effects of

changes in ride height must Ily considered. FOR EXAMPLE, bump and rebound
travel, hydraulic brake hose | ndling & roll stability.

Therefore, the vehi king systermn must be assessed to determine if the original systemn

ed GVM or if it requires to be upgraded.
3.7 Steeri g&

The entire(gt system must be identical to that fitted by the manufacturer to the original or

N

3.6 Brakes %
A vehicle's braking % ce is directly affected by changes to the vehicle’s gross load.

is adequate for
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
tyres (and rims) cn each axle must be adequate to support the load imposed on that axle.

The load carrying capacity of any tyre or im must not be exceeded when the vehicle is loaded @
to the revised GVM rating and the load is distributed in a practical and uniform way, é

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements of the relevant
(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04) at the revised GVM rating.

If required, an amending tyre placard must be fitted to indicate the correct tyre specifications
for the vehicle at the revised GVM rating. The revised tyre size and load rati st also

appear on the modification plate and in the cwner's handbook.
Qo \Q

o
<&
N
&
Q
>
&
@
R
S
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40Load a citylLabeland ndbook

To ensure the vehicle operator is adequately informed of the changes such as the vehicle's \
towing capacity and tyre requirements, the vehicle’s handbook must be updated. The update

must provide specific details of the tyres and the towing capacity and if applicable, any

reduction in towing capacity due to vehicle loading conditicns and/or vertical load on tow ball

(ball weight).

If the vehicle's handhook is not available this information must be provided in written form to
the owner of the vehicle owner. In addition this information may be included on the load
capacity label discussed below.

The label must follow the below label as an example and must be fitted to the vehicle, as

A label containing important information about the vehicle's load capacity must also be fitted. @me.ggem Line spacing’ single
close as practicable to the vehicle’s tyre placard.

atin s ¢ Ratin Information
SS A roval#ifa I e
e ted VM kg
aximum Towin  ass at GVM* k
Maximum Front Axl s Permitt k
aximum r le/s ssPermitted k

*Warning: The maximum ma  the vehicle  n safely to @d on
vehicle | dingan ortrailer |l weight For further info i rding towing
cities lease refer to the vehicle's han

5.0 Li itations @

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see Sec %ddiuon. the following Formatted: Right' 0 16 cm, Line spacing s ngle
limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 apply.

51 lectromic Staihty Control @

Changes fo a vehicle's GVM can have a direct effi lectronic stability control (ESC) Formatted: Right. 0.16 cm, L'ne spacing. single
performance. Therefore, for vehicles fitted with E tern must be tested to ensure it

continues to comply with the relevant ADR or magiu rer's specifications. However, this is
not required where a vehicle's GVM is being rer. to a manufacture's alternative variant or
by S5M approval such that the system's mv@e s been demonstrated.

5.2 Effect on towing ca city

The towing capacity of a light vehicle as Gross Combination Mass (GCM) rating or
Rated Towing Capacity or Maximum Bra owing Mass rating must not exceed the value set
by the original vehicle manufa . This code does not permit an increase in rated towing
capacity or GCM rating. For m vehicles rated towing capacity or GCM rating may not
be specified by the original v ufacturer. In such cases the limit mentioned in the Safe
Towing Guide applies. When iginal vehicle manufacturer has specified GCM rating or
rated towing capacity or braked towing mass, please note that the maximum mass
that can be legally tow en (he vehicle is loaded at the rerated GYM must be proportionately
reduced to ensure that(the of GVM and maximum towing mass at GVM before and after

rerating remains un

6.0 Additior&f' tions and Changes to Vehicle Category

&
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oceurred due to the increase in GVM, certification using the appropriate additional codes must

be provided. @

Where additional modifications have been performed or a change in vehicle category has \
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7.0 Use of L 11 code to provide design ce ‘fication for GV Re ting

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM rerating of a vehicle of a- - '{Formaneﬁk%&m‘ing- snge

particular make/modelfvariant/chassis series. The design cerlification may be provided using
any of the rerating criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough 50 a suitably qualified and accredited
Approved Person holding a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a
series of modified vehicles of that make/model/ivarant/chassis series and generate the
necessary evidence to ensure that the requirements of the design certification are met.

N

When LS11 code is used in this way lo provide design certification, the Approved Pepso @;wmmed: Line spacing: single

providing the design certification may not inspect the modified vehicle and is not required t
an L.S11 modification plate to the vehicle. Also the checklist completed as part of the thedesign
certification may not refer to any particular VIN.

fications-

The outputs of a Design Certification under L511 are {(a) design package (b) LS11 i
as rds

certificate and (c) LS11 modification checklist. All these outputs must be preserv
and must be made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purpose.

s) nPacka e Qo

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and mmp@y address the-

following four requirements: @
Design certification must tightly describe to which makelm@ﬂchassis series it applies.
m

7.1.18co ofw atis eligible

If its applicability is restricted to specific build years that al e mentioned.

Since the modification and the rerating is being don in-service vehicles, the condition of
those in-service vehicles plays an important role in determining which vehicle can safely receive
the rerating. This must be reflected in the scope § e design package by stating what
must be inspected and what is acceptable to ide~trat the vehicle is safe to modify and
receive rerating. Condition of the shock absorbel uspension, frame, tow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect. Absence o , deformations and structural damage due
to rust is also critical,

The dBesign certification package m
as a record that, before modification,

and is in sound condition. \
7.1.2 Evidence

Integral to the design p@ ut is the collection of various test reports and engineering+
calculations that validat rerdiing when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from
reputed test laboratories, t have unigue identification number and must be signed and
dated. Test reports ake unambiguous reference to the specific make/model/variants of

the vehicle or co t'to which they apply and must contain conclusion about pass or fail
criteria.

e was inspected and confirmed that it is eligible

cka

according to %&1
Engineerin [ ns must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They must be«
compiled Jiideraunique identifier.

N
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f any evidence s sourced from a third party, the package must include a written permissio Formatted: LI aing )4 ngle
from that party for use of its reports.

For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, it is not uncommon for design certifier to- - - -[ Foprhatiad: g spacing: sing e

not include the entire evidence package in the design package output being given to the
custormner. Where this is the case, however, the design package must list all the key test reports
and calculation sheets (using their unique identifiers) and provide written assurance that full
evidence package will be made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructio s for modification matted: Font color: Blue, Eng ish (United States),

Not Expanded by / Condensed by
The design package output must contain detailed work instructions on how to modi Formatted: ne spaong sngle
vehicle, what parts to be used, what sequence of actions to be performed, what precautions
be taken and what process controls to be applied.
Work Instructions must also include details of any (non-destructive) testing and inspections to
be carried out to ensure that the modification standards are mel. ®
The instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous and should j ufficien Formatted: Line spacing. single
pictorials and graphics.

¢
The work instruction must also include contact detail for querying or segki % jcation, shauld
that be required during modification.

7.1.4 Checklist for the odifier and the certifier @ Formatted: Font color Blue, English (United States),
Not Expanded by / Condensed by
This output of the design package consists of two separate%g%gone each for the vehicle
modifier and the certifier of the physical modification. Th P of these checklists is to
generate evidence that the modifier and the cemﬁ% physical modification have
understood and followed the prescribed procedure a re to confirm that the intent of the
design package has been met. The design ceniﬁe'%}SH may choose to collect such
completed checklists from the modifier and the ce ofiohysical modification as part of hisfher
own quality assurance or risk management pradlice.

Note that this checklist is different than any 4 that the certifier of the physical modification
M)}

may be required to complete as part er cedification under the relevant code.

7.2 odification Certifi te Formatted: Font color: Blue, English {United States),
Not Expanded by / Condensed by

For this output, a modification te must be issued similar to any other modification code,

except that the certificate mag/n e reference to any specific modification plate number or

vehicle by its VIN.

7.3 Modification Ch c@ Formatted: Font color: Blue, English {United States
Not Expanded by / Condensed by

For this output, tion checklist at the end of this code must be completed and retained

for each design ed/under LS11 code

8
&
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Checklist L511

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

51

5.2

6.1

6.2
63

64

71

8.1

8.2

Gross Ve icle ass! crease
CODE LS11

Form No: LS11

Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not A licable)

Sus nsion
Is the vehicle's suspension suitable for the increased GVM?

Chassis

Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM?

Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM?
Engine/Trans ission

Is the engineftransmission suitable for the increased GVM? o

o

raking System %

Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehi
ensure compliance with ADR 31/.. or 35/.., whi : @

applicable?
(applicable in all cases apart from upgrading
a roval oro " inal vehicle manufacturer's o tion

Is the vehicle's b ake system suitable for the ingreas VM?

and load ratin  for the modified vehi
Has an updated tyre placard been o'the vehicle?
Do tyres and rims fitted conforrido dification plate and the

lacard?

TyresandRi s
Does the Modification Plate record lhz@ and rim sizes
t

Are load ratings of the tyres ifms adequate for the
vehicle's new GVM?

Electronic Stability
Has the vehicle" tem been tested to confirm that the

system contin eetl the relevant ADR or manufacturer's
specifications?

Load Ca formation
Is the L@acity Label attached to the vehicle?

Has hicle's handbook been amended or addifional

@n been included on the Load Ca ci Labei?

NA Y N

----- Y N
— ¥ N
— Y N
e Y N
— Y N
NA Y N
- Y N
— Y N
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9 Man acturer’'s Optional GVM

9.1 Does the re-rated GVM match an alternative option for the
same make, model and variant produced by the vehicle NA Y N
manufacturer?

9.2  Are all components relevant to the GVM rerating (brake,
engine, transmission, suspension, tyres and rims etc) NA Y N
identical to the original vehicle manufacturer's altemative
specification?

10  Second Stage of anufacturer GV

10.1  Has the SSM Approval holder provided wrilten approval to NA Y N
use that SSM design?

10.2  If certifying the GVM upgrade using a Low Volume SSM
Approval, has a statutory declaration been obtained?

10.3 Does the rerated GVM match that of the SSM approval? NIA@
10.4  Are all components relevant to the GVM rerating (brake, @ N
suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the SSM designg\

11 Fit ent of an additional axle

N/A Y N

111 If the vehicle's GVM has been increase more than 10% s @ NA Y N

additional axle load shanng? %

12 Only if LS11 code is used to provide Design ification

121  |Is a comprehensive design package provid -— ¥ N

12.2  Does the design package have a unique-dentification — Y N
number?

12.3 Does the design package clearly déscnbewhich

S5t
make/modelivariant/chass s serllble for rerating? — Y N

124 Does the design package include guidance on what to inspect

in the in-service vehicle and how to/determine 'ts fitness to - Y N
receive GVM upgrade?

12.5 Does the design pa lude a complete Evidence — Y N
Package on which erating is based?

12.6 Does the desig include comprehensive work
instructions ingfudingwork to be done, precautions to be - ¥ N
taken, contrgh o esses and tests to be conducted?

12.7 Doesth i ackage include a checklist for the modifier Y N
of the v e

Do%sign package include a checklist for the certifier — Y N
@: ified vehicle?
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code?

12.9  Does the design package address all the requirements of this Y \

Note: If the answer to any question is N {No) the des gn cannot be certified under LS11 @
code. If N/A does not already appear in the checklist then it cannot be used

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
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odificati s ea in t rai f ross e ices s of
ic to esi iic tio
oelL 15
1.0 Scope

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or le when those
modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 i rtification. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the L3815 certification must follow the ess specified in the
design package in the relevant LS11 design certification. @

1.1 Ce ifi tions ermi e der LS15 code @

Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under 515 code:

¢ Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM by modifying it according t@lnstructions inan 1.S11 design
certification issued for the samelmake/modellvarianﬂcf@
wi

o Rerating of a light vehicle's GVM in accordance

manufacturer. @

1.2 Certifications not e itte u der S$S15code; @
Light vehicle modifications of the following types m@be certified under LS15 code:

+ Modifications other than those covered 2!‘1@%cﬁon 1.1 above.

¢ Rerating of a vehicle which does not or GVM rerating under LS11 code.

e8s.

letter from the original vehicle

¢ Rerat ng of a vehicle, the GVM of whi efore modification, s greater than 4500 kg.

¢ Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM c@c , after modification, will be greater than 4500 kg.

* Rerating of GVM by compari ithran alternative make/model of vehicle.

e Rerating of GVM by com;@%h another vehicle which has been previously rerated using

modification code.

o Rerating of GVM @ on assessment of component specifications or component
manufacturer’s ifications only.

¢ Rerating of Gv@m to first registration anywhere in Australia. For it, follow the procedures

prescribed f aining a Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

N

2.0 General ements

21 yi ificatio s

Typicm ical modifications involved in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspensio or braking system with alternative components which collectively may permit a different
rating and/or reinforcement chassis frame.

2 e ati difi tio s

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

2.3 Affected A s

Modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) to which it w
originally constructed and also the ADRs that apply to it after modification. Where there is a conflict
is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the modificatitn.

24 orkl st ctio s o thelS11desin cae
Medifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the(design package of t
relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the degignpackage.

2.5 Testing a d Inspectio

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package miust be completed and evidence
of it must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing arty checklist(s) that the design
package requires

3.0 cilc equire ents

3.1 Tyres an eel ims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres.and rims fitted to an axle or axle group must be at
least equal to the load rating of that axle or axle group-orthe load imposed on that axle or axle group
when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with thiedload distributed uniformly and in a practical way),
whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly and practically, must not result in the
load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured to comply With)ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04, the tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with the requirements of that ADR at the revised GVM rating.

Where a tyre placard is fitted to 4vehicle, this placard may require to be replaced with a new placard
replicating the manufacturer's-altemnative model vehicle or as specified in the LS11 design certification.
The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification plate.

3.2C assis

The chassis of the madified’ vehicle must be according to the LS11 design certification or identical to
the original vehicle rranufacturer's alternate model/variant.

3.3 rakes

The complete\braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design certification or identical to the
vehicle marufacturer’'s specifications for the alternate model/variant.

4 YesaydS s  nsion

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
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3.5 a rication

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting, heating,
welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosing unmodified production components
wherever possible.

3.6 Ve icle Eligibili and|l -se ice Cond io

Before carrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code, the conditior(of the in-servic
vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design certificati sure that th
vehicle is elig'ble for rerating This is to be achieved in two steps

Step-1 To verify that the vehicle make/model/variant/chassis series and b ﬁ within the scope
of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2 To inspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is su@ for rerating. The relevant
instructions in the design package of LS11 design cerification m € followed to ensure that the

chassis frame, suspension, brakes and so on are in safe an iceable condition at the rerated
GVM. Evidence of this inspection must be recorded in the cheéklist provided.

3.7 anufact rer’ Le e @
Rerating based on original vehicle manufacturer's letter:

In this option a letter issued by the vehicle's original ma turer is required.
To be considered acceptable, the manufacturer's I@st contain at least the following information:

¢ Vehicle manufacturer’'s details (i e manuf@ex’s letter head with contact information})

 Make/model/variant of the vehicle %

¢ Vehicle Identification Number (VIN@arﬁcular vehicle being modified

e Details of any physical changes d to be performed to the vehicle (along with details of
specific components to be fitt @

¢ Revised GVM rating

¢ Signed and dated by te of the original vehicle manufacturer

>
$
@
RS
&
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C ec list $15
R rati gof ross Vehicles assofa ightVe icleto $11 esignCe i1
C DELS15

Form No: LS15
Y=Yes, N=No)

General

Have all details of the design package of LS11 design certification
or a letter from the original vehicle manufacturer been retained far
future audit?

Chassis

Does the chassis conform to the detail construction, section
properties and cross-members of the LS11 design package or to
an s ecified in the vehicle manufacturer's letter?

Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation,
cracks and rust erforation?

ra e syste

Is the vehicle’s entire braking system as specified in the design
package of the LS11 design certification or the specifications in the
vehicle manufacturer’s letter?

Is the braking system in serviceable condifion, free from leaks, wear
and foulin /stretchin ?

yresa d ims

Does the tyre placard (if fitted) ¥ecord-the correct tyre and rim sizes,
axle configurations, axle loadsand-inflation pressures for the modified
vehicle as s ecified in the LS4 dgsi n certification?

Are tyres and rims fitted in'Cenformance to the tyre placard?

ligi il'y- ke/modelariant/c assis series

Does the vehicle mgetthe eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11
desi n certificatioh?

ility- Vehicle/conditio

Is the vehicie_in satisfactory structural and mechanical condition?

or —a'sJip

Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?

Are’the checklists required in the LS11 design certification
cor/ leted?

Az all the inspections and tests as required in LS11 design
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
Brief Description of §

Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By @

TMR In-Principle Approval

Number @
Vehicle Certified By (Print) s\/

Signatory’s Employer

(If applicable) . §
N

Signatory's Signature % Date
&
N
9D
o
S
‘o
&
%,
N
&
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Shane F Lonsdale

From: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Monday, 28 May 2018 4.08 PM

To: Patricia L Bailey

Subject: FW: Revised LS11 and the new LS15 codes

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 comments DC.EA.docx; LS15 Version May

2018 V1 Comments DC EA.doc

This is the documents with all the information.

Kind regards, §

Shane Lonsdale

Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Transport Regulation Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9| 61 Mary Street Brishane 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valiey Qid 4006

P:; 3066 3469

E: vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au @
W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au

N
v
L0
D
From: Elizabeth P Austin @

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 4:07 PM @
‘gov.au>; Adam Shaw <Adam.M.Shaw@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Peter N

To: Vehicle Standards <vehiclestandards@t

Twining <peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au>@ F Lonsdate <Shane.F.Lonsdale@tmr.gid.gov.au>

Cc: Deann G Coleman <deann.g.colema .gld.gov.au>; Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Revised L511 and the new/L odes

Good afternoon gentlemen

Please find attached the mar@ﬂl & LS15 drat documents as discussed in today’s meeting.

Thank you. @
Regards %@

Elizabeth Austi

AP Polic

Approved Pers ¢ me | Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Services, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
E: a oli tmr. Id. ov.au
W: www.imr. Id. ovau
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From: Tracey L Dreier

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 7:36 AM

To: Deann G Coleman <deann. .cole an tmr. Id. ov.au>; Elizabeth P Austin <eliza et . .austin tmr. Id. ov.au
Subject: Fwd: Revised LS11 and the new LS15 codes

Hi Deann and Liz

Could you guys please review and send your comments back to me so | can review and send¢onsciitlated response
back to Shane. Thanks.

Regards

Tracey Dreier

A/Manager (Operator Accreditation & Authorisation)
Transport Regulation Branch

Ph: 3066 2532

MOb: Not relevant

Begin forwarded message:

From: Shane F Lonsdale <Shane.F.Lonsdale  tmr. Id. ov.au>

Date: 18 May 2018 at 1:36:16 pm AEST

To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notle  tmr. ld. ov.au>, Angnt-Z Beéllary

<Anant.Z. ela tmr. Id. ov.au>, "Adam Shaw" <Ada \>—8 aw t r. |d. ov.au>, Neil L Todd
< ilLLLTODD t r. Id. ov.au>

Cc: Peter N Twining < eter.n.twinin  tmr. Id. ovau>,Peter R Phillips

< eter. .Philli s tmr. Id. ov.au>, Patricia L Bailey/< )ptricia. . aile t r. |d. ov.au>, Christina T
Myers <christina.t.m ers tmr. |d. ov.au>Jracey ). Dreier <Trace . reier tmr. [d. ov.au>
Subject: Revised LS11 and the new LS15 codes

Good afternoon all

Please find a draft of the revised LS1i-and the new L515 codes for the re rating of a light vehicles
GVM. If you have any comment’s please do them in mark up and have them back to me by the 25
May 2018.

Any questions please let me know and | will try to help.

Kind regards,

Shane Lonsdale

Vehicle Standards | Legisiation and Standards

Transport RegulaticivBranich | Department of Transpori and Main Roads
Floor 9 | 61 Mary SfdeetNBrishbane 4000

PO Box 673 | Fogitutay/alley Qid 4006

P: 3066 3469

E: vehiclestapidards@tmr.gld.gov.au

W: www.tme gidigov.au
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odi icatio s Lea i gto eratin of ross Ve icles ass ofa Light \
Ve icl toL 11 Desig Ce ific tion

Code LS15 bad [EPAL]: This doesn | stand out as bewng the code 2
bt 1120
@ d fEPA2]): 1511 1alks abowt amending tyre ptacard
. . . . . 3 i \ apaity Label and Handbeck  are we relying of the LS11
The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to the ds :w tions 10 nchude duis in the instructions i we are 1
reraling of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or less) when those think this will be a big problem

addition to the requiremenis in this code, the LS15 cerlification must follow the process specified in the
design package in the relevani LS 11 design certification
“according 10 instrucuons™ under | | as I ihink “process specified” 15

@ not that easy for our APs to understand
1.1 Certifications pe ittedu rLS15code ij

modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design certification. In @

mmented [E 15 This meant 10 thean the same as

Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under L515 code:

» Rerating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it according to the instructions in an LS11 design
certification issued for the same/make/modelfvanant/chassis series.

» Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance with a letler from th | vehicle
manufacturer.
Q
1.2 Certifi tions not itted under LS15 code

» Modifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 abo
+ Rerating of a vehicle which does not qualify for GVM rerati% 11 code.
i5g

Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not be certified und%@%gde:

« Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modificatio ter than 4500 kg.

+ Rerating of a vehicle the GVM of which, after modification, willbe greater than 4500 kg

+ Rerating of GVM by comparing with an alternative el of vehicle.

s Rerating of GVM by comparing with another vehjcie.whici'has been previously rerated using a
modification code.

« Rerating of GVM based on assessm mponent specifications or component
manufacturer's specifications only. @

¢ Rerating of GVM prior to first regisiration ahywhere in Australia For it, follow the procedures

prescribed for obtaining a Second S ufacture (SSM) approval
2.0 neral Requirements @
2.1 Typical tions Commented [EPA4): Does the AP have (o cettify each physical
Typical physical modificationg.involvéd in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s), modificaion  wxle, suspension, Beakdag ot it this al covered undes

suspension or braking syst ternative components which collectively may permit a different
rating and/or reinforcement sis frame,

2.2 Rerating without icgtions
In some cases rer% M may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter is

Connecting Quee r@ 13 QGov (13 74 68}
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Issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required. Care must
be taken when comparing as some properties may not be obvious and evident In these instances, Commented [ g the AP comparmg

evidence must be retained to demenstrate that the vehicle is ident cal to the manufacturer's letter,

2.3 Affected AD s

Modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) to which it was

originally constructed and also the ADRs that apply to it after mod fication. Where there s a conflict, it [EPAS]: Is the conflict only in relation 1o the ADRs

is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the modification. oy the modificarlon hat i, Al oher ADRS (or consiuction
24 Work Inst  tions fromt LS11 sign ck
Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the design package of
relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the design package
2 5 Testing and !Inspection
Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package must be completed a iden
of it must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing any checklist(s) that the n
package requires
305 cific Require nts @
31T res  WheelRi s % @
The sum of the load carmying capacities of the tyres and rims fitted to an axig’ér a roup must be at
least equal to the load rating of that axle or axle group or the load impos: axle or axle group
when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with the load distributed uni d in a practical way),
whichever is less.
Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly a %&Ily, must not result in the
load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.
For vehicles manufactured to comply with ADR 24/ or ADR , the tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with the requirements of that ADR at ihie revised GVM rating.
Where a tyre placard is fitted 1o a vehicle, this placard eqiire to be replaced with a new placard
replicaling the manufaciurer's alternative model vehiciaor as-specified in the LS11 design certification.
The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear.o madification plate.
3.2C ssis @
The chassis of the modified vehicle must bz according to the LS11 design cerlification or identical to
the original vetucle manufaclurer's alternate ariant.
3.3 Brakes
The complete braking system mus ecified in the LS11 design certification or identical lo the
vehicle manufacturer's specification e a ternate model/variant
3 4 Axles and Suspension Q
Loading of the vehicle to it& GVM with load distributed uniformly and practically, must nol result in the
load on any axle or sus i xceeding its rated capacity. Rated capacity of an axle or suspension
is the rating speciﬁed@ original vehicle manufacturer, unless reinforced replacement axle or
[ Co ted [EPA7): The labe be attached T
suspension is -ﬁﬁe% LS:'I":::t men[mned |]n LSS J:::'.'s]:::mb?:tzr m'::?:: har
the label 1s fitted?
Connecting Quee 13 QGov (33 74 68)
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35 abri tion
All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting, heating,

welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosing unmodified production components
wherever possible.
3.6 Vehicle ligi i’ a In-service Condition

Before camrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code, the condition of the in-service
vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design certification to ensure that the
vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is to be achieved in two steps. @

Step-1 To verify that the vehicle make/modelivariant/chassis series and build year is within the Sd@

of the LS11 design certification.
Step-2 To inspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for rerating. The

instructions in the design package of LS11 design certification must he followed to ensure that the
chassis frame, suspension, brakes and so on are in safe and serviceable condition rerated
GVM. Evidence of this inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided

37 anufacturer's Letter o @
Rerating based on original vehicle manufacturer’s letter: \
In this option a letter issued by the vehicle's original manufacturer is require:

To be considered acceptable, the manufacturer’s letter must contain at lea ing info

« Vehicle manufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer's letter head &9 t information)

«  Make/model/variant of the vehicle
e Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) of the particular vehicle hei odified

» Details of any physical changes required to be perfo to vehicle (along with details of

specific compenents to be fitted)
+ Revised GVM rating

« Signed and dated by the delegate of the originall¢ehicle, manufacturer

QO
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Checklist LS15 \

Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11  sign Certi cation
C E S15

od [EPAB): | believe that we can make this checklist
friendly by expanding the information  clarifyang

Form No: LS$15 d,

Y=Yes, N=No)

1 neral
u have rrnatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto

co ofthelS11des ncertfi ton acka e with allinstructions to  rh Formatted: Fo t Not Bold, Font calo A to

sm i1 ion " nCer @
OR
aco ofaletterfromt on inal vehice manufacturer Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto

Note: If oudonothaveo oft ea ove ouareu bleto Font: Bold
mod’ Jfcerti this vehicle Font color: Auto

Are wuaccr itedio i t additonalm ifi tion codes o
re uir b the LS11 desi n cedtification acka eort vehi

manufa r's letter? tail %
: tur it?
2 Chassis
54 Does the chassis conform to the detail mnstmction%ﬁ

properties and cross-members of the LS11 design pac orte
an " ed in the vehicle manufaciurer’s letter? %
{a] iol

. § Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto

Commented [EPAS]): Not sure how to word this'!!

292 Is the chassis frame structurally sound free fro n,
i cracks and rust  rforation?

3 Brake system
31 Is the vehicle's entire braking system as 5 irthe design
package of the LS11 design certificalion e specifications in the

vehicle manufacturer’s letter?
32 Is the braking system in serviosable@:n, free from leaks, wear

and fouli stretchi ?
4 T sandRims
41 Does the tyre placard (if fitted} comect tyre and rim sizes,
axle configurations, axleloads and inflation pressures for the modified

vehicle as ‘fied in th 1des’ cerification?
42  Are tyres and rims fitt: ance to the tyre placard?

5 ligibility- ake/| e iantlc  sis series

51 Does the vehicl et tha eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11

condition

tisfactory structural and mechanical condition?
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7
71
7.2
7.3
74

75

Note: If the answer to any question is N {No) the modification cannct be certified under
LS1

Connecting Quee,
delivering transport for pi

Y

orkmanship
Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfaclory standard?

Are the checklists required in the LS11 design certification
com leted?
Are all the inspections and tests as required in LS11 design
certification com leted?
Is the GVM rerating plate/label as specified in the LS11 design
certification fitted?

ve uke tallsu ori documents relied onb u the cert’
this i t and otosoft ' vehic  for future audit?

< =< =< <

zZ Zz Z2 Z
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make M Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number

(If applicable)

Brief Description of @
Modification/s

Veohicle Modified By

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified By {Print} @
Signatory's Employer Q @
(If applicable) \

Signatory's Signature

13 QSov (33 74 68}
www tmr.qld gov.au | www.gld.gov au
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odifi tio s Leadingto Reratin of GrossVe i s ass ofa Light \

Vehicle to LS11 esign Certi1 ati
C elSi15 Comm : This docsn't stand out as being the code 2

Lo b [EPA2): 1511 talks about amending tyre placard
N i ) X . nyuhclandHnndbook are we relying of the LS11
The L$15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to the &g tions 1o inchude this 1n the insmmucnions  if we are 1
reraling of Gross Vehicle Mass {GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or less) when those think (RIS will be 2 big problem

modifications conform lo the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design certification, In @

addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the

design package in the relevant LS11 design certification mmented [EPA3]: Is this meant to mean the same as

“according to instructions wnder 11 1 think “process spesified” 3

@ not that easy for our APs 1o understand
1.1Ce ' cations rm edu
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under LS15 code:

s Rerating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it according to the instructions in an LS11 design
cedtification issued for the samef/make/modelivariant/chassis series.

manufaciurer.

* Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance with a letter from the o } vehicle
- O

* Modifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 abo

+ Rerating of a vehicle which does not qualify for GVM rerati% 11 code.

= Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modification)Nis greater than 4500 kg.

s« Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which after modificati il I3& greater than 4500 kg.

+ Rerating of GVM by comparing with an alternative el of vehicle.

1.2 Certifications not pe itted under LS15 code: @
Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not be certified und@ e:

+ Rerating of GVM by comparing with another vehjele whi as been previously rerated using a
modification code.

s Rerating of GVYM based on assessm mponent specifications or component
manufacturer’s specifications only, @

» Rerating of GVM prior to first regis(ration anywhere in Australia. For it, follow the procedures

prescribed for obtaining a Second St ufacture (SSM) approval
2.0 Gene | equi ments @
2 1 Typical Modiﬁ tions Commentad [EPA4}: Docs the AP have (0 cenify each physical
Typical physical modifications‘invoivied in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s), modifiction _ nks, sapntion, braking o i his allcovered wnder
suspension or braking syst; lternative components which collectively may pemit a different
rating and/or reinfo cement is frame
2.2 e ting without icgtions
In some cases rer%% M may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter is
Connecting Quee 6@ 13 QGov (13 74 6B)
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issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required. Care must
be taken when compating, as some properties may not be obvious and evident. In these instances, Commented [ g he AP

evidence must be retained to demonstrate that the vehicle is identical to the manufacturer’s letter.

2 3 Affected ADRs

Modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules {(ADRs) to which it was

originally constructed and also the ADRs that apply to it after modification. Where there is a conflict, it [EPAG]: Is the canflict only in relation to the ADRs

is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the modification el the modification that . all ather ADRs for construction

2.4 Work Instructions fromt LS11  sign
Madifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the design package of
relevant LS11 design certification Replacement parts must conform to the design package

2 5 Testing and Inspection

Tesling and inspection requirements specified in the design package must be completed arid-eviden
of it must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing any checklist(s) that the n
package requ res

308 cific Requirements §

3 1 Tyres and Wheel Rims 04

The sum of the load carrying capacities of the tyres and rims filled to an a ra roup must be at
least equal to the load rating of that axle or axle group or the load impo axle or axle group
when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with the load distributed uni d in a practical way),
whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly a mally, must not result in the
load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.
For vehicles manufactured to comply with ADR 24/ or Al . the tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with the requirements of that ADR al ftie revised GVM rating,

r

Where a tyre placard is fitted to a vehicle, this placard ire 1o be replaced with a new placard
replicating the manufacturer's alternative model vehi r as-specified in the LS11 design certification
The revised tyre size and load rating must also app: onihe modification plate.

32C assis
The chassis of the modified vehicle must be acconding to the LS esign certification or identical to
the original vehicle manufacturer's alternat anant

vehicle manufacturer's specificatio alternate modelivariant.

3.3 rakes \
The complete braking system musl@ ecified in the LS11 design certification or identical to the
e

3.4 Axles and Sus ension

Loading of the vehicle to it§ GVM With lcad distributed uniformly and practically, must not result in the
locad on any axle or sus xceeding its rated capacity. Rated capacity of an axle or suspension
is the rating speciﬂed@ original vehicle manufacturer, unless reinforced replacement axle or

LS Commented [EPAZ]: The label that has 1o be attached as part of
suspension is [ﬁtte LS11 is not mentioned in LS15  who is respensible for ensunng that
the Iabel is fitted”
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3.5 Fabrication

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting, heating,
welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosing unmadified production components
wherever possible

3.6 Vehic Eli ibility and In-se ice Co ition

Before carrying oul the modifications and certification under LS15 code, the condition of the in-service
vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design cedification to ensure that the
vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is to be achieved in two steps. @

Step-1 To verify that the vehicle make/model/ivariant/chassis series and build year is within the
of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2 To inspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for rerating. The Vi
instructions in the design package of LS11 design certification must be followed to ensure that the
chassis frame, suspension, brakes and so on are in safe and serviceable condition rerated
GVM. Evidence of this inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided. @

3.7 Manufacturer's Letter 5 @

Rerating based on original vehicle manufacturer's letter:

In this option a letter issued by the vehicle’s original manufacturer is required

To be considered acceptable, the manufacturer's letier must contain at least the-fpllgwing information:

information)

¢ Vehicle manufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer's letter head% 3

+  Make/modelfvariant of the vehicle
+ Vehicle Identification Number (VIN} of the particular vehicl i odified

el

» Details of any physical changes required to be perfo to vehicle {along wath d
specific components to be fitted)

*  Revised GVM rating @

»  Signed and dated by the delegate of the originallyeh anufacturer

QO
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Checklist LS15 \

e-rating of Gr Vehic s ssofalight Vehicleto LS11  sign Cert’ ation

21

22
3
3.1

32
4
41

42
3
5.1
6
61

CODE LS15 pd-JEPAS): | believe that we can make this chocklist
ser friendly by expanding the information  ¢larifying

Form No: LS15 d
Y=Yes, N=No)

Gene |

Do u ve: @vmaned: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto

co ofthe LS11 desi ncerifi tion acka e with all instructions o ¢ Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color Auto

this  odification s nCert

O

aco ofa tterfromthe o inalvehicle manufa rer Font Not Eold, Font color Auto

Note: iIf ou t ve neoft a ove ouareuna Font Bold

modi fcerti this vehic Font color: Auto
N Font: Mot Bold, Font color: Auto

Are uaccredt tocerti the additio Im ification es @
reur bt LS11desin ifi tion or the vehiclg
manufacturers tter? &\9
Chassis E i @

Commented [EPA9]: Not sure how 1o word this'!

Does the chassis conform to the detaif constructio
properties and cross-members of the LS11 design pa e or to
an s cified in the vehicle manufacturer's letter?
Is the chassis frame structurally sound free fro formation,
cracks and rust  rforation?

rake system

Is the vehicle's entire braking system as s e design
package of the LS11 design certification e spacifications in the N
vehicle manufacturer’s letter?

Is the braking system in serviceabl ion free from leaks, wear
and fouli stretchi 7

Does the tyre placard (if fitted) e comect tyre and rim sizes,
axle configurations, axle loads and inflation pressures for the modified
vehicle as " odin 11 des’ cerification?

Are tyres and rims fitt mance to the tyre placard?

Eligibility- ake/ riant/c

Does the vehiclérneet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11
des’ cerlification?

Eligibility- condition
Is the vel in satisfactory structural and mechanical condition?

N

Connecting Qu 4@ 13 QGov (13 74 68)
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74
72
73
74

75

Note: If the answe to any guestion is N (No) the modification cannot be certified under
S1

Connecting Quee
delivering transport for pi

=

o ma hip
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

Have wuke tallsu ri documentsrel donb  ut b
this odifi tion and tosof the mod  wvehicle for future audit?

< < < =<

zZ2 Z Z Z
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS @
Make M Year of

Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number

(If applicable)

Brief Description of @
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

TMR in-Principle Approval
Number

Signatory’s Employer

Vehicle Certified By (Prinf) @
o \©

(If applicable)

Signatory’s Signature

©
&
&
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Shane F Lonsdale

From: Shane F Lonsdale

Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 7:46 AM

To: Peter N Twining; Anant Z Bellary; Patricia L Bailey

Ce: 'Scott G Notiey (Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au)’

Subject: LS11 changes and the new LS15

Good morning Team \

This is a link to all the information in regards to the LS11 changes and the new L515: s&ir ocu ent
ana ement Co esof ractice C P LS11 & LS15 review

The table has current emails and contact details for the type approval holders and the ed LS11 holders.

I will be discussing this information at this afternoons meeting @

Kind regards, @
Shane Lonsdale

Vehicle Standards | Legislation and Standards

Transport Regulation Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9| 61 Mary Street Brisbane 4000

PO Box 6§73 | Forlitude Valley Qld 4006

P: 3066 3469

E: vehiclestandards@imr.qgld.gov.au §
Q \

W. www.tmr.qld.gov.au
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Vehicle Standards

Not relevant

From: @sixwheeler.com.a

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 1:28 PM

To: Peter N Twining; Vehicle Standards

Subject: RE: New LS15 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment
Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11 completed.pdf; Form for

Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS15 completed.pdf; RVCS {ircular 0-4 6
response letter18062018.pdf

Thanks Peter,

Please see the attached documents.

Regards,

Not relevant

Director

Six Wheeler Conversions Pty Ltd
1 Brook St North Too oo ba Id 4350
Australia

Not relevant

LARRY RE
g Fa)
s 0/ W a3
Our Hrands

' NICE RACK
SIX JIZAK

Proud agents for

l HAYMAN
ae
/ Ultimate/ CLER

TOWING MIRRORS
/SUSPENSION / AUTHORISED DEALERS
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From: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 6:42 AM

To: Vehicle Standards <vehiclestandards@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: New LS15 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment

Dear Stakeholders

Code LS15 to he
purpose of
, particularly

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modificati
incorporated into the Queensland Code of Practice (QCoP) for Light Vehicle Modificati
the new code is to enhance the operation of the previously developed LS11 modificatio
in the remote and regional areas of Queensland. @

difications leading to
gor less) when those

The attached L515 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify phys
the rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of an in-service light vehicle (GVIM 4,58

maodifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LSl ign certification. In addition to
the requirements in this code, the LS1S certification must follow the proc ecnhed in the design package
in the relevant LS11 design certification issued to the vehicle of same model/vanant/chassus series.
The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to |de esign certification. Some other

changes have also been made to LS11 code to provide greater clarity-about the intent of the LS11 code.
Mote that the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combi esign and modification code to certify
GVM rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code

Both the new LS15 code and the amended LS11 cod hed for your perusal and feedback. Please
provide any comiments, via email to vehiclestandar@@t .ald.gov.au by the close of business on Friday,

20" July 2018. You may use the attached templat : (0 provide your feedback. It is proposed to

implement these codes 3¢ September 2018.

LS15 code the required qualification will -1 or Level-2, as per the business rules. The latter is a trade
based qualification which is considerad iate for the new LS15 code. | have attached the following
link to the gualification table for your c ience:

The qualifications for the revised L511 code\% ain unchanged (that is, Qualification No 1). For the new

https://www.tmr.gld.gov.au/businesssindustry/Accreditations/Approved-Person-Scheme/Industiry-
experience-and-qualifications/ ations#igualificationtahle

Kind regards

Peter Twining @
Senior Policy Advisor (Stan Accreditation)

Transport Regulation Bra partment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 9 | 61 Mary Stree ane Qld 4000

PO Box 673 | Fortitud Id 4006

P: (07) 30666537

E: peter.n. twmln ov.auy

W: www tmr.qld

/f;

i

| WM geraufieinthediire

2
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WARNING: This email (inciuding any attachments) may contain legally
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

If this email was not intended for you and was sent to you by mistake, \
please telephone or email me immediately, destroy any hardcopies of

this email and delete it and any copies of it from your computer @
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

It is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain g@

Opinions contained in this email do not necessarily reflect the @
opinions of the Department of Transport and Main Roads,

or endorsed organisations utilising the same infrastructure.
**********************#***********************#****K%tsb % 3 3k 3 ok ok ok 3k %k ok ok

N\
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Six Wheeler Conversions ty Ltd
1 Brook St, North Toowoomba, Qld, 4350

[Mf' MHHE Australia
U —j Not relevant

Notrelev@dsixwheeler.com.au
http://www.sixwheeler.com.au
htt s: www.facebock.com six eler.com.au

N

Open letter regarding towing capacity and GCM upgrades on light vehicle@

)

The latest circular from RVCS, has certainly created quite a stirin th 2 ng community, particularly
those towing recreational equipment such as larger caravans, fi rs and boats.

Whilst I’'m keen to support any improvement to road safety re these changes come with
the best intentions, the obvious solution isn’t always the right one-and a rigid ruling to stop all towing
capacity upgrades on light vehicles is counterproductive f safety perspective, given the current

environment.
O\Q
The current environment: %

As our transport departments are aware, t rrently thousands of light vehicles on our roads
which are exceeding combinations of G nd towing capacity. This is particularly prevalent
with but not limited to caravans, campew%orhomes, etc. but this isn't a group of willing
lawbreakers. These motorists have ma@en caught out by ambiguous marketing and weight
ratings by vehicle and caravan man rs and an underestimation of the weight of the products
they need to carry for life on the %

Many of these people have bought light vehicles with 3500kg tow ratings {the highest available on
any new ute under about $ 0}, with 3500kg ATM caravans; only to later discover that the
6,000kg GCM leaves théirtow-vehicle with a payload of less than 300kg including 2-5 occupants and
at least 90kg of fuel o discover that their van is over ATM by the time they're on the road
because these big.vans have high and often underquoted tare weights. The Queensland Caravan
Show, last week %ny manufacturers promoting huge vans at 3500kg ATM, with tare weights of

over 3000kg. @

RVCS has all@ar manufacturers to promote high tow capacities, with unrealistically low GCMs

and allow%E an manufacturers to promote big vans with unrealistically low payloads for years.

This ha d many motorists, who've unwittingly found themselves over ATM and GCM. For

ma t@e motorists, it’s unaffordable or impractical for them to trade up from their already

acc%ed $45-65,000 BTS50/Ranger/Dmax, etc. to a massive $130-180,000 American pick-up or a

rigi ck. The sheer size of these other vehicles often makes them completely impractical for many
e who need to be able to park in shopping centres and CBD parking when they aren’t towing.

These motorists want to obey the law and make their setups safe but unless there is a practical and
affordable solution, they're forced to plead ignorant and keep motoring.
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Closing the door to towing capacity and GCM upgrades will also reduce the viability of upgrading the
ATM of these vans which have unrealistic payloads, many of which are already built to higher ATM
specs than what is marked on the compliance plate. This in turn will have a severe effect on the resale
value of these vans due to a reduction in the number of viahle tow vehicle options.

My company, Six Wheeler Conversions Pty Ltd {and some others around Australia} has been providing
an affordable solution for many years by adding an extra braked axle to the rear of many of these
vehicles. This conversion comes at an average price of about $25,000 including a high-Guality tray
body.

This results in a drastic increase in towing safety from the following factors.

» More road contact area. {50% more rubber on the road)

» Upto 30% greater braking capacity (2 extra rotors/drums)

e Much better stability, with at least 66% increase in carrying capacity of rear axle group.

* 15% longer effective wheelbase also improves stability.

e Increased tare weight {(about 18-25%), which provides ballgst tocounteract trailer weight
increase.

The engines and drivelines of Isuzu Dmax, Ford Ranger, Toyota-Laiidcruiser, Mazda Bt50 and some
other models have been well proven to be capable of hauling more than their original stated GCMs at
highway speeds and up steep gradients and they have 1&w range and 4wd available for emergencies,
mostly at the press of a button or flick of a switch.

in fact, these modern 4wd utes now have outputs¥anging from 130kw/430nm to 165kw/550nm,
whilst 20 to 30 years ago, many of our customersiwerg successfully running heavier combinations
with Landcruisers and Patrols, with outputs ag low-4s 80kw/240nm (Toyota 2H).

The power and torque specs on these raedertiutes are actually comparable to figures advertised for
many trucks with GCMs around 10-12 tonnesand whilst these vehicles don’t have the bigger
displacement, oil capacity, etc, whickimakigs trucks able to lug these loads up and down big hills, day
in, day out for millions of kilometrésthey have proven to last well as touring vehicles.

Bear in mind that Australian roads don’t have the long steep gradients found in other continents such
as Europe and America.

However, RVCS Administrator’s Circular 0-4-6, released last week casts a shadow on the viability of
development of future-models for conversion, with the following statement:

10.6 The towing capacity of a light vehicle expressed as Gross Combination Mass (GCM) rating or
Rated Towing Capaeity or Maximum Braked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the value set by the
first stage manufacturer. Second stage manufacturers are not permitted to increase the towing
capacity as port of an SSM IPA that results in GVM upgrade.

This waspeigased with no warning and with less than one month from publication te enactment. This
also pldces/the viability of my entire company at risk because it will drastically reduce the market for
my canversions. I've also invested considerable resources in a project to develop a new conversion
forthe VW Amarok V6 {(which promises to make a fantastic tow vehicle, with full-time 4wd, 6 wheel
diso brakes, a wide track, fow centre of gravity and a powerful V6 driveline, which will easily handle
trailers of 4000kg and over), including an overseas trip where | met with Volkswagen engineers to
discuss the project.
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This mock-up/concept vehicle was shown at the Queensland Caravan Show, to gauge market
response and interest because we'’ve already done most of the design work and the overwhelming

public response is that there is a healthy niche market and this vehicle will solve many people’s
towing requirements.

{Note the asterisks and fine print, which clarified that the advertised capacities were estimated
figures and subject to testing and approval.)

~ PO

S
<&
T @)

» mt;
$79,0 TEF @

S
V6 Amarok 6 Wheeler apm.mmns .

Up to 4500kg GVM*/ g payload* e v empade e Sia Wheates Comeérslons P snd Rerral VWY
Increased towing c® /GCM*

Up to 2.6m triyfn cab! LAy

[ f ritagar

Surely RVCS cani exemption to rule 10.6 for multi-axle conversions (and maybe some other
upgrades} whic monstrate significant increases in towing safety. This provides a viable option

for many of t rists mentioned above, who need a practical affordable means to acquire
compliant ¥ehicles'to tow their equipment and enables a few Australian family businesses to remain
viable ané%ductive.

@
S

(

Director
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name Organisation Contact Phone Contact Email Address
Notrefevant Six Wheeler etretevant " rme,@sixwhee:lc—:r.com.au
Conversions PL
Code Details
Code Name Title Date Sybomitied
LS15 GVM Re-rating in accordance LS11 Design 19/06/18

Your Specific Comments

Section #

1

Your General Comments

Clause #

1.1

Your Comment

“Re-rating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance with a letter from the original
vehicle manufacturer.” Seems to be-invalidated by 1.2, which prohibits
“Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM ofwhich, before madification, is greater than
4,500 kg.” and “Re-rating of a/¢ehicle, the GVM of which, after modification,
will be greater than 4,500 kg:”

There are very few, if any.instances where vehicles other than trailers would
be re-rated to a manufacturer's letter without the GVM changing past 4500kg
in either direction.

This should also be expanded to inc ude “Re-rating of a light vehicle’'s GVM
in accordance with a)jetter from a second stage manufacturer” because as a
Second StaggManufacturer, | hold design approvals which permit a range of
GVM ratings fof thie same conversion.

This still-seems onerous compared to other transport departments such as
Victoria, where the customer service officers at the branch can process GVM
changes over the counter, where a (original or SSM) manufacturer’'s letter
states the vehicle is identical to the model with the alte nate GVM.

technology.

Qualification requireménis.are too restrictive for this code. | am a qualified Vehicle Body Builder
(Qualification 4) angd>my:trade course ‘ncluded installation of axles, suspensions, etc as well as chassis
strength requirements; weight distribution, load calculations, etc, (not to mention detailed welding
training) and | havé gver 20 years of experience in destgning and installing multi axle conversions which
result in GVMrincreases. This provides me with far more relevant qualifications to assess the installation
of a convergiotirwhich generally includes suspension and chassis modifications than a mechanic
(Qualification:2).

By comparison, Cert III in Automotive Mechanical Technology contains no training relating to chassis
modifications, strength requirements, weight distribution, load calculations, etc. and only basic welding

When | need to upgrade models which don't have the market volume to justify the expense of SSM
testing, | can submit my designs to a consulting engineer for assessment and certification to an LS11
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code but surely, | should then be recognised as qualified to assess the installation of my own design and
apply an LS15 without having to take it to a mechanic who's probably never even had a close look at a
similar conversion.

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
Not refevant Six Wheeler Notretevant Netee@sixwheeler.com.au
Conversions PL
Code Details
Code Name Title Date Supmitted
LS11 GVM Re-rating of light vehicles 19/06/18

Your Specific Comments

Section #

Clause # Your Comment

There needs to be some provision for increased GCM and Towing Capacity

in specific circumstances.

Please see the attached letter, /whichl drafted and sent to RVCS on this

topic.

Your GeneralCommients
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additional sheets, if required, for more feedback.

Please use



Vehicle Standards

Not relevant

from: @cruisemaster.com.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 19 june 2018 2:10 PM

To: Vehicle Standards

Subject: RE: New and Revised Modification Code for your comment
Categories: SL

Hi

The LS11 check list does not make provision for the tyre placard to be “not applicable”/{N/A},

nd ims

Does the Modification Plate record the cormrect tyre and rim sizes

and load ratin s for the modified vehicle?

If a revised s required, has it been fitted to th v
vehicle and a attached to this checklist?

Do the tyres and rims fitted conform to the modification plate and
the

Are load ratings of the tyres and rims adequate for the
vehicle’s re-rated GVM and the otentia ax e masses?

7 roi S bili C

<

Section 3.8 of the mod code states that the placard is ohiy reqdired on condition of the GVM:

If re-rated GVM and axle masses require different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre placard
must be fitted to indicate the revised tyre & vim spec fications for the vehicle at the re-rated GVM. The revised
tyre size and load rating must also appear 00.the modification plate and in the owner’s handbook.

The check list however, seems to suggest that.a tyre placard is mandatory

Regards

Not relevant

MEng CPEng RPEQ APQld
Engineering Manager

07 3624 3804 |\
Nete@cruisemaster. coim.au or ise aster.com.au

CRUISE
MASTER

AUSTRALIA'S LEADER IN ALL-TERRAIN TOWING TECHNOLOGY
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Begin forwarded message:

From: "Peter N Twining" <peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Date: June 19, 2018 at 6:39:32 AM GMT+10

To: "Vehicle Standards" <vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au>
Subject: New and Revised Modification Code for your comment

Dear Stakeholders \

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Lig Madification
Code LS15 to be incorporated into the Queensland Code of Practice (Q or Light Vehicle
Modifications. The purpose of the new code is to enhance the operation of the previously
developed LS11 modification code, particularly in the remote an tonal areas of

Queensland.
The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Perso@é certify physical

modifications leading to the rerating of Gross Vehicle } of an in-service light
vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less) when those modifications conform to the specifications
contained in the relevant LS11 design certification. |((addition to the requirements in this
code, the LS15 certification must follow the proc ified in the design package in the
relevant LS11 design certification issued to tge of same make/model/variant/chassis

series. \
0

The LS11 modification code has been am enahble it to provide design certification.
Some other changes have also been % 511 code to provide greater clarity about the
intent of the LS11 code. Mote that t% ode can continue to bie used as a combined
design and modification code to ce M rerating on its own, without using the new

LS15 code.

Both the new LS15 code an @ended LS11 code are attached for your perusal and
feedback. Please provide comments, via email to vehiclestandards@tmr.ald.gov.au by
the close of business on Ex 20™ July 2018. You may use the attached template form to
provide your feedb {@oposed to implement these codes 3™ September 2018.

The qualifications revised LS11 code will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification No
1). For the ne¥rLS15 code the required qualification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the

fedatter is a trade based qualification which is considered appropriate for
#” | have attached the following link to the qualification table for your

https:ﬁ&«ww.tmr.qId.gov.auﬁI::usiness—industr'yrfAccreditationszr:nroved-Person-
Sch @ Bﬁ}ﬁustr\r-experience-and—uuaIificationsiquaIiﬁcations#guaIificationtable

2
—

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qid 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
P (07) 30666537

2
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E: peter.n.twining@tmr.gld.gov.au

W www.tmr.gld.gov.au

**llt#***************************#*******************************V.: *

WARNING: This email (including any attachments) may contain legally
privileged, confidential or private information and may be protected by
copyright. You may only use it 'f you are the person(s) it was

intended to be sent to and if you use it in an authorised way. No on @
is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute, print

or copy this email without appropriate authority.

If this email was not intended for you and was sent to you by e,
please telephone or email me immediately, destroy any hardcopies of
this email and delete it and any copies of it from your co

any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to thi aiVis not

waived or destroyed by that mistake. @

It is your responsibility to ensure that this em%% not contain
and is not affected by computer viruses, def interference by
third parties or replication problems {inclu ompatibility with

your computer systemy, @

Opinions contained in this email dod@tessarily reflect the
OR a

opinions of the Department of Tr, nd Main Roads,
or endorsed organisations utjlisi same infrastructure.

3k 3 e ok ok ok ok ok ok Ok Aok A 3 ok 3 ok e ok ok ok o o ok ko ok ok ok kok ok ok k
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Vehicle Standards

Not relevant

From: dWalshEng.Com.Au>

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 2:24 PM

To: Peter N Twining

Subject: LS11/LS15

Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.pdf
Hi Peter

My comments attached

Regards

Not relevant

478 oundary St
TOO OO0 BA

P one:- 07 4634 3344
Fax :-07 4634 3355
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name Organisation Contact Phone Contact Email Address
Not relevant Walsh Engineering 4634 3344 Netrelewalsheng.com.au
Code Details

Code Name | Title Date Submitted

LS11 GVM Re-rating of light vehicles 19/6/18

Your Specific Comments

Section # Clause # Your Comment

Your General Comments

The way | read this modified code it will be acceptable to re-rate the GVM of some vehicles and not
maodify them at all, e.g:.a standard 200 series Landcruiser could be modified to 10% increase and still be
within the manufaciuiers’ specs for axles, axle housings and suspension. Some Hilux' on the other hand
can only be increased 1.6%. A 200 series changes category from NA to NB1, what happens with
regards to L. As’a result of this change in category some ADR’s are no longer relevant, e.g. ADR 69
& 73. ARR7is no longer applicable but ADR 80 is. Is QT happy to accept compliance with ADR79 as
being compliant with ADR 80, (RVCS does accept this).

| think there should be a differentiation between axle and axle housing. We have been involved in GVM
upgrades submitted for SSM where the axle has not been upgraded, but we have had to modify the axle
housing.

Are you aware of the ruling that RVCS have bought out this month in relation to GVM / GCM upgrades?
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n a case where the OEM does not specify a GCM, RVCS are interpreting their ruling that we can
increase the GVM and as long as we don't increase the towing capacity it is acceptable. That means
that in the case of a 200 Series Landcruiser we can increase the GVM to say 4200 kG and maintain the
towing capacity as 3500 kG. Toyota only specify a maximum braked towing capacity, nota GCM. This
is different to the interpretation in this document.

if an SSM approval includes a GVM upgrade and maintains the towing capacity , ie ultimately increasing
the GCM - If | have approval from the SSM can this madification, including GCM increase, be approved
under the LS11 code.

Please use additional sheets, if required, for more feedback.
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Vehicle Standards

From: Paul R Hawkey

Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 10:29 AM

To: Peter N Twining; Vehicle Standards

Cc Jarrod P Wilson; Tina L Highet; Toni M Laver; Ross F Butler

Subject: FW: New LS15 and amended L511 Modification Codes for comment
Attachments: Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx

Thanks, Jarrod & Ross Q\
Pete, @

Two comments for consideration. <

Cheers g

Regards,

Paul Hawkey
Senior Policy Advisor | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety & Regulation Division Depariment of Transpett a ain Roads

Floor 4, 61 Mary Street, Brisbane Qid 4000
GPO Box 673, Fortitude Valley Qid 4006 <
P: (07) 30665156 \

E: paul.r.hawkey@imr.gld.gov.au

W: www.imr.gld.qgov.au @9

Internal Sharepoint site: https:/finside.tmr.gld.gov.au/team  vih

~

Delivering an integrated and coordinate@oach to heavy vehicle management

E s .Safe. ©

Transport Regulation Branch @

From: Jarrod P Wilson \w
Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 @
@

To: Paul R Hawkey <paul.r. tmr.gld.gov.au>
Subject: FW: New L515 a nded LS11 Modification Codes for comment

Good morning Paul,@&

Please see feedbac m Northern Region SME Ross Butler.
Kind regards

Jarrod Wilson
A/Manager (C  pliance) Northern | Northern Region
Customer Services Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 5 | Townsville — Flinders Street | 445 Flinders Street | Townsville QId 4810
PO Box 7466 | Garbutt Be Qid 4814
(07) 47587504 | {07)47587550

Not relevant
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‘arrod. .wilson  tmr. Id. ov.au
W. . Id. ov.au

I work flexible hou on-Tue- urs- ri 0630 to 1600 hrs

Safe Drivers. Safe Vehicles. Safe Roads.

From: Ross F Butler
Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 6:50 AM

To: Jarrod P Wilson < ilson t r > \
Subject: RE: New L515 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment @

Hi Jarrod,

| have attached the amen ment form for you to forward on as seen fit. These are just@ or ing & clarifying
issues nothing major.

Kind regards @

Ross F Butler z

Transport Inspector | Northem Region
Customer Services Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 1 | Townsville - Garbuit Customer Service Centre | 21-35 Leyland Street | Garbutt Qid 4814
PO Box 7466 | Garbuit BC Qiid 4814
(07) 475875584 ] (07) 47587550

Not relevant
Ross. . ufler Q\

Safe Drivers. Safe Vehicles. Safe Roads. \

N

From: Jarrod P Wilson
Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 10:21 AM

To: Ross F Butler <ross.f. utl r tmr. Id >
Subject: FW: New LS15 and amende @odificetion Codes for comment
Hi Ross,

Can you have a look over the Ned modification code amendments and provide me with any feed ack you deem
necessary.

Kind regards @

Jarrod Wilson

A/ anager (Complian@ﬁfI | Northern Region

Customer Servi | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 5 | Townsvill linders Street | 445 Flinders Street | Townsville Qld 4810
PO Box 7466 | it Bc Qid 4814

P- (07) 475 M07) 47587550

- | Not relevant

.‘arrod. .wilsonv tmr. Id. ov. u
W. www.imr. Id. ov.au

| work flexible hours  on-Tue-  urs-Fri 0630 to 1600 hrs

Safe Drivers. Safe Vehicles. Safe Roads.
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From: Paul R Hawkey

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 9:05 AM

To: Jarrod P Wilson <Jarrod.P.Wilson@tmr.gld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: New L515 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment

Hi Jarrod,

| segt e | Could you get one of your SME’s to have a look through these new mdd codes. | can’t
see any issues but would appreciate one of your guys having a look. \

Many Thanks @

Regards, @

Paul Hawkey

Senior Policy Advisor | Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Services, Safety & Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 4, 61 Mary Street, Brisbane Qld 4000 @

GPO Box 673, Fortitude Valley Qld 4006

P: (07) 30665156

E: paul.r.hawkeyi@itmr.gld.gov.au

W: www.imr.gld.gov.au

internal Sharepoint site: https:/inside.tmr.qid.gov.au/teams/hvib @

Delivering an integrated and coordinated appro% eavy vehicle management

Simple. Easy. Safe.
Transport Regulation Branch §

From: Peter N Twining @

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 6:42 AM
To: Vehicle Standards <vehiclestand s@§>.qld.gov.a u>
Subject: New L515 and amended L$11 Mgdification Codes for comment

Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Standard@%f TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modification Code LS15 to be
incorporated into eensland Code of Practice (QCoP) for Light Vehicle Modifications. The purpose of
the new code is @nce the operation of the previously developed L511 medification code, particularly
in the remate 2 egional areas of Queensland.

The atta madification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to
the rerati Gross Vehicle Mass (GYM]} of an in-service light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less) when those
m 'ﬁ%s conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design certification. In addition to
th&g} ments in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the design package
in the relevant LS11 design certification issued to the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification. Some other
changes have also been miade to LS11 code to provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11 code.
MNote that the L511 code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification code to certify
GVM rerating on its own, without using the new £515 code.

3
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Both the ne LS15 code and the amended LS11 code are attached for your peru land f ed ack. Please
rovide any co ents, via email to vehiclestandards tmr. Id. ov.au by the close of usiness on Friday,

20" July 2018. You may se the attached te  late form to provide your feedbac . Itis roposed to

i le entt esecodes3 September2018.

he qualifications for the r vised LS1 co ewillre ainu ¢ an ed (that is, Qualification o0 1). For the new
LS15 codet ere uir d wualification ill elev I- orlevel-2,as erthe usiness rules. la erisatrade

ased qualification which is considered appro riate for the new LS15 code. | have attachey t e following
link to t e qua ification table for your convenience:

htt s: www.t r. | . ov.au business-indust Accreditations roved- erson-@ Indust -

ex erience a d uaications ualifications ualificationta le @

Kind regards @

Peter Twining @
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Acc  ditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Depariment of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9| 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qid 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qid 4006
(07} 30666537

www.tmr.gld.gov.au

peter.n.twining@tmr.qld.gov.au @
¥
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name @rganisation Contact Phone Contact Emai Address

Ross F Butler Compliance TMR ross.f.butler@tmr.gld.gov.au
Code Details

Code Name Title Date Submitted

GVM Re-rating of light vehicles

Your Specific Comments
Section # Clause # Your Comment

The last part of reduction in GVM is not clear, | think a new dot point needs
to start at  in case of GVM reductions™and needs to be re worded to clarify
that a heavy motorhome cannot bzreduced in GVM under S11 code and a
light vehicle cannot be increased in-GVM to a heavy vehicle motorhome
under S11..

“ The scope of code” — daes thig refer to S11 code?

Your Generzi'Comments
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

Thanks, Jarrod & Ross. @\
Pete, @

Two comments for consideration.
Cheers @
Paul Hawkey

Senior Policy Advisor | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety & Regulation Division | Department of Transpolf a ain Roads

Floor 4, 61 Mary Street, Brisbane QId 4000
GPO Box 673, Fortitude Valley Qld 4006 Vg
P: (07) 30665156 \

Regards,

E: paul.r.hawkey@imr.qld.gov.au %
W: www.tmr.gld.gov au @
i

Internal Sharepoint site: htt s:/finside.tmr. ld. ov.aufteam \.Ky

Delivering an integrated and coordinate@oach to heavy vehicle management

as .S fe. &

Transport Regulation Branch @

From: Jarrod P Wilson

Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 10

To: Paul R Hawkey <paul.r. tmr.gld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: New L515 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment

Good morning Paul,@&

Please see feedb%m Northern Region SME Ross Butler.

Kind regards @

Jarrod Wilson
AiManager {Compliance) orthern | Northern Region
Customer Services Branch | Departiment of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 5 | Townsville — Flinders Street | 445 Flinders Street | Townsville Qld 4810
PO Box 7466 | Garbutt Bc Qid 4814
(07) 47587504 | (07) 47587550

Not relevant
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E:'a od. wilson t r. Id. ov.au
W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au

| work flexible hours on-Tue- urs-Fri 0630 to 1600 hrs

Safe Drivers. Safe Vehicles. Safe Roads.

From: Ross F Butler

Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 6:50 AM

To: Jarrod P Wilson arrod. . ilson tmr. Id. ov.au> \
Subject: RE: New LS15 and amended LS11 Modification Codes for comment @

HiJarrod,

| have attached the amendment form for you to forward on as seen fit. These are jus@wording & clarifying
issues nothing major.

Kind regards @

Ross F Butler z

Transport Inspector | Northern Region
Customer Services Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 1 | Townsville - Garbutt Customer Service Centre | 21-35 Leyland Street | Garbutt Qld 4814
PO Box 7466 | Garbutl BC Qlid 4814
{07) 475875584 | :(07) 47587550

Not relevant
oss.F.Butler tmr. Id. ov.au Q\@

Safe Drivers. Safe Vehicles. Safe Roads. \

From: Jarrod P Wilson @
Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 10:21 AM @
d,—evay>

To: Ross F Butler <ross.f. utler tmr. |
Subject: FW: New LS15 and amended L odification Codes for comment

Hi Ross, @

Can you have a look overt e m}ed madification code amendments and provide me with any feedback you deem
necessary.

Kind regards @

Jarrod Wilson

A/Manager (Compliar@I hern Northern Region

Customer Servi | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 5 | Townsv&?ders Street | 445 Flinders Street | Townsville Qld 4810

PO Box 7466 | ttBe Qld 4814
P- (07} 475 ~07) 47587550
M- Not relevant

. arrod. . Isonv tmr. Id. ov.au

W www tmr, id.  v.au

| work flexible hours Mon-Tue-  urs-Fri 0630 to 1600 hrs

Safe Drivers. Safe Vehicles. Safe Roads.
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From: Paul R Hawkey

Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 9:05 AM

To: Jarrod P Wilson <larred. P.Wilson@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: New LS15 and amended L511 Modification Codes for comment

HiJarrod,

Not relevant " ’
| see Could you get one of your SME’s to have a look through these new mad codes. | can’t
see any issues but would appreciate one of your guys having a look. \

Many Thanks @
Regards, @
Paul Hawkey

Senior Policy Advisor | Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Services, Safety & Regulation Division | Depariment of Transport and Main R

Floor 4, 61 Mary Street, Brisbane Qid 4000 @
GPO Bex 673, Fortitude Valtey Qid 4006

P: (07) 30665156

E: paul.r.hawkey@tmr.qld.gov.au

W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au

Internal Sharepoint site: https:ffinside.tmr.qld.gov.au/fteams/hvih @

Delivering an integrated and coordinated approal:% eavy vehicle management

Simple. Easy. Safe.
L0

Transport Regulation Branch

From: Peter N Twining @
Sent: Tuesday, 19 June 2018 6:42 AM

To: Vehicle Standards <vehiclestandards
Subject: New LS15 and amended LS11 M

ification Codes for comment
Dear Stakeholders

The Vehicle Standa rd@%f TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modification Code LS15 to be
incorporated into ensland Code of Practice {QCoP) for Light Vehicle Madifications. The purpose of
the new code is hance the operation of the previously developed LS11 modification code, particularly
in the remote ég%egional areas of Queensland.

The atta modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modifications leading to
the rerati rass Vehicle Mass {GVM) of an in-service light vehicle (GVIV 4,500 kg or less) when those
mo W@S conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design certification. In addition to
the% ments in this code, the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the design package
in the relevant L511 design certification issued ta the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series.

The LS11 madification code has been amended to enable it to provide design certification. Some other
changes have also been made to LS11 code to provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11 code.
Note that the LS11 code can continue to be used as a combined design and modification code to certify
GVM rerating on its own, without using the new LS15 code.

3
RTI 135/05888 - File 3 - 25 of 63



oth the new LS15 code and the amended LS 1 code are attached for your perusal and eed ac . Please
provide any comme ts, via email to vehiclestandards t r. |d. ov.au vy the close of business on riday,
20" July 2018. You ay use the a ached template for to rovi ey ur eed ac .Itis ro osedto
i lementthes codes3™ September 2018.

The qualifications for the revised LS11 code will remain unchanged (thatis, ualification ©1). ort e new
LS15 code t e required qualification will be Level-1 orL vel-2,3s ert businessrul s. Th latt ris atrade

ased qualification hich is considered a ropriate or the new LS15 code. | have a achéd t e following
link to t e qualification table for your convenience:

htt s: tmr. Id. ov.au usiness-industr Accreditations A roved- erson-@ Indust -

x erie ce and wuali ications ualifications# ualificationta le @

Kind regards @

Peter Twining @
Senior Policy Advisor {(Sta da s and Accreditation)
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brishane Qid 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Vatley Qld 4006
P: {07) 30666537

W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au

E: peter.n.twining@imr.qld.gov.au @
O
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name Organisation Contact Phone Contact Email Address

Compliance TMR ross.f.butler@tmr.qld.gov.au

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
to start at * in case of GVM reductions™and needs to be re worded to clarify
that a heavy motorhome cannot bereduced in GVM under S11 code and a
light vehicle cannot be increased in-GVM to a heavy vehicle motorhome
under S11..

" The scope of code” — dags this refer to S11 code?

Your Generdi\Comments
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se additional sheets, if required, for more feedback.

Please u



Vehicle Standards

From: Notrelevant @test trak.com>

Sent: Monday, 25 June 2018 2:38 PM

To: Peter N Twining

Subject: Draft VSB 11 & VSB 15

Attachments: Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS15.docx; Feedback on Draft Modification
Code LS11.docx; GVM upgrade.pdf

Hi Peter

I was forwarded the draft VSB 11 / VSB 15 and I've taken the liberty of making some commeints.

Part Refuse Sch.4 Part 4 s.7(1)(c) Business/commercial/professional/financial affairs

Regards

Not relevant

Test-Trak

MObile: Not relevant

Office +61 3 9769 9766
Email: Netrelev@test-tra .com

Tes rak

www test-trak. cim

=y
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Tes rak
Rustralia

com

110 Enterpriso Ave
Benwick Wictoria, 3806
Anstratis

Tel: +613 8768 9766
Fax; +613 9701 4868

VSB 14 \
GVM Upgrade @
Background @

The GVM for light vehicles set by the manufacturer has a degree of arbitrariness=GVM is often set by
marketers to compete in a market, or meet local registration or road tax or drivingdigense requiremenis. It
is not uncommon for the same vehicle to have different GVM ratings in dif@narkels around the

fail or exhibit issues give indications of some of the constraints on\thevghicle GVM. However, for most

Once the GVM for a vehicle model is set, the engineering development testing occurs. Components that
components, the amount of capacity “in reserve” or the degree@@E

iponents could take a higher GVM
is unknown. o

N

GVM upgrades have become popular (primarily for bodyen-chassis 4WD vehicles) as owners require

additional load capacity for: %

e  Towing,
e 4WD accessories (such as bull bars, w@, ong range fuel tanks, water tanks, etc).
ed S

GVM upgrades were popularized after AR econdary Stage Manufacturing (SSM) approval for
LandCruiser 200. The Landcruiser 200 was hed above its design empty weight and Toyota deleted
the rear fuel tank to allow it to remain t vehicle, which was unpopular in the market and created a
demand for a raised GVM selution. :

Additional modifications that require/GVM upgrades are:

*  Armoured vehic%

¢ Specialised vehigle h task specific equipment, eg HiRail vehicles

e Special task ve ‘- military conversion vehicles, police vehicles, ambulance conversions,
UN and Aid Vvelopment agency vehicles.

We have been invidlvediin most, if not all, of these conversion types, especially Armoured, military & aid
& developme ization vehicles.

Typical@ ight vehicles the GVM upgrade is achieved by either:
¢

a)%% asing GVM to the sum of front & rear axle load limits, or

b) Intreasing the rear axle load limit only. Typically, it is the rear axle load limit which is
restrictive. Also, the class of vehicle involved typically has a solid rear axle, which is easier to
prove a higher load limit.

Typical GVM increases are in the order of 100kg — 500 kg or typically 3% - 15%

REA] WORLD PROTOTYPE ANI} FARL Y STAGF VFHICLETE  ING
Liskibrae Pty Ltd. ARBN 69 079003 857 trading as Test-Trak
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SSM vs VSB maodification approval,

The SSM system allocates approval to a specific manufacturer who assumes product liability for the
modification. The SSM process (at least in theory) has a mechanism that provides for recall service
campaigns if a problem emerges in service.

We have been involved with 3 GVM upgrade programs with 3 different companies. A weakness ofthe
SSM system is that each application is treated differently and is subject to different evidesice requests
from the RVCS group.

GVM, durability, and handling performance are not covered in the ADR’s that the DIRD ddminister.
SSM is concerned only with the requirements of;

ADR 23  tyres

ADR 3] or 35 Braking systems
ADR 42 (general safety requirementis)
ADR 43 Vehicle dimensions

The SSM process does not address the requirements for roadworthiness and registration embodied in
state legislation. Nor does it take a broad view of vehicle safety. lfdoes not consider “fitness for purpose”
or workmanship. It does not consider durability issues. It does not-consider suspension geometry issues,
particularly bump stops and sway bars, It does not consider theadequacy of body to frame mounts for the
additional loads resulting from the GVM increase.

RVCS will accept GVM increase to a GVM that is the'simpie addition of front and rear axle loads. We
believe this is seriously flawed. OE manufacturers 3ét.a GVM that is below the addition of front and rear
axle load limits. Different OE manufacturers use different factors between the sum of axle load limits and
GVM, but typical figures would be 10% - 20%.

If the GVM is set at the addition of front-and réar axle load, then at GVM, as soon as the vehicle goes
uphill or downhill, or the vehicle brakes\(transferring additional toad to the front axle), the axle load limit
is exceeded.

In our view, some companies seek $8M primarily as a defacto route for post registration modification
approval. These companies {eg aftermarket suspension retailers) do not have workshop facilities that can
perform the secondary stagetnanufacturing process with the required process control. Many of them are
not in a position (in the digtribution chain) to access pre-registered vehicles to qualify for SSM
conversion.

We believe thaithe use of SSM as the basis for GVM upgrade based on VSB 14 is flawed.

ROTOTYP ANDEARLY A FVF ICL TESTING
www.test-tra .co
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Issues requiring assessment for GVM increase:

. Safety issues:
e Braking performance to ADR 31 or 35.

VSB 14 table LGS)

Split-mu braking (not required by tests detailed in VSB 14 table LG3)
Tyre load capacity

Revised tyre pressures for the additional load.
Revised tyre placard @
Wheel load capacity
Reduced clearance between body and wiring looms, brake lines, et compression of body
to frame mounts, (requirement to change or time-life body moun
¢ Action of bump stops, particularly in repeated direction reve@lom type maneuvers. Our
a

past work has found more than one vehicle to be deficient in this

e Brake pedal effort \
¢  Maximum (ABS) braking & operation of brake proportioning (not required by te@ edin

o  Chassis strength
o  Wheel bearing capacity

2. Durability issues: Q
< \

s Axle torque capacity &9

»  Axle housing strength @

e  Spring mount strength
o  Sway bar mount strength
» Differential capacity

e Panhard rod watts link axle lateral locatienl strength
o  Suspension bush stiffness

Nene of the durability issues listed @Saecovered by ADR’s or state registration requirements.

Therefore, we do not believe thaith uld be the subject of prescriptive test and evaluation
requirements detailed in the difaft VSB 14 LS11 & LS15.

on under SSM and VSB 14 for approx. 10 years. There are no known
chassis or structural issu« @" have arisen over this time. There are however, known to be some bearing

life and axle life iss ith-some vehicles — primarily due to increased lateral (comering) force rather
than the vertical weight fofce vector. We believe these issues can be addressed by calculating revised life
estimates and sp ing appropriate replacement schedules for these components.

@

%%stely, we believe that critical safety issues are not covered by the draft VSB 14 LS11 &
articular:

However,

. imum braking capacity

¢ Brake performance with failed systems (eg brake booster)

+ Revised tyres & tyre pressures

¢ Body mount rubbers and reduced body to chassis clearance

¢  Bump stop performance  especially under slalom conditions.

RFAl WO LDP OTOTYPE AND EARLY STAGF VEHICLE TESTING
www.test-tr .co
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GVM Upgrade Notes:

1.

The durability issues are not covered under the ADR’s. In all instances, they relate to fatigue or
life longevity issues. Loading by up to 15%0 above the declared GVM of a vehicle may still be
within the OE manufacturers “factor of safety” but never-the-less the only detrimental effect of
an increased GVM is likely to be a shortened service life. OF manufactures typically doro}
apply service lives to these components, nor list these components in the service schedule.
Therefore a reduction in service life becomes a nebulous issue.

Chassis strength is a very grey area. A number OE 4WD vehicles have knownchassis cracking
issue at the OE published GVM. This has been demonstrated to be acceptaple in thie market and
there has been no move by any regulators to have the issues rectified. Therefore/it would seem
unreasonable to hold modifiers to higher standards.

Similarly, there are some vehicles that are prone to axle shaft breakagé @rd cracking of the rear
axle housing in the original equipment condition. Therefore, the standard i@’ which the strength of
axles and axle housing are to be assessed is very difficult to determiiné- Modifications should not
be held to a higher standard than OE manufacturers.

The remaining strength issues are service life issues that are dependent on a mix of load and
number of cycles. None of the components involved appear in vehicle manufacturers service
replacement lists. Any loading in excess of the design loadgswill serve 1o shorten the service life
only. A sensible approach may be to place service life lifiiits 0¥inspection requirements on these
components after GVM upgrade.

A revised tyre placard showing revised tyres, tyre pressures and axle load limits should be a
mandatory pari of the modification approval.

A rule of thumb for the revised GVM could be a/maximum of 95°¢ of the rear axle load limit
plus 90% of the front axle load limit. We do ngbeligve that GVM limits which are the
summation of front and rear axle loads should be allowed.

The combined tyre load capacity of an axle should be in excess of the axle load limit. Industry
best practice is 15%¢ - 20%0. This is to allow-fer road impact loads (eg potholes), poor tyre
pressure managemment and some level.of tyre damage (eg sidewall cuts and bruising).

Typically, current popular GVM upgradesare achieved by increasing the load of the rear beam
axle only. This is primarily due tothé tomplexity of proving increased load capacity of
independent front suspension. Howevef, it is not commaon for any loading analysis to show that
this represents real world loading.

A W RIDPRO O1Y EANDEA LYS AG V HICIETE ING
w.test-trak.com
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Braking tests

The braking of increased GVM vehicles will be affected by:

a) Increased energy required to be dissipated due to the additional mass. \
b) Increased brake dive from increased vehicle mass
¢) Changed tyres and possibly wheels to deal with increased axle load limits. @

The brake test in VSB 14 table LGS is a simplified for of the ADR 31 or ADR 35 t not required
to be conducted by certified test facilities, nor is there any requirement for equipmeration. The

VSB 14 test does not test any failed system conditions (eg failed vacuum boaost, @1 brake circuit, etc).

In our opinion, confirming the maximuimn braking possible is an important3afety/{est but not covered by
the VSB 14 tests, ie demonstrating that the vehicle will brake severely:enough for ABS to intervene or to
lock a wheel.

Similarly, confirming that the vehicle brakes straight under split- ircumstances and demonstration
that the higher GVM does not adversely affect the front rear b :: portioning is important.

Q

Lazy Axles @
‘o7

Many Lazy Axle installations do not adequately | %e. The simple test of placing the 4 rear wheels
on load scales, then raising an axle by 100mm (simulating a speed hump, pothole, kerb, etc) and
comparing the individual wheel weights dem s this We believe that this should be part of the test
requirement for lazy axles under VSB14. @

X

Vehicle dynamics / C of g locatior@lover propensity

For passenger cabin vehicles MG category) and pickups as delivered OE {category NA & NB) the
additional loading to the chan tre of gravity will not be significant enough to require further
analysis. Accessories such-as long range fuel tanks lower the c of g, towball load is typically below the ¢
of g and bull bars rear ;%5 are typically at about ¢ of g height. The centre of gravity of human
passengers is typically the vehicle ¢ of g as is the load area of a wagon or pickup.

For vehicles witho jonal modifications, it can be assumed that the increased GVM will remain
inside thecof g e& intended by the vehicle’s manufacturer.

@

GVM upg&%@r armoured vehicles requires special assessment. The aromouring increases centre of

gravity @@niﬁcantly

Pick-ups with trade bodies and other accessories that allow loading up high require specific assessment of
the effect of ¢ of g height change on vehicle handling and stability.

REAL WORLD PROT'O YP AND EARLY STAGE VEHICLE TESTING
ww.test-trak.co
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VSC/ESC

In the simplest terms, VSC operates by comparing yaw angles with steering angle. Assuming the
envelope of cog location does not change in size and shape from that intended by the manufacturer, then
simply increasing GVM should not have a significant effect on polar moment of inertia.

Therefore the yaw characteristic is not changed by increasing the GVM and VSC ESC systems are not
affected.

Tis does not apply to vehicle modifications that significantly change the ¢ of g(lo¢ation, eg armored
vehicles or vehicles with roof loads above that specified by the manufacturer{typically circa 100kg).

EAL WORL PROTOTY EAND A IYS A FVF ICI
.test-tra .co
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GCM Towing issues.

The concept of GCM involves both towing stability and braking performance. Theoretically, abo
750kg the trailer brakes should relieve the towing vehicle from additional braking load due to the trailer.

N

Increased mass of the towing vehicle serves to improve towing stability. See “Determina @railer
Stability Through Simple Analytical Methods and Test Procedures™ SAE paper 790 ‘)

The primary impact of increased GVM on towing capacity GCM is braking pe@nce. This is not an

area addressed by the ADR's. 2

A discussion of potential testing for increased GCM is outside the sco this paper. However, as a
minimum it should include:

Gradient driving performance (say grades approx. 12% as@mn some freeways)

Handbrake performance at GCM (\

Ability of the vehicle to ove from a standing start gn a’ of 20 (ie the handbrake test slope)
Braking performance (say the simplified ADR te; iled in VSB14)

» Brake performance in the event of trailer brake f:

These tests should be performed by an ADR test fa@ calibrated equipment.

The conservative approach is the increase GVM, buteave GCM unchanged. However, if braking tests
are repealed, this should be adequate demog@ or increased GCM to the modified GVM plus the

OE towbar limit. However, this is not addr y the ADR’s. In the absence of any specific ADR a
repeat of ADR 31 or 35 at the amended ould seem to be the only option.

Vs

Towbar capacity is set by the O
is identified on the rating plat

turer and involves significant strength and fatigue testing. This
to the towbar.

In our experience, most problems that occur in OE testing are the interface between the towbar and the
vehicle. This can be a com situation that involves the bolied joint design and the shape rigidity of the
vehicle attach point. @

te

We do not believe th d towing limits should be varied without replicating the OE testing regime
which is usually own

RFAL WORLD PR TOTYPE AND EARLY STAGF VEHICLE TESHAG
www.test-tra .com
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name Organisation Contact Phone Contact Email Address

Not relevant - Test-Trak EEE@test-trak.com
Code Details

Code Name Title Date Submitted

GVM Re-rating of light vehicles

Your Specific Comments
Section # Clause # Your Comment
15% GVM upgrade is common and a-better limit.

This point effectively says that the GVM must be lower than the combined
axle load limits, yet this provision'does not appear in the document body

The whole point of the VSB isto re-rate components above the
manufacturers published rating.—Fhis is in conflict with 2section .5 This point
is non sensical. Furthermére, the rating of most components cannot be
determined.

If this code is intended-tevbe part of VSB14, then the reference to
Queensland legislationis inappropriate.

This makes no-sense. GVM and engine power are not really related. If so,
there would be“specification on minimum power to weight ratios. Engine &
transmissitin manufacturers do not publish any recommendations on vehicle
weight.

Therequirgment for “re-inforced replacement axles” is meaningless. How is
an. axle defined? Is it the axle assembly, axle housing or axle shafts?
Furthermore, there is a substantial body of evidence of successful GVM
upgrades that do nothing to improve axle strength. Axie strength / durability
i5Not an ADR issug, nor is it a safety issue.

This paragraph demonstrates ignorance of vehicle mechanics. The torque
load placed on the axles is a function of available torque from the engine. It
is independent of GVM. Higher GVM will simply have lower acceleration for
the same engine.

Engine changes are subject to code LA and have no place in this code.

Brake test standard is not specified.

Steering changes are subject to code LS. Steering modifications have no
place in this code.

A “factor of safety” for the rated tyre load above the re-rated axle load
should be specified.
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Your General Comments

Refer to attached notes.

The revised tyre placard should refer to the modification approval number. It
should be specified that axle load limits are included on the tyre placard.

The information shown in this label is repeated in other required labels, ie
maodification plate and tyre placard. This proposed label is redundant and un
necessary and incomplete because it does not contain tyre load & pressure
details.

No test or assessment method for VSB has been nominated. ADR 88, ADR
31/ 25 Annex A or modifiers assessment? There is a sigrificant number of
peer reviewed SAE papers that suggest that VSC perforriance is not
affected by weight change if there is no change on c of glocation. This draft
code is not requiring any estimation of ¢ of g locafionchange.

Test authority status is not specified. Is ADR testfacility status required? If
not, what other qualification is appropriate?

Please use additional sheets, if required;far more feedback.
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Feedback on Draft Modification Code

Your Details

Name Organisation Contact Phone Contact Email Address
IN°t CIET - Test-Trak M @test-trak.com
Code Details

Code Name Title Date Submiffed

GVM Re-rating in accordance LS11 Design

Your Specific Comments
Sec on C # Your Comment

| don't believe that manufacturers wilk-ever supply a letter sanctioning GVM
upgrade without physical change.

The tyre loading should be in excgss of the axle load rating. The combined
axle load rating should be in excess-of GVM. The statement of loading in
this paragraph is inappropriate.and/ may lead to unsafe tyre loading.

Chassis modifications are‘subject to code LH and inclusion in this code is
inappropriate.

Brake modification&-aresubject to code LG and inclusion in this code is
inappropriate.

it is typical that GV Upgrades exceed the manufacturers axle ratings.
There is now a~10Q)year history of such maodifications occurring safely.

Has there‘beenconsultation with manufacturers on this? Key manufacturers
involved (invorder of volume) are Toyota, Ford, Nissan, GM. | do not believe
any/of these manufacturers will issue such a letter, in which case this
section is redundant. The subject of this code should be the gu'delines upon
which qualified persons can modify a vehicle to deviate from the

nanufacturers recommendation — in the same manner of all other V3B
cpdes .

Your General Comments

See attached/notes.

Please use additional sheets, if required, for more feedback.
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Vehicle Standards

From: Anant Z Bellary

Sent: Wednesday, 27 June 2018 11:14 AM

To: Peter N Twining; Shane F Lonsdale

Subject: FW: New Modification Code LS15 and Revised Modification Code LS11...
Attachments: LS11 Code Jun 2018 Consultation Draft.docx; LS15 Code Jun 2018 Consultation

Draft.docx §

FYI and for storing as jurisdictional feedback.

Regards @

Anant Bellary @
vehicle standards § Accreditation

Transport § Main Roads é/ ?

From: Not relevant ‘@Sa.gov.

Sent: Tuesday, 26 June 2018 4:23 PM

To: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.qld.gov.au>

Subject: RE: New Modification Code LS15 and Revise@tion Code LS11...

Anant, %&9

Apart from a few minor points both docw@?\k good. It will assist us in making our own decision about

light vehicle GCM/towing capacity incre

Not reli @

From: Anant Z Bellary mailto:Ana Bellar  tmr. [d. ov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 20 June 2018 8:46

To: | Not relevant \ ) @roads.vic.gov.au>

Subject: New Modification Code LS15 and Revised Modification Code LS11...

T egram ar Nazi strikes again!

T ‘v

Not relevant @

Chair

VSB-14 Si sue Working Group

AMVC%
@ icleSta ar s itof ast etly vlop anw iht hicle
\ di 1catio d LSistobeinc r orat dintoth nsla od f ractice
o )for i htV icl o ifications. pur s fte wc isto nha ce

the pratin fth prvi sl elo S11 o i cati nco ,partic larlyi t
r t a reinalarcas f u sla

eatta d 15 ific ti nc deall s rove rsonstoc rti p ysical
m ifications] adin to rrti of ro e icle ass( ofin- rvic li t
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ve icles (G 4,500 kgorless)wh nt os m ificatio sc for tothe

sp ifications containe i t erelevant 11designce ifi ation.Ina itionto

r ire e sint iscode,theL 1 certification ustfollow the proce speci ¢ in

th desi acka ei therelesant 11 esi c rtificatio i u fortheyehicles f
ake/ o el/varia t/cha is series.

LS11 mo ificatio ¢ e asb a e edtoena eitt r vi desin

c  cation. o eothercha vealsobe ma to 11 co eto rovide
reater ¢l rity aboutt it toft e Siicode. ot t att eL 11cdeca
c ti uetobeus dasacom i e desig an m ificatio ¢ d i GV

rra’ o itsow ,wit outusi t enew LSi5co

ot th nwL 1 coea dtea ene Si1 od ar @yourperusal
an f back.Pleasep vi eay o e ts,viaemailt
v icl stan ards t r. 1d. ov.au by the close of usi ess oh—tiday, 20th July 201 .

Yo m yuset eattache t  late form to provide yo ac .Itis ropos to
i ple entt es cod sfro ™®S tmbr o1.

e ualificatio sfort revise LS11cod will rema ¢ an (that is,

li catio No1). ort enew LS1 codet eRrRqui ali cation will vel-1
orL vel-2,aspert e usiness les. helatterisatfa e as alificationw 1 is
consi reda ro riate for nw St co@dt av ttac e efollow in to
t q lifi tio table for your come ie ce@

che Indust -ex erie ce-an - ualific i s lificati ta

v

TMR invites, urges and welcomes yo@%\@@iude these codes in the VSB-14 National Code
of Practice for national uniformity. @

tt s www.t 1. 1. ovau usine % @ Accreditati s rone -Perso -
%’El}tions

Happy to discuss further to assis@onal adoption of these codes as required.

Regards @

Anant Bellary
Principal Engineer (Vehicle Standards-&Accreditat on) | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety ahd Regulation Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9|61 Mary Street %ne Qild 4000
P: (07) 3066 3468

E: anant.z.bella v.au

W: www.tmr.gld.go

ok s ok ok ke ok o %********************************************************

WARN% is email (including any attachments) may contain legally
privil nfidential or private information and may be protected by

~You may only use it if you are the person(s) it was

inte o be sent to and if you use it in an authorised way. No one
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

It is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain
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
sk s ok s sk sk ok sk sk sk sk ok ok s sk sl sk sk ok s e ok sk ok sk sk ok s sk sfe sk ok e ok ok e ok ok e ok ok okl e ok s ok o sk ok e ok s ke sk sk dkok & ook sk kok

Opinions contained in this email do not necessarily reflect the \
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odificatio sLea i gto e-rating f Gross Vehicle assofa
Li tVe iceaccor ingtoLS11 esign Ce ificatio

C ELS15

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons (AP) to certify physical modifications leading to
the re-rating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or less) when those
modifications are carried out in accordance with instructions in the relevant LS11 design certification.
In addition to the requirements in this code, the AP providing LS15 certification must follow the

instructions in the design package that ame with the relevant L511 design certification @

1.1 Cerific ions itted under LS15 code

Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under LS15 code;

. Re-rating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it according to the instructi
design certification issued for the same make/modelfvariant/chassis series.

. Re-rating of a light vehicle's GVM in accordance with a letter from t inal vehicle
manufacturer. O
1.2 Certi cations not permitted under L515 code &\9

Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not be certifie $15 code:
Modifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 ve,

Re-rating of a vehicle which is outside the scope of th v 11 design certification.
Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modificativayis greater than 4,500 kg.
Re-rating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, after modifical will be greater than 4,500 kg.
Re-rating of GVM by comparing with an alternative del of vehicle.

Re-rating of GVM by comparing with another v has been previously re-rated
using a modification code.

. Re-rating of GVM based on assessment nent specifications or component
manufacturer’s specifications only.
tion

. Re-rating of GVM prior to first registra z
Second Stage of Manufacture (SSM) a

eneral Require nts

ere in Australia. In such cases seek a

Tymcal Modific 1ons

braking system with alternativ

Typical physical modifications %‘ 15 may include replacement of axle(s), suspension or

permit a different rating.

2.2 Re- ting witho@tions

In some cases, rerali VM may involve no physical changes. For example, where a letter
is issued by the or| hicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required for
re-rating. Car&“u taken when companng vehicles hel components, as some
p operties ma% obvious and evident. In these instances, evidence must be retained to
demonstrat e vehicle is identical to the manufacturer's letter.

N
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2.3 Affected A Rs \

The modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules {ADRs) which
are relevant to it. This includes ADRs which applied to it when it was originally constructed and @
the ADRs that apply to it after it is modified. If there is a conflict, the ADR requirement after

modification takes priority.

24 Work Instructions from the LS11  sign Pac age @

package that came with the relevant LS11 design certification Replacement parts must conf:

to the design package.
25 Testing and Ins ection

Testing and inspection specified in the design package must be completed and the-evidence of
the same must be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing the checklisi(s came

with the L.S11 design package.
- O
30 S cific equirements \

When certifying the re-rated GVM under LS 15, the chassis frame, sus i les and drive train
components must be used within the original vehicle manufacturer's r. cities. All instructions
provided in the LS11 design package must be followed.

The following specific requirements must be met. \\

Modifications must be carried 0 ccor ing 0 e work instructions that are in the desig;

31 Tyresand heel Rims

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with irements of the relevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-rated GVM. The load ingzapacity of any tyre or rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is loaded to the re-ra and the load is distributed in a practical

and uniform way.

ited must be al least equal to the GVM. The

ies of the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the tyres
ate to sipport the load imposed on that axle.

The sum of the load carrying capacities
same applies to the load carrying caps
(and rims) on each axle must be adeq

If rerated GVM requires different tyre and rim combination, an amending tyre placard must be
fitted to indicate the revised tyre & ecifications for the vehicle at the re-rated GVM. The revised
tyre size and load rating must r on the modification plate and in the owner's handbook.

3.2 Chassis rame
The chassis frame of @gﬁed vehicle must be according to the LS11 design package or
identical to the ongina icle manufacturer's alternate mode  variant.

Queensland Cndem

Vehicle Modificalions, Transport and Main Reads  LSt5 June 2018
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3.3 Brakes \
The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS esign ¢ age or identical to
the vehicle manufacturer's specifications for the alternate mode variant,

3.4 Axles and Sus nsion

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on axles. Axle loads must not

exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle ratings, unless reinforced replacement axles are

fitted.

Where certification is by comparison with 2 manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axie a

suspension assemblies fitted to the modified vehicle must be identical to those fitted b

manufacturer to the reference vehicle.
f

If a component manufacturer has published instructions to reduce the rating of a compone

safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.
3.5 Fabrication @

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineerin s. Cutting,
heating, welding or bending of components should be avoided sing unmodified
praduction components wherever possible,

3.6 Vehicle ligi ility and In-service Condition

Before carrying out the modifications and certification unde , the details and the in-
service condition of the vehicle must be checked, as specified e LS11 design package, to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for re-rating and its conditio afe and suitable.

Step-1: Confirm that the vehicle make/model/variant/
scope of the LS11 design cerification.

nes and build year 1s within the

Step-2: Inspect and confirm that the conditionCaf theovehicle is suitable for re-rating The
instructions in the LS11 design package must-be wed to ensure that the chassis frame,
suspension, brakes and so on are in safe and %? able condition for re-rating. Evidence of this

inspection must be recorded in the che t proviged.
3.7 Manufacturer’s Letter
If re-rating is based on the origi%@e manufacturer’s letter, the manufacturer's letter must

contain at least the following inf :
Vehicle manufacturer’ d@ﬁ.e. manufacturer’s letter head with contact information).

Make/model/varian ehicle.

Vehicle Identificati mber (VIN) of the particular vehicle being re-rated.

Details of all physical chvanges required for re-rating (including the details of the specific
ed)

upgrade pari .
. Re-rated G
. Signatu by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.

Queensiand Cudeﬁ

Vehicle Modifications, Transport and Main Roads LS15 June 2018
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N

C cklist S15
Re-rating of ro Ve icles ass of alightVe icle to L811 Desig Ce ° cati
COD LS15
Form No: LS15
{Y=Yes, N=No)
1 General
11 Have you received a copy of and understood:
The LS11 design package with all the instructions to modify, test and
re-rate vehicle of this make/model/variant/chassis series?
LS11 Besign Certification NO. ........cocevvriiinvinnns Date.....ccovvveenen h@
OR A letter from the original vehicle manufacturer for re-rating?
Manufacturer’s Letter Reference date >
Note: If you do not have one of the above, you are unable to certify th s
vehicle
12 Are you accredited to certify the additional modification codes requir@ N
’ by the LS11 design certification or the vehicle manufacturer's letter?2
2 C ssis Frame o @)
21 Does the chassis frame conform to the detail construction E%
’ properties and cross-members of the LS11 design packag%ﬁ N
original vehicle manufacturer's letter?
Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from defor@ racks
22
and rust perforation? N
Does it meet the inspection criteria mentioned i | esu
package?
3 Brake system \%
AN
Is the vehicle's braking system as specified in W} design package or
31 the original vehicle manufacturer's letter? N
Is the braking system in serviceable con e from leaks, wear
32 h -
and fouling/stretching? N
Does it meet the inspection criteria menti in the LS11 design
package?
N4
4 Tyres and Rims m N
a1 Does the Modification Plats orrect tyre and rim sizes and load
' ratings for the modified ve cle" N
42 If a revised tyre placard Is re Whas it been fitted to the vehicle and a N
copy attached to thi cklist?
4.3 Do the tyres and ri nform to the modification plate and the tyre N
placard?
4.4 Are load rati [+] tyres and rims adequate for the vehicle’s re-rated N
GVM and /me tial axle masses?
5 Iigib}?‘j%almodallvariantfchassis series
A
51 Dgeg Wﬂe meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design N
6 \Mac‘ L bel

N4

Queensland Codeofx Vehicle Madifications, Transpoert and Main Roads  L$15- June 20 8
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6.1

6.2

71
7.2
7.3

74

Queensland Code of Pr

Is the Load Capacity Label attached to the vehicle? Y

Has the vehicle's handhook been amended and a copy of the relevant
maodified content attached to this checklist?

=<

Workmanship
Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?

Arefls the checklisi(s) required in the LS11 design package completed?

Are all the inspections and tests as required in the LS11 design package
com leted?

Have you kept all supporting documents you used to cerify this
modification and hotos of the modified vehicle for future audit?

< < =< =<

Vehicle Moditications, Transport and Main Roads = LS15- June 2018
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS @

Year of
Make Model Manufacture
VIN

Chassis Number

(if applicable) @
Brief Dascription of

Modification/s

Vehicle Modified B

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified B Prin
Signatory’s Employer
{If applicable)
Q \Q

Si nato s S nature

Queensland Code of Practi Vehicle Modifications Transport and Main Roads  LS15- Juna 2018
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rs e icle ass atingoflLi htVe icles
CODE LS11
1.0 Scope

The LS11 Modification Code specifies arangements for re-rating of the Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM)
rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not exceed 4,500 kg.

Re-rating of GVM under LS11 code is permissible only on the following type of light vehicles:
it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as monocogque construction, aga_n

eligible.
rating is

A light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from the original manufacturer's
not eligible for re-rating under this code.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First Stage Identification Plate Approval

(IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) Approval or RAWS Approval i deemed

ae-to be the original vehicle manufacturer.

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specified the GVM rating, imum laden
ce with the

mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the purpose of showi
Austrafian Design Rules (ADRs) is to be taken as the onginal GVM rating. This mf%must be obtained

from a reliable and traceable source
Modifications that may be certified under LS11 code are: %

. Up to 10% increase in the GVM rating given by the origitial vebicle manufacturer.

. Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in following cases:
GVM rating of an in-service vehicle that is e make/model/variant/chassis
series as a vehicle having a SSM appro VM re-rating AND is modified in
accordance with the SSM approval AND t SM approval holder has given explicit
permission for the SSM approvalto b he basis for GVM re-rating.
Increase in GVM where an additionalaxle hag been nstalled,
Alteration of a

h ing to match the vehicle manufacturer's
alternative rating for a particular <:’f that make/model.

1.2 W tisnot rmitted

11 W tis permitted

Modifications that must not be certified 3511 code are.

. Modifications other than these described in Section 1.1 above.

. Reduction in GVM rating ot an the re-rating to manufacturer's optional GVM for
that make/model and als f GVM reductions require as a result of conversion to
heavy motorhomes. %

. Re-rating of GVM on a-wve
SSM approvalor L

. GVM re-rating of
approval holderdias N

which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by way of

or another Code of Practice or another jurisdictional approval).
ervice vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the SSM
provided explicit permission to use the SSM approval as the

basis.

. GVM re-rati in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM approval (for
exampl e or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in the SSM
approval

&
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. GVM re-rating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on any axle beyond the
rating for that axle by the criginal vehicle manufacturer.

. Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the original vehicle manufacturer's
rating.

13 To 'ng Capac’ andLS11Code
» |.S11 code is not to be used for changing the rating of towing capacity, Gross Combination
Mass (GCM) rating or max mum braked towing mass (MBTM) of the vehicle. These ratings
must remain the same as those provided by the original vehicle manufacturer.

mass It can tow must be ad usted so that the total combination mass does not exceed

N

+ Whenthe vehicle is loaded to the gross vehicle mass according to LS11 rating, the safe traile; @

rating or the limit specified by the original vehicle manufacturer. i
20 General R ui ments

The vehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. The critical component ing the
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres must be asse individually

to ensure that they can safely support the loads resulting from the re-rated GVM.
@Airements of

All work must also comply with the requ rements contained in sub-section 2 Gene
the |National Code of Practice (NCOP} - Light vehicie modifications VSB14
%e original vehicle

Increased GVM has the potential to affect eligibility warranty clai
manufacturer . Itis the responsibility of the vehicle operat e Approved Person
o consider any effect on the warranty that LS11 modification may . ffect this modification

may have on the product warranty provided by the original vehicl cturer is outside the scope
of this code, The cerlifying officer must clarify this point to the mod nd-He veh ¢ e operator

2.1 Com liance with le vehicle standards @

Modified vehicles must continue o comply with the A t apply to them.

If different ADRs apply due to the modified vehicl ey-rmust comply those ADRs that
are relevant to them.

Modified vehicles must also comply with icable in-service requirements of Transport
Operations (Road Use Management—Veh ndards and Safety) Regulation 2010 (the
Regulation).

Modified pre-ADR vehicles must conti mply with the Regulation.

Outlined in Table LS11 are are: the vehicle that may be affected by the modifications and
may require re-certification, testi r data to show compliance of the modified vehicle.
This is not an exhaustive list al pliance to other ADRs may also be affected.

S
9
N
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Table LS11 List of iterns and likely affected ADRs \

DETAIL REQUIREMENTS @

Tyre and Rim Selection ADR 42/..

Braking Systems ADR 31/...or ADR 35/...

Brake Performance Transport  Operations (Road Use @
(for non-ADR vehicles) g:gﬁege%;nﬁh%? o rendards and @

The ADR applicability is according to the vehicle's category and date of manufacture.
responsibility of the certifying Approved Person to refer to the appropriate ADRs applicable to

the vehicle.
Sections 2.2 to 2.5 relate to the different options to rerate vehicle’s GVM. @

2 GV re- ting basedon rigi |Vehicle anufacturer's Optigp @

The change to the vehicle’s GVM must replicate the onginal vehicle manu %pﬁonal GVM for
that particular make, mode! and variant. All components, including suspensi SMiSsion, engine,
brakes, tyre and rims must be fitted same as those specified for thal r vehicle's

rated variant, %

23 GV r rating sedon SSM Approval

The re-rated GVM must be the same as the S5M appm@le. All upgraded components,

including suspension, brakes, tyres and nms must be fitts dentical to those specified on the
SSM approved vehicle.

In addition to the physical modification replicati SM approval, all the administrative
requirements specified under the SSM approval mu 0 be met. These requirements may include,
but are not hmited to, the following:

. The vehicle's first Identification P) A number must be identical to that mentioned

in the SSM Approval.
. If the SSM approval mits the nul f new ve icles to be supplied under it each year,

{for example, Low Volum or 100 or 300 vehicles per annum), the certifying AP must

check with the SSM appr er to ensure that the total number of in-service vehicles
modified per annum un%mbinatien of the particular SSM approval and this code

do not exceed the limit sp for that low volume SSM approval.

. GVM re-rating of intservice vehicles using LS11 code must not be certified if the SSM
approval is no lotiger ent and has been suspended or cancelled.

. When re-rati accordance with an SSM approval, the certifying AP must ensure that
the SSM ap | fiblder has provided written permission for use of the SSM design as the

basis. %
<
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. A statutory declaration must be obtained from the low volume SSM holder stating that the \

number limit has not been exceeded as of that date.
. The SSM approval number must be recorded on the modification certificate. @
. The low volume SSM restrictions must be noted on the modification certificate (for examp e

vehicle #12 of 300).

. Both the written permission and the statutory declaration from the SSM approval holder
must be retained by the AP as evidence for certifying the re-rating of GVM under this code.

4  GVM re-rating by installation of an additional axle é

If an additional axle is fitted to a vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the vehicle's

rating may be increased by a maximum of 10% above the originat vehicle manufacturer’s GV

rating. However, if the additional axle is load sharing with the adjacent axle in the group,

10% limit may be exceeded. The of an additional axle is permitted in Queensland Commented [SR(5): Fitment is a noun, not a verb
under the LB2 modification code in conjunction with the LS11 code. Additio orting

evidence including brake testing and chassis strength analysis must be provided.

25 GVMre-rati  outsi of Manu cturer's O tion o @

A re-rating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even ifit is not an option b ' icle manufacturer,
provided the change is no more than 10% above the original vehicle manufacturer's GVM rating.
While the upper limitis 10%, the actual change possible is limited by va U factors including chassis,
drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres%

3.0 Specific Requirements @

When re-rating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and driv imeomponents must be used within the
original manufacturer's rated capacities. Where a compone apifacturer has published information
stating that reduced ratings apply for safety reasons, the @ ing must apply.

|

Typical modifications involved in re-rating a vehicle’
- single axle to tandem axle conﬂguratio@
- replacement engine, transmissi x| uspension components, reinforced chassis
[frame and upgraded braking S»@V combination of these Commented [SR(6]: Just chassis 15 sufficient.

The following specific requirements must be m

&
2

S
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strength of the chassis with the load carrying capacity (i.e. GVM).

31 Chassis \
A simplified way to look at the frame requirements for GVM re-raling, is to associate the bending @

Chassis modifications must be performed in accordance with section LH5 of VSB14. If the
necessary information is not available in LH5 code, then the relevant sections of H code of the Heavy
Vehicle Modification Code of Practice (VSB6) may be consulted, as appropriate.

When modifications such as fitting of additional or replacement axie(s) with higher load rating are
carried out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensure that it has sufficient strength to support

the re-rated GVM. For calculating chassis strength, VSB6 may be consulted.

32 ngi T i @

The GVM re-raling assigned must not exceed the engine and transmission manu rer
recommendations, if any, or the limit set by vehicle manufacturer for a vehicle using the e

and transmission models being assessed. Where certification is by comparison with a
manufacturer's reference vehicle, the engine and transmission fitted to the modifie must
be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

3.3 Axle Ratings
<

When loaded to the re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on a loads must not
exceed the original vehicle manufacturer's axle ratings, unless reinfor lacement axles are

fitted. @
Where cerification is by comparison with a manufacturer's % ehicle, the axle and
A

suspension assemblies fitted o the modified vehicle must 1 I to those fitted by the

manufacturer to the reference vehicle.
If a component manufacturer has published instructions to@he rating of a component for

safety reasons, the reduced rating must apply.
34 Tail Shait

Changes associated with re-rated GVM may pl@onal load on vehicle’s tail sha

example:

- changes to vehicle's ride height which the tail shaft and pinion angles;

- alterations to a vehicle's wheelba: ay resof!in change in tail shaft length;

- changes to engine andfor transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on the tail
shaft.

The vehicle's tail shaft strength Nsta"alion must be suitable at the vehicles re-rated GVM.

Queensland Codex
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35 Sus nsion \

When loaded to re-rated GVM, additional loads are placed on  suspension. Vehicle suspension

ratings must be adequate for the re-rated GVYM plus it must be able to accommaodate the axle loads

resulting from the ‘common and practical load distributie . Effects of changes in ride height must R{7): What 15 thus trying to achieve
be carefully considered. For example, tyre and wheel envelope, jounce and rebound travel,

hydraulic brake hose length, handling and rol! stability.

braking system must be assessed to determine f the performance of the original system

36 B kes @
A vehicle’s braking performance is directly affected by changes to its GVM. Therefore, the vehicle'
adequate for the re-rated GVM or if it requires to be einforced. %

Commented {SR(8]: Rewnforced 15 an unusual word i this
context, Iwould suggest that modified i more appropnate
3.7 Steenng

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by the vehicle manufacturer to the originai

or reference vehicle, as appropriate. If the steering system is modified or a new st ystermn is
fitted it must be cerlified under the LS section of VSB14.

38 Tyresand ims Q

The tyres and rims must be selected to comply with the requirements o? elevant ADR (ADR
24/... or ADR 42/04) at the re-raled GVM. The load carrying capacity of t rim must not be
exceeded when the vehicle is loaded to the re-raled GVM and the load ibuted in a practical

and uniform way. @,

t équal to the re-rated GVM.

The sum of the load camrying capacities of the tyres fitted must Y'
joreover th

The same applies to the load carrying capacities of the rims. M 2 load capacity of the tyres

(and rims) on each axle must be adequate to support the potetitial mum mass on that axle.

If re-rated GVM and axle masses require different tyre_and-ri mbination, an amending tyre
placard must be fitted to indicate the revised tyre & rim/apecifications for the vehicle at the re-rated
GVM. The revised tyre size and load rating must also on the modification plate and in the

owner's handbook.

5

If different tyres & rims are specified, their si
increased axle masses. The effect of

must be considered. it must be ensured
to ESC requirements is not affected.

to support the Formatted: Highl ght

tyres on Speedomeleﬂw,om,ewr acc!"racy Commented [SR(9]: | see whal you are getung at but
alte  tve tyres, vehicle's compliance owners fil aliemauve tyres for othet reasons e.4. to increase
ground clearance and/or footprmt

4.0 Owner's Handbook and LoadGa acity La el

The vehicle operator must be adequa in ed of the changes.
ner's Handbecok @

To inform the vehicle op r about the vehicle's towing capacity and tyre & rim requirements, the
It

vehicle’s handbook m ) ed. The update must provide specific details of the tyres, rims and
the towing capacity. O icularimportance is any lidin red nin tow pacity of the vehicle Commented [SR(10]: Whal does this mean’
as itis loaded to its, et N5VM and/or vertical load on tow ball (ball weight). Formatted: Highlight

owner of the ve
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42 Loa Ca otyla \

Certain information must also be displayed on the Load Capacity Label as discussed below. @

The Load Capacity Labe! must follow the below format. It must be made of durable material and letter
size and contrast should be similar o the tyre placard. Label must be fitted to the vehicle, as close
as practicable, to the vehicle’s tyre placard.

Load Capacity Label @

atin s tem Rati Infermation
SSM A val# ifa It ble
Re-rat GV

Maximum Braked Towl atre-rat GVM*
ximum  ront Axle Ma  Penmitted
ximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted

*Warni :The maxmumbrakedto gma d endsonthere-rat GVMand
tratler || weight. For further information re i towing capacities please

refer to the ndbook
- O
50 Limitations \

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see Section 1.2 of this cogle. ition, the fo lowing
mitations mentioned in sections 5 1 and 5.2 of this code apply. %

= x x x

5.1 Electromc Stability Control

Re-raled GVM may have direct effect on the performance nic Stability Control (ESC) Commented [SR(11]: Don't be fghtened of the definite
system.Hence  ESC system must be revalidated so it pe: sfactorily at the re-rated GVM. ant

However such revalidation is not required where a i Is ing re-rated to the

manufacture 's altemative variant or according to pproval, such that the system’s

compliance has been demonstrated using cther ag ethitds.

5.2 Effect on towing ca city

d-as GCM rating or Rated Towing Capacity or
ot exceed the value set by the original vehicle
lude changes to vehicle’s towing capacity. If towing
capacity is not specified by the original vehicig manufacturer, the limits mentioned in the Safe Towing

Guide published by TMR apply.
If the original vehicle manufactu(ér ecified towing capacity in some form, the gross combination
mass formed by adding that to pacity and the original GVM rating must not be exceeded.

Hence, when the GVMisr actual towed mass must be proportionately reduced according
to the loaded mass of the4owing wehicle.

6.0 A ditional odificati nd Changes to Vehicle Category
If additional modifications ére inade or the vehicle’s category has changed due to the GVM re-rating,

certification using t% e additional codes must be provided.

N
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70 Use of LS11 code to pro - sign certification for GVM Re-rating

L3511 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM re-raling of a vehicle of a particular
make/modelivariant/chassis series. The design certification may be provided using any of the re-rating
criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code,

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited AP holding
a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a series of modified vehicles of that
same make/modelivariant/chassis sefies and generate the necessary evidence to show that the
requirements of the LS11 design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used to provide design certification, the AP providing the design certification, may (6
inspect the modified vehicle(s) and is not required to fit LS11 modification plate on the vehicle(s). Also-the
checklist completed as part of the LS11 design certification will not refer 1o any particular VIN.

The oulputs of a design ceriification under LS11 code are (a) a comprehensive design package-{b}a
modification certificate and (c) a completed checklist. All of these outputs must be preserved as records of
the LS11 design certification and must be made available, on request for audit and enforcerfientpurposes.

sign Packa

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and comprehensively-adurass the following
four requirements:

7.1.1 Scope of w tis eligible

Design package must clearly identify which make/modelvafianiichassis series it applies to. If
its applicability is restricted to specific build years that also miust be‘mentioned.

Since the modification and the re-rating of GVM is Aeing\dene on in-service vehicles, the
condition of the vehicle is important to decide which vehicle' can be safely modified and re-
rated. The design package must include instructi¢ns about what is to be inspected and the
acceptance criteria. Condition of the shock absorbers] sispension, frame, tow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect. Absence of cracks, défarmations, leaks and structural damage
due to overloading, accidents or rust is also ghilical:

The design package must include a che¢Xlisttemplate for use by the AP certifying the physical
modification. The checklist will be complaied by the AP who cerifies the physical modification
to confirm that the vehicle was inspected andwas found in sound condition before commencing
the modification,

7.1.2 Evi nce packa

The design package must/jiolude &l the test reports and engineering calculations that validate
the re-rating, when modified/ds jrescribed. Test reports must be from reputed test laboratories,
have unique identification umiber and be signed and dated. All test reports must make
unambiguous reference tothe specific make/modelfvariants of the vehicle or component to
which they apply. Also-ihe test reports must contain conclusion about pass or fail according to
the relevant critefia.

Engineering Calddlztions must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They must be
compilecunder a-yrique identifier docurment that is dated and signed.
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If any evidence is sourced from a third party, the evidence package must include a written
permission from that party for use of its reports.

For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, sometimes the L511 certifier may choose
not to include all the test reports in the design package. In such cases the design package
must still include a full list of all the test reports and the calculation sheets (using their unique
identifiers) and provide written assurance to the client that the full evidence package will be
made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purpeses.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package must include comprehensive work instructions on how to modify
vehicle, what parts to be used, the sequence of actions to be performed, precaution
taken and what process controls to be applied.

The work instructions must include details of any {non-destructive) testing and inspe
be camied out to ensure that the modification standards are met.

The work instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous and should irCude cient
pictorials including photos and graphics.

The work instructions must include the contact details of the LS11 gerti if enquiries
anse needing further clarification during the physical modification and/ cation.

7.1.4 C ecklist for the mod™ 1er and the certifier QQ&Q

The design package must include template checklist{s) to be leted by the vehicle modifier
and the certifier of the physical modification. These e arate or cne combined
checklist. These checklists, when completed, are eviden a modifier and the certifier of

the physical modification have understood and folle the instructions and the intent of
the design package has been met. The L.S11 AP copies of completed checklists
from the modifier and the certifier of physical ification as part of his/her own quality
assurance or risk management practice. The et ecklist must also be retained by the

AP who certifies the physical modification.

Note that this checklist is different checklist that the certifier of the physical
modification is required to comple her certification of the medification under the

relevant code.
7.2 Certificate of odificatig
The L311 AP must issue a certi \udiﬁcalion to his client for the design certification provided.
This is similar to any other i of modification, except that the cerlificatle may not make
reference to any specific m; plate number or VIN. Instead, it must refer to the basis of the
design certification (for e le," S5M approval number and the unique identification number of the
design package provid&
7.3 od.ficano@ ist
LS11 AP must the modification checklist provided at the end of this code and must retain it
as part of hi cords.

age 9of 12
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C ecklist LS11

Gross Vehicle ass Increase

co SN
Form No: LS11
(Y=Yes, N=No, NfA= Not Applicable}
1 Suspension
1.1 | Is the vehicle s suspension suitable for the increased GVM? -~ |Y |N @
2
4 @l E)
2.1 | Is the chassis suitable for the increased GVM? -— Y (N\
3
3.1 | Are the axle ratings suitable for the increased GVM? - W\N\
4 ngin  ransmission 7
AN
4.1 | Is the engine/transmission suitable for the increased GYM? o(—\-— \y N
5 Braking System @
I
51 | Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehicl 7
’ ensure compliance with ADR 31/. or 35/.., whichevep j
applicable? NIALY [N
(applicable in all cases apart from upgrading
approval or original vehicle manufacturer's optional G
5.2 | Is the vehicle s brake system suitable for the inc@gm? - Y [N
N
6 |T esandRims NA
6.4 | Does the Modification Plate record the comect-tyfe and rim sizes | Y N
" | and load ratings for the modified vehicle?/~>
6o | If a revised tyre placard is required, it been fitted to the | y IN
i vehicle and a copy attached to this cheekli
6.3 | Dothe tyres and rims fitted conforrr@ odification plateand | __ |y |y
i the tyre placard? P
6.4 Are load ratings of the tyre gld rima adequate for the — |y |IN
i vehicle's re-rated GVM and\the potential axle masses?
7 E ctronic Stabil’ y Cz‘{ntrol\/
Has the vehicle s ESC m been tested to confirm that the
7.1 | system continues to Wl& elevant ADR or manufacturer's | NFA [Y | N
specifications?
\Y/
8 Load Ca city lﬁ!u
N ~
81 | lIsthe Load @@.ﬂbei attached to the vehicle? _ |Y [N
82 Has the vehi handbook been amended and a copy of the Y |N
’ relevant ntent attached to this checklist? —
9 Ma% O tional GVYM

[~
Queensland Codnﬂ'x
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9.1

9.2

10

10.1

10.2
10.3
10.4
1"
11

12

121
12.2
12.3
12.4
12.5

12.6

12.7
12.8

12.8

Note: If the answer to any question

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

Second Sta of anufacturer GVM

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
sus ension, es and rims, etc identical to the SSM des™ n?
Fitment of n additional axie

If the vehicle s GVM has been increas  more than 10% is
the additional axle load shari  ?

Q

N/A

N/A

N/A

NfA
NIA

N/A

=<

=

Y

Only if LS11 code is used to provide Design Certificatio \

Is a comprehensive design package provided?
Does the design package have a unique identiﬁcation%

number?

Does the design package clearly describe which
make/modelfvariant/chassis series is eli "ble for re-ratin 7
Does the design package include guidance on @pecl
to decide if the vehicle is fit to receive the re-fated ?
Does the design package include a complet ce

Packa on which the GVM re-ratin is based?

Does the design package include comp i
instructions including work to be done,
taken, control of rocesses and testgto-hesanducted?
Does the design package include ;ist for the modifier
of the vehicle?

Does the design package intlude a ¢hecklist for the certifier

of the modified vehicle?
Does the design package ad

code? \

| the requirements of this

does not already a in the checklist then it cannot be used.

@
N
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of

Make Model Manufacture

VIN

Chassis Number

{If applicable) @
Briaf Description of

Modification/s

Vaehicle Modified By

Certificate Number
{If applicable)

Signatory’s Employer

Vehicle Cartified By (Print) @
Qo \Q

(If applicable)
Signatory’s Signature

Queensland Cod \
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Vehicle Standards

From: Notrefevant @atozimports.net>

Sent: Tuesday, 3 July 2018 12:33 PM

To: Vehicle Standards

Subject: FW: New and Revised Modification Code for your comment

Hi Vehicle Standards Team

| am writing this email to voice my opinion and concerns about the proposed revisions to thgQid Codes.
Whilst | don’t think my opinion will have much impact, | unfortunately am not in supperiefthe proposed changes.

Sections of the LS11 that have been changed such as the inclusion of the Maximum Braked Towing Mass at re-rated
GVM is a good idea. However the section relating to SSM has now become confusipg-and requires a lot of pointless
information and documentation that most SSM will not want to supply as many of tixeim have very little knowledge
of their own products, So trying to obtain any more than a stat dec will be almgst impossible.

The reason for negative outlook on the addition of the L515 is mainly due to the facts that firstly | don’t think in this
day and age there are that many remote or regional areas which are not adeaitately serviced by fully qualified
approved persons.

Secondly it creates more problems and possible floors in the alreadyloored system.

By this | mean you will create the situation where approved persopswili-be writing out LS15 certificates either
without the appropriate paperwork, Or you will have engineess such as"* " issuing LS11 approval codes
without any information or details relating to the modifications.

And whilst | am sure your general reply to this will be that itwon“vhappen, | think it already happens now with so
many of the design codes.

| very often see vehicles with LG2 or LH4 etc that list nothing on the certificates about the design codes used ?
Not to mention the LK1 code that seems to cover everypossible seating modification going, regardless of how the
seats are anchored or if it effects the seating changes might have on the vehicle ADR category.

I’'m the first to admit | make mistakes and | am a'¢éng way short of knowing everything about the system, But | can
say with no uncertainty that overall mod schéme.needs to be updated and possibly cleaned out along the way.

It like the safety certificate scheme has just become a tick and flick fast revenue raiser for so many of its participants.
instead of getting paid to make sure som¢éthing is safe, people would much rather just pay to get it passed.

| have been told more than once to\get *uc#ed when I've suggested that we may have to carry out testing to ensure
a component or modification meets with'the requirements, then to only be insuited further because the local
mobile mechanic has mod plated:the job for $50.

thank you for the opportunity\tg/voice my opinion.

Regards

Not relevant

Eng Aust 4173060

SAE Aust 14482

NSW VSCCS Certifier 130016
Approved person Qld 2791
Approved inspector QLD 15653
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A to Z Imports

12 Leonard Parade
Currumbin QLD 4223
Ph# 617 55345957

Not relevant
Mabq "= ]

atozirmports.com

Sent from my iPad @

On 19 Jun 2018, at 6:39 am, Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining @tmr.gld.gov.au> \@

Dear Stakeholders i @

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently develope w Light Vehicle Medification
Code LS15 to be incorporated into the Queensland C of Practice (QCoP) for Light Vehicle

Modifications. The purpose of the new code isto e c&’the operation of the previously
developed LS11 modification code, particularly i rémote and regional areas of
Queensiand. o

The attached LS15 modification code allo ved Persons to certify physical

modifications leading to the rerating of G hicle Mass (GVM) of an in-service light

vehicle {(GVM 4,500 kg or less) whe odifications conform to the specifications

contained in the relevant LS11 ﬂesi% ication. In addition to the requirements in this

code, the LS15 certification must @the process specified in the design package in the
is

relevant LS11 design cenificati% to the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis
series.

LS15 code.

Both the ne ode and the amended LS11 code are attached for your perusal and
feedbac\@ rovide any comments, via email to vehiclestandards@tmr.gld.gov.au by
f
0

the clos iness on Friday, 20" July 2018. You may use the attached template form to
provi eedback. It is proposed to implement these codes 3" September 2018.

e@ﬁcations for the revised LS11 code will remain unchanged (that is, Qualification No
the new LS15 code the required qualification will be Level-1 or Level-2, as per the

iness rules. The latter is a trade based qualification which is considered appropriate for
\ new L515 code. | have attached the following link to the qualification table for your
onvenience;

https://www.tmr.qld.gov.au/business-industry/Accreditations/Approved-Person-
Scheme/Industry-experience-and-gualifications/Qualifications#gualificationtable

2
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Kind regards

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditation}
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 [ 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qld 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
P: (07) 30666537

E: peler.n.twining@itmr.qld.qov.au
- www.tmr.qld.gov.au

<image003.png> \
***********************************************************TQ****

WARNING: This email (including any attachments) may contain legall
privileged, confidential or private information and may be protected by
copyright. You may only use it if you are the person(s) 1t was

intended to be sent to and if you use it in an authorised way. No one @
is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute, prin

or copy this email without appropriate authority.

please telephone or email me immediately, destroy any h pies of
this email and delete it and any copies of it from your computer

system. Any right which the sender may have under law, and

If this email was not intended for you and was sent to you by mistake,
t

any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to il is not
waived or destroyed by that mistake.

It 1s your responsibility to ensure that this e 1@ not contain
and 1s not affected by computer viruses, 0%%‘ interference by
third parties or replication problems (inclédingincompatibility with
your computer system).

opinions of the Department of T and Main Roads,

or endorsed organisations utili the same infrastructure.
e o ok e ok ok ok ok ok ok o ok Ak ok ok ke ke sk ok ok sk sk ok 3k ok 3k 3k o 3k ok sk 2k 2k ok s sk ok ok ok ok e s ok ok sk ok Ak ok ke ok 3k ok 9k ok ok ok ok K A %k ok ok ok

Opinions contained in this email d@@cessarﬂy reflect the
Form for Feedback on Draft Modification Code LS11.docx

Form for Feedback & Draft Modification Code LS15.docx
LS11 Cede Jun 20@1 Consultation Draft.docx

LS15 Code Jun inal Consultation Draft.do x

&
S
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Deann G Coleman

From: Elizabeth P Austin

Sent: Thursday, 24 May 2018 4:07 PM

To: Vehicle Standards; Adam Shaw; Peter N Twining; Shane F Lonsdale

Cc: Deann G Coleman; Tracey L Dreier

Subject: RE: Revised LS11 and the new LS15 codes

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 comments DC.EA.docx; LS15 Version May

2018 V1 Comments DC EA.doc

Good afternoon gentlemen
Please find attached the marked up LS11 & LS15 drat documents as discussed in today’s\meeting.

Thank you.

Regards

Elizabeth Austin

AP Policy
Approved Person Scheme | Transport Regulation Branch
Customer Services, Safety and Regulation Division | Depariment of Trafispod a@nd Main Roads

PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld
E: ap policy@tmr.qld.gov.au

W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au

From: Tracey L Dreier

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 7:36 AM

To: Deann G Coleman <deann.g.coleman@tmr.gld.gov.au>; Elizabeth P Austin <elizabeth.p.austin@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Fwd: Revised LS11 and the new L§15cpdes

Hi Deann and Liz

Could you guys please review and-send your comments back to me so | can review and send consolidated response
back to Shane. Thanks.

Regards

Tracey Dreier

A/Manager (Operator Accreditation & Authorisation)
Transport Regulation Branch

Ph: 3066 2532

MOb Not relevant

Begin forwarded-message:

From: Shane F Lonsdale <Shane.F.Lonsdale@tmr.gld.gov.au>

Date: 18 May 2018 at 1:36:16 pm AEST

To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gld.gov.au>, Anant Z Bellary
<Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.gqld.gov.au>, "Adam Shaw" <Adam.M.Shaw@tmr.qld.gov.au>, Neil L Todd
<Neil. L.TODD@tmr.qld.gov.au>

1
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Cc: Peter N Twining <peter.n.twining@tmr.gld.gov.au>, Peter R Phillips
<Peter.R.Phillips@tmr.qld.gov.au>, Patricia L Bailey <Patricia.L.Bailey@tmr.qld.gov.au>, Christina T
Myers <christina.t.myers@tmr.qid.gov.au>, Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@tmr.qld.gov >
Subject: Revised LS11 and the new LS15 codes

Good afternoon all

Please find a draft of the revised LS11 and the new L515 codes for the re rating of a light vehicles
GVM. If you have any comment’s please do them in mark-up and have them back to me by, the 25
May 2018.

Any guestions please let me know and | will try to help. \

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
CODE LS11 Commented [&% 25)per annum limit how do we

expect this to b '.;r. anapéds or fiow do we monitor it or 1s 1t
outside our apeg| of respensibility.

et [ERAZ]: Is LS11 going to be a design code
L.511 APs be able to do both.

1.0 Scope only
Co i PA3]): t would have been nice to have ]
The LS11 Modification Code specifies arrangements for rerating of the Gross Vehicle Mass recelv ed up copy of the changes insicad of having

to compare the 2 documents,

{GVM) rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not
exceed 4 500 kg. @

Rerating of GVM under code LS11 is permissible only on following type of light vehicles:
{(a) a light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin an
body mounted on it. Viehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as
monocogue construction are not eligible.
(b} A light vehicle that has not previousty been rerated from the original manufacturer

GVM rating. Commented [EPA4]: Does this mean S5M or TA

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the entity holding the First Stage Identifi Plate

Approval (IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) Ap r RAWS

Approval is not deemed as the original vehicle manufacturer. o

In cases where the original vehicle manufacturer has not specifie rating the

maximum laden mass pemitted by the original vehicle manufacturer fo se of showing

compliance with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs} is to be taken a nal GVM rating.

This information must be obtained from a reliable and traceable A Commented [EPAS): How do they know who we consider

is reliable & traceable

1.1 What is permitted...

Modifications that may be certified under LS11 code ar@

* Upto 10% increase in the GVM rating given by the griginal vehicle manufacturer
s Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in followi
« (i) GVYM rating of an in-service that is of the same the

make/model/variant/chassis series a hicle having a Second Stage of

¢ Increase in GVM where anadditional axle has been installed
+  Alteration of a vehicle' ting to match the manufacturer's alternative rating

for a particular varia make/model Commented [EPAG]: This is not clear to look at

1.2 What is not itted...

Modifications tha tfjot be certified under LS11 code are:
¢ Modificatio er than those described in 1.1 above

N
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* Reduction in GVM rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer's optional GVM
for that make/model (except in case of heavy motorhomes).

+ Rerating of GVM on a vehicle which has previously received a GVM rerating by
way of SSM approval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another
jurisdictional approval.

»  GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle in accordance with an SSM Approval but the
SSM approval holder has NOT provided explicit permission to use the SSM

@

approval as the basis.
+ GVM rerating of an in-service vehicle on the basis of a concessional SSM appréval

{for example, Low Volume or RAWS) where the number of vehicles is capped in
the SSM approval.

*» GVM rerating where practical loading is likely to exceed the load on-any axle
beyond the rating by the original vehicle manufacturer

+ Re-rating of vehicle components or sub systems beyond the ehicle
manufacturer's rating. Qo @

1.3 Towing Capacity and LS11 Code
GVM rerating under L$11 code must not result in any increase iE '@ g capacity of the

vehicle beyond that specified by the original vehicle manufaciurét:
met irrespective of how the towing capacity is specified or ¢

is, requirement must be
and includes the terms

U
gross combination mass rating, the rated towing acify and the maximum braked

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
Requirements of the NCOP. Com EPAT]: Does this need to be in full

for any warranty claims when operating at the rerated GVM. The certifying officer must

This code does not provide any assurance regarding the continued eligibility of the vehicle @
clarify this point to the modifier and the vehicle operator. Increased GVM has the potential Z

to affect eligibility of warranty claims with the vehicle manufacturer in some cases. It is the
responsibility of the vehicle operator and Approved Person to consider any effect
warranty that the modification may have.

21 Compliance with applicable vehicle standards

Modified vehicles must continue to comply with the ADRs to which they wer inally
constructed, except:
h

« | different ADRs apply to them due to the modification, in which must
comply to those ADRSs that are relevant to the modified vehicle
+ as allowed for in the Transport Operations (Road Use Méhage Veh™ |

Standards and Safely) Regulation 2010 (the Regulation).
» Modified vehicles must also comply with the applicable in-se%%&quiremen

the regulation. @
Modified pre-ADR vehicles must continue 1o comply with the % /
Outlined below are areas of the%t’hal may be affected by
the modifications and may require re-certification, testing a ta to show compliance
of the modified vehicle,

This is not an exhaustive list and compliance 1o othe@may also be affected.

Table L$11 List of items and likely aﬁecteé@
7N

DETAIL REQUIREMENTS

Tyre and Rim Selection ADR 42/..
Hydraulic Brake Systems R 31/...or ADR 35/...

Brake Performance \ Transport Operations (Road Use
Management—Vehicle Standards and
Safety) Regutation 2010

<

The ADR applicabili <%‘:ﬂding to the vehicle’s category and date of manufacture. Itis
the responsibility rtifying Approved Person to refer to the appropriate ADRs
applicable to the v [

Sections 2.2 ti%ale to the different options to rerate vehicle's GVM.
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2.2 GVM alteration based on Manufacturer's Option

The change to the vehicle’s GVM must replicate the manufacture's optional GVM for that
particular make, model and variant of vehicle. Additionally, all components, including
suspension, transmission, engine, brakes, tyre and rims, and so on must be fitted and identical
to those specified for that particular vehicle’s rated variant.

2.3 GVM Upgrade based on SSM Approval

The rerated GVM must be the same as the SSM approved vehicle. All upgraded components,
including suspension, brakes, tyres and rims, etc must be fitted and be identical to those
specified on the SSM approved vehicle,

In addition to the physical modification replicating the SSM approval, all the administra
requirements specified under the SSM must also be met. These requirements can include but
are not limited to the following:

« The vehicle's first Identification Plate Approval number must be identical_to that
mentioned in the SSM Approval.
=

¢ |fthe SSM approval limits the number of vehicles to be supplied underi year,
{for example, Low Volume 25 or 100 per annum), the SSM app er must
ensure that the same restriction is applied to the number of vehi ied under

this code.
e GWVM rerating of in-service vehicles using LS11 code sh certified if the
SSM approval is no longer current and has been susp ncelled.

+  When upgrading GVM in accordance with an SS| i e cerlifying AP musl
ensure the SSM approval holder has provided written pedmission for use of the SSM

design as the basis.

= |f upgrading a GVM in accordance with a Low Vol SSM a statutory declaration
must be obtained from the SSM holder st more approvals than the limit
stipulated on the SSM have been provi 0 mple, if the Low Volume SSM
restricts the number of vehicles to ZS@m then the SSM approval holder
cannot provide permission for more than service vehicles to be modified in that
year {in addition to the 25 new vceﬂiﬁed in accordance with their SSM
approval).

¢ Both the written permission statujory declaration from the SSM heolder must be
retained by the Approved Pe s evidence for certifying the rerating of GVM

under this code. \
2.4 GVM Upgrade by i@gﬁ:n of an additional axle

If an additional axle is fi vehicle (i.e. lazy axle or additional drive axle) the vehicle's
GVM may be increas: maximurn of 10% above the original vehicle manufacturer's
GVM rating. However \if the additional axle is load sharing with adjacent axle in the group
then the 10% limi ease in GVM increase may be exceeded. The fitment of an
additional axle is ifed in Queensland under the LB2 meodification code.

G&&@g outside of Manufacturer's Qption
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A rerating of GVM is permitted on a light vehicle even if it is not an option by the vehicle
manufacturer provided the change Is no more than 10% from the original manufacturer's GVM.
While the upper limit is 10%, the actual change possible is limited by various factors induding
chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, wheels and tyres.

3.0 Specific Requirements

When rerating GVM the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train components must be used
within the vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. Where a component manufacturer has
published information stating that reduced ratings apply for safety reasons, the reduced rating
must apply.

Typical modifications involved with rerating a vehicle’s GVM include:
- single axle to tandem axle configuration
- combination of replacement engine, transmission, axles or suspension components;

reinforced chassis and upgraded brake components

The following specific requirements must be met. @
3.1 Chassis o @
Chassis modifications must be performed in accordance with se@ of Vehicle

Standards Bulletin 14 — and the relevant sections of H code of the Hea icke Modification
VSBE, as far as possible and appropriate. @

When maodifications such as fitting of additional or replacem t%%% higher load rating
are carmied out, the vehicle frame must be analysed to ensur% sufficient strength to
accommodate the rerated GVM. For calculating chassis stre icle Standards Bulletin 6

— Heavy Vehicle Modification may be consulted.

A simplified way to look at the frame requirements @4 rerating, is to associate the
ty

bending strength of the chassis with the load carryi {i.e. GVM).
3.2 Engine/Transmission @

The GVM rating assigned must not excee gine and transmission manufacturer's
recommendations, or the limit set by le ™ facturers for a vehicle using the engine
and transmission models being assgSsed. Where certification is by comparison with a

manufacturer's reference vehicle, the nd transmission fitted to the modified vehicle
must be identical to those fitted by the manufacturer to the reference vehicle.

3.3 Axle Ratings

With increase in GVM, addads are placed on axles. The original vehicle

manufacturer's axle rating t ot be exceeded in normal and practical loading resulting
after the GVM is reratedQlnlessreinforced replacement axles are fitted; in that case their

ratings must not be excged

suspension as; ed to the modified vehicle must be identical to those fitted by the
manufacturer t erence vehicle with the higher GVM rating.

N

Where ceﬂiﬁcaliom@o parison with a manufacturer's reference vehicle, the axle and
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

Changes associated with rerated GVM may place additional load on vehicle's tailshaft. For
example:

« changes to vehicle ride height which may aiter the tailshaft and pinion angles;

s alterations to a vehicle's wheelbase may result in change in tailshaft length;

« changes to engine and/or transmissions may impose increased torsional loading on the
tailshaft.

The vehicle's tailshaft strength and its installation must be suitable at the vehicle's rera
GVM.

3.5 Suspension

With an increase in gross mass, additional loads are placed on suspension icle's
suspension ratings must not only be adequate for the revised GVM but must-be to
accommodate the axle loads resuiting from normal and practical loading pal cts of

ttems.
changes in ride height must be carefully considered. FOR EXAMPLE, bu @’- rebound
travel, hydraulic brake hose length, handling & roll stability. ¢ U

3.6 Bra @

A vehicle’s braking performance is directly affected by changes to cle's gross Joad.
Therefore, the vehicle's braking system must be assessed to detegrmi he original system
is adequate for the proposed GVM or if it requires to be upg .

3.7 Steering

The entire steering system must be identical to that fitted by anufacturer to the criginal or
reference vehicle as appropriate. If the steering syste l-g ified or a new steering system is
fitted it must be approved under the LS section of Vehic tandards Bulletin 14 — National

Code of Practice for Light Vehicle Construction an caljon

es and Rims

fitted must be at least equal to the GVM.
the rims. Moreover the load capacity of the
to support the load imposed on that axle.

The sum of the load carrying capacitie
The same applies to load carrying
tyres (and rims) on each axle must b

The load carrying capacity of a € or rim must not be exceeded when the vehicle is loaded
to the revised GVM rating and th istibuted in a practical and uniform way.

The tyres and rims must be se to comply with the requirements of the relevant ADR

for the vehicle at t GVM rating. The revised tyre size and load rating must also
appear on the mo te and in the owner's handbook.

S
&

(ADR 24/... or ADR 42/0@ vised GVM rating.
If required, an amen%:’ed lacard must be fitted to indicate the correct tyre specifications
El
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4.0 Load Capacity Label and Handhook

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
{bal!l weight).

If the vehicle’s handbook is not available this information must be provided in written form to
the cwner of the vehicle ..« <. In addition this information may be included on the load

The tabel must follow the below label as an example and must be fitted to the vehicle, as

capacity labe! discussed below. @
A label containing important information about the vehicle's load capacity must also be fitted. g
close as practicable to the vehicle's tyre placard. («

ommented [EPA15): Where do they get these and the

“ sample still has SSM
Ratings ltem Rating Information
SSM Approval # {if applicable)
Rerated GVM kg AN
Maximum Towing Mass at GVM* kg A N
Maximum Front Axle/s Mass Penmitted kg A~
Maximum Rear Axle/s Mass Permitted kg (( N\
*Waming: The maximum mass the vehicle can safely tow @& on
vehicle loading and/or trailer ball weight. For further informati %%%;towing
capacities please refer to the vehicle's handb
O/

5.0 Limitations

For modifications not permitted under LS11 code see Secti %dition. the following
limitations mentioned in sections 5.1 and 5.2 apply.

5.1 Electronic Stability Control @

Changes to a vehicle's GVM can have a direct eﬂ&@cmnic stability control (ESC)
performance. Therefore, for vehicles fitted with E@ stem must be tested to ensure it

continues {o comply with the relevant ADR or manufacturer's specifications. However, this is
not required where a vehicle’s GVM is being {6“a manufacture’s alternative variant or
by SSM approval such thal the system's as been demonstrated.

5.2 Effect on towing capacity
The towing capacity of a light veliicle expressed as Gross Combinalion Mass (GCM) rating or
Rated Towing Capacity or Maximu ked Towing Mass rating must not exceed the value set

by the original vehicle manufa code does not permit an increase in rated towing
capacity or GCM rating. For m vehicles rated towing capacity or GCM rating may not
d i

be specified by the original yehi nufacturer. In such cases the limit mentioned in the

Safe Towing Guide appli the original vehicle manufacturer has specified GCM rating
or rated towing capacity imum braked towing mass, please note that the maximum mass
that can be legally tow henthe vehicle is loaded at the rerated GVM must be proporticnately
reduced to ensure t m of GVM and maximum towing mass at GVM before and after
rerating remains u@d.

6.0 Additionawations and Changes to Vehicle Category

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

RTI 135/05888 - File 4 - 100f 97



7.0 Use of LS11 code to provide design certification for GVM Rerating

LS11 code may now be used to provide design certification for GVM rerating of a vehicle of a
particular make/modelivariantchassis series. The design certification may be provided using
any of the rerating criteria discussed in Section 2.2 to 2.5 of this code.

The design certification must be comprehensive enough so a suitably qualified and accredited
Approved Person holding a relevant code is able to follow the instructions, inspect and certify a
series of modified vehicles of thal make/modelivariant/chassis series and generate the
necessary evidence to ensure that the requirements of the design certification are met.

When LS11 code is used in this way to provide design certification, the Approved Person
providing the design certification may not inspect the modified vehicle and is not required t

an LS11 modification plate to the vehicle. Also the checklist completed as part of the sign
certification may not refer to any particular VIN,

certificate and (c) LS11 modification checklist. All these outputs must be preserv ds

The outputs of a Design Certification under LS11 are (a) design package (b) LS1 ;@om
re
and must be made available, on request, for audit and enfercement purpose, @

7.1 Design Package @

following four requirements:

7.1.1 Scope of what is eligible \&9

Design certification must tightly describe to which makelm@wﬂchassis series it applies.
If its applicability is restricted to specific build years that e mentioned.

This output must result in a set of documents that clearly and oomp y address the

Since the modification and the rerating is being do ervice vehicles, the condition of
those in-service vehicles plays an important role ingétermining which vehicle can safely receive
the rerating. This must be reflected in the scope s f the design package by stating what
must be inspecled and what is acceptable @ e that the vehicle is safe to modify and
receive rerating. Condition of the sho Hers/ suspension, frame, tow equipment and
brakes are key areas to inspect. Absence of s, deformations and structural damage due
to rust is also critical.

Design certification package must indlude a template of checklist that needs be completed as
arecord that, before modificatior icle was inspected and confirmed that it is eligible and
is in sound condition,

7.1.2 Evidence packa@

Integral to the desi e cutput is the collection of various test reports and engineering
calculations that v@e rerating when modified as prescribed. Test reports must be from
reputed test Ia%@ﬁ5 , must have unique identification number and must be signed and
dated. Testr S t make unambiguous reference to the specific make/modelivariants of

N
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the vehicle or component to which they apply and must contain conclusion about pass
according to the relevant criteria.

Engineering calculations must be legible and must include assumptions, if any. They m
compiled under a unique identifier.

If any evidence is sourced from a third party, the package must include a written perm
from that party for use of its reports.

For reasons of commercial confidence or sensitivity, it is not uncommon for design certifier to
not include the entire evidence package in the design package output being given to the
customer, Where this is the case, however, the design package must list all the key test reports
and calculation sheets (using their unique identifiers) and provide written assurance that il
evidence package wilt be made available, on request, for audit and enforcement purposes.

7.1.3 Work instructions for modification

The design package output must contain detailed work instructions on how to~tnodify
vehicle, parts to be used, sequence of actions to be performed, what precatiio
be taken and what process controls to be applied.

Work instructions must also include details of any (non-destructive) testing andinspectio
be carried out o ensure that the medification standards are met.

The instructions must be easy to understand, unambiguous 2n0d_shodld include suffi
pictorials and graphics.

The work instruction must also include contact detail for quérying neseeking clarification, s
that be required during medification.

7.1.4 Checklist for the modifier and the certifier

This output of the design package consists of two séparate checklists one each for the vehicle
modifier and the certifier of the physical meddification. The purpose of these checklists is to
generate evidence that the modifier/and the—gertifier of the physical modification have
understood and followed the prescribed procediire and are able to confirm that the intent of the
design package has been met. The design-certifier under LS11 may choose to collect such
completed checklists from the médifier and the certifier of physical modification as partofh

own quality assurance or risk management practice.

Note that this checklist is different than any checklist that the certifier of the physical modifica
may be required to compléteaspart his/her certification under the relevant code.

7.2 Modification Certiiicate
For this output, a medifigation certificate must be issued similar to any other moedification code,

except that the dedificate may not make reference to any specific modification plate number or
vehicle by ils"WIN.
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for each design certified under LS11 code. Comment
they al

Do we make photos mandatory if

7.3 Modification Checklist \
For this output, the modification checklist at the end of this code must be completed and retained
A20T:
od
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Checklist LS11
Gross Vehicle Mass Increase \

CODE LS11 @
Form No: LS11
(Y=Yes, N=No, N/A= Not Applicable)

S

1 | Suspension ___|. _ - - { commented (EPAZ1]: Is there some way to add a section
at the sian of the checklist that will enable identification as 1o
1.1 | Is the vehicle's suspension suitable for the increased GVM? wes 1Y [N ( ther the is a design only certificate or if the AP is
aking both rolls?
. i be done then the chance of an LS 11 engineer being
2 Chassis azy and just handing cver the instructions for one where he
2.4 | lsthe chassis suitable for the increased GYM? — 1y [N has had both rolts
3 | Axles \>
34 | Arethe axle ratings suitable for the increased GVMI? . }\ N
N
a4 | Engine/Transmission 4“\\Q
44 | s the engineftransmission sitable for the increased GVM? ( ) N
) O
5 Braking System
5.1 Has a brake test been carried out on the modified vehic
' ensure compliance with ADR 31/.. or 35/., whiche v
applicable? NA Y | N
(applicable in all cases apart from upgrading
approval or original vehicle manufacturer's optional
Is the vehicle's brake system suitable for the incre GYM?
52 & —— Y N
- 7
6 Tyres and Rims
Y Ca
Does the Modification Plate record the co! é\@énd rim sizes
6.1 ——
and load ratings for the modified vehicrg(& M N
Has an updated tyre placard been fitte e vehicle?
6.2 -~ |Y |N
72NN
Do tyres and rims fitted conform to the midification plate and the
6.3 — Y |N
tyre placard?

6.4 | Are load ratings of the tyregg\n\d}y adequate for the — |y IN
vehicle's new GVM?
7 | Electronic Stability Cantsol

I

71 Has the vehicle's E%m been tested to confirm that the
system continue, he relevant ADR or manufacturer's | NFA|Y | N

specifications?

8 Load Capa@}&mation
g1 |!sthelo hadity Label attached to the vehicle?

gy |Has “veficle's handbook been amended or additional
) informal

een included on the Load Capacity Label?

e |Y |N

— Y |N
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8.1

8.2

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11

12

1241
12.2

12.3

124

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
use that S5M design?

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
suspension, tyres and rims, etc) identical to the SSM design?

Q

Fitment of an additicnal axle

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

L

If the vehicle’s GVM has been increase more than 10% is fiie) 2 Y N
additional axle load sharing? (
Only if LS11 code is used to provide Design Ca@
Is a comprehensive design package provided? @ - ¥ N
Does the design package have a unique idei n
number? — Y N c R is thi _
B ommented [EPA22): Where is this recorded — both here
and on the certificate or even in the centification details al the
Does the design package clearly desc hi — Y N end of the cheekhst.?
make/modelfvariant/chassis series ig eligibteXfor rerating?
Does the design package incl g on what to inspect
in the in-service vehicle and fiow to ditermine its fithess to -- Y N

receive GVM upgrade?

Does the design pack include a complete Evidence — Y

Package on which the G rating is based?

Does the design pack@wde comprehensive work

instructions inclu: 0 be done, precaulions to be - Y Commented [EPA23): Should there be a question/area

taken, control of ploc:

Does the des&ckage include a checklist for the modifier

of the

N

vehicle?

of the veh@
Does% iafy package include a checklist for the certifier

s and tests to be conducted?

— Y

— Y
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12.9 Does the design package address all the requirements of this

code? ¥ \
Note: If the answer to any question is N (No) the design cannot be certified under LS11
code. [f N/A does not already appear in the checklist then it cannot be used.
CERTIFICATION DETAILS
Year of
Make Model Manufacture @
VIN

Chassis Number
{if applicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s

Vehicle Modified By

Cortificate Number
{If applicable)

Vehicle Certified By (Print)

Signatory’s Employer
(If applicabte)}

Signatory’s Signature
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Modifications Leading to Rerating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light
Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification

Code LS15
1.0 Scope

The LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to cerdify physical medifications leading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or less) when those
modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design certification. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the L515 certification must follow the process specified in the
design package in the relevant LS11 design cerlification.

This doesn't stand cut as being the code - a

]: LS1 1 alks about amending ty7e placard
Label and Handbook - arc we relying of the LS 11
1@ inchadi this in the instructions — il we are 1

e a big problem.

mentod [EPA3]: Is this meant 1o mean the same as
cording 1o instructions™ under I 1 as | think “process specified” is

001 that €asy for our APs lo understand
1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code

Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified under LS15 code:

» Rerating of a light vehicle's GVM by modifying it according to the instructions in an LS11
certification issued for the same/make/model/variant/chassis series.

= Rerating of a light vehicle's GVM in accordance with a letter from the inal “vehicle

manufacturer,
_— Q¢
1.2 Certifications not permitted under L515 code: x
Light vehicle modifications of the following types must not be cedified under L% !

* Meodifications other than those covered under Section 1.1 above.
* Rerating of a vehicle which does not qualify for GVM rerating.un ST code,
s Reraling of a vehicle, the GVM of which, before modification, is ter than 4500 kg.

s Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of which, after modiﬁcalio@reater than 4500 kg.
0 W

* Rerating of GVM by comparing with an alternative mak ehicle.

* Rerating of GVM by comparing with another vehicle s been previously rerated using a

medification code.

s Rerating of GVM based on assessment o ponent specifications or component

manufacturer's specifications only.
* Rerating of GVM prior to first regist an e in Australia. For it, follow the procedures

prescribed for obtaining a Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

2.0 General Requirements \
2.1 Typical Modifications

Typical physical modifications i d rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspension or braking system alternative components which collectively may permit a different
rating and/or reinforcement c% e.

2.2 Rerating without Mo, tioris

In some cases rerati%n% may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter is

Connecting Queensland 13 QGov (13 74 68)

delivering transport fw’x www.tmr.qld.gov.au | www.qld.gov.au
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issued by the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required. Care must .
be taken when comparing, as some properties may not be obvious and evident. In these instances, Comme S]: the AP comparing®
evidence must be retained to demonstrate that the vehicle is identical to the manufacturer's letter.

2.3 Affected ADRs

Modified vehicle must continue to comply with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) to which it was
originally construcled and also the ADRs that apply to it after modification. Where there is a conflict, it
is sufficient for the vehicle to comply with the ADRs that apply to it after the modification.

sl [EPAG]: Is the conllict only in relation 1o the ADRs
adification that is. all ather ADRs for construction

Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the design package of the

2.4 Work Instructions from the LS11 design package @
relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform to the design package. ;
evide
esig

2.5 Testing and [nspection

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design package must be completed and
of it must be held by the LS15 cerifier. This includes completing any checklisi(s) that the
package requires

3.0 Specific Requirements

3.1 Tyres and Whesl Rims

leasl equal 1o the load raling of that axle or axle group or the load imposed at axle or axle group
when the vehicle is loaded to its rated GVM (with the load distributed uniforpaly and-iii a practical way),
whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly a qi' cally, must not result in the
load on any tyre or rim exceeding its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured to comply with ADR 24/... or AD 10 e tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with the requirements of that ADR at th VM rating

to be replaced with a new placard
cified in the LS11 design certification.
he rodification plate.

Where a tyre placard is fitted to a vehicle, this placard ma
replicating the manufacturer's alternative modet vehicle
The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear

3.2 Chassis @

The chassis of the modified vehicle must be//according o the LS11 design certification or identical to
the original vehicle manufaclurer's alternate|rmodel/variant.

3.3 Brakes

The complete braking system must be-as cified in the LS11 design certification or identical to the
vehicle manufacturer's specification -. ternate model/variant.

3.4 Axles and Suspension

Loading of the vehicle to its ith lpad distributed uniformly and practically, must not result in the
load on any axie or suspen exceéeding its rated capacity. Rated capacity of an axie or suspension
is the rating specified jginal vehicle manufacturer, unless reinforced replacement axle or
suspension is fitted.

Connecting Queenslan 13 QGov (13 74 68)
detivering transport foﬂx www.tmr.qld.gov.au | www.qld.gov.au

Commented [EPAT]: The label that has ta be attached as part of
LS11 is not mentioned in LS5 who is responsible for ensuring that
the label is fitved?
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3.5 Fabrication

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering standards. Cutting, heating,
welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosing unmodified production components
wherever possible. @

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Condition

Before carrying out the modifications and cerification under LS15 code, the condition of the in-service

vehicle must checked as specified in the design package of LS11 design certification to ensure that the

vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is lo be achieved in two steps, @
Step-1 To verify that the vehicle make/modelfvariant/chassis series and build year is within the

of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2 To inspect and verify that the condition of the vehicle is suitable for rerating. Th levant
instructions in the design package of LS11 design certification must be followed to ensure th

chassis frame, suspension, brakes and so on are in safe and serviceable condition at the rerated
GVM. Evidence of this inspection must be recorded in the checklist provided. @

3.7 Manufacturer’s Letter
Rerating based on original vehicle manufacturer's letter: QO

In this option a letter issued by the vehicle's original manufacturer is required. m
To be considered acceplable, the manufaclurer's letter must contain at least llo!

+  Vehicle manufacturer's details (i.e. manufacturer's letter head with t@'@om‘lation)

s Make/model/variant of the vehicle

informa

« Vehicle Identification Number (VIN} of the paricular vehicle b ed
¢« Details of any physical changes required to be performed t icle (along with details of
specific components to be fitted)

» Revised GVM rating @
o Signed and dated by the delegate of the original veti ufacturer

QO

e
9

Connecting Queensland 13 QGov (13 74 68)
delivering transport forpx www.lmr.gld.gov.au | www.gld.gov.au
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Checklist LS15 \
Re-rating of Gross Vehicles Mass of a Light Vehicle to LS11 Design Certification [(\\
CODE L815 _ - - Com PAB]: | belicve that we can make this checklist
_________________________ - | m by expanding the information - clarifying
Form No; LS15 | what is needeq)

1 General

S

this modificalion Design Cent No. ... ooooviieiriee..

Do yeubave: e _ @ atted: Font: Not Bold, Font ¢olar: Auto
acopy of the 1811 design certificalion package wilh all inshuctions to certify | _ ;, “~Farmatted: Font: Not Bold, Fonk color: Auto

OR

aco ofaletier from the ori inal vehicle mandiacturer  AN_ )] _ - - Formatted: Font: Not Bald, Font color; Auto
Note: If ou do not have one of the above ouareunableto = [ =~ - = Formatted: Font: Bold
modifyicertify this vehicte, ~ . ___ - - < Formatted: Font color: Auto

R S S —

o &_ § e ':lrFormalted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto

3 Brake system

31

Are you accredited to cedify the additional modification codes
L5311 dasign cerification ora-etierfrom ihe ofiginal-vel T
e

21 | Does the chassis conform to the detail construction, se &
22 Is the chassis frame structurally sound, free from deformation,
’ cracks and rust perforation? @N'\%

package of the LS11 design certification or tions in the Y |N

and fouling/stretching?

Vs N> Y [N
4.1 . .
axle configurations, axle loads a

re uired b the LS11 des™ n certification acka e or the vehicle o
panufaciurer-besn-raiamad for-lulurg-audi?
properties and cross-members of the LS11 design p%
A4
(=
vehicle manufacturer’s letter?
4 Tyres and Rims >
rd the: correct tyre and rim sizes,
vehicle as specified in therL$11 desian cerlification?

@) )
manufaciurer's letier?Have-all-datails-olthedescign package-of Q% > . - - Commented [EPAS]: Not sure how to word his! 1t
LA

2 Chassis

any specified in the vehicle manufacturer's letter?

Is the vehicle's entire braking system as specified-irf the/design
32 Is the braking system in serviceable t‘fa{@ee from leaks, wear vy N

Does the tyre placard (if fitted)

ion pressures for the modified | Y | N

42 | Are tyres and rims fitted i ance 1o the tyre placard? Y |N

5 Eligibility- Makelmod“l@?ﬂchassis series

51 | Does the vehicle m&@ibiﬁty criteria as specified in the LS11
) design cerlificatio

6 Eligibitity- Ve&&dition
Is the vehitc%\ﬁfactory structural and mechanical condition?

W\?’
Connecting Queenslan
delivering trensport far&

61

13 QGov (13 74 68)
www.tmr.qld.gov.au | www.gld.gov.au
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Workmanship

71

Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?

72

Are the checklists required in the LS11 design certification
completed?

7.3

Are all the inspections and tests as required in LS11 design
certification completed?

7.4

Is the GVM rerating plate/label as specified in the LS11 design
certification fitted?

< | x| x|

Z|lZ |  Z2|Z

75

Have wuke tallsu ortin documents relied onb u ihe certif
this miodification and phetos of the medified vehicle for future audit?

Note: If the answer 1o any question is N {No) the modification cannot be certified under
LS154.

delivering transport for

Connecting Queensland 5@
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CERTIFICATION DETAILS

Year of
Make Mo Manufacture
VIN

Chassis Number

(it applicable) @
Brief Description of

Madification/s

Vehicle Modified By

TMR In-Principle Approval
Number

Vehicle Certified By (Print}

Signatory's Employer o §

(If applicable)
Signatory’s Signature

Cannecting Queenslan 13 QGov (13 74 68)
delivering transport for www.tmr.gld.gov.au | www.gld.gov.au
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Deann G Coleman

From: Deann G Coleman

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 10:41 AM

To: Tracey L Dreier

Cc: Elizabeth P Austin

Subject: FW: As Discussed

Attachments: LS 11 Version May 2018 V2.1 (002) V3 AS changes.docx; LS 15 Vefsion May 2018 V1

AS comments.docx \
Tracey and Liz, @@

Only a few suggested changes on the LS15.

Kind regards, @

Deann Coleman @
A/Principal Policy Advisor | Transport Access And Use
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 10| 61 Mary Street | Brisbhane Qld 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
P: (07) 30662479 | F: (07) 30662155

E: deann.q.coleman@tmr.qld.qov.au §
Q \

W: www.tmr.gld.qov.au

XS

‘@
S
N

From: Deann G Coleman @

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 10:10 AM
To: Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@ q v.au>

Cc: Elizabeth P Austin <Elizabeth.P.Austin@tmr.qld.gov.au>
Subject: FW: As Discussed

Tracey @

I've revied the L$11 and h@uments/markups, and so on for consideration.

N

I'li now start on LSlS@
Kind regards, %

Deann Colema
A/Principal P isor | Transport Access And Use
Transport Regulation Branch | Depantment of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 10| 61 Mary Sireei | Brishane Qid 4000
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4008

P: (07) 30662479 | F; (07) 30662155

E: deann.g.coleman@tmr.gld.gov.au

W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au
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From: Tracey L Dreier

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 9:04 AM

To: Deann G Coleman <deann.g.coleman@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Elizabeth P Austin <elizabeth.p.austin@tnif.qld.gov.au>
Subject: FW: As Discussed

Hi guys

Can you please review the attached as soon as possible and provide comments so at’can go back to Scott.
Thanks.

Regards

Tracey Dreier

A/Manager (Operator Accreditation & Authorisation)

Transport Regulation Branch

Customer Service, Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Trapsport and Main Roads

Floor 10 | 61 Mary Street  Brishane Qid 4000 | PO Box 673 Fartitude Valley Qld 4006
07 3066 2532 33384640 Not relevant
tracey.l.dreier@tmr.gld.gov.au
www.tmr.qld.gov.au

From: Scott G Notley

Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 9:02 AM

To: Tracey L Dreier <Tracey.Dreier@tmr.gld.gov.aus
Subject: FW: As Discussed

As promised.

| have not checked codes as yet. Canyau'get one of your guys to check as soon as possible and provide me with any
feedback.

Regards

Scott Notley

A/Director (Standards-and-Accreditation)

Transport Regulation'\Brafch

Customer Service; Safety and Regulation Division | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Floor 9 / 614Mar#St Brishane Qld 4000 | PO Box 673 Fortitude Valley Qld 4006
t 07 3338 408213253 4453 | m " CEE:
e Scott.G.Notley@tmr.qld.gov.au

w www.tmr.gld.gov.au

From: Peter N Twining
Sent: Friday, 1 June 2018 8:46 AM
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To: Scott G Notley <Scott.G.Notley@tmr.gid.gov.au>
Cc: Anant Z Bellary <Anant.Z.Bellary@tmr.gld.gov.au>
Subject: As Discussed

Please see document and ne mod codes as requested.
Dear Stakeholders

the operation of the previcusly developed 1511 modification code, particularly in the remote a al areas of

The Vehicle Standards Unit of TMR has recently developed a new Light Vehicle Modification Cod to enhance
Nl
Queensland.

The attached LS15 modification code allows Approved Persons to certify physical modi @ leading to the
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4,500 kg or less) when thoseumg@difications conform to
the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 design certification. In addition to @ requirements in this code,

the LS15 certification must follow the process specified in the design package in th ant L511 design
certification issued to the vehicle of same make/model/variant/chassis series. f//i

The LS11 modification code has been amended to enable it to provide design cexgification. Some other changes are
also made to provide greater clarity about the intent of the LS11 code. Not he 1511 code can continue to be
used as a combined design and modification code to certify GVM rera@ its own, without using the new LS15
code.

Both the new LS15 code and the amended L511 code are now gro <> o you for your perusal and feedback. Please

provide comments, if any, in the attached feedback sheet whi %e emailed to _
vehiclestandards@tmr.qgld.gov.au . The last date for submitti comments is close of business on Friday 29%"
8.

June 2018. It is intended to implement these codes from 1

v
Kind regards ®\
9

Peter Twining
Senior Policy Advisor (Standards and Accreditatio
Transport Regulation Branch | Department of T ort and Main Roads

Floor 9 | 61 Mary Street | Brisbane Qid 4000 @
PO Box 673 | Fortitude Valley Qld 4006

P: (07) 20666537
E: peter.n.twining@tmr.qgld.gov.au

W www.imr.qld.qov.au \
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
rerating of Gross Vehicle Mass (GVM) of a light vehicle (GVM 4500 kg or leSs) when those
modifications conform to the specifications contained in the relevant LS11 d @%rﬁfication. In
addition to the requirements in this code, the LS15 certification must follow th ined/ modification
process specified in the design package in the relevant LS11 design certificati

1.1 Certifications permitted under LS15 code @
Light vehicle modifications of the following types may be certified unde 15 code:
. Rerating of a light vehicle’'s GVM by modifying it accor@' e instructions in an LS11

design certification issued for the same/make/model hassis series.
. Rerating of a light vehicle’s GVM in accordance wit etter from the original vehicle
manufacturer.

1.2 Certifications not permitted under LS15 co
Light vehicle modifications of the following types @ t be certified under LS15 code:

o
. Modifications other than those covere ection 1.1 above.
o Rerating of a vehicle which does not or GVM rerating under LS11 code.
U Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM of wh fore modification, is greater than 4500 kg.
. Rerating of a vehicle, the GVM ich, after modification, will be greater than 4500 kg.
. Rerating of GVM by comparing %n alternative make/model of vehicle.
. Rerating of GVM by compari@m another vehicle which has been previously rerated
using a modification code.
. Rerating of GVM based sessment of component specifications or component

manufacturer's specificatiorns.only.
) Rerating of GVM prior to registration anywhere in Australia. In this instanceFeri, follow
the procedures pres .@. for obtaining a Second Stage Manufacture (SSM) approval.

2.0 General Requiremen@

21 Typical Modi ions

Typical physical cations involved in rerating of GVM may include replacement of axle(s),
suspension ng system with alternative components which collectively may permit a
different ra@or reinforcement of the chassis frame.

2.2 Retating without Modifications

In so&% es, rerating of GVM may not involve physical changes. For example, where a letter

is i y the original vehicle manufacturer clearly indicating that no changes are required.
<;gwmt be taken when comparing vehicles/components, as some properties may not be

ob s and evident. In these instances, evidence must be retained to demonstrate that the

vehicle is identical to the manufacturer’s letter.

Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicle ModifigatignssIsansnrrk andJi@in Roads, February 2018



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
modification.

2.4 Work Instructions from the LS11 design packag
Modifications must be carried out following the work instructions provided in the \design packag
of the relevant LS11 design certification. Replacement parts must conform téthe-design package

2.5 Testing and Inspection

Testing and inspection requirements specified in the design packagé must’be completed and
evidence ofitmust be held by the LS15 certifier. This includes completing any checklist(s) that
the design package requires.

Specific Requirements

When rerating GVM, the chassis, suspension, axles and drive train components must be used within
the vehicle manufacturer's rated capacities. Specific instructions/provided in LS11 design package
must be followed.

The following specific requirements must be met.

3.1 Tyres and Wheel Rims

The sum of the load carrying capacities of thefyres and rims fitted to an axle or axle group must
be at least equal to the load rating of that axié o axle group or the load imposed on that axle or
axle group when the vehicle is loadeddois rated GVM (with the load distributed uniformly and in
a practical way), whichever is less.

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM/with-Joad distributed uniformly and practically, must not result
in the load on any tyre or rim exceedifg its rated capacity.

For vehicles manufactured te-comply with ADR 24/... or ADR 42/04, the tyres and rims fitted must
comply in all respects with'the requirements of that ADR at the revised GVM rating.

Where a tyre placard is-fitted to a vehicle, this placard may needrequire-to be replaced with a
new placard repli€ating the manufacturer's alternative model vehicle or as specified in the LS11
design certificatior: The revised tyre size and load rating must also appear on the modification
plate.

The load capacity label must be fitted as close to the tyre placard as possible.

3.2 Chassis
The chassis of the modified vehicle must be according to the LS11 design certification or identical
to theeriginal vehicle manufacturer’s alternate model/variant.

3.3 Brakes
The complete braking system must be as specified in the LS11 design certification or identical to
the vehicle manufacturer's specifications for the alternate model/variant.

Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicle Modifinationss dsansped apghMain Roads, February 2018



3.4 Axles and Suspension

Loading of the vehicle to its GVM with load distributed uniformly and practically, must not resuit
in the load on any axle or suspension exceeding its rated capacity. Rated capacity of an axle or
suspension is the rating specified by the original vehicle manufacturer, uniess reinforced
replacement axle or suspension is fitted.

3.5 Fabrication

All work must be performed in accordance with recognised engineering st @%Zutting,
heating, welding or bending of components should be avoided by choosina%@d ed
production components wherever possible. @

3.6 Vehicle Eligibility and In-service Condition @
Before carrying out the modifications and certification under LS15 code;the condition of the in-

service vehicle must checked as specified in the design packag@Sﬁ design certification to
ensure that the vehicle is eligible for rerating. This is to be achiev two steps.

Step-1: Fo-vVerify that the vehicle make/model/variant/chas ies and build year is within the
scope of the LS11 design certification.

Step-2: Fe-linspect and verify that the condition of th@'@le is suitable for rerating. The relevant
instructions in the design package of LS11 desig ,.\ ication must be followed to ensure that
the chassis frame, suspension, brakes and sg o in safe and serviceable condition at the
rerated GVM. Evidence of this inspection mu@corded in the checklist provided.

3.7 Manufacturer's Letter @
Rerating based on original vehicle ma%%a r's letter, :

s original manufacturer is required.

In this option, a letter issued by the vei
To be considered acceptable, the ma cturer’s letter must contain at least the following

information: %

Vehicle manufacturer’ (i.e. manufacturer's letter head with contact information).
Make/model/variant ¢f the vehicle.

Vehicle Identification Namber (VIN) of the particular vehicle being modified.

Details of any K ical changes required to be performed to the vehicle (along with details
of specific ponents to be fitted).

. Revised GV ing.

. Signature dated by the delegate of the original vehicle manufacturer.

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

a copy of the LS11 design certification package with all instruc‘ﬁ%

certify this modification. Design Cert No. .........................

OR a copy of a letter from the original vehicle manufactu :-

Note: If you do not have one of the above you are u.

modify/certify this vehicle.

Are you accredited to certify the additional modificat des required
by the LS11 design certification package or the v(e\&>> anufacturer's
letter? o
c/
2 Chassis @
21 Does the chassis conform to the detail construction, section properties
' and cross-members of the LS11 design @@ge or to any specified in
the vehicle manufacturer’s letter?
29 Is the chassis frame structurally sour@e\-/ from deformation, cracks
‘ and rust perforation? Onl
3 Brake system >
V72N
3.1 Is the vehicle's entire brakin s specified in the design package of
) the LS11 design certificati pecifications in the vehicle
manufacturer’s letter? &
39 Is the braking system in.s icéable condition, free from leaks, wear and
) fouling/stretching?
4 Tyres and Rims @
AN
4.1 Does the tyre pla (iffitted) record the correct tyre and rim sizes, axle
) configurations, ds and inflation pressures for the modified vehicle
as specifiedin @SH design certification?
4.2 Are tyres and rims fitted in conformance to the tyre placard?
5 EIigi@h‘i\yiMakelmodeIlvariantichassis series
5 1 Does/! ehicle meet the eligibility criteria as specified in the LS11 design
) certification?
6 (é&;bmty- Vehicle condition
6.1 (B‘I?Rthe vehicle in satisfactory structural and mechanical condition?

N

N

A

Workmanship

RN

~

Is the quality of the workmanship to a satisfactory standard?

7.2

Are the checklists required in the LS11 design certification completed?

7.3

Are all the inspections and tests as required in LS11 design certification

completed?

Queensland Code of Practice — Vehicie Modﬂiﬂa{mgg@npﬁgg %Mﬁin Roads, February 2018




74 Is the GVM rerating plate/label as specified in the LS11 design
' certification fitted?

75 Have you kept all supporting documents relied on by you to cerify this
' modification and photos of the modified vehicle for future audit?

$
o
<&
N

CERTIFICATION DETAILS

I Year of

@é @ Manufacture

Make

VIN

Chassis Number @
(If appiicable)

Brief Description of
Modification/s \
Vehicle Modified

TMR In-Princ@vm
d

Number

Vehicle Ce Prin
Signato ployer

(If app

s@w Si nature

Queensland Code of Practice - Vehicle Modifications, Transpprt and Main Roads, February 2018




Gross Vehicle Mass Rating of Light Vehicles \

CODE LS11 @

The L311 Modification Code specifies arrangements for re-rating of the Gross Vehicle Mass @

1.0 Scope

(GVM) rating of a light vehicle that is, a vehicle having current GVM rating that does not exceed

A light vehicle that is constructed on a ladder type chassis frame with a cabin and/or body
mounted on it. Vehicles with integrated frame and body, commonly known as mono:

4,500 kg.
Re-rating of GVM under LS11 code is permissible only on the following type of light veh®@@

original manufacturer's GVM rating is not eligible for re-rating under this code. ~ —~_ B re-rated throughout document. Same with rerating or re-

construction, are not eligible. Also a light vehicle that has been previously re-rated from - = ‘] Commented [DGCL]: Consistency. Either spell rerated or
rating.

The original vehicle manufacturer refers to the enlity holding the First Stage Identifi Plate
Approval (IPA). Any entity holding the Second Stage Manufacture (SSM r RAWS
Approval is not deemed as the original vehicle manufacturer.

) Ap

Qo
In cases where the original vehicdle manufacturer has not specified the GV %ne maximum
laden mass permitted by the original vehicle manufacturer for the purpos g compliance
with the Australian Design Rules (ADRs) s to be taken as the original G ! This information
must be obtained from a reliable and traceable source.

1.1 What is permitted \‘&9

Mcedifications that may be certified under LS11 code

. Up te 10% increase in the GVM rating give original vehicle manufacturer,
. Exceptions to the limit of 10% apply in followin Ses:

o GVM rating of an in-servic icle that is of the same the

make/modelfvariant/chassis seri avehicle having a SSM approval for

rdance with the SSM approval AND
the SSM approval holder has
to be used as the basi GVhITE

< Increase in GVM wherg an addjtional axle has been installed.

o Alteration of a vehicles\GVM/rating to match the vehicle manufacturer's
alternative rating for a p ar variant of that make/model.

1.2 Whatis not permitte?@\

Modifications that must no ified under LS11 code are:

. Modifications ot n those described in Section 1.1 above.

. Reduction in GV rating other than the re-rating to manufacturer's optional GVM
l¢! nd also in case of GVM reductions require as a result of
conversion vy metorhomes.

n a vehicle which has previously received a GVM re-rating (by
Queenslanh

proval or LS11 code or another Code of Practice or another
Practice — Vehicle Modifications, Transport and Main Roads, February 2018
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

1.3 Towing Capacity and L§11 Code
« 1511 code is not to be used for changing the rating of _towing capacity, Grg =~ Commented [DGC2): Formatting issuc.

Combination Mass {GCM) rating or maximum braked towing mass of the
These ratings must remain the same as thoseat provided by the criginal v
manufacturer.

+ When the vehicle is loaded to the GVMgross-vehidle-mass according to ating,
ehicle

icle.

the safe trailer mass it can tow must be adjusted so that the total GCM

mass does not exceed the rating or the limit specified by the origin
manufacturer.
¢

General Requirements
The wvehicle must be able to safely operate at the re-rated GVM. %ﬁal components

including the chassis, drive-train, axles, suspension, brakes, steering, nd tyres must be
assessed individually to ensure that they can safely suppor